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L INTRODUCTION.

Blockchains, LLC and its affiliates (collectively, “Blockchains™) oppose the Special Use Permit
2020-021 request (“SUP Request™) by Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle”) to construct and operate a
bichazardous medical and other special waste incineration facility (the “Proposed Waste
Incineration Plant”) at 1655 Milan Drive, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, a portion of APN
005-11173 (the “Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Site”). It is clear that Stericycle submitted
this SUP Request as quickly and quietly as possible in an attempt to prevent relevant stakeholders
from conducting the type of due diligence typically required for projects proposed by biohazardous
waste companies. Blockchains thanks the Storey County Planning Commission for previously
deferring any decision on the SUP Request to allow Blockchains and other stakeholders time to
fully investigate Stericycle and the SUP Request. The following represents the results of
Blockchains® investigation and we hope that it is helpful to the Storey County Planning
Commission in reviewing the SUP Request.

Blockchains submits that the required findings under the Storey County Zoning Code for the
approval of the SUP Request cannot be made for the reasons expressed in this Opposition. As
detailed below, approval of the Proposed Waste Incineration Plant under the SUP Request would
(1) cause substantial detriment to the public good, (2) substantially impair the purpose and intent
of the Storey County Zoning Code and the Storey County Master Plan, and (3) create an
unacceptable risk to the public health, safety and welfare of Storey County citizens.

I ABOUT BLOCKCHAINS.

Blockchains is a Storey County-based software development and real estate development
company. Blockchains has made substantial investments in world-class personnel, computer
systems, technology development, facilities, and land on its path to becoming the market leader in
this burgeoning field.

Since 2017, Blockchains has acquired more than 60,000 acres in McCarran and Painted Rock,
Storey County, for the purpose of developing “Innovation Park,” the only blockchain technology-
based community in the world. The planned development, which surrounds Stericycle’s Proposed
Waste Incineration Plant Site, includes a transformational high-tech business park integrated with
a master planned residential community. See Innovation Park Map, Appendix A. The purchase
represents the largest single private monetary land investment in Storey County history.

III. WHY STERICYCLE IS IN STOREY COUNTY.

Stericycle is an Illinois-based medical waste disposal company with a history of environmental,
public safety, deceptive business practices, employment, and investor and consumer fraud
violations. Since 2014, Stericycle has agreed to pay well in excess of $6.000.000 in penalties and
fines throughout the Western United States for egregious violations of environmental laws.
Perhaps even more troubling, during the three-year period from 2016 to 2019, Stericycle agreed
to pay more than $371,000,000 to settle class action lawsuits involving deceptive trade, fraud and
wage and hour violations. In its most recent Form 10-K Report filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”), Stericycle disclosed that it has been subject of investigations by



the United States Drug Enforcement Agency (“DEA”), the United States Department of Justice
(“DOJ™), the SEC, and the environmental regulatory authority for the Country of Mexico.
Stericycle has a long and uninterrupted history of harming the environment, customers, neighbors,
employees, and investors. This is not the type of corporate citizen Storey County should approve
to become a stakeholder in our community.

A. The North Salt Lake City Facility.

Stericycle’s path to submitting this SUP Request in Storey County began in North Salt Lake City,
where it operated a medical and special waste incineration plant like the one proposed in Storey
County. In 2013, the Utah Division of Air Quality (“UDAQ”) issued a “Notice of Violation”
alleging multiple violations of Stericycle’s air quality operating permit for exceeding emission
limits on dioxins and other hazardous pollutants, and misreporting emission data. On November
25, 2014, Stericycle agreed to an Administrative Settlement to pay a penalty of $2,322,536 to the
State of Utah, which reportedly was the largest in history and the maximum amount that could be
levied by the UDAQ.

Under the settlement terms, Stericycle paid one-half of the penalty, but would not be required to
pay the other half if it ceased operations at its North Salt Lake Facility within three years and
obtained approvals for a new facility in a desert community in Tooele County, Utah. It is worth
highlighting and repeating. Rather than require a payment in excess of $1.150.000, which is
significant revenue for a state agency, UDAQ preferred to negotiate Stericycle’s operational exit
from the North Salt Lake City community. This, alone, underscores the gravity of approving
Stericycle as a stakeholder in the Storey County community. The Utah Administrative Settlement
Order is attached hereto as Appendix B.

Stericycle tried but did not obtain approval in Tooele County within the three-year deadline and
abandoned that project while setting its sights on an alternative desert community in North Las
Vegas. It is unknown whether Stericycle paid the full fine due to its inability to cease operations
and relocate to Toole County within the required timeframe.

B. The Recommended Denial in North Las Vegas.

The North Las Vegas Planning Commission’s June 12, 2019 Planning Staff Report issued in
connection with Stericycle’s second Special Use Permit application, which recommended denial
of the application, is attached hereto as Appendix C (the “North Las Vegas Planning
Commission Staff Report™). On page 4, the North Las Vegas Planning Staff Report identified the
following violations of Stericycle’s operations at incinerator sites and provided support for the
findings in Exhibits A through F thereof:

¢ In June of 2004, Stericycle was fined by the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency for
improper disposal of hazardous waste. Twelve cubic yards of hazardous waste treatment
sludge was sent to a solid waste landfill. (Exhibit A) [agreed to pay $10,900];

e In 2011, Stericycle was in violation of air emissions tests in Utah. Stack testing data
revealed that emissions exceeded acceptable levels for hazardous pollutants, nitrogen



oxides and highly reactive gases. Stericycle was fined for this violation by the Utah
Environmental Protection Agency. (Exhibit B) [stipulated penalty of $2,322,536];

e [In] April 2011, Stericycle was in violation of air quality regulations in California for
failing to inspect its diesel trucks to ensure that the trucks met smoke emission standards.
(Exhibit C) [agreed to pay $13.500];

¢ In 2014, Stericycle agreed to a settlement with the state of New Mexico for violations of
excess waste storage time and inappropriate emergency response preparation. (Exhibit D)
[agreed to pay $120,8137;

e In 2017, Stericycle was fined by the Department of Ecology in the State of Washington for
not treating its wastewater, which overwhelmed the treatment plant in Morton, Washington
and caused the plant to violate the plant’s water quality permit. (Exhibit E) {fined $72,0007;
and

e 1In 2018, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) fined Stericycle
resulting from the failure to maintain a liability insurance policy that would provide
adequate coverage to third parties (neighbors) whose health and properties could be harmed
by a release of hazardous wastes from the facility. (Exhibit F) [agreed to pay $150.000].

The North Las Vegas Planning Commission Staff Report stated that Stericycle’s operations “could
lead to the release of substances of unknown toxicity into the air and environment, which could
negatively impact the people around the [industrial center] area.” In recommending denial, the
North Las Vegas Planning Staff identified multiple air pollutants that are released from medical
waste incinerators: dioxins and furans, PCBs, mercury, hydrogen chloride, nitrogen oxide, lead,
cadmium, sulfur dioxide, carbon monoxide and particulate matter. The Report noted that,
“According to the Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League in North Carolina, dioxins and
furans ... have been called the most dangerous chemicals known to man.”

Stericycle abandoned its medical waste incinerator project in North Las Vegas in June 2019 and
next set its sights on yet another desert community — Storey County. A December 19, 2019 news
article describing Stericycle’s journey in Utah and North Las Vegas is attached as Appendix D.

At the time of its North Las Vegas abandonment, Stericycle told reporters that it abandoned the
waste incinerator application based on “broader business considerations and facility planning.” At
the July 16, 2020 Storey County Planning Commission meeting, Stericycle representative Selin
Hoboy provided a different explanation for abandoning North Las Vegas—lack of infrastructure.
In reality, Stericycle abandoned the North Las Vegas project because it was clear that it was not
going to be approved due to the troubling facts in the North Las Vegas Planning Commission Staff
Report that caused that planning commission to recommend denial of Stericycle’s permit
application.

IV. STERICYCLE’S PATTERN AND PRACTICE OF VIOLATIONS,
PENALTIES, FRAUD. DECEPTIVE BUSINESS PRACTICES, AND
SETTLEMENTS.

The violations listed in the North Las Vegas Planning Commission Staff Report do not reflect the
complete picture of the Stericycle’s corporate irresponsibility. In addition to the substantial issues
highlighted in the North Las Vegas Planning Commission Staff Report, the following public



records show additional violations, penalties and stipulated class action settlements of Stericycle
which must be considered.

A Facility in Tacoma Washington.

Despite the $72.000 fine imposed by the Washington Department of Ecology ((“WDOE”) in 2017
referenced above, Stericycle continued its ongoing pattern and practice of violating that state’s
environmental laws. In July, 2018, Stericycle’s Tacoma facility accepted 510 drums of hazardous
tetrazole which should have been sent to a licensed incinerator. Stericycle emptied the drums with
the intent of illegally loading the hazardous material onto a rail car to ship to a landfill. The waste
ignited and caused a large fire. Stericycle provided misleading and incomplete documentation to
WDOE investigators and failed to manage the waste and residue left by the fire. The WDOE found
a serious lack of training and failure to follow proper procedures. Stericycle allowed a second,
smaller fire to ignite in November, 2018. Because of repeated problems with training, oversight
and abiding with its permit conditions, the WDOE fined Stericycle $1,900,000. On May 14, 2020,
Stericycle settled the dispute by agreeing to pay $2.256.000 in penalties, consisting of the original
fine plus an additional $300,000 due to informal enforcement actions arising after the original fine.
The 2020 Settlement Agreement and WDOE news releases relating thereto are included in
Appendix E.

B. Facility in Rancho Cordova, California.

Stericycle and its affiliate, General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC
(“GEM?”), own, operate and manage a hazardous waste treatment and storage facility in Rancho
Cordova, Sacramento County, California. According to the California Atforney General,
Stericycle/GEM has a “long and troubled history of violating the Hazardous Waste Control
Law?” in California. On October 19, 2018, Stericycle/GEM settled a civil lawsuit involving
violations from 2011-2017 by stipulating with the California Department of Toxic Control
Substance (“CDTCS”) to pay civil penalties of $1,412,000 and agreeing to a court judgment and
permanent injunction to prevent future violations. Among the violations was a 2017 fire caused by
employees intentionally igniting hazardous waste that contained naphthalene (made from crude oil
or coal tar), as well as two earlier fires at the facility. Other violations included:

e Failure to properly manage and/or store incompatible hazardous wastes;

e Failure to properly bulk and consolidate hazardous waste;

e Failure to comply with conditions of the hazardous waste facilities permit issued by
CDTSCG;

o Failure to train facility staff who are responsible for safely managing hazardous waste;
and

s Failure to follow the CDTSC-approved Emergency Action and Contingency Plan.

Despite the injunction prohibiting further violations, on February 18, 2020, CDTSC and the
California Attorney General filed a civil lawsuit against Stericycle/GEM alleging serious and
repeated violations of the hazardous waste laws. The CDTSC news releases, 2020 civil lawsuit
and 2018 Judgment by Consent and Permanent Injunction are included in Appendix F.



C. Illinois Whistleblower Action for Healthcare Frand.

In 2008, a former government customer-relations specialist for Stericycle filed a False Claims Act
action against Stericycle as a private citizen on behalf of defrauded governments. The
whistleblower claimed to have exposed an overpricing scheme where Stericycle withheld accurate
pricing data and added fuel and energy surcharges after government contracts were finalized.
Fourteen states joined as plaintiffs, including Nevada. On January 11, 2016, Stericycle signed a
Settlement Agreement agreeing to pay $28.500,000 to settle the case. The Settlement Agreement
and an article describing the settlement are included in Appendix G.

D. Nationwide Class Action for Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices.

In 2013, a veterinary clinic filed a class action complaint against Stericycle in Illinois for unfair
and deceptive business practices, which was consolidated with at least 20 other lawsuits alleging
similar claims. A nationwide class was certified consisting of veterinarians, dentists and other
small business owners charged for medical waste disposal services pursuant to an automated price
increase policy. This challenged pricing practice increased customer prices by 12%, 15%, or 18%
on a periodic basis. On October 17, 2017, Stericycle signed a Settlement Agreement agreeing to
pay $295.000,000 to settle the nationwide class action lawsuit. The Settlement Agreement and an
article dated October 27, 2017 from the American Dental Association describing the settlement
are included in Appendix H.

E. Class Action for Violation of Federal Securities Laws.

The illicit billing practice of automatic price increases formed the basis for yet another class action
lawsuit initiated in 2016 by pension fund shareholders alleging materially false and misleading
statements in violation of the federal Securities Act of 1933 and Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
They alleged Stericycle reported astronomical revenue growth but failed to disclose the improper
automatic price increases, which nearly doubled its revenues and resulted in the large class action
settlement referenced above. The Public Employees Retirement System of Mississippi and
Arkansas Teacher Retirement System served as lead plaintiffs in this class action. On February 14,
2019, Stericycle entered into a Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement and agreed to pay
$45.000,000 to settle this lawsuit. The Stipulation and Agreement and an article describing the
settlement are included in Appendix I.

F. New Jersey Deceptive Business Practices.

In May 2016, the State of New Jersey began investigating Stericycle after the New Jersey Dental
Association complained about Stericycle sales agents pressuring dentists to purchase a program
which they falsely claimed was required by EPA regulations. The investigation prompted other
complaints including unannounced price increases, unresponsive customer service, and allowing
unauthorized individuals to sign contracts on behalf of dentists. On April 25, 2019, Stericycle
entered into a Consent Order with New Jersey agreeing to pay $867.800 to settle this dispute,
consisting of $500,000 to the Department of Environmental Protection, $162,800 to the Division
of Consumer Affairs, and more than $200.000 for restitution to 155 individual dental practices.




The Consent Order and a New Jersey Attorney General news release relating thereto are included
in Appendix J.

G. California Wage and Hour Class Action Settlement.

In 2014, a former employee filed a class action alleging wage and hour law violations for illegal
rounding of hours, failure to pay for donning, overtime, meals and rest periods. On February 5,
2018, Stericycle entered into a Stipulation of Class Settlement and agreed to pay the settlement of
$2,000.000 to settle the matter. The Stipulation and an article describing the settlement are
included in Appendix K.

H. Disclosures in Stericycle’s Most Recent SEC Filing.

As a publicly-traded corporation, Stericycle is required to file information and reports with the
SEC and other regulatory authorities on an ongoing basis to disclose risks to potential investors,
including an annual 10-K report containing a comprehensive overview of the company's business
and financial condition. Note 20 of Stericycle’s 10-K report filed February 28, 2020 for its fiscal
year ending December 31, 2019 describes certain legal proceedings. In addition to the class action
lawsuits and the environmental violations identified above, the 10-K identifies three additional
areas of concern:

* Stericycle is currently under investigation by the SEC and the DOJ relating to its
compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or other foreign or domestic anti-
corruption laws with respect to operations in Latin America;

e Stericycle is currently under investigation by the DEA regarding its Rancho Cordova,
California facility and its facility in Indianapolis, Indiana; and

s Stericycle has been fined by the National Agency for Industrial Security and the
Protection of the Environment for the Hydrocarbon Sector in Mexico regarding its
subsidiary in Tabasco, Mexico.

A copy of relevant pages of Stericycle’s 10-K Report is included in Appendix L.

V. STERICYCLE’S SELF-SERVING RECENT SUPPLEMENT TO THE PLANNING
COMMISSION CANNOT RE-WRITE HISTORY.

Blockchains has reviewed Stericycle’s July 31, 2020 letter to the Planning Commission
“supplementing” its prepared presentation at the July 16, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting (the
“Supplement”). Nothing in the Supplement changes the facts in the executed seitlement
agreements, stipulations, court judgments, administrative orders, and governmental filings
described herein, which are self-explanatory and speak for themselves. These facts readily
contradict the picture that Stericycle is trying to paint regarding its supposed compliance with the
law, “advancement of public health,” protection of and respect for the environment, and
compliance with permit conditions in other jurisdictions.



V1. THE SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION MUST BE DENIED BECAUSE
THE STOREY COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION CANNOT MAKE THE
FINDINGS REQUIRED TO MEET THE ZONING CODE.

The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Site is located in the McCarran Planning Area of the Storey
County Master Plan adopted August 4, 2016 (the “Master Plan™). The Master Plan states that the
2000 Development Agreement (the “Development Agreement™) between Storey County and
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRICLLC”) governs development of the land then owned
by TRICLLC in McCarran. In turn, the Development Agreement provides that the 1999 Storey
County Zoning Ordinance (the “1999 Zoning Code”) shall govern commercial uses and zoning
of such land, which includes the Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Site. As such, Stericycle is
required to obtain a Special Use Permit under Section 17.37.040 of the 1999 Zoning Code for its
proposed incinerators, possible recycling facility, and possible power generating plant. Section
17.62.010 of the 1999 Zoning Code sets forth the findings that the Planning Commission must
make to issue the Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Special Use Permit to Stericycle:

A variance to the provisions of this title may be granted by the board of county
commissioners in accordance to the provisions of this chapter where by reason of
exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of property at the
time of enactment of the regulations, or by reason of exceptional topographic
conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional situation or condition of such lot
or parcel, the strict application of such regulations enacted under this title would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue
hardships upon, the owner of such property. Such relief from the strict application
of the regulations of this title, however, may only be granted without substantial
detriment to the public good and without substantially impairing the intent and
purpose of any ordinance or resolution and under such conditions as the board
may deem necessary to assure that the general purpose and intent of this title will
be observed, public safety and welfare secured and substantial justice done.
(Emphasis added).

As demonstrated herein, the Planning Commission cannot make the required findings that the
relief sought in the Proposed Waste Incineration Plant SUP Request can be granted (1) without
substantial detriment to the public good; (2) without substantially impairing the intent and purpose
of any ordinance or resolution; and (3) without creating unacceptable risk to the public health,
safety and welfare of Storey County citizens. Each will be discussed in turn.

A. The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Poses a Substantial Detriment to the
Public Good.

As detailed in Sections III and IV above, Stericycle has a proven track record of disregarding the
law and conditions of government approvals, and causing a substantial detriment to the public
good by repeated and flagrant violations and circumventions of environmental, public safety, and
consumer and shareholder protection laws nationwide. The risk of substantial detriment is elevated
by Stericycle’s long-term pattern and practice of flouting laws designed to protect the environment,
adjacent landowners, consumers, investors, employees, and the public generally.



1. Harm to the Public from Environmental Violations.

The Nevada Legislature has declared the public policy of this State is to: (1) maintain levels of air
quality which will protect human health and safety (NRS 445B.100); (2) maintain the quality of
the waters of the State consistent with the public health and enjoyment (NRS 445A.305); and (3)
protect the health, safety and general welfare of the residents of this State from the effects of the
improper handling of hazardous chemicals (NRS 449.380). As described above, Stericycle’s
extended history of environmental violations in other states is extremely troubling, which raises
the likelihood that it will not follow Nevada policy to protect the public from environmental
violations. Stericycle’s violations resulted in more than $6.000.000 in stipulated and agreed upon
penalties in the past six years alone, including:

o The stipulated penalty of $2,322.536 in 2014 based on the UDAQ finding multiple
violations of Stericycle’s air quality permit and misrepresentations of emissions data;

e The stipulated penalty of $10,900 in 2004 based on the Ohio EPA finding improper
disposal of hazardous waste which Stericycle sent to the landfill;

o The stipulated penalty of $13.500 in 2011 in California for failing to inspect diesel truck
emissions;

e The $72.000 fine by the WDOE in 2017 for failure to treat wastewater which overwhelmed
a water treatment plant;

o The stipulated penalty of $150.000 in 2020 for failure to maintain liability insurance to
protect the public;

e The stipulated penalty of $2,256.000 in 2020 based on the fire ignited in Washington after
attempting to send flammable hazardous waste to the landfill, falsification of records, and
subsequent fire; and

o The stipulated penalty of $1.412.000 in 2018 in nearby Rancho Cordova, California for a
different fire and repeated hazardous waste violations.

Not only is the aggregate sum and ongoing pattern of stipulated penalties troubling, but Stericycle
has engaged in other behavior that endangers public health and safety, including:

e multiple fires at its facilities (Washington and California);

* multiple attempts to bypass hazardous waste laws by sending hazardous waste to a landfill
(Ohio and Washington);

o falsifying or misreporting records to cover up violations (Utah, Washington); and

e prolonged periods of repeated violations, as reflected in the penalties in excess of
$1,000,000 in each of Utah, Washington and California and reinforced by the 2020 lawsuit
filed by the CDTCS and California Attorney General.

Based on this sordid environmental history, the Storey County Staff Report, and statements and
claims asserted in the Supplement that “[t]he wastes do not represent an airborne threat” and “[t]he
medical waste is a solid product and cannot ‘flow’ out of the facility” are not consistent with facts
surrounding Stericycle’s incineration operations, waste transportation, and demonstrated
misconduct.



Moreover, Stericycle’s representation at the July 16, 2020 Planning Commission meeting and in
the Supplement that it abandoned the North Las Vegas project due to lack of infrastructure is
disingenuous based on Stericycle’s own contemporaneous press release and the well-researched
North Las Vegas Planning Commission Staff Report, whose recommended denial likely triggered
the abandonment. There is no reason why the Storey County Planning Commission should not
likewise recommend denial of Stericycle’s SUP Request.

2. Harm to the Public for Deceptive Business Practices.

In addition to the environmental and safety issues detailed above, Stericycle has a history of
ongoing and repeated violations of consumer, investor and employee rights, resulting in several
class action settlements in the last four years where Stericycle agreed to pay more than

$371.,000.000:

$295.000,000 in 2017 to settle the nationwide class action based on consumer fraud and

deceptive trade practices in overbilling Stericycle’s small customers (dentists, veterinarians

and other small businesses in need of disposing medical waste);

o $28.500,000 in 2016 to settle alleged violations of the False Claims Act, which included
the State of Nevada as one of 14 plaintiffs;

e $45.000,000 in 2016 to settle a class action alleging violation of federal securities laws
designed to protect current and prospective investors, including the pension funds and state
retirement system shareholders of Stericycle;

o $867.800 in 2016 to settle the State of New Jersey action to protect dentists from unfair
pricing and fraudulent business practices; and

e $2,000,000 in 2018 to settle a California wage and hour law class action.

Similar laws regarding deceptive business practices, consumer protection and employment exist
in Nevada to protect the public. There is no reason to believe Stericycle’s conduct will be different
in our State. Not only should the Planning Commission be troubled by the $371,000,000 paid to
settle class actions, but the revelations contained in Stericycle’s most recent 10-K report of the
SEC/DOIJ investigation in whether Stericycle violated the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act in Latin
America and the DEA’s investigation of Stericycle’s Rancho Cordova and Indianapolis facilities
are strong indicators that its operations continue to be mismanaged.

3. The Failure to Introduce New Leadership.

Perhaps anticipating that these environmental and consumer/investor protection actions would be
discovered, Stericycle, after downplaying that “these things happen,” represented to the Planning
Commission on July 16, 2020 and in the Supplement that it has made significant leadership
changes. The changes appear superficial.

In May 2019, Stericycle announced that Janet H. Zelenka had been appointed Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer to replace Daniel V. Ginnetti, who held those positions from
2014 to 2019. Ginnetti has been employed since 2003 and was personally named as a defendant in
the Illinois investor fraud class action ($45.000,000 settlement). Ginnetti did not leave the



company, but merely transferred to become Executive VP of Stericycle International.' Similarly,
in February 2019, Cindy J. Miller was promoted to President and Chief Executive Officer ,* after
serving as the company’s President and Chief Operating Officer from 2018 to 2019, according to
her LinkedIn page. Thus, the old leadership at Stericycle has simply shifted internally without
significant new personnel appointed to ensure that similar abuses do not occur in the future, as
evidenced by the multiple ongoing investigations disclosed in the ]0-K Report. In fact, the same
leadership that lead Stericycle during the troubling violations and lawsuits above are still leading
the company.

B. The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Substantially Impairs the Purpose and
Intent of the Zoning Code and Master Plan.

l. Operations Incompatibility.

Section 17.62.010 of the 2012 Storey County Zoning Code (the “2012 Zoning Code”) further
codifies the interpretation of the 1999 Zoning Code and requires findings that the Proposed Waste
Incineration Plant “will not cause a substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses or will
perform a function that is essential to the surrounding uses, community, and neighborhood.”

As detailed above, the contemplated use of the Proposed Waste Incineration Plant (which includes
transportation, incineration, discharge, and disposal of hazardous and environmentally sensitive
waste in different forms) is wholly incompatible with Blockchains’ planned use of the adjacent
and surrounding property {(over 60,000 acres) -- a technology-based live-work master planned
community. Given the future development plans of Blockchains and other nearby situated
technology-based companies (such as Tesla and Panasonic), Stericycle’s Proposed Waste
Incineration Plant will have significant and material negative impacts on these surrounding areas,
landowners, and businesses. Put simply, as acknowledged by Stericycle in the Supplement, no one
desires to live or work next to a medical waste facility operated by a company with a well-
documented history of environmental and community abuses.

Stericycle’s history reveals how it fails to control the obvious nuisances which will be created by
the proposed transportation, storage, and incineration of biohazardous medical waste. Stericycle’s
proposed facility intends to operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, with 10-15 trucks per day
carrying biohazardous waste traversing through McCarran roadways for disposal. The Staff Report
does not consider the increased infrastructure needed for such an operation as well as Stericycle’s
demonstrated history of disregarding environmental laws. Instead, it relies on Stericycle’s
assurances that because the medical waste disposal occurs “inside” its own facility, this somehow
prevents contamination and/or pollution. There is no feasible way to address Stericycle’s disposal
of contaminated wastewater or avoid air pollution.

I See hitps://www.globenewswire.com/news-release/2019/05/02/1815660/0/en/Stericycle-
Announces-CFO-and-New-Senior-Leaders.htm].

Z See

https://www .streetinsider.com/Corporate+News/Stericycle+%28SRCL%29+announces+Janel+Z
elenka+has+been+appointed+EVP+and+CF0O/15448137. html.
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The Staff Report notes that “[|t]he waste streams that the facility will process are considered
biohazardous as they potentially can be contaminated with infectious agents that may be a threat
to public health if not handled and disposed of properly.” A similar concern was raised in North
Las Vegas, where its planning staff recommended denial. The recommended denial in North Las
Vegas was based on “many environmental and health concerns with the use,” including the release
of pollutants at numerous stages of the incineration process, emission of pollutants that could cause
harm to neighbors and employees, and the impact on local wildlife. In addition to these concerns,
North Las Vegas was deeply concerned by Stericycle’s consistent “unwillingness to comply with
State and Federal guidelines for this use.” The Staff Report similarly does not address the material,
unmitigable impact on local wildlife, primarily the wild horse population, as detailed immediately
below.

The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant could have a profound adverse effect on the wild horse
population in Storey County. Blockchains founder and CEO, Jeffrey K. Berns, founded Project
Frontier, Inc. (“Project Frontier”), a private nonprofit entity which oversees approximately 900
horses on 67,000 acres of land in Storey County, to preserve and protect the wild horse population
within Storey County, including McCarran. As a direct result of the increased development in
McCarran, the sole watering source for approximately 300-400 wild horses per day is the watering
hole on Blockchains’ property commonly known as “Milan Pond,” whose location prevents wild
horses from migrating onto roadways and private businesses. This is evident in the Wild Horse
Migration Map included in Appendix M. Project Frontier has dedicated hundreds of hours to
training the horses to adapt to this new water source and Blockchains itself pays roughly $3,500
per month to pump water into Milan Pond to support the wild horse population.

Project Frontier’s concerns with Stericycle’s Proposed Waste Incineration Plant are twofold. First,
any soil contamination caused by the plant would have direct, negative impacts on the wild horse
grazing area and Milan Pond. Soil contamination from pollutants such as those released by
Stericycle facilities cannot feasibly be remedied; any mitigation efforts would be prohibitively
expensive, if not impossible. Furthermore, contamination of Milan Pond (located only a quarter
mile away as noted in the Supplement) from Stericycle’s Proposed Waste Incineration Plant would
devastate the horse population because approximately one-third of all Project Frontier horses
utilize Milan Pond as their sole water source.

Second, air pollutants from Stericycle’s Proposed Waste Incineration Plant would harm the wild
horses because they consistently lick and graze nearby to obtain beneficial minerals and nutrients.
Like humans, the horses would also inhale any air pollutants released from the facility. Stericycle’s
history of improperly releasing toxic water and air pollutants, and mismanaging records related to
the same, is demonstrated above and need not be repeated here.

2. Incompatibility with the Master Plan — McCarran Area.

The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant is incompatible with the Master Plan. The purpose of the
Master Plan, as stated in the Land Use and Growth Chapter, is as follows:

The Land Use and Growth Chapter is the principal guiding element of the Storey
County Master Plan. It describes the County and each of its unique regions and
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sub-regtons; discusses key land use patterns and challenges for those areas.... This
Chapter assigns land use designations across the County, each with specific goals,
objectives, and policies engaging the provisions of this Master Plan.

The guiding principles of this Master Plan emerge from the public planning process
and they serve as the foundation for this Master Plan’s vision, goals, and policies.
They represent the community’s commitment to a more conipact, organized and
mixed-use pattern of development of the County.

This Master Plan proftects the public health, safety, and welfare of residents,
property owners, and other stakeholders by providing for residential, contercial,
mixed-use, industrial, natural resources, recreation, open spaces, and public
uses, and by situating uses appropriately... Defining characteristics for eaclt land
use are provided and include ... preferred location of uses... This Master Plan is
a tool from which elected and appointed community leaders and the community-
at-large may evaluate and make decisions about the location, placement, and
design of buildings and land uses and land use zoning in the County in order to
acliieve these principals. Master Plan Section 3.1. (Empbhasis added.)

According to the Master Plan, the McCarran Planning Area (where Stericycle’s Proposed
Waste Incineration Plant Site is located) “depicts a homogenous planned industrial center.
[McCarranj has grown to become a major regional liub for distribution, alternative energy
production, digital data management... McCarran is now liome to more than 19 million square-
feet of warehousing, distribution, manufacturing, energy production, and other high-tech
industries, including over a dozen Fortune 500 companies.” Master Plan Section 3.4.7, pg. 83.
(Emphasis added.) Primary landowners in the McCarran area include companies sucl as Tesla,
Google, Switch, and Blockchains, whicl is the single largest landowner. McCarran is thus
Nevada’s developing technological liub, at times compared to Silicon Valley, and through
Blockchains’ Innovation Park, is on-frack to be the world-renowned, next generation,
transformational technology park.

The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant in this area by an applicant with such a tumultuous history
of environmental and safety violations will destroy the decades of progress of technological
development and job growth in Northern Nevada envisioned by the Storey County Commission.
The Staff Report finding that “[t]he proposed use of ‘recycling facilities and operations involving
use, recovery or residue of hazardous materials and/or wastes’ is consistent with the heavy
industrial use statements for [TRIC],” is incompatible with current and future development in the
highly technology-focused McCarran Planning Area. Therefore, the Storey County Planning
Commission should find that approval of Stericycle’s Proposed Waste Incineration Plant SUP
Request cannot be granted without substantially impairing the intent and purpose of the Master
Plan.



C. The Proposed Waste Incineration Plant Creates Unacceptable Risks to the Public
Health, Safety and Welfare of Storey County Citizens.

Section 17.62.010 of the 1999 Zoning Code requires the Planning Commission “to assure that the
general purpose and intent of this title will be observed, public safety and welfare secured and
substantial justice done.” As stated in Section 17.02.020 of the 2012 Zoning Code, the general
purpose is “to serve the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare; to provide
the economic and social advantages resulting from an orderly planned use of economic, natural
and communijty resources; to encourage, guide and provide for the future growth and development
of the county; and to implement the goals, objectives, policies, and proposals of the Storey County
master plan.” Thus, the Planning Commission necessarily must determine whether risks to the
public health, safety and welfare of Storey County citizens are acceptable before approving the
SUP Request.

In considering whether the Proposed Waste Incineration Plant creates an unacceptable risk, the
Planning Commission need only to look to our neighbor to the east in Utah. The Utah Physicians
for a Healthy Environment (“UPHE”) issued a report and response on the effects of Stericycle’s
facility in North Salt Lake which states “there is no law requiring incineration of medical waste,
and 98% of the nation’s medical waste incinerators have been closed in the Tast 15 vears. Although
the purpose of incineration is to eliminate pathogens, contrary to the assertions made by Stericycle
in the Supplement, it does not remove toxins and actually creates new ones by concentrating and
redistributing existing ones.” The UPHE report considers discharge from incinerators as the most
(oxic type of air pollution and includes the deadliest compounds known to science.” Similarly, the
Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League in North Carolina has called dioxins and furans, two
types of air pollutants created by medical waste incinerators, the most dangerous chemicals known
to man.*

Increased rates of cancer, pregnancy complications, birth defects, and autism have been found
among people living within several miles of tncinerators. At the time of its report, the UPHE stated
that Utah had the bighest rates of autism in the nation, double the national average. High rates of
cancer in the closest subdivision to Stericycle’s Utah [acility is similarly disconcerting. Because
air pollution from incinerators can travel hundreds of miles, surrounding residential areas are also
at risk. UPHE member Dr. Brian Moench stated during a local town-hall meeting: “The scientific
evidence that facilities like [Stericycle’s| cause serious harm to the surrounding community is as
undeniable as the evidence that smoking causes lung cancer.” The documented medical and health
risks caused by Stericycle in the neighboring state of Utah should not be accepted by the citizens
of Storey County. Therefore, the Storey County Planning Commission should find that approval
of Stericycle’s Proposed Waste Incineration Plant SUP Request cannot be granted without creating
an unacceptable risk to the public health, safety and welfare of Storey County citizens.

3 See https://www.uphe.org/priority-issues/stericycle/.

4 See hup://www.bredl.org/pdf2/Medical waste_pollutants.pdf.
> Full video of Dr. Moench’s testimony can be found here:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=T7kilSb8B34k.

13



VIII. CONCLUSION.

Based on the evidence provided in this Opposition, the Planning Commission should recommend
denial of Stericycle’s SUP Request in a manner similar to the recommendation in the North Las
Vegas Planning Commission Staff Report because Stericycle’s Proposed Waste Incineration Plant
poses a substantial detriment to the public good, substantially impairs the intent and purpose of the
Zoning Code and Master Plan, and creates substantial risks to public safety and welfare to
residents, businesses and wildlife in Storey County.

Date: _L\uq_'_ 2 2020 BLOCKCHAINS, LLC

By:ﬂ%ﬁf

Malthew Diges'd- J
Vice President of Government Affairs
and Strategic Initiatives
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Utah Department of Environmental Quality
Division of Air Quality

Fact Sheet

Stericycle Settlement Agreement

The Division of Air Quality (DAQ) and Stencycle have reached a Settlement Agreement for
DAQ’s 2013 Notice of Violation (INOV) alleging violations of Steticyele’s Title V Operating
Permit. This Agreement stipulates rhat Stericycle will pay a total penalry of §2.3 million dollars
and move irs North Salt Lake facility to Tooele County within three years of receipt of rhe

necessary construction permits. The Agreement requires Board approval before becoming final.

Background

In May 2013, DAQ issued an NOV to Stericycle for violatons occurring between 2011 and 2013
These violadons included:

* Emissions exceeding the permic limits for dioxin and furan

* Emijssions exceeding rhe permit limirs for nitrogen oxides (NOx) on multiple occasions

*  Failure o report these emission exceedances o DAQ in a requisite time frame

* Failute to majnrain normal operating conditions during a stack test

* Failure to include the test results demonstrating these emission exceedances in the requisite
annual and semi-annual monjtoring reports

In August 2013, DAQ amended the NOV to explicitly cover each day of the NOx violations.
Stericycle was able o demonstrate compliance with emission limits in April 2013 and has
subsequently upgraded its air pollution control equipment to meet sericter federal standards for
medical waste incinerators. These upgrades include:

+ Installation of a selective non-catalyde reducton (SNCR) unit to reduce NOx emissions

= Replacement of an electrosratic precipitaior with a baghouse

* Replacement of existing emergency diesel generator with a new generator that can berrer
handie loss of power and minimize bypass events




Utah Department of Environmental Quality: Division of Air Quality

Settlement Agreement

Settlement discussions have been ongoing between DAQ and
Stericycle since the NOV was originally issued. DEQ and
Stericycle  reached a  Settlement Agreement on  November
25, 2014, The terms of the agreement are as follows:

»  Stericycle shall pay a rotal stipulated penalty of §2,322.536.00,
*  The company shall pay half of this penalty ($1,161,
208.00) to the state’s General Fund within 30 days.
*  The remaining half of the penalty shall be credited as
a Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP) when
Stericycle permanently ceases operations at its current
North Sale Lake location,
= Stericycle shall relocate its medical waste incinerator to a new

location in Tooele County no later than three vears after the
company receives the following documents:

*  final, non-appealable permits from DEQ

*  final, non-appealable permits from local governments

= Governor’s approval required under state statute

* Stericycle shall submit all permit applicadons necessary to
relocate the facilicy within 90 days of a signed agreement.

*  Sixry days after Srericycle receives all Necessary
Approvals to Construct, the company will provide a
construction schedule o the Division of Air Quality
DAQ).

+  Every 90 days thereafter, Stericycle will provide DAQ
with 2 report on Constructon progress.

*  Within three years to the date that Srericycle obtains all Necessary
Approvals to Construct, Stericycle’s Title V Operating Permit
{Febrvary 19, 2009) and ics Title V renewal and Approval Order
(August 12, 2014) will become null and void, and Stericycle will
permanenty shut down operadons at its Nerth Sale Lake facility.

The Agreement resolves all claims under the NOV. Nothing in the
Agreement precludes DAQ from seeking penalties for violations of
the Agreement or future violations of state or federal air poliution laws
and regulations.

www.DEQ.Utah.gov
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Amanda Smith
" Execntive Direclor
State of Utah
DIVISION OF AIR QUALITY
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Governor Director
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DAQ-101-14

MEMORANDUM

TO: Air Quality Board

THROUGH: Bryce C. Bird, Executive Secretary

FROM: Harold Burge, Major Source Compliance Section Manager
DATE: November 25, 2014

SUBJECT:  Stericycle, Incorporated Administrative Settlement Order No. 2013051501

Stericycle, Incorporated (Stericycle) operates a hospital/medical/infectious waste incinerator (HMIWTI)
located at 90 North Foxboro Drive, North Salt Lake, Davis County, Utah. On May 28, 2013, the Division
of Air Quality (DAQ) issued a Notice of Violation and Order to Comply (NOV). On August 28, 2013,
DAQ issued an Amended NOV that superseded the original NOV. By April 10, 2013, Stericycle had
demonstrated compliance with all of their emission limits through stack testing.

Stericycle filed a request for Agency Action (RFAA) on September 27, 2013, which requested an
evidentiary hearing to challenge the Amended NOV. On April 24, 2014, the Executive Director of the
Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) appointed an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) to
conduct an administrative hearing to adjudicate the merits of the Amended NOV and RFAA. DAQ and
Stericycle have engaged in a series of settlement negotiations starting before and continuing after the
issuance of the NOV and Amended NOV. The attached Administrative Settlement Order is a result of
those negotiations. The major provisions of the Administrative Settlement Order are:

1. A total penalty amount is $2,322,536.

2. Stericycle will pay half of the total penalty ($1,161,268) within 30 days of the effective date of
the Administrative Settlement Order,

3. In lieu of paying the remaining half of the total penalty ($1,161,268), Stericycle will relocate to
Tooele County and permanently cease operations at its North Salt Lake Facility within 3 years
of obtaining all necessary permits and approvals for the new facility and Stericycle’s Title V
Permits and Approval Orders for the North Salt Lake Facility will be voided. The new facility
will have better control technology and will be sited away from population centers.

195 Nerth 1950 West « Sall Lake City, Utah
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 144820 « Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-4820
Telephone (801} 536-4000 » Fax (801) 536-4099 » T.D.D. (801) 536-4414
whnw.deq.utah.gov
Printed on 100% reeyeled paper
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In accordance with Utah Code Ann. 19-2-104(3)(b)(i), this memorandum is provided to the Utah Air
Quality Board (UAQR) for review since the penalty exceeds $25,000. The signed Administrative
Settlement Order has been provided in the packet. DAQ is secking approval to enter into this
Administrative Settlement Order to avoid further legal delays in resolving the Amended NOV and to
ensure that operations at the North Salt Lake Facility cease as quickly as possible. The DAQ will withhold
any further action on this case until the UAQB approves or disapproves the settlement.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the UAQB approve the penalty amount and Administrative
Settlement Order No. 2013051501.




BEFORE THE UTAH DIVISION OF AIR QUALITY

In The Matter of ' : Administrative Settlement Order
Stericycle, Incorporated '
No. 2013051501

RECITALS

This Administrative Settlement Order (*Agreement’) is entered into between Stericycle, Incorporated

_{“Stericycle™) and the Director of the Utah Division of Air Quality (‘DAQ,"” "Director,” or “Division”) pursuant
to the Utah Air Conservation Act, Utah Code Ann. § 19-2-101 et seq. ("Act’) and. Utah Admiﬁistraﬁve Code
{"UAC") Rule 305-7-320. For purposes of this Agreement, DAQ and Stericycle shall be referred to '
collectively as the “Parties.”

1. Utah Air Quality Board's and DAQ's Authority.
The DAQ has authority to administer the Act, and to issue notices of violation and orders and to
exercise all incidental powers necessary to carry out the purposes of the Act. Utah Code Ann. §
18-2-107. The Parties may agree to settle an action pursuant to Rule 305-7-320. The Utah Air -
Quality Board (*Board™) has the authority to review and approve a settlement negotiated by the
DAQ that requires a civil penalty of $25,000 or more. Utah Code Ann. § 19-2-104(3)(b)(i).

2. Stericycle.
Stericycle operates a hospita/medical/infectious waste incinerator located at 90 North Foxboro
Drive, North Salt Lake, Davis County, Utah (“Facility”).

3. NOV and Amended NOV. |
DAQ issued a Notice of Violation and Order to Combly to Stericycle on May 28, 2013 ("NOV") and
DAQ issued an Amended Notice of Violation and Order to Comply (“Amended NOV") to Stericycle
on August 28, 2013. The Amended NOV superseded the NOV. The Amended NOV'ailege's that
Stericycle violated several conditions of the Title V Operating Permit 1100055002 dated February
19, 2009. ' '

4. Request for Agency Action.
Stericycle filed a Request for Agency Action (‘RFAA”) on September 27, 2013, which requested an
evidentiary hearing to challenge the Amended NOV.

5. Appointment of Administrative Law Judge.




No. 2013051501
Page 2

On April 24, 2014, the Executive Director of the Utah Department of Environmental Quality
appointed an Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ") to conduct an administrative hearing to adjudicate
the merits of the Amended NOV and RFAA.

6. Settlement Discussions. .
The Parties have engaged in a series of seftlement discussions starting before and continuing after
the filing of the NOV and Amended NOV. As part of those discussicns, it was suggested that cne
aspect of a resolution could involve moving Stericycle’s incinerator operations at the Facility to
another location, if a suitable, remote location could be found for a new incinerator in Utah, that
would be built with better air poliution control technotogy than is currently required at the Facility
but that would also be buffered from population centers and sited in compliance with setbacks
within Its property boundaries consistent with applicable land use reguiations. Stericycle has found
what it believes to be a suitable locatioh, has entered into an-agreement to purchase property at
that location, and has begun the process to obtain the necessary approvals to bonstruct and
operate a new incinerator at this new location. In order to provide further incentive to Stericycle to
complete this process, the Parties have agreed to the penalty payment structure outiined in
Paragraph 11 below.

7. Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to settle the violations alleged in the NGV dated May 28, 2613
and the Amended NOV dated August 28, 2013. This seftlement shall not in any way relieve
Stericycle.of any obligation to comply with applicable, federal, state or local laws, rules or
regulations, and nothing in this settlement shall preclude DAQ from taking appropriate action to
_abate a threat to public health or thé environment should such a situation arise.

8. No Admissions.
The Parties now wish to resolve this matter fully without admissions of: any factual allegations or
findings in the NOV or Amended NOV, any violations of iaw, rule, regulation or permit, any Iia'bility,
wrongdoing, failure or omissions whatsoever; and without further administrative or judicial

proceedings.

9. Payments.
Without any admission of liability, wrongdoing, or niegligence, Stericycle has agreed to undertake
the actions and make the payments identified in Paragraph 11 below.

10. Mutual Interest.

4810-5169-1806.1
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The Parties believe that it is in their mutual best interest to execute this Agreement and to settle
the NOV and Amended NOV.

AGREEMENT AND ORDER

NOW THEREFORE, without adjudication of any issue of fact or law and without admission of any lfability,
and subject to the approval of the Board, the Parties hereby agree and DAQ orders as follows:

11. In settlement of the alleged violations referenced in Paragraphs 3 and 7 of this Agreement,
Stericycle, agrees to a total stipulated penalty of $2,322,536.00, one half of which will be paid to
the State of Utah upon execution of this Agreement as provided below, and the other haif of which

will be credited as provided below.

a. Civil Penalty paid to the State. Stericycle agrees to pay one-half of the penalty amount within thirty
(30} days of the effective date of this Agreement, by wire fransfer of funds in the amount of
51,161,268 payable to the State of Utah.

b. Supplemental Environmental Project [SEP) Credit for Remaining Civil Penaity. The remaining one-
half of the penalty amount ($1,161,268) shall be credited as a Supplemental Environmental Project
at the time Stericycle permanently stops operating the North Salt Lake Facility which will occur no
later than three years from the date Stericycie obtains the final, noen-appealable permits from the
Wtah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), all non-appealable local governmental
approvals necessary to commence construction of the new incinerator and the Governor's
approval referenced in Utah Code Ann. Section 19-6-108 (3}(c)(i) (hereinafter "All Necessary
Approvals to Construct”).

12. . Ifthe $1,161,268 payment referenced in Paragraph 11.a. is not made within 30 days, additional
penalties shall accrue at the rate of $10,000 a day and DAQ may enforce payment through a civil

action in Second District Court.

13. In order to ensure prompt and diligent efforts to relocate the Facility from its current location in

North Salt Lake, Stericycle agrees to comply with the following:

a. Within 90 days of the date that DAQ signs this Agreement, Stericycle shall submit to
the Utah Department of Envirenmental Quality (‘DEQ") all permit applications {over

which DEQ has jurisdiction) necessary to relocate the Facility to a new location.
b. 60 days from the date Stericycle obtains All Necessary Approvails to Construct,

Stericycle witl provide DAQ with a schedule for the construction of the incinerator in

the new location in Tooele County, Utah.

4810-%16%-1806.1
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c. Every 90 days thereafter, Stericycle shall provide DAQ with a report describing in
detail Stericycle’s good faith efforts to complete the construction referred to in
Paragraph 13.b.
14. Within three years after the date that Stericycle obtains All Necessary Approvals to Construct,

Stericycle's Title V Operating Permit 1100065002 {issued February 19, 2009) or any subsequent
Title V Operating Permit renewal and Approval Order DAQE-AN101420011-14 (issued August 12,

- 2014) for the North Salt Lake Facility shall become null and void and Stericycle shall permanently
cease operation at the North Sait Lake Facility. .

15. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered admissions by Stericycle and shall
not be used by any third party related or unrelated to this Agreement for purposes other than
determining the basis of this Agreement. This Agreement resolves any and all liability and claims
under the authority of the DAQ arising from the NOWVs listed in Paragraphs 3 and 7 of this
Agreement against Stericycle, its officers, employees and agents. and against any other unnamed
owners and/or operators of the North Salt Lake Facility at the time of the alleged violations.

16. Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the DAQ from seeking civil penalties for violations of this
Agreement, future violations of the Act or Rules, or to issue future Notices or Orders. Nothing in
this Agreement shall constitute a waiver by Stericycle of any defense or the ability to raise any
factual or legal contention for future atleged violations, or in response to future Notices or Orders.

17. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall
be given by (i) established express delivery service which maintains delivery records, (i) hand
delivery, or (iii) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the Parties
at the following addresses, or at such other address as the Parties may designate by written notice
in the following manner:

Director
| Bryce C. Bird
Utah Division of Air Quality
P.O. Box 144870
Salt Lake City, UT 841144870

4810-9165-1806.1
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Stericycle
Attn: Richard Kogler
Stericycle, Inc.
28161 N. Keith Drive
Lake Forest, IL 60045 .

. With a copy to:

Christian C. Stephens

Office of Utah Attarney General
P.O. Box 140873

Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0873

Raymond J. Etcheverry

Parsons Behle & Latimer

201 South Main Street, Suite 1800
Salt Lake City, UT 84111

18. Successors and Assigns. All of the rights and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of their permitied successors. Stericycle shall not assign
this Agreement without the written permission of DAQ.

19. Authority to Execute. Each person executing this Agreement individually and personally represents
-and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver the same on behalf of the
entity for which he or she is signing, and th-at all corporate and/or legislative authority and
approvals, as the case may be, have been obtained, and that this Agreement is a binding

obligation on such entity.

20. Entire Agreément. This Agreement, which includes all recitals and terms hereto, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and
incorporates all prior correspondence, communications or agreements between the Parties relating
to the subject matter of this Agreement, and cannot be altered except in writing signed by all
Parties. ‘

21. This Agreement shall be executed as follows: Stericycle shall execute this Agreement first. The
Parties shall then present the Agreement to the Board for approval. If the Board approves the
Agreement without change, DAQ will execute the Agreement.

4810-2169-1806.1
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Agreed:
Stericycle; Incorporated

C,Z“( M Date: ”'/o?fﬂ(f

Richard Koglet—"
Chief Operating Officer

Agreed and Ordered:

Date:

Bryce C. Bird, Director
Utah Division of Air Quality

4310-9169-1806.1
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l\ Planning Commission Date: June 12, 2019
Sae= Agenda ltem ter No: 20

NORTH LAS VEGAS

Bowcr Cormmanily-of Choice
TO: Planning Commission
FROM: Marc Jordan, Director Land Development & Community Services

Prepared By: Amy Michaels

SUBJECT: UN-45-19 (69246) STERICYCLE MEDICAL WASTE INCINERATOR.
(Public Hearing) Applicant: Stericycle, Inc. Request. A special use
permit in a M-2 (General Industrial District) to allow a Medical Waste
Incinerator Facility. Location: Approximately 4,600 feet south of Apex
Sapphire Avenue and 800 feet southwest from the end of Grand Valley
Parkway (APN 103-15-010-027). (For possible action)

RECOMMENDATION:

The Land Development and Community Services Department recommends that UN-45-
19 be denied.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

Comprehensive Plan: Heavy Industrial

Existing land use and zoning: | Undeveloped; M-2, General Industrial District
Surrounding land use and North: Developed Outdoor Recycling; M-2, General
zoning: Industrial District

West: Undeveloped; M-2, General Industrial District
East: Undeveloped; M-2, General Industrial District
South: Undeveloped; M-2, General Industrial District

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The applicant is requesting Planning Commission consideration for a special use permit
to allow a medical waste incinerator. The site is located within the Apex Overlay District.
The site is 6.45 acres in area and is located approximately 4,600 feet south of Apex
Sapphire Avenue and 800 feet southwest from the end of Grand Valley Parkway.

The site and the proposed use were previously approved by the Planning Commission
and City Council (UN-78-16) in December 2016. The special use permit approval
lapsed in December 2018.

According to the applicant’s letter of intent, the proposed use is a hospital, medical, and
infectious waste incinerator. The incinerator will process medical waste, non-hazardous
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pharmaceuticals, tissues, and other waste as determined by the Federal Division of
Solid and Hazardous Waste. The applicant indicates that the impact on the surrounding
areas should be minimal. After incineration, the resulting ash will be stored on site and
then disposed into the landfill.

The letter of intent states that the development will contain a 44,000 square foot
incinerator building with an attached 4,500 square foot office building. The floor plans
submitted show a different building/area square footage. The floor plan indicates that
the incinerator room is 15,300 square feet, the loading dock/plant area is 17,300 square
feet, electrical/storage is 2,300 square feet and the maintenance room is 800 square
feet for a total of 35,700 square feet. The letter of intent indicates that the site plan and
floor plans are subject to revisions as detailed designs will be developed for building
permits and construction.

Access to the site is from fwo driveways from the access road. The first driveway is for
employee and visitor parking while the second driveway is for trucks and is gated. The
site plan shows 69 parking spaces are provided, which is in compliance with the Apex
Overlay Standards. The site plan does not indicate whether the parking areas are
paved, which is required by code. The site plan does not show the required perimeter
landscaping of five feet as required per the Apex Overlay standards. The site plan does
not indicate where the ash will be stored after incineration. The elevations show an ash
canopy on the west side of the building; however, it does not indicate if the ash is being
stored in the building or outside of the building. The ash cannot be stored outside of the
building. According to the site plan there are three detention ponds located onsite and
the ash could be carried by wind or a rain event into the ponds contaminating the water,
or onto surrounding properties.

The elevations submitted, indicate that the building is precast metal panels with a
prefinished metal parapet cap with eight truck bays. The elevations also show an ash
storage canopy on the west side of the building.

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:

Public Works: Please see the attached memorandum.
Police: No comment.

Fire: Please see the attached memorandum.
ANALYSIS

The proposed medical waste incinerator is an intense industrial use located in the Apex
Overlay District. The Apex Overlay District was created specifically for intense industrial
activities that are not appropriate within the Las Vegas Valley. The applicant’s letter of
intent states that the waste processed at the facility will include medical waste
generated in healthcare or healthcare related facilities (doctor's office, dentist, etc.),
veterinary and animal care facilities, research facilities, pharmaceutical manufacturing



and distribution facilities. The letter also states that the typical wastes include paper,
plastic, cloth, human and animal tissue, expired and unused non-hazardous
pharmaceuticals, and similar wastes.

Staff has concerns about the environmental effects from the proposed medical waste
incinerator use. Incinerators can release a variety of pollutants depending on the
composition of the waste being incinerated. This could lead to the release of substances
of unknown toxicity into the air and environment, which could negatively impact people
around the Apex area. The applicant provided information that indicates a variety of
emissions into the air and that information is an estimate from all the facilities that they
operate. However, the emissions are an estimate based on their other facilities. Since
this information is an estimate, some facilities may release more pollutants than others
in operation. Some of the poliutants that can be released include: carbon monoxide,
hydrogen chloride, dioxins and furans, particulate matter, oxides of nitrogen, sulphur
dioxide, mercury, cadmium, and lead.

When pollutants form, incineration facilities disperse them into the air, people that are
close to the facility may be exposed directly to the pollutants through inhalation or
indirectly through the consumption of contaminated food or water. The facility proposes
to have 30-35 employees and other facilities in the vicinity also have employees. There
are several businesses located within the vicinity of the proposed use: Shed Holdings,
UNEV Pipeline, Nevada Power, Circle S Farms, Delta Liquid Energy, Waveseer, and a
truck stop located to the east off of the I-15. The state’s Desert National Wildlife Park is
also located to the north of the site. Emissions from this facility could negatively impact
people working in this area and impact the wildlife at the refuge. Contaminants can be
carried through the air and can affect soil, water and food sources which in turn can
impact people and the wildlife.

According to the Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League in North Carolina, dioxins
and furans which are only two types of air pollutants created by medical waste
incinerators have been called the most dangerous chemicals known to man and are air
pollutants that are released from medical waste incinerators (Attachment G). These
chemicals form when the incinerator temperatures are not consistent; when the waste is
not completely incinerated; and during by-pass events when air pollution control
equipment fails. In the event of an explosion, the facility would not perform the by-pass
procedures and air pollutants formed during incineration are released into the air and
can travel long distances contaminating the environment.

Another concern is the discharge of wastewater created by the operation of the
incinerator facility. The applicant states that a neighboring business has agreed to take
their wastewater however, if this does not happen the applicant has not stated how they
will dispose of the wastewater. If the wastewater is not treated properly, it will pollute the
environment.

Stericycle has had several violations for the operation of their incinerator sites.



e In June of 2004, Stericycle was fined by the Ohio Environmental Protection
Agency for improper disposal of hazardous waste. Twelve cubic yards of
hazardous waste treatment sludge was sent to a solid waste landfill. (Exhibit A)

e In 2011, Stericycle was in violation of air emissions test in Utah. The stack tests
that were done exceeded acceptable levels for hazardous pollutants, nitrogen
oxides and highly reactive gases. Stericycle was fined for this violation by the
Utah Environmental Protection Agency. (Exhibit B)

e April 2011, Stericycle was in violation of air quality regulations in California for
failing to inspect their diesel trucks to ensure that they met smoke emission
standards. (Exhibit C)

e |n 2014, Stericycle agreed to a seitlement with the state of New Mexico for
violations of excess waste storage time and inappropriate emergency response
preparation. (Exhibit D)

e |n 2017, Stericycle was fined by the Department of Ecology in the State of
Washington for not freating their wastewater which overwhelmed the treatment
plant in Morton, Washington and caused the plant to violate the water quality
permit. (Exhibit E)

» |n 2018, Stericycle received a violation from the United States Environmental
Protection Agency for failing to maintain a liability insurance policy that would
provide adequate coverage to third parties (neighbors) whose health and
properties could be harmed by a release of hazardous wastes from the facility.
(Exhibit F)

The proposed medical waste incinerator is a heavy industrial use does not appear to be
appropriate in the Apex Overlay District. There are many environmental and health
concerns with the use. Pollutants are created at various stages of the process in the
stack pipes, ashes, scrubber water and filters and in the smoke that leaves the stack.
The emissions of pollutants can affect the health and welfare of people that work around
the Apex area as well as the employees of the facility. There could also be an impact
on the wildlife within the Desert National Wildlife Park. Therefore, staff does not support
this special use permit request.

Requirements for Approval of a Special Use Permit

Medical Waste Incinerators are permitted as a special use in the M-2, General Industrial
Apex Overlay Area. In accordance with the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning
Commission may, by motion, grant a special use permit if the Planning Commission
finds, from the evidence presented, that all of the following criteria are satisfied:

1. That the proposed use at the particular location is necessary or desirable to



provide a service or facility which will contribute to the general well-being of the
neighborhood or the community..

2. That such use will not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be
detrimental to the health, safety or general welfare of persons residing or working
in the vicinity, or injurious to property or improvements in the vicinity.

3. That the proposed use will comply with the regulations and conditions specified
in this code for such use.

4, That the granting of this special use permit will not adversely affect the master
plan of the City.

Staff does not support the proposed use. The proposed use is consistent with the
zoning designation and the Comprehensive Plan. However, the proposed use creates a
number of environmental and health concerns. Additionally, the applicant has
demonstrated an unwillingness to comply with State and Federal guidelines for this use.
Therefore, the potential danger to the Apex area, the city as a whole, and the
employees within the area warrant a recommendation of denial.

If however, the Planning Commission were to determine that approval is warranted,
then staff recommends the following conditions.

Planning and Zoning:

1. That, unless expressly authorized through a variance, waiver or another
approved method, this development shall comply with all applicable codes and
ordinances.

2. No outdoor storage of waste or ash shall be permitted.

3. All trucks / trailers storage shall be within the gated and fenced yard.

4. A five (5) foot perimeter landscaping buffer is required by the Apex Standards.

5, Buildings shall comply with the architectural character and materials within the
Apex Overlay standards.

Public Works:

6. All known geologic hazards shall be shown on any preliminary development
plans and civil improvement plans submitted to the City. Subsequent



identification of additional hazards may substantially alter development plans.

7. Approval of a drainage study is required prior to submittal of the civil
improvement plans.

ATTACHMENTS:

Public Works Memorandum
FFire Prevention Memorandum
Letter of Intent

Site Plan

Building Elevations

Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Exhibit E

Exhibit F

Exhibit G

Clark County Assessor's Map
Location and Zoning Map



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

To: Amy Michaels, Principal Planner, Land Development & Community Services
From: Robert Weible, Land Development Project Leader, Department of Public Works
Subject: UN-45-19 Stericycle Medical Waste Incinerator

Date: May 20, 2019

In addition to the requirement to comply with the City of North Las Vegas Municipal Code —
Titles 15 and 16, NRS 278 and accepted Clark County Area Uniform Standard Drawings, the
Department of Public Works recommends the following conditions of approval:

1. All known geologic hazards shall be shown on any preliminary development plans and
civil Improvement plans submitted to the City. Subsequent identification of additional
hazards may substantially alter development plans.

2. Approval of a drainage study is required prior to submittal of the civil improvement plans.

Utilities — For information only:

= This project shall comply with the General Provisions and Conditions of the City of North
lLas Vegas Water Service Rules and Regulations and the Design and Construction
Standards for Wastewater Collection Systems.

» Submittal of a Hydraulic Analysis per the Uniform Design and Construction Standards
(UDACS) for Potable Water Systemns is required and will be subject to the review and
approval of the Utilities Department.

For more information regarding the land development process and other associated
reguirements in the City of North Las Vegas, please visit the City’s website and find the Land
Development Guide:

http:/fwww _cityofnorthlasvegas.com/Departments/PublicWorks/PublicWorks.shtm.

H7 ] - / Lo e T
A A

. Land Development Project Leader

Hober Weible,
Department of Public Works



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

To: Planning Commission

From: Janice Thomas, Fire Protection Specialist
Subject: UN-45-19 | Stericycle Medical

Date: May 16, 2019

The Fire Plan Review is not opposed to this application.

For informational purposes only:

1.

2.

10.
1.

12,

13.
14,
15.

18.

Design far fire access, water supply and building requirements shall be based on the 2018
International Fire Code as amended by the City of North Las Vegas.

A technical opinion and report is required The technical opinion and report prepared by a
qualified engineer shall evaluate the design of the facility or the operational process in question.
The report may be a deferred submittal; however, any recommended changes presented by the
report shall be incorporated into the design of the facility or operational process.

Operating permits for activities or conditions regulated by the North Las Vegas Fire Code such as
Hazardous materials and Waste handling /FC 105.6.

Approved secondary access for ingress shall be provided for all commercial and industrial
developments.

All portions of the facility and all portions of the exterior ground floor walls of the proposed
buildings or structures are to be within 150 feet of an approved fire apparatus access road,
as measured from the road along the exterior of the building or facllity to the furthest point as
the hose lies,

Fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed clear width of not less than 24 feet,
except for approved access gates.

The required turning radius of a fire apparatus access road shall be no less than 28 feet
inside turning radius and 52 feet outside turning radius.

Fire apparatus access roads shall be designed and maintained to support the imposed loads
of fire apparatus, with a minimum vehicle load of 33,000 pounds per axle, and shall be
surfaced and paved so as to provide all-weather driving capabilities.

The grade of the fire apparatus access road shall not exceed 12%. The angles of approach
and departure for fire apparatus access roads shall be a maximum of 8% grade for 25 feet of
approach/departure.

Red-painted curbs and appropriate signage are required to maintain the minimum required
access road width of 24 feet.

Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet in length shall be provided with
an approved area for turning around the fire apparatus. For commercial and industrial areas,
a clear turnaround with a dlameter of 104 feet to face of curb shall be provided.

Approved automatic fire sprinkier systems in new buildings and structures shall be provided
throughout all buildings, regardless of occupancy type, exceeding 5,000 sq. ff. (464 m2) in
building area and additionafly throughout all buildings containing a Group S7 occupancy.
Either a dedicated fire riser room with exterior door or a Post-Indicator Valve is required for
each fire sprinkler system riser.

A Fire Department Connection shali be located on the address side of buildings, adjacent to
the access lane, within 100 feet of a fire hydrant and clear of obstructions.

An approved water supply capable of supplying the required fire flow for fire protection shall
be provided.

Fire hydrants shall be provided along required fire apparatus access roads. In all
commercial and industrial areas, hydrants shall be spaced not to exceed 300 feet or 400 feet
provided the building is protected by an approved automatic fire sprinkler system.



UN-45-19
Stericycle Medical
May16, 2019

17.

18.

18.

20.
21.

22.

23.

Fire hydrants shall be iccated 4 feet to 7 feet from the back of curb. Where it is not possible
to locate the hydrant a minimum of 4 feet from the back of the curb, the hydrant shall be
protected against vehicular impact in accordance with Section 312. A perimeter around the
hydrant measuring a minimum of 3 feet from its exterior shall be maintained clear of all
obstructions at all times.

Where streets are provided with median dividers, or have four or more travel lanes and a
traffic count of more than 30,000 vehicles per day, hydrants shall be spaced at a maximum
of 1,000 feet along both sides of the street; arranged on an alternating basis at 500-foot
intervais.

Where new water mains are extended along streets where hydrants are not needed for
protection of structures or similar fire problems, fire hydrants shall be provided at spacing not
to exceed 1,000 feet to provide water for transportation hazards.

The maximum distance from a hydrant to the end of a dead-end street shall not exceed 200
feet.

Two sources of water supply are required whenever 4 or more fire hydrants and/or sprinkler
{per Section 903.3.1.1 and/or 903.3.1.2) lead-ins are installed on a single system,

For systems required to have two sources of water supply per C104.1, sectionai control
valves shall be installed so that no more than 2 fire hydrants andfor fire sprinkler {per Section
903.1.1 and/or 903.3.1.2 only) lead-ins can be out of service due to a service interruption.
For systems permifted to have one source of water supply per C104.1, sectional control
valves shall be installed so that no more than 3 fire hydrants and/or fire sprinkler {per Section
903.1.1 and/or 903.3.1.2 only) lead-ins can be out of service due to a service interription.
Portable fire extinguishers shall be installed per IFC§906.1.

Janice Thomas, Fire Protection Specialist

Page | 2



O:E:o Stericycle

April 25, 2019

Community Development Department
City of North Las Vegas

1700 North Grand Avenue

North Las Vegas, Nevada

Subject: Purpose and Intent Letter
Stericycle — Proposed Incinerator Facility
Grand Valley Parkway, Mountain View Industrial Park {Apex)
North Las Vegas, Nevada

To Whom [t May Concern:

Stericycle, Inc. presents this letter to document the purpose and intent for the construction and
operation of a hospital, medical, and infectious waste incinerator (HMIWI) facility. Stericycle, Inc.
proposes to construct and operate an HMIWI facility just south of Grand Valley Parkway in the
Mountain View Industrial Park portion of the Apex Overlay Area in North Las Vegas, Nevada, parcel
number 103-15-010-027. This purpose and Intent letter has been prepared in accordance with the
City of North Las Vegas (CNLV) zoning ordinance and is submitted as part of the Special Use Permit
application that is included with this letter. The Site will be located in an M-2, General Industrial
District, zoned area within the CNLV, and is surrounded by similar uses and the same M-2 zoning.

The site and proposed use was originally approved by the CNLV in December 2016 as part of this
same zoning and special use process. That approval inadvertently lapsed in December 2018 while
Stericycle was working with other City departments for approval of site designs, utility
commitments, and other needed approvals. Therefore, this is a re-application for approval of the
same use in the same site that was previously approved.

Presented below is a discussion of the project background, our proposed intent, and estimated
schedule,

28161 North Kelth Drive + Lake Forest, lllinols 60045 ¢ www.stericycle.com



0:5:0 Stericycle

SITE DESCRIPTION

The Site will require an approximately 6.45 acre developed portion, containing a 48,000 square foot
main building with two types of use, as listed below. it should be noted that the layout of the
facility and the dimensions presented below are only approximate at this time proposed and may be
revised during detailed design and construction phases, reflecting adherence to best engineering
practice, all applicable codes and ordinances, and required approvals by city, county, state, and
federal regulatory agencies having jurisdiction.

» Office/administration — approximately 4,500 square feet; and
* Incineration and Waste Management — approximately 44,000 square feet for receiving, staging,
sorting, transfer, processing, and incineration of medical waste.

The Site will also require an employee parking lot; outdoor storage; truck access and parking;
movement and queuing; loading and unioading of freight and supplies; compatible landscaping;
natural open space; exterior lighting; security; a backup generator; run-on/run-off control facilities;
and other ancillary facilities associated with the intended use of the Site. The developed portion of
the Site will be enclosed with a perimeter fence and gates to prevent unauthorized access.

The site development design, drainage features, storm water and flood control features, entrance
roadway, and other site features have been designed and submitted to the CNLV for review and
approval by Stericycle’s local site and civil engineer, Poggemeyer Design Group (PDG). Conceptual
building and equipment layout designs are included with the application, however, while consistent
with site design features and dimensions developed this far, these building and equipment details
are subject to potential revision as detailed designs are developed for building permits and
construction.

FACILITY PURPOSE

The HMIWI facility proposed by Stericycle is the first of its kind in the CNLV area which will assist
with medical/infectious waste handling, treatment and disposal in a safe and effective manner.
There is no other HMIW! or processing facility within the State of Nevada; thus, HMIWI and other
medical waste that is generated within Nevada must be either landfilled, if allowable under the
regulations for those materials, or transported outside of the State of Nevada to approved
treatment facilities.

The Site will service the greater Las Vegas area as well as the State of Nevada. As part of Stericycle’s

network, the Site will also service Stericycle’s Western Regional System, including but not limited to
the Pacific Coast and Intermountain States.

28161 North Keith Drive ¢ Lake Forest, lllinois 60045 + www.sterlcycle.com



o:f:o Stericycle

The waste processed/incinerated at the facility will include medical waste generated in health care
or health care-related facilities, animal care, and research facilities, pharmaceutical manufacturing
and distribution facilities. It wili also include special waste streams approved by the Division of Solid
and Hazardous Waste.

Typical wastes include paper, plastic, cloth, diagnostic cultures, human and animal tissues generated
by hospitals, nursing homes, clinics, and other medical, dental and veterinary facilities; exptred and
unused non-hazardous pharmaceuticals, and other such similar wastes as may be permitted for
incineration by the facility.

EFFECTS ON TRAFFIC AND SURROUNDING NEIGHBORHOODS

The impacts to traffic and surrounding neighborhoods is anticipated to be minimal. Truck volume is
expected to be approximately 30 trucks per day, hoth in and out of the site. This number will
include waste transport trucks, semi-tractor trailers, local service and route trucks, and other facility
support vehicles, This number could change somewhat {increase or decrease) as the needs and
regulations of the business change over time. The approximate amount of vehicles listed above
does not include employees or visitor traffic. The estimated truck and vehicle volume is not
anticipated to impact traffic or surrounding neighborhoods. Stericycle, by PDG, has submitted, and
recelved, a walver of the need for a traffic study by the CNLV, reflecting this minimal impact.

The surrounding neighborhood in the industrial park features compatible intense industrial uses and
zoning, including neighboring uses such as a waste water lagoon and treatment facility, a petroleum

tank farm, and a natural gas to electricity power plant.

GENERAL PUBLIC BENEFITS

n summary, the following benefits will be provided to CNLV and the State of Nevada:

* The construction and operation of the HMIW!I facility will be the first medical waste
incinerator located inside Nevada, which will benefit the State of Nevada by providing a local
source for the proper and correct method of destruction of incinerable medical waste. This
includes certain wastes, such as pathological waste, marijuana growers residuals, and other
difficult to manage waste streams that the Southern Nevada Health District has indicated
could be designated for the proposed facility and, in so doing, would relieve a potential
public heaith issue.

» With the addition of an HMIWI facility within the greater Las Vegas area, it will reduce the
volume of truck traffic and vehicle emissions that currently exist due to having to transport
medical waste to out-of-state facilities for treatment and disposal.

* Site development, construction of the facility, and operation of the facility will benefit the
economic condition of Las Vegas by creating additional jobs and economic activity.

28161 North Keith Drive ¢+ Lake Forest, lllinols 60045 + www.stericycle.com
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PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

In 2016, Stericycle began the process of obtaining the Southern Nevada Health District permit to
construct/operate an HMIWI facility, and also the approval of the permit to construct from the
Department of Air Quality of Clark County. Both of these permits have since been granted and
remain in good standing. As mentioned above, the special use permit approval for the site and
facility were originally granted by the CNLV in December 2016. Site design and drainage study
approvals have been applied for with the CNLV and are pending. Once the reapplication for the city
SUP and site permits are approved, site grading and construction would begin, while detailed
building and process designs are completed and permitted. It is anticipated that the construction
phase of the facility would take approximately 2-3 years, including site work, building construction,
equipment instatlation, startup, shakedown, and testing. This anticipated schedule is proposed and
will be determined based on the availability of materials, equipment, permitting, etc.

Please feel free to contact us should you have any questions concerning this submittal, or require
any additional information. We lock forward to continuing to work cooperatively with the City on

the development and construction of this important project.

Sincerely,

James W. Nold
Director of Engineering
Stericycle, Inc.

28161 North Keith Drive + Lake Forest, lllinois 60045 ¢ www.stericycle.com
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Stericycle
Fined for
Improper
Disposal of
Hazardous
Waste

February 28, 2005

Ohio EPA has reached a settlement with Stericycle, Inc., for violating hazardous waste faws. The Trumbull
County company has agreed to pay a $10,900 civil penalty. Stericycle operates an infectious waste incinerator
and two autoclaves at its facility located at 1901 Pine Avenue SE, Warren, OH. The facility is a large generator
of hazardous waste including wastewater treatment sludge and incinerator ash.

On June 14, 2004, Chio EPA was notified by Stericycle that it had sent a roll-off box containing 12 cubic yards
of hazardous waste treatment sludge to a solid waste landfill. The sludge was disposed of at a Mahoning
County landfill not permitted to accept hazardous waste, Approximately 80 tons of material containing both
the hazardous waste sludge and surrounding solid waste were later removed from the landfill and sent to a
permitted hazardous waste facility.

On June 28, 2004, an Ohio EPA inspector noted additional violations at Stericycle. They included: failure to
conduct and document weekly inspections of emergency equipment; failure to include and update
emergency-related information in the hazardous waste contingency plan; and failure to maintain job titles
and descriptions for employees who handle or manage hazardous waste.

https://www.ercweb.com/tips/show/stericycle-fined-for-improper-disposal-of-hazardous-w... 5/22/2019



Notice of Violation: Stericycle Inc. - Utah Department of Environmental Quality Page 1 of 5

UTAH DEPARTMENT of
ENVIRONMENTAL

\ QUALITY

Notice of Violation:
Stericycle Inc.

Update December 3, 2014

The Air Quality Board approved the Stericicle Azreement
{(hitps://documents.deq.utah.gov/air-
guality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013018.pdf) (275

KB) between DEQ and Stericycle for the violations asserted in the
August 28, 2014 Notice of Violation (NOV).

Update December 1, 2014

s Fact Sheet (https://documents.deqg.utah.gov/air-
quality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013032.pdf) (558 KB)

The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and Stericycle
reached a Settlement Aureement
(https://documents.deq.utah.gov/air-
quality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013038.pdf) (275 KB) on the
violations asserted in the August 28, 2014 Notice of Violation
(NOV). The Agreement requires Air Quality Board approval before
becoming final.

The terms of the agreement are as follows:

1. Stericycle shall pay a total stipulated penalty of
$2,322.536.00.

a. The company will pay half of this penalty ($1, 161, 268)
to the state’s General Fund within 30 days.

https://deq.utah.gov/businesses-facilities/notice-of-violation-stericycle-inc 5/28/2019



Notice of Violation: Stericycle Inc. - Utah Department of Environmental Quality Page 2 of 5

b. The remaining half of the penalty will be credited as a
Supplemental Environmental Proiect (SEP)

(httn: //www2.epa.gov/enforcement/supplemental-

environmental-projects-seps) when Stericycle

permanently ceases operations at its current North Salt
Lake location.

2, Stericycle shall relocate its medical waste incinerator to a
new location in Tooele County no later than three years after
the company receives the following documents:

a. final, non-appealable permits from DEQ

b. final, non-appealable permits from local governments

¢. Governor'’s approval for construction required under
state statute

{(htip://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title1g/Chapter6/19-6-

S108.himl?v=C19-6-8108 1800010118000101)

3. Stericycle shall submit all permit applications necessary to
relocate the facility within 9o days of a sighed agreement.

a. Sixty days after Stericycle receives all Necessary
Approvals to Construct, the company will provide a
construction schedule to the Division of Air Quality
(DAQ).

b. Every 9o days, Stericycle will provide DAQ with a
report on the construction progress.

4. Within three years to the date that Stericycle obtains all
Necessary Approvals to Construct, Stericycle’s Title V
Operating Permit (February 1. 2009)

{https://documents.deqg.utah.gov/air-
quality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013042.pdf) (136 KB)
and its Title V renewal and Approval Order (August 12,
2014) (https://documents.deg.utah.gov//air-
guality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013048.pdf} (117 KB)

https://deq.utah.gov/businesses-facilities/notice-of-violation-stericycle-inc 5/28/2019
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will become null and void, and Stericycle will permanently
cease operations at its North Salt Lake facility.

The Agreement resolves all claims under the NOV. Air pollution
control upgrades to the incinerator over the past two years have
brought the facility into compliance with all applicable federal and
state air quality regulations.

Update April 24, 2014

The Executive Director of DEQ appointed an administrative law
judge (ALJ) to conduct an administrative hearing on the amended
NOV and Stericycle’s Request for Agency Action (RFAA) for an
evidentiary hearing to challenge the amended NOV.

On May 28, 2013, the Division of Air Quality (DAQ) issued a

Notice of Violation and Order to Comply
(hitps://documents.deg.utah.gov/air-
guality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013053.pdf) (8.1 MB) to

Stericycle for multiple violations of its Title V air quality operating

permit.

The Order required Stericycle to take all necessary actions to bring
its operations into compliance with all applicable provisions of the
Utah Air Conservation Act and submit written notification of its
intent to comply, outlining how, and when compliance will be
achieved to DAQ in writing on or before the 15th day after it
received the Order. Stericycle submitted its 15-day response to the
NOV ({https://documents.deg.utah.qov/air-
guality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013058.pdf} (1.8 MB) to DAQ
on June 14, 2013 and requested a 30-day extension from DAQ to
decide whether it will challenge the Order. Stericycle submitted a
request for extension (https:/documents.deq.utah.gov/air-
quality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013062.pdf) (205 KB) on
July 26, 2013, asking for additional time to work towards a
settlement. DAQ granted Stericycle an extension

https://deq.utah.gov/businesses-facilities/notice-of-violation-stericycle-inc 5/28/2019



Notice of Violation: Stericycle Inc, - Utah Department of Environmental Quality

{hitps://documents.deq.utah.qov/air-
quality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013066.pdf) (154 KB) until
August 30, 2013. DAQ requested, and Stericycle agreed, to weekly
meetings to advance settlement discussions, with an option for

additional meetings as needed.

The Division of Air Quality identified a need to modify the NOV to
explicitly cover each day of the nitrogen oxides {NOx) emission
lmit violation based on the charging rate of waste prior to the
installation of additional NOx controls. On August 28, 2013, DAQ
issued an Amended Notice of Violation and Order to Comply
(https.//documents.deg.utah.qov//air-
quality/facilities/stericvlce/DAQ-2018-013069.pdf) (6.7 MB).
Stericycle responded to this Amended Notice of Violation by filing
a Request for Agency Action _(https://documents.deq.utah.gov//air-
guality/facilities/stericylce/DAQ-2018-013070.pdf) {485 KB) with
the Division on September 27, 2013,

Stericycle demonstrated compliance with the emission limits
contained in its permit as of April 10, 2013, with the penalty
accruals for the violations listed in the NOV ending on that date.
Under state rules, DAQ can levy fines of up to $10,000 per day for
every violation.

The violations identified in the Notice of Violation (NOV) occurred
between 2011 and 2013. They include:

1. emissions exceeding the permit limits for dioxin and furan

2. emissions exceeding the permit limits for NOx on multiple
occasions

3. failure to report these emission exceedances to DAQin a
requisite time frame

4. failure to maintain normal operating conditions during a
stack test

5. failure to include the test results demonstrating these
emission exceedances in the requisite annual and semi-

annual monitoring reports

https://deq.utah.gov/businesses-facilities/notice-of-violation-stericycle-inc
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The Division Director will determine the penalties
(https://rules.utah.gov/publicat/code/r307/r307-130.htm) for
noncompliance based on the nature and extent of the violations
and the potential for harm from the violations. Violations with a
high potential for impact on the public health and the
environment are subject to the highest penalties.

The Notice of Violation and Order to Comply is a document that
describes findings of fact, identifies violations based on these
findings, and issues mandatory compliance provisions based on
the findings and violations. It does not establish penalties, but
does provide information the Division Director can use in

determining fines.

Contacts

» Air Quality Compliance History: Rustv Rubv
+ Air Quality Permit: Jon Black
» Health Related Concerns: Steve Packham _ , Toxicologist

+ Solid Waste Permit and Compliance History: Rov Van Os _ .

© 2019 Utah Department of Environmental Quality
185 North 1950 West, Salt Lake City, UT 84116
0 Office: (801) 536-4400
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A Environmental incidents (https:/deq.utah.qov/general/report-an-incident): (801) 536-4123
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Stericycle, Inc. Case Settles for $13,500

This page last reviewed December 28, 2011

[n April 2011, Stericycle Inc. agreed to pay $13,500.00 in penalties for violating air quality regulations:
$10,125.00 will go to the California Air Pollution Control Fund, which provides funding for projects and
research to improve California's air quality; $3,375.00 will go to Peralta Community College District to
fund emission education classes conducted by participating California community colieges, under the
California Council for Diesel Education and Technology (CCDET) program.

An investigation by the Air Resources Board (ARB) showed that Stericycle inc. failed to properly self-
inspect their diesel trucks to assure the trucks met state smoke emission standards, and to properiy
affix emission control |abels the engines of their fleet vehicles. ARB documented violations as they
related to the Periodic Smoke Inspection Program (PSIP). To settle the case, Stericycle Inc. agreed to
the $13,500.00 penalty and to comply with the Emission Control Label and Periodic Smoke Inspection
programs, and other ARB programs.

CONTACT US e in]za
[BOD) 2424450 | Ieilpll = ACCESSIRILGY
1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

P.O. Box 2818, Sacramento, CA 95812

Wy

The California Air Resources Board is one of six boards, depariments, and offices under tha Caifernia Copyrioht @ 2012 State of Calfornia
Environmenlal Protection Agency

LelRacy [ TEC
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Exhibdt D

Stericycle agrees to $120,800 settlement with
state

By ABQJournat News Stafl

Published: Friday, May 8ib, 20i5 at 2:41pm
Updated: Fridny, Muy 8th, 2015 at 2:56pm

SANTA FE —The state Environment Department has entered into a $120,813 settlement agreement with
Stericycle Specialty Waste Solutions, In¢,, which manages hazardous waste from small quantity
generators, non-hazardous waste, universal waste, household hazardous waste and used oil.

State inspectors discovered 15 alleged violations during a February 2014 routine inspection, including
issues pertaining to excess waste storage time, inappropriate emergency response preparation,
incomplete waste shipping documents and insufficient empioyee training.

Stericycle has taken action to prevent a recurrence of those violations, a state Environment Department
news release said.

Auto Racing

AP PLAYBOOK
Planning made simple

One-shot drivers hoping to use Indy

500 as launching pad ap.org/playbook
2 Irs ago
ADVERTISEMENT
Stewart, Gibbs, Labonte elected to ﬁ
NASCAR Hall of Fame .
24 minutes ago
[

https://www.abqjournal.com/581745/stericycle-agrees-to-120800-settlement-with-state.html ~ 5/22/2019
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Department of Ecology News Release - April 25, 2018
Updated: April 25, 2018

Stericycle medical waste facility
fined for polluted wastewater

MORTON - Over a 10-month stretch in 2017, Stericycle Inc. repeatedly discharged
polluted wastewater from its medical waste processing plant in Morton. The
wastewater disrupted the city's treatment plant and threatened aquatic life in the
Tilton River.

The Washington Department of Ecology has fined & Stericycle $72,000 for not
properly treating its wastewater, and for not notifying the city or Ecology within 24
hours of its violations.

Stericycle receives medical waste from Washington, Oregon, and tdaho. Itis
required (by an Ecology permit) to [imit conventional pollutants like pH, oil and
grease, solids, and any material that consumes oxygen in the water.

One of Stericycle’s polluted discharges overwhelmed Morton's treatment plant
and caused the plant to violate its own water quality permit. Another discharge
included excessive mercury, which can cause death or disease to living organisms.
And, in nine cases, the company exceeded the limits set to protect oxygen in
water; fish and other aquatic animals need the dissolved oxygen to live.

"All companies are expected to carefully manage their facilities so discharges do
not cause harmful pollution. When Stericycle sent polluted wastewater to
Morton's treatment plant, it disrupted city operations,” said Heather Bartlett, who
manages Ecology’'s water quality program. “We expect Stericycle to promptly



-

make the necessary changes to its treatment system to protect their workers,
Morton’s facility, and waters downstream.”

In addition to the penalty, Ecology has ordered & Stericycle to hire outside experts
to assess the company's treatment system within 30 days, and propose corrective
action to Ecology within 60 days. The company must complete all corrective action
within 90 days.

Stericycle has 30 days to appeal this penalty to the Washington State Pollution
Control Hearings Board &. Water pollution fines are placed in the state’s Coastal
Protection Fund that provides grants to local and tribal governments for water
quality improvement projects.

Contact information

Dave Bennett
Communications
dave.bennett@ecy.wa.gov
Primary: 360-407-6239
Twitter: ecySWe
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News Releases from Region 10

Stericycle settles with EPA, pays penalty for
violations of hazardous waste law

12/18/2018

Contact Information:
Mark Maclntyre (macintyre mark@epa.gov)
206-553-7302

Today, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency announced a settlement of a significant hazardous
waste liability case against Stericycle, a company that treats and stores hazardous wastes at facilities
in Kent and Tacoma.

“Protecting human health and the environment also means ensuring that storing and treating
hazardous waste at a commercial level does not harm people or their property,” said EPA Region 10
Office of Compliance and Enforcement Director Ed Kowalski. “Protection — and fairess — dictates
that a company must be able to compensate its neighbors if it does them harm.”

Stericycle agreed to pay a $150,000 penalty after EPA found that the company violated terms of its
waste-handling and storage permit by failing to maintain a liability insurance policy that would
provide adequate coverage to third parties — neighbors — whose health and properties could be harmed
by a release of hazardous wastes from the facilities. Stericycle agreed to the settlement without
admitting the allegations it contains.

Liability insurance is a particularly important issue in the low-income areas where these types of
facilities often operate. Such insurance is a key component of the overall permitting system, which is
intended to ensure the safe operation of commercial hazardous waste handling facilities, where
dangerous fires, spills, and other incidents can occur. EPA found that pay-outs in Stericycle’s policy
could have been consumed by legal fees rather than payment to those harmed by such a release.

EPA is looking closely at the liability insurance policies at all hazardous waste handlers in the Pacific
Northwest and is working closely with the states® environmental agencies to ensure these handlers are
meeting alt their permit obligations.

https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/stericycle-settles-epa-pays-penalty-violations-hazardou...  5/22/2019
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Stericycle setties with EPA, pays penalty for
violations of hazardous waste law

By Scott Schaefer - December 19, 2018

<EPA #

United States
Environmental Protection
Agency

On Wednesday [(Dec. 19), the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency announced a
settlement of a significant hazardous waste liability case against Stericycle, a
company that treats and stores hazardous wastes at facilities in Kent and Tacoma.

Mere's more from the EPA;

“Protecting human health and the environment also means ensuring that storing and
treating hazardous waste at a commercial level does not harm people or their property,”
said EPA Region 10 Office of Compliance and Enforcement Director Ed Kowalski.
"Protection - and fairness — dictates that a company must be able to compensate its

neighbors if it does them harm.”

Stericycle agreed Lo pay & $150,000 penalty after the EPA found that the company
violated terms of Its waste-handling and storage permit by failing to malntaln a llability
insurance policy that would provide adequate coverage to third parties - neighbors -
whose health and properties could be harmed by a release of hazardous wastes from the
facilities, Stericycle agreed to the settlement without admitting the allegations it
contains.

Liabliity insurance is a particularly important issue in the low-income areas where these
types of facilities often operate. Such Insurance is a key component of the overall
permitting system, which is intended to ensure the safe operatlon of commercial
hazardous waste handling facifities, where dangerous fires, spills, and other incidents
can occur. EPA found that pay-outs in Stericycle’s policy could have been consumed by
legal fees rather than payment to those harmed by such a release.

EPA is looking closely at the liability insurance policies at all hazardous waste handlers in

the Pacific Northwest and is working closely with the states’ environmental agencles to
ensure these handlers are meeting all their permit obligations.

Get FREE hyperfocal news for Kent daily via email — sign up here:
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Air pollutants that are released fro
medical waste incinerators

Dioxins & Furans — Dioxins have been called the most dangerous chemical known to man.
Contrary to popular usage, "dioxin" is not one compound of a single, defined toxicity, but a
family of compounds consisting of 17 dioxins and furans, and 13 polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCBs). Each have a wide range of toxicity. Dioxins form from the burning of plastics and paper
containing polyvinyl chloride. Furans, are similar to diexins, and cause cancer in animals, and
are suspected to cause cancer in people. These chemicals form when temperatures are not
consistent, when waste is not completely incinerated, and during by-pass events when air
poliution control equipment fails.

ltems common to medical waste that may contain dioxins and furans are bloed bags and fluid
{IV) bags. Smaller amounts of dioxins are present in bleached paper products including facial
tissue, toilet tissue, paper towels, and disposable diapers. Instead of recycling them, the
BMWNC medical waste incinerator needlessly burns plastic and paper products — the very
things that when burned form dioxins and furans. Dioxins foermed during incineration are
released into the air and travel long distances via air currents, contaminating fields and crops.
Cattle and other livestock eat soil contaminated with dioxin, the dioxin enters their tissues, and
then people eat the contaminated meat and dairy praducts. Once dioxins enter the human body
they are absorbed by fat tissue where they stay for years. In the environment, dioxins tend to
accumulate in the food chain. Birds are highly susceptible to poisoning because of their eating
habits close to the ground. Dioxin is absorbed by algae in surface waters and eaten by fish
which then become poisoned by dioxins.

Dioxins cause cancer. Long-term, low-level exposure of humans to dioxins and furans ¢an iead
to the impairment of the immune system, impairment of the development of the nervous system
and endocrine system, birth defects, altered liver functions, breast cancer, and reproductive
functions. Dioxins have also been linked with lowered sperm counts, behavioral problems and
increased incidence of diabetes. A systematic review of epidemiclogic studies has found an
association between dioxin exposure and heart disease. Short-term, high-level exposure may
result in skin ulcers called chioracne. Exposure of animals to dioxins has resulted in several
types of cancer.

Mercury - Mercury is found in dental wastes which are burned by medical waste incinerators,
A neighborhood being poisoned by mercury emissions from a medical waste inclnerator
{Stericycle) in Alamance County demanded that the incinerator stop taking dental waste. The
state issued an order to that made it lllegal for the incinerator to take medical waste and a sharp
decrease in mercury emissions resulted. Mercury is suspected to cause cancer. At high levels it
may damage the brain, kidneys, and developing fetus. Children are at special risk. It can affect
the brain functioning, mental retardation, seizures, tremors, inability to speak, kidney damage,
digestive problems, and may result in irritability, shyness, tremors, changes in vision or hearing,
and memory problems. Very young children are more sensitive to mercury than adults. Mercury
in the mother's body passes to the fetus and it can also pass to a nursing infant through breast
milk.

Hydrogen Chloride - Hydrogen chloride is a colorless gas with a pungent odor. Heavier than
air, it accumulates in low-lying areas. Hydrogen chloride is irritating and corrosive to any tissue it
contacts. Brief exposure to low levels causes throat imitation; exposure to higher levels can
result in rapid breathing, narrowing of the bronchioles, blue coloring of the skin, accumulation of
fluid in the lungs, and even death. Some people may develop an inflammatery reaction to
hydrogen chloride, called reactive airways dysfunction syndrome (RADS), a type of asthma
caused by irritating or corrosive substances, It is not known if hydrogen chloride causes cancer
or reproductive problems,

vinibit



Nitrogen Oxide - Low levels of nitrogen oxides in the air can irritate your eyes, nose, throat,
and lungs, possibly causing coughs and shortness of breath, tiredness, and nausea. Breathing
high levels of nitrogen oxides can cause rapid buming, spasms, and swelling of tissues in the
throat and upper respiratory tract, a build-up of fluid in your lungs, and death. Exposure of
pregnant animals to nitrogen oxides has resulted in toxic effects in developing fetuses. Nitrogen
oxides have also caused changes in the genetic material of animal cells. We do not know if
exposure to nitrogen oxides causes reproductive or developmental effects in humans.

Lead - Lead is one out of four metals that have the most damaging effects on human health.
Lead is highly toxic and can enter the human body through uptake of contaminated food, water
and air. Health effects include anemia, elevated blood pressure, kidney damage, miscarriages
and subtle abortions, disruption of nervous systems, brain damage, and declined fertility of men
through sperm damage. Lead is particularly harmful to children, and exposure can result in
diminished learning abilities, and behavioral disruptions, such as aggression, impulsive behavior
and hyperacfivity.

Cadmium - Cadmium is an extremely toxic metal and causes cancer. Acute exposure may
result in flu-like symptoms of weakness, fever, headache, chills, sweating and muscular pain.
Chronic or long-term exposure Is lung and/or prostate cancer, and kidney damage. Cadmium
also Is belleved to cause pulmonary emphysema and bone disease. Cadmium may also cause
anemia, teeth discoloration and loss of smell.

Sulfur dioxide - High concentrations of sulfur dioxide can result in breathing problems with
asthmatlc children and adults who are active outdoors. Short-term exposure has been linked to
wheezing, chest tightness and shortness of breath. Other effects associated with longer-term
exposure include respiratory iliness, alterations in the lungs' defenses and aggravation of
existing cardiovascular disease.

Carbon monoxide - Carbon monoxide is an odorless, coloriess, toxic gas and results from
incomplete combustion, It is impossible to see, taste or smell the toxic fumes. At lower levels of
exposure, carbon monoxide causes mild effects hat are often mistaken for the flu. These
symptoms include headaches, dizziness, disorientation, nausea and fatigue. The effects of
carbon dioxide exposure can vary greatly from person to person depending on age, overall heaith
and the concentration and length of exposure.

Particulate matter - Particle poliution, especially fine particles, contains microscopic solids or
liguid droplets so small that they can get deep into the lungs and cause serious health
problems. Numerous scientific studies have linked particle pollution exposure to a variety of
problems, Including increased respiratory symptoms, such as irritation of the airways, coughing,
or difficulty breathing, decreased lung function, aggravated asthma, development of chronic
bronchitis, irregular heartbeat, nonfatal heart attacks and premature death In people with heart
or lung disease. People with heart or lung diseases, children and clder adults are the most likely
to be affected by particle pollution exposure. However, even if you are healthy, temporary
symptoms may result from exposure to elevated levels of particle pollution.

The President’'s Cancer Panel recently issued a new report on the dangers of chemicals in our
environment. The report concluded that tens of thousands of chemicals and other substances
currently in use have never have been evaluated, and it is not known how many cause cancer.
Only a handful of chemical mixtures have been assessed, and virtually nothing is known about
the toxicity of the combinations of various chermicals under various situations. New chemicals
are created from the incineration process, and these are not tested or regulated. Stericycle's
draft permit allows for more waste to be incinerated. Do we really want to place our communities
at greater risk for illness and disease when there are cleaner, safer altematives?

BLUE RIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL DEFENSE LEAGUE

www.BREDL.org PO BOX 44 Saxapahaw, North Carolina 27340 (336) 525-2003 office
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THE CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NORTH LAS VEGAS Location & Zoning Map
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Applicant: Stericycle, Inc.

Application: Special Use Permit

Request: To Allow a Medical Waste incinerator Facility

Project Info: Approximately 4,600 feet south of Apex Sapphire Avenue and
800 feet southwest from the end of Grand Valley Parkway

Case Number: UN-45-189 5129/2019
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BRIEF

Stericycle abandons plans for
North Las Vegas site following
pushback over health and
environmental risks

By E.A. Crunden
Published Dec. 19, 2019

Dive Brief:

» Stericycle officially confirmed it has abandoned plans to build a
medical waste incinerator in the city of North Las Vegas,
Nevada, as reported by the Las Vegas Sun. The incinerator,
which was to be based at Apex Industrial Park, would have
replaced a facility near Salt Lake City, Utah that is closing. The
final plans included a 44,000 square foot facility that would
have taken medical waste from throughout the West, with ash

stored on-site.

» Back in June, Stericycle withdrew an application for a special
permit from the North Las Vegas Planning Commission paving
the way for the facility. Initially, the city expressed interest in
the project and approved a special permit in December
2016 that later expired and prompted a new application. But
concerns over health and environmental risks ultimately
jeopardized the project as officials became skeptical, seemingly

prompting the company to back out.

» Jennifer Koenig, Stericycle vice president for corporate
communications, told Waste Dive the company abandoned the

Nevada project over "broader business considerations and

htlps://www.wasledive.com/news/slericycle-las-vegas-medical-waste-canceled-incinerator/569325/ 1/4
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facility planning." It is unclear what the abandoned North Las
Vegas effort might mean for medical waste incineration and

disposal in the region, or where the waste might now be sent.

Dive Insight:

Stericycle has operations around the world, but the Illinois-based
company has struggled with pushback over public health risks and

environmental concerns in these regions.

For years, the North Salt Lake City plant has been a source of
particular contention. Environmentalist Erin Brockovich once
joined a protest against the facility in 2013 after Stericycle received
a violation notice for exceeding emissions limits on dioxins and
other hazardous pollutants. A year later, the medical waste giant
agreed to a $2.3 million fine — the highest in history for the Utah
Division of Air Quality and the maximum that could be levied. That
move came after Stericycle misreported emissions from the

incinerator, in violation of limits under the Clean Air Act.

Part of the company's settlement with Utah entailed leaving the
North Salt Lake City facility and seeking a site elsewhere in Tooele
County, around two hours away. The state said the $2.3 million
fine would be cut in half if the move was completed within three

years of receiving operational permits for the new site.

But that plan fell through in February as Stericycle reportedly
became more concerned about the mounting costs associated with
the move. Because the Tooele County site is in a a desert, this
would have have entailed transporting water and other costly
efforts. When backing out of the move, Stericycle indicated the
North Salt Lake City site would remain a transfer station for trucks
en route to other facilities, including one in Kansas City, Missouri.
The company also pointed to the planned Nevada site as an

alternative.

hitps:/iwww.wastedive.com/news/stericycle-las-vegas-medical-waste-canceled-incinerator/569325/ 2/
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Stericycle argued the company worked to improve conditions in
Utah and that similar problems would not occur at a new facility.
The company also worked closely with North Las Vegas on many
components of the site, including designs for the facility. But Marc
Jordan, who oversees land and development planning for the city,
ultimately recommended against approving the project over
concerns about toxins that could "impact people and the wildlife,"
according to the Sun. The city of North Las Vegas did not respond

to a request for comment.

Brian Moench, president of the group Utah Physicians for a
Healthy Environment, was among the activists opposed to
Stericycle's work in his own state. He expressed similar sentiments
to Waste Dive about the failed North Las Vegas project.

"Incinerators in general and medical waste incinerators in
particular are well documented public health hazards," Moench
wrote in an email, going on to say "the pollution actually spreads
many of the toxins and metals further, including radioactive
elements, and creates new ones, like dioxins, furans, and polycyclic

aromatic hydrocarbons."

Koenig of Stericycle declined to answer Waste Dive's questions
about where the waste intended for the planned Nevada facility
might go. She also did not indicate whether or not the company

plans to build elsewhere in the region.

Waste-to-energy plants more generally have long been a hard sell
for companies as communities and lawmakers become more
skeptical due to potential risks to human health and the
environment, A previously proposed facility in North Las Vegas by
the company EnviroPower Renewable fell through in 2014 after
community pushback. But the company is still seeking to build in

the area. In June 2018, EnviroPower applied for renewable energy

https:/fwww.wastedive.com/news/stericycle-las-vegas-medical-waste-canceled-incinerator/569325/ 34
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tax abatement, and the company still lists a local pyrolysis

facility as a planned future project.

hitps:/iwww.wastedive.cominews/slericycle-las-vegas-medical-waste-canceled-incinerator/569325/ 4/4
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POLLUTION CONTROL HEARINGS BOARD
STATE OF WASHINGTON

BURLINGTON ENVIRONMENTAL, PCHB No. 19-078
LLC; PSC ENVIRONMENTAL

SERVICES, LLC; STERICYCLE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS,
INC.; and STERICYCLE, INC.,

Appellants,
2

STATE OF WASHINGTON,
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY,

Respondent.

Respondent State of Washington, Department of Ecology (Ecology), represented by
Robert W. Ferguson, Attorney General, John A. Level, Assistant Attorney General, and Nels
Johnson, Senior Counsel, and Appellants Burlington Environmental, LLC, PSC Environmental
Services, LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Inc. (now known as Clean Earth
Environmental Solutions, Inc.), and Stericycle, Inc. (collectively, “Stericycle™), appearing by
and through counsel Beth Ginsberg and Jason T. Morgan, hereby submit this Settlement
Agreement (Agreement) to the Pollution Control Hearings Board (Board) as a full and final

settlement of the above-referenced appeal, and request the Board dismiss the appeal with

prejudice.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 1 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Ecology Division
PO Box 40117
Olympia, WA 98504-0117
360-586-6770
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L BACKGROUND
1. On October 7, 2019, Ecology issued Notice of Penalty No. 16831 (Penalty) for

$1,956,000 and Administrative Order No. 16830 (Order) to Stericycle.

2. On November 5, 2019, Stericycle appealed the Penalty and Order to the Board.

3. In addition to the violations outlined in the Penalty and Order, Ecology has
documented additional violations of WAC 173-303 and Permit WAD020257945 (Permit) at
Stericycle’s Tacoma facility (Facility).

4. Ecology and Stericycle have agreed to resolve the appeal of the Penalty and Order
through the settlement outlined below.

1L SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

The parties desire to resolve all outstanding claims and violations under WAC 173-303
and the Permit as specified below and avoid the cost and time associated with further litigation.
The parties therefore stipulate and agree as follows:
A. SCOPE

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties to this appeal, and
settles all issues that have arisen between the parties at the Facility as of the effective date of this
Agreement as specified herein. Ecology agrees to deem the Penalty and Order satisfied upon
Stericycle’s satisfactory and timely completion of its obligations under this Agreement. This
Agreement applies to and resolves all enforcement, both pending and prospective, regarding:

e The 19 violations of provisions of Ecology Dangerous Waste Management Facility
Permit WADO020257945 and the violations of State Dangerous Waste Regulations
(WAC 173-303) described in the Penalty and Order.
e All other violations at the Facility under WAC 173-303 and the Permit noted in
Ecology’s informal enforcement actions against Stericycle and those that Stericycle self-

reported to Ecology, which have occurred through the effective date of this Agreement.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 2 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Ecology Division
PO Box 40117
Olympia, WA 98504-0117
360-586-6770




10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

This Agreement does not in any way limit Ecology’s authority to issue other penalties or
enforcement actions for any violations of the Permit or WAC 173-303 that Ecology discovers
after the effective date of this Agreement. In the event Ecology issues enforcement actions
against Stericycle in the future, any past violations by Stericycle may be considered relevant for
purposes of determining the reasonableness of a penalty, whether or not such violations are
resolved under this A greement.
B. NO ADMISSION OF LIABILITY

This Agreement is executed for the sole purpose of settling the appeal described herein,
and it is expressly understood that this Agreement shall not constitute or be construed as an
admission of liability.
C. RESOLUTION OF PENALTY AND ORDER

1. Cash Penalty Payment
Ecology and Stericycle have agreed that the amount of $1,956.000 will be paid in full

within thirty (30) days of the Board’s dismissal of this appeal in settlement of Administrative
Order No. 16830 and Notice of Penalty No. 16831. Ecology and Stericycle have also agreed that
an additional amount of $300,000 will be paid in settlement for violations Ecology cited as part
of informal enforcement actions at the Facility subsequent to the issuance of the Penalty and
Order and those violations that Stericycle has self-reported to Ecology from January 1, 2019,
through the effective date of this Agreement. Stericycle shall make the required payments by
check. If payment is made by mail, Stericycle shall make the check directly payable to
“Department of Ecology” and make reference to Penalty No. 16831 on the check, and shall send

the payment to:

Department of Ecology
Attn: Cashiering Unit
P.O.Box 47611

Olympia, WA 98504-7611

An extension to the Cash Penalty Payment date shall be granted only if a request for an

extension is submitted at least fifteen (15) days before the completion date, good cause exists for

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 3 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Ecology Division
PO Box 40117
Olympia, WA 98304-0117
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granting the extension, and Ecology provides written approval of the extension. Any extension
shall be requested in writing. The request shall specify: (1) the length of the extension sought,
and (2) the reason(s) for the extension.

The written extension request shall be sent to:

Michelle Underwood
Department of Ecology
Southwest Regional Office
P.O. Box 47600

Olympia, WA 98504-7600

If Ecology does not receive Stericycle’s payment within thirty (30) days of the effective
date of the Settlement Agreement, Stericycle shall be liable for the late penalty payment(s) in
the amount set forth in paragraph C.3 (Late Penalty Payment).

2. Settlement Conditions

a. Stericycle agrees to comply with the directives issued by Ecology to restrict or
cease activities, and to promptly pay any late penalty payments.

b. Within thirty (30) days of the Board’s dismissal of this appeal, Stericycle will
submit an initial draft for Ecology review and approval of the following Class I prime
modifications to Permit WAD020257945:

1) Modification of Permit Conditions within WAD020257945 Sections C
and D to clarify Process Under Supervision Only (PUSO) requirements
discussed in the January 22, 2020 meeting. The permit must be modified
to require that the PUSO requirement be marked on the profile and
subsequent process forms.

(ii)  Modification of conditions within WAD(020257945 Section C5.4 and
other related sections to further refine profiling criteria, the modification
must include the following requirements:

(A) Profiles must accurately and specifically describe the

characteristics of the waste streams they represent.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 4 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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(B)

©

D)

(E)

Profiles must accurately reflect the physical characteristics, metals
method, applicable waste, shipping information, process codes,
and chemical constituent concentrations listed as part of the
chemical composition of the waste.

Chemical constituents with characteristic limits and/or properties
that contribute to the dangerous waste characteristics or criteria,
such as the toxicity, ignitability, corrosivity, persistence, or
ecotoxicity, may not be listed at a lower range of zero percent
(0%).

SectionJ of the profile, which specifies special disposal
instructions, must include the applicable process codes, such as
STABO2, INC13, or LFBO7.

If any sections of the profile are developed upon the basis of
generator knowledge, then Stericycle must retain records with the
profile addressing how the requirements stipulated in WAC 173-
303-300(2)(a)(i) through (2)(a)(iv) and (2)(b) have been met.

(iii)  Profiles shall include a certification signed by the generator’s authorized

representative describing the rationale applied to identify and characterize

the waste material, if designation is completed without using information

from documented studies or representative samples.

(iv)  Modification of conditions within Permit WAD020257945 Sections C

and D that states the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor shall be

responsible for certification of completion of the enhanced free liquids

test for wastes processed using the filter press, wastewater bench

treatments, and compatibility tests for bulk consolidations. These sections

of Permit WAD20257945 include:

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

5 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
Ecology Division
PO Box 40117
Olympia, WA 98504-0117
360-586-6770




10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

(A)

(B)

©)

(D)

(E)

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

C4.3: Addition of Section C4.3.4 stipulating that the Plant
Manager or Plant Supervisor certify all process analyses listed in
Sections C8.7.1.1 for bulk consolidations, C8.7.1.2, C8.7.1.3, and
C8.7.1.4, including but not limited to required enhanced free
liquid tests, wastewater bench treatments, and compatibility tests
for bulk consolidations. Wastes will not be processed further until
the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor certifies, by signature, that
the results of the aforementioned analyses are within acceptable
limits.

C8.12.3.1.3: Revision of the second sentence: “Documentation of
compatibility testing will be retained with these forms o be routed
to the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor for approval prior to
Jurther processing.

C8.12.3.2: Revision of the fourth sentence: “Compatibility tests
are performed by the facility laboratory, and certified by the Plant
Manager or Plant Supervisor, prior to offloading.

Table C2-7: Addition of the symbol “*” to the bench test and LDR
conformance test. Add a footnote to table C2-7 that states “* =
Wastes undergoing these process analyses must have these
process analyses certified by the Plant Manager or Plant
Supervisor.”

Table C2-7: Addition of the symbol “**” to the compatibility test.
Add a footnote to table C2-7 that states “** = Consolidation,
transfer, and treatment of wastes in tanks from other tanks,
containers, or transportation vehicles must have compatibility test

analyses certified by the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor.”

6 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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)

(G)

(H)

D

Revise and submit to Ecology process forms that document the
requirement for certification by the Plant Manager or Plant
Supervisor for the aforementioned process analyses.

D2.2.8.6.4: Addition of one sentence: The enhanced free liquid
test must be certified by the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor
prior to moving the filter press solids container.

D3.4.1.2.1.3: Addition of one sentence: The enhanced free liquid
test must be certified by the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor
prior to transferring stabilized and solidified waste to
transportation containers.

D3.5.4.1: Addition of one sentence: The compatibility test must
be certified by the Plant Manager or Plant Supervisor prior to

treatment.

(v)  Modification of container stacking requirements specified in Figures

D1-12 and D1-12(a) to maximize safety and stack stability.

(vi)  Modifications to permit Section H that stipulate certification by the Plant

Manager, Plant Supervisor, or Supervisor that staff have been evaluated

for competency prior to managing or processing dangerous waste without

direct supervision.

(vii) Modification to the following Section C permit conditions, by the

addition of a reference to the requirements in proposed Table C2-8:

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

Cl44

C7.2.6

C8.11.1

C8.5 (which shall apply to all subsections of C8.5)
C8.7.1
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e CR7.1.1
e CR712
e C8713

(A)  Tables C2-2 and C2-7 will be updated with footnotes, referring to

the requirements in proposed Table C2-8, which will highlight the

updated reporting requirements for the pertinent Mandatory

Verification Analysis (MVA) and process analyses listed in the

aforementioned Section C permit conditions.

(B) A table (Table C2-8) or a table of substantially, similar nature will

be proposed as an additional table to Section C to summarize the

updated reporting requirements that Ecology must be notified

within five (5) business days upon discovery of failure to meet the

aforementioned Section C permit conditions as a result of this

Settlement:

Permit Condition

Reporting Time

Cl44

C7.2.6

C8.11.1

C8.5 — all subsections

C8.7.1

C8.7.1.1

C8.7.1.2

C8.7.13

Table C2-2 — Mandatory Verification
Analyses

Table C2-2 — Process Analyses

Table C2-7 — Summary of Processing
Analysis Tests

Within five (5) business days

(viii) Include an additional appendix to Permit WAD020257945 Section C that

includes a worksheet intended for use by facility environmental

technicians to guide proper process analyses and management of process-

generated wastes to meet the requirements of Table C2-7.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
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3. Late Payment Penalty
Stericycle shall be liable and pay a penalty of $10,000 per day that the payment pursuant

to paragraph C.1 (Cash Penalty Payment) is not made by the required due date.

4. Restrictions or Cessation of Dangerous Waste Management and/or
Processing Activities at the Stericycle Tacoma Facility

If Ecology determines that Stericycle has violated Permit WADO020257945 or
WAC 173-303, then Ecology may notify Stericycle in writing that it must immediately cease the
activities related to those violations. Ecology’s notification to Stericycle will include a reference
to the applicable provision of the Permit or WAC 173-303 and a description of the facts giving
rise to the violation. The period of cessation will continue until Stericycle demonstrates to
Ecology’s satisfaction that Stericycle has cured the violation(s) of the Permit or WAC 173-303.

5. Modification or Revocation of the Permit

In the event of continued noncompliance, pursuant to WAC 173-303-830 and -840,
Ecology may modify or revoke/terminate the Permit for Stericycle’s violations of the Permit or
WAC 173-303.
D. REMEDIES

In the event that Stericycle violates the terms of this Agreement, Ecology may pursue all
remedies available by law. By entering into this Agreement, Stericycle shall have waived its
right of administrative or judicial review on the underlying merits of the Penalty and Order.
However, Stericycle does not waive the right to contest whether violations of this Agreement
have occurred.
E. VENUE

Stericycle agrees that the venue for any judicial action to enforce this Agreement and/or
to collect the penalty, or any portion thereof, shall be in Thurston County Superior Court.
F. SERVICE

In the event Ecology pursues any remedy in Thurston County Superior Court, Stericycle

agrees to accept service of the summons and complaint by United States mail in lieu of personal

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 9 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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service, at Ecology’s option. Service by mail shall be deemed complete upon the third day
following the day the summons and complaint are placed in the mail. The current address that
Ecology has for Stericycle is: 1701 E. Alexander Avenue, Tacoma, Washington 98421,
Stericycle agrees to accept service at this address unless Stericycle informs Ecology in writing
of any changes to its address.
G. WAIVER OF APPEAL RIGHTS

Stericycle understands that it has the right to contest the Penalty and Order by presenting
evidence at a Board hearing. Stericycle voluntarily waives its right to a hearing upon signature
and acceptance of this Agreement by representatives for Stericycle and Ecology.
H. RELEASE OF LIABILITY

Stericycle and its assigns, or other successors in interest, agree to release and discharge
the Department of Ecology and its officers, agents, employees, agencies, and departments from
any damages and causes of action of any nature arising out of the incidents that gave rise to this
appeal.
I. DISMISSAL OF APPEAL

The parties consent to the submission of this Agreement to the Board and request that,
based upon a full and final settlement having been reached, the Board dismiss this appeal with
prejudice. Both parties further agree to bear their own costs and attorneys’ fees associated with
this appeal.
J. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall become effective upon issuance of the Board’s order dismissing
this appeal.
K. SIGNATORIES AUTHORIZED

The undersigned representatives for Ecology and Stericycle certify that they are fully
authorized by the party whom they represent to enter into the terms and conditions of this

Agreement and to legally bind such party thereto.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 10 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
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L. EXECUTION

This document may be executed in counterparts and may be executed by facsimile, and
each executed counterpart shall have the same force and effect as the original instrument.
M. PARTIES BOUND

This Agreement shall apply to and be binding upon Stericycle, their successors and
assigns. No change in ownership or corporate status shall alter Stericycle’s responsibility under
this Agreement. Stericycle shall provide a copy of this Agreement to any corporate entity that

may acquire Stericycle’s Tacoma facility.

STATE OF WASHINGTON STERICYLE, INC.
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

Darin Rice, Program Manager Richard M. Moore

Hazardous Waste & Toxics Reduction Executive Vice President of N. American
Program Operations

Dated: 5/12/2020 e-signed per approval Dated:

ROBERT W. FERGUSON STOEL RIVES LLP

John A. Level, WSBA #20439 Beth S. Ginberg, WSBA #18523
Assistant Attorney General Jason T. Morgan, WSBA #38346
Nels Johnson, WSBA #28616 Attorneys for Appellant

Senior Counsel 206-624-0900

Attorneys for Respondent
360-586-6770

Dated: _5/14/2020 Dated:
/
/
1
1
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L. EXECUTION

This document may be executed in counterparts and may be executed by facsimile, and
each executed counterpart shall have the same force and effect as the original instrument.
M. PARTIES BOUND

This Agreement shall apply to and be binding upon Stericycle, their successors and
assigns. No change in ownership or corporate status shall alter Stericycle’s responsibility under
this Agreement. Stericycle shall provide a copy of this Agreement to any corporate entity that

may acquire Stericycle’s Tacoma facility.

STATE OF WASHINGTON STERICYLE, INC.

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

ichard M. Moore

Darin Rice, Program Manager

Hazardous Waste & Toxics Reduction Executive Vice President of N. American
Program Operations

Dated: Dated: J%./Z °

ROBERT W. FERGUSON - STOEL RIVES LLP

Attorney General

John A. Level, WSBA #20439 Beth S. Ginberg, WSBA #18523
Assistant Attorney General Jason T. Morgan, WSBA. #38346
Nels Johnson, WSBA #28616 Attorneys for Appellant
Senior Counsel 206-624-0900
Attorneys for Respondent
360-586-6770
Dated: Dated:
/f
11
It
i
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Department ¢f Ecology News Release - Oct. 7, 2019

Dangerous fire on Tacoma tideflats leads to $1.9 million
fine

Stericycle-Tacoma given 30 days to fix waste handling problems

The interior of a processing building at Stericycle-Tacoma following a fire in July 2018,

TACOMA - A dangerous fire erupted on the Tacama tideflats in 2018 after a company mismanaged hazardous waste. That fire and
other compliance problems at the Stericycle-Tacoma hazardous waste facility spurred a $1.9 million fine from the Washington
Department of Ecology.

Stericycle-Tacoma, which cperates under the name “Burlington Environmental,” is one of two businesses in the state that collect,
manage and dispose of hazardous waste generated by industries and businesses. Because their business manages dangerous
chemicals, it is legally required to safely and properly handle material with the utmaost care.

“People could have been injured or killed by Stericycle’s mismanagement of these dangerous materials,” said Maia Bellon, Ecology’s
director. “They are required by law to meet strict permit conditions. This incident shows a complete disregard for the safety of their
ermployees and nearby communities, and that's totally unacceptable.”

In July 2018, Stericycle-Tacoma accepted a shipment of 510 drums of tetrazole - a hazardous powdered chemical used to Inflate
vehicle airbags. The company was required to send the drums to a licensed incinerator. Instead, Stericycle emptied several dozen
drums with the intention of loading the material onto a rail car to ship to a landfill. As the waste was being processed, it ignited and
caused a large fire. Fortunately, the facility's employees were able (o escape unharmed.

During Ecology's investigation of the fire, Stericycle provided misleading and incomplete documentation. Ecology inspectars also
discovered that the company failed to properly manage the waste and residue left by the fire.

During a follow-up inspection in August 2018, Ecology found a sericus lack of training and failure to follow proper procedures at the
facility. Then, in November 2018, there was a second, smaller fire in the facility’s shredder after Stericycle allowed containers with
leftover liquid chemicals to mix. Ecology inspectors issued a compliance letter to the company in 2017 specifically warning against
allowing liquids to enter the shredder. Again, no employees were harmed in the incident.

Because of the repeated prablems with training, oversight and abiding by the facility's permit conditions, along with the $1.9 million
fine, Ecology gave Stericycle 30 days to come into compliance or face revocation of its operating permit.

The company has 30 days tc appeal the penalty to the Washington State Pollution Control Hearings Board ¢,

Contact information

hlips:/fecology.wa.gowAboul-us/Gel-lo-know-us/Nows/20 19/0angecous-ire-on-Tacoma-tideNals-loads-10-3 1-8-m
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Communications
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360-407-6932 or 360-791-1939
Twitter: ecolomwa &

share:
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Department of Ecclogy News Release - June 9, 2020

Ecology settles 2019 penalty with Tacoma hazardous
waste facility

Interior of a Stericycle warehouse after dangerous 2019 fire.

TACOMA -

The Stericycle hazardous waste facility in Tacemna has agreed to settle £2.2 million in penalties issued in 2019 by the Washingron
Department of Ecology. The facility, formerly owned by Stericycle, has since changed ownership and is now a Clean Earth company.
Itis one of two commercial businesses in the state that collect, manage and dispose of hazardous waste generated ty households,
industries and businesses.

In 2018, awarehouse fire erupted at the tideflats faciliny after the company mismanaged its hazardous waste. That fire and other
compliance issues at the same location led to the penalty, which the company appealed in late 2019, The settlement agreement

effectively ends the appeal process.

“It's unacceptable for any business to put its workers, the public and the environment in sericus danger,” said Ecology Director Laura
Watson. “The company must meet all training and operational commitments in the settlement to ensure that this doesn't hagppen
again.”

According to the settlement's terms, Stericycle has agreed to pay the amount in full and the current operator will comply with new
permit modifications that Ecology included to help prevent further violations. These permit changes - such as requiring
management to certify cruciai tests done while processing wastes and ensuring employees have the training they need to work
safely - will help the company do a better job evaluating dangerous wastes before they arrive at the facility.

“It is important (o point out that these violations occurred almost two years prior to our ownership of the facility and run contrary to
our vision, mission and shared values,” said Averil Rance, Clean Earth’s Senior Vice President of Environmental Health and Safety.
“We are confident that, since our acquisition two months ago, the facility has put in place robust compliance, governance, safety and

hllps:/fecology.wa goviAbout-us/Get-to-know-usiNews/2020/June-9-Stericycla- Settlamant
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environmentat procedures to prevent another unfortunate incident from taking place.”

In July 2018, several drums of tetrazole (a hazardous powdered chernical used in vehicle airbags) caught fire as it was being
processed. Had it not ignited at the facility, the highly reactive tetrazole waste would have been shipped through communities by
rail. After the fire, inspectors discovered that the company failed to properly designate and manage the waste and residue left by
the fire. Later that year, another fire in the facility's shredder ignited after Stericycle allowed containers with leftover liguid chemicals
to mix. Ecology inspectors had issued a compliance letter to the company in 2017 specifically warning against atlowing liguids to
enter the shredder. Fortunately, no employees were harmed in either incident, however there was concern about potentially
sensitive populations downwind of the fire being adversely affected.

By settling the case, the state avoids costly future litigation and can use the penalty funds to further enhance Ecology's work.

Related links

Dangercys fire on Tacorma tdeflags leads to $1.9 million fine

Contact information

Erich R. Ebel
Communications Manager

erich.ebel@ecy.wa gov
360-407-6709
Twitter: goologywa &

share:

hilps:Hecalogy wa gov/About-usiGet-lo-knove-usMews2020/June-B-Slertcycle-Selllemant
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News Release

T-14-19
Barbara A. Lee, Director

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
October 25, 2018

Contact: Russ Edmondson
(916) 323-3372

Russ.Edmandson@dtsc.ca.gov

DTSC Enforcement Action Results in $1.4 Million in Penalties for
Hazardous Waste Operator

SACRAMENTO - A Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) enfarcement action against a hazardous waste facility in Rancho
Cordova has resulted in $1.4 million in penalties against the facility'’s aperator for violations of California’s hazargous waste laws.

Among the violations was a fire at the facility in 2017, caused when employees intentionally ignited hazardous waste that contained
naphthalene, which is made from crude oil or coal tar. There were also two earlier fires and an explosion at the facility.

“We take these violations very seriously, and this settiement should serve as a message ta other potential
viclators that we will hold those wha break the state’s hazardous waste laws accountable,” said DTSC
Director Barbara A. Lee. "Compliance with hazardous waste laws is critical for the safety of the public and
the environment.”

The settlement of DTSC's enforcement action, approved by the Sacramento County Superior Court on Oct. 19, is with Generat
Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova LLC; Stericycle Environmental Solutions Inc.; and Stericycle Inc. (collectively
"GEM/Stericycle”) for numerous violations related to the mismanagement of hazardous waste. The facility handles a wide variety of
hazardous waste. A primary part of the business at the facility involves bulking and consalidating hazardous waste,

In addition to the fires and explosion, violations includes:
* Failure to progerly manage and/or store incompatitle hazardous wastes
e Failure to properly bulk and consolidate hazardous waste
= Failure to comply with conditions of the hazardous waste facilities permit issued by DTSC
» Failure to train facility staff who are responsible for safely managing hazardous waste
» Failure to follow the DTSC-approved Emergency Action and Contingency Plan

A majority of the $1,412,400 penalty will go into DTSC's Orphan Site fund and will be used to help fund hazardous waste cleanup effarts.
The settlement stermmed from a civil complaint filed on behalf of DTSC by the California Attorney General's Office.

In addition to the penalty, the settlement required GEM/Stericycle to take action to prevent future violations, including enhanced
training and documentation, and hiring an independent auditor to conduct hazardous waste audits. The auditor will prepare and submit
reports to OTSC that evaluate GEM/Stericycle’s ongoing compliance with hazardous waste laws. In addition, GEM/Stericycle has agreed
nat to handle reactive waste at the facility. Reactive waste is ignitable and can underga violent reactions.

GEM/Stericycle has also agreed that the past violations are deemed proven for the purpose of a future DTSC enforcement or permitting
action. GEM also does business as PSC £Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova LLC.

View documents related to this case on our Enforcement Cases page.

HHH
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News Release

T-5-20
Meredith Wllllams, Director

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
March 17, 2020

Contact: Russ Edmondson
(916) 323-3372
russ.edmondson@disc.ca.goy
Abbott Dutton

Abbott, Dutton@disc.ca.gov

DTSC Files Civil Complaint Against Sacramento-Area Hazardous Waste Facility for Repeat
Violations of Hazardous Waste Laws

SACRAMENTO - The Department of Toxic Substances Control has filed suit against General Environmental Management of Rancho
Cordova LLC, Stericycle Environmental Solutions Inc., and Stericycle, In¢. (GEM/Stericycle), because of numercus serious and repeat
alleged violations of California’s hazardous waste laws.

The complaint, filed in Superior Court in Sacramento County, stems from a 2018 DTSC inspection at the GEM/Stericycle facility located at
11855 White Rock Road in Rancho Cordova. The violations include the mismanagement of incompatible hazardous wastes, the
improper sterage of hazardous waste, and the failure to follow required safety protocols while combining hazardous waste cnsite.

The Hazardous Waste Control Law authorizes DTSC to assess a penalty up to $70,000 for each separate violation, and for ongoing
violations, for each day it continues.

In a 2018 settlement with DTSC, for violations identified between 2011-17, GEM/Stericycle, which handles a wide variety of hazardous
waste with a focus on combining and consolidating it, agreed to pay more than $1.4 million in civil penalties. In 2017, employees
intentionally ignited hazardous waste containing naphthalene, a flammable substance. Two earlier fires and an explosion at the facility
were caused by the mismanagement of incompatible hazardous wastes or wastes that can become dangerous when mixed together.

View the complaint here and other GEM /Stericycle related documents here
###

FOR GENERAL INQUIRIES: Contact the Department of Toxic Substances Control by phone at {800} 728-6942 or visit www.disc.ca.gov. To
report illegal handling, discharge, or disposal of hazardous waste, call the Waste Alert Hotiine at (800) 698-6942.

The mission of DTSC is to protect California’s people and environment from harmful effects of toxic substances by restoring
contaminated properties, enforcing hazardous waste law, reducing hazardous waste generation, and encouraging the manufacture
of chemically safer products.




7/26/2020 DTSC Enfercemen) Aclion Rasulls in $1.4 Millon in Penalties lor Hazardous Waste Operalor | Depaiimant of Toxle Substances Conltrol

FOR GENERAL INQUIRIES: Contact the Department of Toxic Substances Control by phone at (800) 728-6942 or visit www.disc.ca.gov. To
report illegal handling, discharge, or disposal of hazardous waste, call the Waste Alert Hotline at (800) 698-6942.

The missien of DTSC is to protect California’s people and envircnment from harmful effects of toxic substances by restoring
contaminated properties, enforcing hazardous waste law, reducing hazardous waste generaticn, and encouraging the manufacture
of chemically safer products.
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Attomey General of California : - FILING FEES

MARGARITA PADILLA GOVERNMENT CODE § 6103

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

%OSE B. EUA G | _ - - '
eputy Attomey General

State Bar No. 119757 FiLED/ENDDRSED

1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.O. Box 70550 o :
Oakland, CA 94612-0550 o . FEB 18 2020
Telephone: (510) 879-0190 -

E-mail: Rose.Fua@doj.ca.gov Doy Ciort
Attorneys for Plaintiff People of the Siate of

" California, ex rel. Meredith Williams, Director,

Department of Toxic Substances Control |
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA !
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

- CALIFORNIA, EXREL. MEREDITH

GENERAL ENVIRONMENTAL -

. ENVIKONMENTAL SERVICES OF

PEOPLE OF THE STATEOF | Case No. 34-20204‘0027\556‘1

WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT | COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES
OF TOXIC SUBSTANCI‘.S CONTROL AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Plaintiff, | (Hazardous Waste Contro! Law, Health and
Safety Code § 25100 et seq.)

MANAGEMENT OF RANCHO
CORDOVALLC pBa PSC

RANCHO CORDOVA, LLC,
STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL
SOLUTIONS, INC,, STERICYCLE, INC,,
AND DOES 1 THROUGH 10, INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.
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Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, ex rel. Meredith Williams, Director,

Department of Toxic Substances Control (“Department” or “DTSC”), alleges the following:
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Defendants General Environmental Management of Rancho Cordova, LLC, dba
PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC (“GEM?”); Stericycle Environmental
Solutions, Inc. (“Stericycle Environmental’”) and Stericycle, Inc. (collectively “Stericycle™); and
DOES 1 through 10 (collectively, “Defendants™), at all times relevant to this Complaint, owned,
operated, and managed the hazardous waste treatment and storage facility located at 11855 White
Rock Road, Rancho Cordova, California (referred to as the “Facility™).

2. Enforcement History: Defendants have a long and troubled history of violating

the Hazardous Waste Control Law, chapter 6.5 of division 20 of the California Health and Safety
Code and its implementing regulations set forth in the California Code of Regulations, title 22,
division 4.5, section 66260.1 et seq. (“HWCL”) in connection with their operations of the
Facility. As set forth below in detail, the Department found vielations of the HWCL at
Defendants® Facility in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018. Pursuant to a
consent order with the Department entered on October 12, 2010, Defendant GEM admitted to the
2009 violations, agreed to a schedule of compliance, and paid $574.,000 in penalties to the
Department (“2010 Consent Order”). The Department and Defendants settled the 2011-2017
violations in a Final Judgment on Consent and Permanent Injunction entered by this Court on
October 19, 2018 (*2018 Final Judgment™) pursuant to which Defendants paid the Department
$1.412,000 in civil penalties and agreed to be bound by the injunctive terms in the 2018 Final
Judgment. People of the State of California v. GEM and Stericycle, Sacramento Superior Court,
Case No. 34-2017-00221348. As part of the 2018 Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint (“2017 Complaint™) against Defendants for violations
identified by the Department between 2011-2017 are deemed proven and may be considered as a
basis for, inter alia, enhanced penalties in any future HWCL enforcement or the Department’s
determination in a permitting proceeding, decision, and/or process (2018 Final Judgment at 13).

I
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A copy of the 2010 Consent Order, 2017 Complaint, and 2018 Final Judgment are
attached as Exhibits A, B, and C, respectively, to this Complaint.

3. The Current Action:

The Department inspectors conducted an inspection at the Facility on June 25-
26, 2018 (“2018 Inspection”), reviewed the Facility’s documents and identified, once again, that
Defendants violated the HWCL by mismanaging hazardous waste, including many serious and
repeat violations as described below.

4.  The Department hereby seeks injunctive relief and civil penalties against the
Defendants for the violations identified in this Complaint pursuant to Health and Safety Code
sections 25181, 25184, 25188, 25189, and 25189.2, and enhanced civil penalties against the
Defendants for repeat and continued violations of the HWCL.

PLAINTIFF

5. The Department is a state agency organized and existing pursuant to section
58000 et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code. The Department is the state agency
responsible for administering and enforcing the HWCL.

6.  Meredith Williams is the Director of the Department.

7.  Health and Safety Code sections 25181, subdivision (a), and 25182 authorize
the Attorney General of the State of California, at the request of the Department, to commence an
action in the name of the People of the State of California for civil penalties and injunctive relief
under the HWCL. The Department has requested the Attorney General to apply to this Court for
injunctive relief and civil penalties pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25181, 25184,
25188, 25189, and 25189.2 for violations of the HWCL by Defendants.

DEFENDANTS

8.  Based on information and belief, Defendant GEM has owned and operated the
Facility from at least 2009 to at least the date of the 2018 Inspection and did and does business
under the name PSC Environmental Services of Rancho Cordova, LLC.

/1
iy
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9.  Based on information and belief, Defendant Stericycle Environmental or
Defendant Stericycle, Inc., or both, owned and/or operated the Facility from on or about 2014 to
at least the date of the 2018 Inspection.

10. 'When reference is made in this Complaint to any act of Defendants, such
allegation shall mean that the officers, directors, employees, agents, or representatives of
Defendants did, or authorized, such acts or intentionally and/or negligently failed to adequately or
properly supervise, control, or direct their employees and/or agents while engaged in the
management, direction, operation, or control of the affairs of the Facility.

11.  Defendants are each “persons” as that term is defined by Health and Safety
Code section 25118.

12. The names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, or otherwise, of
defendants named herein as Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown at this time to the
Department. The Department therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names. The
Department will seek leave to amend this Complaint to show their true names and capacities
when the names have been ascertained. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis
alleges, that each defendant designated as a DOE defendant is responsible, along with the named
Defendants, for the hazardous waste violations alleged in this Complaint.

13. Eachreference in this Complaint to “Defendants” refers not only to the named
Defendants, but also all DOE defendants sued under fictitious names.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

14.  This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to California Constitution Article VI,
section 10 and Health and Safety Code section 25181.

15, This Complaint has been filed within five (5) years of the Plaintiff discovering
the HWCL violations alleged herein.

16. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25183
in that the violations at issue occurred at the Facility, which is in Sacramento County.

Iy
Iy
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17. This action is an unlimited civil case because the amount of penalties requested
exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) and because none of the Plaintiff’s causes of
action meets the criteria for limited civil cases in the Code of Civil Procedure.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

18. The State of California has enacted a comprehensive statutory and regulatory
framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal of hazardous wastes.
The framework contained in the HWCL mandates a “cradle to grave” registration, tracking,
storage, treatment, and disposal system for the protection of the public from the risks posed by
hazardous wastes and for the protection of the environment—i.¢., soil, air, surface water,
groundwater-—from contamination by hazardous wastes and their constituents. All terms defined
in the Complaint shall be interpreted as provided in, and consistent with, the HWCL.

19. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25101, subdivision (d) and 25159-
25159.9, California administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of the federal
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), which is codified at 42 United States Code
section 6901 et seq. Federal law prohibits California from imposing any requirements less
stringent than those authorized under RCRA. (42 U.S.C. § 6929.) Certain provisions in the
HWCL are stricter than the analogous provisions in RCRA.

20. The HWCL provides that the Department shall adopt, and revise when
appropriate, standards and regulations for the management of hazardous waste to protect, inter
alia, the public health and environment. (Health & Saf. Code § 25150.) Accordingly, the
Department has promulgated regulations setting forth numerous and extensive environmental and
health protective requirements for the day-to-day operation of hazardous waste generators,
transporters, and owners and operators of hazardous waste facilities. (See Cal. Code. Regs. tit.
22, § 66260.1 et seq.)

21. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a), provides
that an owner or operator of a hazardous waste facility may not “accept, treat, store, or dispose of
a hazardous waste at the facility, area, or site, unless the owner or operator holds a hazardous

waste facilities permit or other grant of authorization from the Department to use and operate the
5
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facility, area, or site...”

22. The HWCL, at Health and Safety Code section 25200, subdivision (a),
authorizes the Department to issue operating permits, called hazardous waste facilities permits, to
the owners and operators of facilities managing hazardous wastes.

23. The HWCL requires that the owner and operator of a hazardous waste facility
comply with the provisions of the facility’s hazardous waste permit.

a.  Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) requires the owner or
operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit to “comply
with the conditions of [that] permit.”

b.  California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30 subdivision (a)
requires that the “permittee comply with the conditions of the permit” and specifies that any
“noncompliance . . . constitutes a violation of the [HWCL] and is grounds for” enforcement.

ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL

24. The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose civil penalties under two distinct
and alterative statutory provisions. Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code creates liability
for any negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL. Section 25189.2 is a strict liability
provision, which creates liability for any viclation of the HWCL. A person may not be held liable
for a civil penalty under both section 25189 and section 25189.2 for the same act. (Health & Saf.
Code, § 25189.2, subd. (f).)

25. Effective January 1, 2018, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a civil
penalty of up to seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) per day for each violation of a separate
provision of the HWCL. For continuing violations, the HWCL authorizes the Court to impose a
penalty of up to seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) for each day that a viclation continues. (see,
e.g., Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25189, subd. (b) and 25189.2, subd. (b).)

26. In addition, Health and Safefy Code section 25188 provides that a person
subject to an order under Health and Safety Code section 25187 who does not comply with that
order shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) for

each day of noncompliance.
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27. Defendants are subject under Health and Safety Code section 25187 to comply
with the Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination and Enforcement Order that was
issued by the Department in 2013 (“2013 ISE Order”) after two fires and an explosion occurred at
the Facility resulting from the mismanagement of hazardous waste by Defendant GEM as more
fully described in Paragraphs 37-42.

28. Health and Safety Code sections 25181 and 25184, authorizes and directs the
Court to enjoin any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL.

29. Section 25181 of the Health and Safety Code provides:

“when the Department determines that any person has engaged in, is engaged in, or is
about to engage in any acts or practices which constitute or will constitute a violation of any
provision of the HWCL or any rule, regulation, covenant, standard, requirement or order
issued, promulgated or executed thereunder, and when requested by the [D]epartment, . . .
the Attorney General may apply to the superior court for an order enjoining such acts or
practices, or for an order directing compliance, and upon a showing by the [D]epartment
that the person has engaged in or is about to engage in any such acts or practices, a
permanent or temporary injunction, restraining order, or other order may be granted.”

30. Health and Safety Code section 25184 provides that in civil actions brought

pursuant to the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining order is sought:

It shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding that
irreparable damage will occur should the temporary restraining order, preliminary
injunction, or permanent injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law is
inadequate, and the temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanent
injunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

The Facility:
31. The Facility is situated on a 4.5-acre parcel adjacent to White Rock Road and is

identified by Sacramento County Assessor Parcel Number 072-0530-001. The Facility includes,
but is not limited to, an administrative building, a lab, truck parking, a loading and unloading
area, five hazardous waste management units known as Areas A, B, C, and D, and a drum crusher
unit. The drum crusher unit is currently undergoing regulatory closure as required by California
Code of Regulations, title 22, division 4.5, chapter 14, article 7 (Closure and Post-Closure).

Iy

Complaint for Civil Penalties and Injunctjve Relief




oo ~1 N

=}

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

32. At the times relevant to this Complaint, one or more of the Defendants owned
and/or operated the Facility and continue to own and operate the Facility.

33. Defendants have operated and continue to operate the Facility as an active
permitted hazardous waste management facility. The Facility has a permitted capacity of
approximately 82,320 gallons of hazardous waste. The Facility’s current hazardous waste permit,
(“Permit™), which also incorporates by reference the Part A and Part B permit application
(“Permit Part A” and “Permit Part B”), was issued by the Department on April 25, 2007 and was
subsequently modified. The Permit expired on April 25, 2017.

34. Defendants continue to operate the Facility pending the Department’s review of
a permit renewal application submitted to the Department in October 2016.

35.  Under the Permit, Defendants are authorized by the Department to engage in
the following hazardous waste management activities at the Facility: (1) sampling, (2) storage, (3)
packaging and re-packaging, (4) bulking and consolidation of containers, and (5) container
crushing and equipment flushing, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the Permit.

Defendants’ History of HWCL Violations at the Facility Between 2009 — 2017

Including Fires and an Explosion Due to Mixing of Incompatible Hazardous Waste and

Intentional Conduct

36. Pursuant to the terms of the 2010 Consent Order, Defendant GEM admitted to
HWCL violations, including the storage of incompatibles, and paid five hundred seventy-four
thousand dollars ($574,000) in penalties. Defendants have repeatedly stored incompatible
hazardous waste at the Facility in violation of the HWCL. The Department identified violations
for the storage of incompatible hazardous waste in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2016, and most
recently during the 2018 inspection of the Facility.

37. Since 2011, one (1) explosion and three (3) fires have occurred at the Facility
due to the mixing of incompatible hazardous waste and/or intentional conduct by Defendants
while managing hazardous waste. The explosion occurred on March 8, 2011, when Defendant
GEM mixed incompatible hazardous waste by bulking soluble organics with twenty-two (22)

gallons of nitric acid into a drum, resulting in a violent and uncontrolled reaction. The reaction
8
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caused an explosion that ruptured the drum and launched it approximately fifteen (15) feet in the
air, spraying hot, concentrated acid throughout most of the Facility’s repackaging area. The
explosion also released vapors and hazardous waste to the surrounding environment.

38. The first fire at the Facility occurred on August 2, 2011, when Defendant GEM
mixed incompatible hazardous waste by consolidating oxidizing pool chemicals, including acids
and oxidizers, into a 55-gallon drum, and then closed the drum’s lid. Shortly thereafter, the drum
began to emit a yellowish-green gas. The drum pressurized sufficiently to blow the lid off the
drum, and the drum caught fire. The fire spread to consume a total of four (4) plastic drums of
hazardous waste. The local fire department subsequently arrived and extinguished the fire, but
their response efforts resulted in two firefighters being sent to the local hospital for observation.

39. The second fire at the Facility occurred in March 2013. Beginning on February
28, 2013, Defendant GEM mixed incompatible waste by consolidating hazardous waste solids
and trash into a roll-off bin. On March 3, 2013, the bin that Defendant GEM mixed hazardous
waste in began to smolder. A passerby observed flames coming from the Facility and called the
fire department who arrived and extinguished the fire. The fire, which burned for five hours and
released smoke and potentially toxic constituents into the environment, was caused by an
exothermic reaction that occurred from mixing incompatible wastes.

40. Inresponse to the 2011 explosion and 2011 and 2013 fires, the Department
issued the 2013 ISE Order to Defendant GEM, ordering Defendant GEM to immediately cease
the bulking and consolidation of all hazardous waste operations at the Facility until the
Department authorized Defendant GEM to resume operations because of the “... continuing
inability of Respondent [Defendant GEM] to take precautions sufficient to prevent fires,
explosions, or other violent or non-violent reactions that could potentially release hazardous
wastes to the environment ...” (2013 ISE Order at p. 5.) A copy of the 2013 ISE Order is
attached as Exhibit D to this Complaint. The 2013 ISE Order applies to Defendant GEM, “and its
officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, consultants, receivers, trustees, successors, and
assignees, including but not limited to individuals, partners, and subsidiary and parent

corporations.” (2013 ISE Order at p.10.).
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41. Defendant GEM was authorized to resume bulking and consolidation operations
at the Facility on October 21, 2013 after it agreed to revise its existing Standard Operating
Procedures (“SOP”) and modify the Permit to institute a safety protocol to prevent the
reoccurrence of fires and explosions due to incompatibles being mixed together. Permit Part B,
section V, Attachment V8-A, “Container Process Form-Permit Specific” (“Permit Process Form™)
was part of the revised SOP and embodies the safety protocol that was developed in response to
the 2013 ISE Order to prevent the reoccurrence of fires and explosions. The Permit Process Form
is attached as Exhibit E to this Complaint.

42. The safety protocol required Defendants to conduct screening and/or testing for
incompatible wastes prior to bulking or consolidating wastes together, to record the screening
and/or testing results on the Permit Process Form, and to have a chemist or facility management
personnel review the screening and/or test results to determine whether bulking or consolidation
can occur. Review and approval by the chemist or facility management would be evidenced by
their respective signature on the Permit Process Form.

43, The third fire at the Facility occurred on August 7, 2017. The fire occurred
when two (2) employees intentionally poured liquid naphthalene (flammable) onto paper and lit
the paper on fire with a lighter where other employees were also consolidating hazardous waste
and where other ignitable hazardous waste was located.

44. The Department also inspected the Facility in 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017. The
Department found that Defendants violated the HWCL during each of these inspections. The
Department filed the 2017 Complaint, which included the violations at the Facility identified by
the Department between 2011 and 2017. As noted above, the violations alleged in the 2017
Complaint were resolved pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment.

Current Action for Violations of the HWCL in 2018 by Defendants

45. The Department’s 2018 inspection of the Facility again found multiple
instances of serious and/or repeat HWCL violations by Defendants, including,
a. Fifty (50) instances of stored and/or failed to properly segregate

incompatible hazardous waste from one another,
10
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b. One hundred forty-two (142) instances of failing to use the safety
protocol to prevent incompatibles from being mixed together during bulking activities as required
by the Permit and 2013 ISE order,

c. Forty-seven (47) instances of storing hazardous waste beyond the
Facility’s 10-day storage limit,

d. At least twenty (20) instances of failing to mark when hazardous
waste containers became empty,

e. Incorrectly labeling hazardous waste during storage,

f. Failing to remove spills, leaks, and/or liquids from secondary
containment systems,

g. Storing hazardous waste in containers that were not in good
condition (e.g., some of the containers had structural defects) during storage, and

h. Forty-two (42) instances of failing to use the required air pollution
control device (1.e., an organic air scrubber) designed to vent organic vapors, e.g., flammable

vapors when bulking organic hazardous waste.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
REPEAT VIOLATION
(Management of Incompatible Wastes in Violation of Health & Saf. Code
§ 25202, subd. (a), Cal, Code Regs., title 22, §§
66264.177, subds. (a) and (c¢) and 66270.30, subd. (a))

46. Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

47. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66260.10 defines
“incompatible waste™ as “‘a hazardous waste which is unsuitable for (a) placement in a particular
device or facility because it may cause corrosion or decay of containment materials (e.g.,
containment inner liners or tank walls); or (b) commingling with another waste or material under
uncontrolled conditions because the commingling might produce heat or pressure, fire or
explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, mists, fumes, or gases or flammable fumes or gases.”

i
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48. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.177 subdivision (c)
provides that, a “container holding a hazardous waste that is incompatible with any waste or other
materials transferred or stored nearby in other containers, piles, open tanks, or surface
impoundments shall be separated from the other materials or protected from them by means of a
dike, berm, wall, or other device.”

49, Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of
Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of
a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply
with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.

50. Sections VII{D)(1){(d)(1) and VIII(E)(1) (b) of the Permit Part B requires the
separation of containers of incompatible hazardous waste in Area A.

51.  Sections VI(E)(8) and VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B prohibit containers of
incompatible wastes from being placed within the same cell in Area B. In addition, section
VII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B requires that containers of incompatible waste stored in
different cells in Area B, be segregated in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title
22, section 66264.177, subdivision (c).

52. Sections VI(G)(1) and (4) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of
incompatible material within Area C. Section VIII(H)(1)(h) of the Permit Part B states that Area
C will follow the requirements [segregation requirements] specified in Section V, Paragraph
(@) (3)(a) of the permit.

53. Defendants violated Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.177, subdivisions (a) and (c), and
66270.30, subdivision (a) and the Permit by failing to appropriately separate incompatible
hazardous waste by means of a dike, berm, wall, or other device as follows:

a.  On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants failed in at least nine (9) instances to
properly separate containers of incompatible wastes such as oxidizers and flammable liquids, by a
dike, berm, wall or other device in Arcas B and C. (Health & Saf. § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal.

Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a} and 66264.177, subd. (c).)
12
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b.  On June 25, 2018, the Department requested the Facility’s daily inspection logs
(““daily logs™) from January 2018 through June 2018. After reviewing the daily logs provided by
the Defendants, the Department also determined that Defendants failed to separate containers of
incompatible hazardous waste at least an additional forty-one (41) times in Areas A, B, and C
between January 2018 and June 2018. (Health & Saf. § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit.
22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a) and 66264.177, subd. (c).)

c.  This is the seventh inspection of the Facility in which the Department found
that Defendant(s) improperly stored and/or failed to properly segregate incompatible hazardous
waste. Defendant(s) previously stored incompatible hazardous waste together in violation of the
HWCL and the Permit Part B at the Facility in 2009, 2011, 2013, 2015, 2016, and 2017, which at
times resulted in fires and explosions at the Facility.

54. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202 subdivision (a),
California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.177, subdivisions (a) and (c), and
66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which
each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety
Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section
25189.2, subdivision (b).

55. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment q 13).

56. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future
violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
REPEAT VIOLATION

(Failure to Follow Safety Protocol Encapsulated in Permit Process Form for the Management of
Ignitable, Reactive, or Incompatible Hazardous Wastes and Improper Bulking in Violation of
Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25202, subd. (a), 25188 and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd.
(a), 66264.17, subds. (a) and (b), and 2013 ISE Order)

57. Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

58. Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of
Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) provides that the owner and/or operator of
a hazardous waste management facility who holds a hazardous waste facilities permit is required
to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.

59. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a)
requires that an owner and/or operator of a facility take precautions to prevent accidental ignition
or reaction of ignitable or reactive waste.

60. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.17, subdivision (b)
requires that an owner and/or operator of a facility prevent reactions which generate extreme heat
or pressure, fire or explosions, or violent reactions.

61. The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.2.1 of the 2013 ISE Order issued
pursuant to Section 25187 required Defendants to revise its Permit and SOP to implement a safety
protocol to prevent fires and explosions or other violent or non-violent reactions that could
potentially release hazardous waste to the environment by ensuring incompatible wastes are not
bulked or consolidated together.

62. The Schedule of Compliance, section 4.3 of the 2013 ISE Order issued pursuant
to Section 25187 provides that after the Department approves the safety protocol, Defendants will
implement the plans.

63. Permit Part B sections V(C)(10), V(D)(1), V(G)(1), and the Permit Process
Form are part of the safety protocol instituted and required to be followed to ensure “safe and
appropriate methods of handling of wastes within the facility” and ensure proper oversight for
bulking and consolidation of hazardous waste.

i1/
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64. The Permit Process Form encapsulates the safety protocol Defendants are
required to follow, including documenting the physical state of the hazardous waste, performing a
radioactivity screen, conducting commingled hazardous waste compatibility testing before
bulking hazardous waste and obtaining the signature of a chemist or facility manager who has
reviewed and approved the Permit Process Form to ensure that the safety protocol has been
followed, no evidence of an incompatible reaction was observed, and that bulking or
consolidation is appropriate. The commingled hazardous waste compatibility test involves
pouring small amounts of liquid from each source container to be bulked, into a separate, small
container, where the liquids are stirred, and the mixture must sit for a set period time. If any
incompatible reactions (e.g., signs of heat or bubbling) are observed, those reactions are noted on
the Permit Process Form as potential incompatible reactions, and the waste intended to be bulked
will not be bulked.

65. Between January 1, 2018 and June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and
Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections
66270.30, subdivision (a} and 66264.17, subdivisions (a} and (b}, and the 2013 ISE Order by
failing to perform and/or document compliance with the safety protocol, including the comingled
compatibility testing and/or failing to obtain written approval by the chemist or facility
management prior to bulking wastes on at least one hundred and forty-two (142) occasions.

66. Only six (6) months earlier, on July 28, 2017, Defendants represented to the
Department that it had “reinstalled” the Permit Process Form in response to a similar violation
where Defendants had failed to obtain the approval of the facility chemist prior to bulking
hazardous waste. In a letter to DTSC on July 28, 2017, Defendants informed the Department they
had “reinstalled the permit sample form that includes signatures as a gesture of cooperation.
GEM is planning to re-work the associated approval methods and documentation to preclude
future misunderstandings.” (“7/28/17 Letter” at p. 3). A copy of the 7/28/17 Letter is attached as
Exhibit F to the Complaint.
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67. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a), 66264.17,
subdivision (a) and (b), subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each
violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code
section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2
subdivision (b).

68. Failure to comply with the terms of the 2013 ISE Order subjects Defendants to
costs and penalties for any costs incurred by the Department resulting from Defendants failure to
comply.

69. Health and Safety Code section 25188 provides that any person subject to a
Schedule of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 25187 who does not comply with that
schedule shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than seventy thousand dollars ($70,000)
for each day of noncompliance.

70. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment § 13).

71. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Use Air Pollution Control Device in Violation of Health & Saf.
Code § 25202, subd. (2), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a))

72. Paragraphs | through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

73. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous
waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (2) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).)

74. Section VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that Defendants use the

appropriate scrubber, an air pollution control device, during bulking operations. This requirement
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helps to vent or capture vapors from the hazardous waste management operations before vapors
can build up in the room, be released outside of the Facility, or be harmful to employees.

75. Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety
Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
66270.30, subdivision (a) by failing to use the organic scrubber at the Facility as required by the
Permit at least 42 times while bulking organic hazardous waste, e.g., flammable waste inside
Area C.

76. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to
a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to
proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 25189, subdivisions (a) and (b) or in
the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivisions (a) and (b).

77. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment 9§ 13).

78. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
REPEAT VIOLATION

(Improper Storage of Hazardous Waste in Area A in Violation of Health & Saf. Code,
§ 25202, subd. (a), Cal, Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd (a))

79. Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

80. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous
waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd (a).)

111
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81. Permit Part IV, Unit Area A and sections VI(D) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit
Part B specifies that Area A is a temporary staging area for receiving, inspecting, repackaging,
and preparation of containerized waste for shipping. Hazardous waste containers can only be
stored in Area A for no longer than ten (10) days.

82. Between January 2018 and June 2018, Defendants violated the Health and
Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
66270.30, subdivision (a), and the Permit by storing hazardous waste containers in Area A for
longer than ten (10) days on at least forty-seven (47) separate days.

83. This is the fourth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that
Defendant(s) improperly stored hazardous waste for longer than the ten (10)-day limit in Area A.
Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste containers for longer than the allowed ten (10)
days in Area A in violation of the HWCL, Permit, and Permit Part B in 2014, 2016, and 2017.

84. Each violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to
a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to
proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the
alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b).

85. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment q 13).

86. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).
FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
REPEAT VIOLATION

(Failure to Properly Mark Containers in Violation of Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd.
(a), and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30, subd. (a), 66266.80, subd. (a))

87. Paragraphs | through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.
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88. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility who holds
a hazardous waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous
waste permit. (Health & Saf. Code, § 25202, subd. (a) Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd.
(a).)

89. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66266.80, subdivision (a)
requires spent lead-acid storage batteries or their components be managed as hazardous waste
(unless specifically exempted in California Code of Regulations, title 22, Chapter 16, Article 7).

90. Section VIII(D)(1)(f)(2) of the Permit Part B specifies that containers must be
labeled with the Department of Transportation (DOT) hazard class and proper shipping
description.

91. On, and prior to, June 25 and 26, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety
Code section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30,
subdivision (a), 66266.80, subdivision (a), and the Permit Part B by: (1) improperly affixing a
universal waste label to two fifty—five gallon drums containing “Automotive Type” spent lead
batteries instead of identifying the batteries as hazardous waste; and (2) mislabeling
formaldehyde solution as a DOT Class 6 and Class 8 DOT hazardous material instead of a Class 3
DOT flammable material.

92. This is the third inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that
Defendant(s) improperly labeled hazardous waste, including waste Automotive Type spent lead
acid batteries. In addition to the 2018 violations, Defendant(s) previously improperly labeled
hazardous waste containers in violation of the HWCL and the Permit Part B in 2014 and 2016.

93. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30 subdivision (a) and 66266.80
subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each
violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code
section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2,
subdivision (b).
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94. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment § 13).

95. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
REPEAT VIOLATION

(Failure to Properly Mark Empty Containers in Violation of Health &
Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30,
subd. (a) and 66261.7, subd. (f))

96. Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

97. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous
waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
66270.30, subd. (a).)

98. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66261.7, subdivision (f)
provides that a container larger than five (5) gallons in capacity shall be marked with the date it
has been emptied.

99. Section VII(E)?2) of the Permit Part B requires that empty containers at a
hazardous waste facility must be marked to identify them as empty.

100. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code
section 25202, subdivision (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30,
subdivision (a), and Permit Part B by failing to mark approximately twenty to forty (20-40) empty
containers larger than five (5) gallons in capacity that once held hazardous waste with the dates
the containers were emptied.

101. This is the fifth inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that
Defendant(s) failed to mark containers to identify them as empty. Defendant(s) previously failed

to mark containers to identify them as empty in violation of the HWCL and Permit Part B in
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2011, 2015, 2016, and 2017.

102. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a} and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66270.30, subdivision (a) and 66261.7,
subdivision (f) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each violation
occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section
25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2,
subdivision (b).

103. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment Y 13).

104. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
REPEAT VIOLATION

(Failure to Properly Manage Containers in Violation of Health and Safety Code §
25202 subd. (a), California Code of Regulations, title 22, §§ 66264.171,66264.173
subd. (b}, and 66270.30 subd. (a})

105. Paragraphs | through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

106. California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 and 66264.173
subdivision (b) provide that containers holding hazardous waste must be in good condition and
cannot be stored in a manner that may cause the containers to leak and if containers holding
hazardous waste begin to leak, the owner and/or operator shall transfer the hazardous waste to a
container in good condition.

107. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous
waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section
66270.30, subd. (a).)
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108. Section VIII(H)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B requires that if a container holding
waste is found to be damaged during receiving or any phase of storage or processing, the operator
will overpack, transfer, or re-package the container.

109. On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of
Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 and 66264.173, subdivision (b) by storing hazardous
waste in Areas B and C in seven (7) separate containers with structural defects. Containers were
torn, dented, or damaged.

110. This is the second inspection of the Facility in which the Department found that
Defendant(s) used containers that were not in good condition. In addition to the 2018 violations,
Defendant(s) previously stored hazardous waste in containers that were not in good condition in
violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171 in 2016.

111. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66264.171
and 66264.173 subdivision (b) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during
which each violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and
Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 25189.2,
subdivision (b).

112. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment  13).

113. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to and prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Properly Close Containers in Violation of Cal. Code
Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.173, subd. (a))

114, Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.
115, California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173 subdivision (a)
provides that containers holding hazardous waste shall always be closed during transfer and

storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste.
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116. On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated California Code of
Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173, subdivision (a) by failing to ensure that at least five (5)
containers of hazardous waste in Area C were closed.

117. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.173
subdivision () subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each
violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code
section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code 25189.2,
subdivision (b).

118. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment  13).

119. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Remove Spilled or Leaked Hazardous Waste in a Timely Manner as Necessary in
Violation of Cal. Code Regs., title 22, § 66264.175, subd. (b)(5))

120. Paragraphs | through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

121. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.175, subdivision (b)(5)
provide that the containment system shall be operated to drain and remove liquids resulting from
leaks, spills, or precipitation and that spilled or leaked waste and accumulated precipitation shall
be removed from the sump or collection area in as timely a manner is necessary.

122, From at least January 2018 through June 2018, Defendants violated California
Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66264.175, subdivision (b)(5) by failing to operate the
containment system(s) in Area C to remove spilled or leaked waste or accumulated precipitation
in a timely manner.

123. Each violation of California Code of Regulations, title 22 sections 66264.175,

subdivision (b)(5) subjects Defendants to a separate penalty for each day during which each
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violation occurred or continued, according to proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code
section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2,
subdivision (b).

124. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment § 13).

125. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Failure to Properly Stack and Palletize Containers in Violation of
Health & Saf, Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22,
§ 66270.30 subd. (2))

126. Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

127. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous
waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).)

128. Sections VI(E)(7) and VIII(E)(1)(b) of the Permit Part B require that
Defendants store containers on pallets and only allows for double stacking of containers in Area
B.

129. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code
section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30,
subdivision (a) by triple stacking containers in Area B, Cell 5.

130. On or prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants also violated Health and Safety Code
section 25202, subdivision (a) and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30,
subdivision (a) by stacking five-gallon buckets on top of other containers instead of placing them
on pallets. In addition, Defendants’ daily logs note three (3) of containers stacked improperly or
on broken pallets.
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131. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to
a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to
proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivisions (a) and (b) or in the
alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivisions {a) and (b).

132, Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment q 13).

133. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future

violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Storage of Containers in Unauthorized Areas in Violation of
Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22,
§ 66270.30 subd. (a))

134. Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein.

135. The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste facility who holds a hazardous
waste facilities permit is required to comply with the conditions of the hazardous waste permit.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202, subd. (a) and Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30, subd. (a).)

136. Section V(G)(3)(a) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of DOT class 6
poisonous liquid hazardous waste in Area B, Cell 5. Area B, Cell 5 is intended for Flammable
Solids, including Water Reactives.

137. Section V(G)(3)(a) of the Permit Part B prohibits the storage of DOT Class 3
flammable hazardous waste in Area B, Cell 4. Area B, Cell 4 is intended for corrosives (alkaline)
oxidizers and organic peroxides. At the time of the inspection, Area B, Cell 4 contained both
corrosives (alkaline) and oxidizers.

138. On and prior to June 25, 2018, Defendants violated Health and Safety Code
section 25202, California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a), and

Permit Part B by storing DOT Class 6 poisonous liquid hazardous waste (barium sulfate and
25
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insulin) with flammable solids and water reactives in Area B, Cell 5 and by storing DOT Class 3
flammable hazardous waste with oxidizers in Area B, Cell 4.

139. Each violation of Health and Safety Code section 25202, subdivision (a) and
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.30, subdivision (a) subjects Defendants to
a separate penalty for each day during which each violation occurred or continued, according to
proof at trial, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25189, subdivision (b) or in the
alternative, Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, subdivision (b).

140. Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Final Judgment, the Department further seeks
enhanced penalties against Defendants in this action. Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017
violations alleged in the 2017 Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future
enforcement action as a basis for enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment § 13).

141. The Department is further entitled to injunctive relief to prevent future
violations of the HWCL pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a).

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

142. The Department requests that the Court grant the relief that follows:

a.  Enter judgment that Defendants have violated the HWCL as set forth in the
First through Eleventh Causes of Action;

b.  Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for civil penalties
for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action as authorized by Health
and Safety Code section 25189 or, in the alternative, by Health and Safety Code section 25189.2,
in an amount according to proof;

c.  Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for enhanced civil
penalties for the violations set forth in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action. In the 2018
Final Judgment, Defendants stipulated that the 2011-2017 violations alleged in the 2017
Complaint are deemed proven and may be used in a future enforcement action as a basis for
enhanced penalties. (2018 Final Judgment q 13);

Iy
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d.  Enter judgment that Defendants are liable to the Department for costs and

penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25188 and pursuant to section 5.15 of the 2013

ISE Order;

e.  Enter permanent injunctions and other orders enjoining Defendants from

violating the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order and requiring Defendants to otherwise

comply with the HWCL, the Permit, and the 2013 ISE Order;

f.  Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and

g.  Grant such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper.

Dated: February 14, 2020
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Respectfully Submitted,

XAVIER BECERRA

Attorney General of California
MARGARITA PADILLA

Supervising Deputy Attomey General

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY ROSE Fua

ROSERB.Fua

Deputy Attorney General

Attorneys for Plaintiff People of the State
of California, ex rel. Department of Toxic
Substances Control
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" (eollectively “GEM and'Stericycle!’f enterinto this Stipulation‘fot Eftryof Order 4dd Final

Judgment on ,Con;gnt.i“SIijgulat‘ion‘*) .and stipulate as followa:
1, THE COMPLAINT.
'DISE filed this enforcement ;acﬁon-bn Octolieri26,2017, ighuist GEM.and Stgriciele for>

‘Pormanent-Injunchiorvand: Civit Penalhes (“Cbmplamt") underthe thfonua ‘Hazirdous Wagte:

-

Control Law {HWCLY: (Health & Saf Code, §.25100:

-

St d A oA s

CalifoimiaiCode of Regulations; title;32, 'diviq'ion 4,5, section:66260.{ retseq. i Fitle22%) il
conpection with GEM'-an'd"Stericyclé‘s HAZARDOUS WASTETREATMENT 4ad STORAGE

' RAGILITY Jocated et T1855" Whlle R.Qck Road Rancho:_Co:dova,,Cahforma (refemred to dsithé

SEACIEITY?). L
* As set.ont more filly: in ttie‘Coniplaint, DTSC alleges thatyih.operating the:PACILITY;,

GEM,aad/or Stericycleviolated fhe WL phd Tifled 5 numeronsfimes Som: 3011 1020 178

describedijnthe Complaint: ]
7. AGREEMENTTOSETTLE DISPUTE
D5 a0d GEM dad Sterivycte, collectivelyhe Patties] entee iitolit Stigibiation:

A pu;_sg;i;nt,ii_q:wmﬂlﬁmﬁiw@pﬂf&gﬁlm;&mdimﬁmﬂ}y'cbnsem-'fmiﬁegbﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁih@ﬁig_x_'t"gf@ja.

' agqu.f,_ﬁpn‘ﬁi'tl‘&;_md;;lf%iﬁﬂ..iuagnmft nn,ﬁrc'gznseutrg(»}‘s‘iﬁaﬁiudgﬁeﬁ'1'5;;.wﬁféﬁﬁzﬁg}gggﬁ

" phtadheddoités Siipulafiones Eatibit TheSarties areteacbirepteséated by, colial, THS
‘Stipulation and ﬂieanlJudgmenfwmnegotf&team,ghod’f&th{m sty letigh Yy thie
Patiesto féw”iﬁ:ex_gensi!.ré;'nﬁ&'gtbﬁrhéioﬂ'fl.itiﬁ:atiﬁny“esghr“ﬂ'ﬁig;&eﬁlﬁgﬁa:ﬁg_l}ggi;ﬂsj‘gﬁ{d;’:'_ﬂi@ HWCL |

endt fiillerd2 B ceptinssetifotth indParagpaphiaf Yelow theParties agreeutiatioting in this:

 Stipuiation ard Final Tiflgmient toristitutesan adjudibation oy fatt OrieNi-6F1W and GEM,

and Stericycle domot atliniitiny:fuct; liability, orviblation‘of thsdas.
3.  DEFINITIGNS
Bxceptwhiererotfierwise:expressly-defined in this Stipilariofiahi tefnigshiall benterprefed

| g serorth iy and cohsistentwith it FFWGL, ad Title:22; The following fernisnsed infhis
- stigution, and the il Judgriiens st Heve e Tusehing (oY folth belosi
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3] “BULKING,” “BULK;" and “"BULKED" ghall have the same &leﬁnitiqn,as provided.
for in the PERMIT Patt B; section V(G (1 ), Waste.Anglysis Plan, .

32 "CONSOLIDATING,” “CONSOLIDATE,” and “GONSOLIDATION"'shall have {ig:
same definjtion ds providedfor inthe gawia:f}aqf_ B, section V(G)(1), Waste:Analysis Plan..

33 “EFFECTIVEDATE"is .t_:he dat'ei;theﬁi.nal Judgment in fhis matter is enteted by the

Corit,
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. 34 WFACILITY” dsdsd Heteln, refés to;The HAZARDOUS WASTE TREATMENT td
 STORAGE FACILITY l6cated dt | 1855 Wh:te Rook Hoad, RanolioCordova, Californie. The

| f_FAC]LITY is-a "HAZAREOU& WA§TE FACII.-[I‘Y" as definedtin’Health and %nfely Code

10 | seotipn25117.1. .
11 3.5 -“FACILITY MANAGER” g the person "that wasdiired fo perform:and performs the:
“12 | jebieglirémants, egsential. Rinctiofs; gnd pnnblpal*actmtibs of ihe ' FACILITY: MANAGER"

13| «atid/or “LOCATION MANAGER." st ﬂle.FAbILHY ay.described ivihe PERMIT Part B, section

14 | KX, Training, Plin.

15 3.6, - “GEM.AND STERIGY: CLE EMPL@YEES" means bsthpen’nanenf and-teriporary:
.36 | employees,who péifoith HAZARD '.,f-_!,,S WAS’IE MANAGEMERT activities of the EACILITY

¥7 | Hdcluding, bat not limited fo, ﬂmFA@MTY MANAGER, SUPER‘VIsomLBADMAN aid.

18 | LEAD cmsmsrlc:rmmm : ;

37 ) ;'AGER;" lavthe,persen +hadt was hired'to. performvind pecforris thic

.. Tollowing agtivifies; nﬁhg "GENEIU&L MA.NAGER”" ot thg RACILITY:  as:described:in the

- ‘PERMIT Pari'B, seetion X, Eipergengeﬁqt;logianﬂjbbpﬁngpppf?lhn: {41). places sd: dnsvvers
phone calls ind comnnunicationsito andﬁom iﬂqwﬁrs:;ﬁcpan}nenﬁgpoi"ihe deprtmeat; contractot
‘personnel, and corporate managemenf, ’;(_?.)Ifié.regpons'ib],e for health and saféty.aspests of
emergengymanagement; indluding detemuiting apprapriste petsonal protettive eqiipmient (PPE);

. monstoriig; and decontamitution requirements, anid {3)s.responsible for responding o thic pregs
-and publiciiiquiries;as well 13 wﬁ"ﬁn:g;tm&for delivering pf‘e’ss;fel'eaz‘a;tegyraﬁgaqy.ﬁng@i_i-_hg:-

.' H ilICide ﬂf.,
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38 “HANDLE," “HANDLING," aod “"HANDLED" means “MANAGE ™ as.definéd in
Paragraph 3,lU‘
39 “HAZARDOUS WASTE"shall have the definition as provided for in Health 'id

. Sefety Code section 25117 and.the. same meamng as:the term ds used ki Califoinia Code 6f

| ‘Repulations, title'22, section 66261.3, indsec':tlons 66261.20 through.66261.24.

3,10 “HAZAKDOUS. WASTEMANAGEMENT » ONFANAGE ™ and: “MANAGEMEIT

e ittt ————— .

e 5.4

k shall’havé’ the‘defifiition agset forth i 1:3 H,ea]tt_:.gnd,-.ngely'Code.sectmn 25117 4.
| 3,11 “INGOMEATIBLE WASTE" as defined jn California. Code of Regulations; title22;

| sections6ae0: 0 fiedng, i HAZARDOWS w STE-which is.unsuitable for.(a)'placement ifi,a
o e e R e it 1 b _”,,.lp *

particulaf @evice or fatility bgcanseitiiay cause corrosion .o;;gl,;s_:ay‘tiﬂ'contﬁnmentvn‘iatcﬁ':ilg.

1 (&g, contiiines irinec Lindrs b ek w;fus); 01J.~(B) corjngling with another WASTE or imterial

L4 gig

tipdep meonfmllq‘ﬂ ‘eondifigns: bgcause‘lhe cmmnghng mighit pmduee (1) hest.or pressure, Q: i;rc
orqp_lgs}p_rl-,!(@”i)p,ém_l_ép_t,l;lgg‘ctl_.qn,,,.(_@_t)l,go:gp c_l_Qsjs, miists, fames; or gases, or(5) fiammiablé l‘p;_:.ue,g;J

. . Ly ANY ey g gyt b By ~,.£ n,.«i PR - . Y T .
'} or gastyy APpendinlV 0L Chinpret 14, :Axfidle 19 of Tifle 22 provides examples.of; foténtially

TNGOMBATIBLE WASTES, WASTBoomponenls, s mafetiels.
312 SLEAD: GHEMSTIQH,EMST” is Thie; BETSan, &hat was hiredtoyperfonm. the:jih-

mquh‘enﬁpﬁ, esi;e“ﬁual fihctians,, andrpnnc;pal achivities.of the TEBAD CHEMIST” md/of

“QHEMISP’ 4 th,e  BACKLITY as: desmhu;l‘ln the' PER'MIT Part: B,,secﬁol’LIX. “THAILIRE Plan;

T 3,13 -.'-ép.ggm-\r\aws,eg,};_erem,zefm{to-ths:mﬁ-' AZARDOUS WASTE FAGILITY:
.:PERMIT, gybicHh inciupoites by-reférence the Barl'h. andiRart Bipessit arpilcation; issuéd iy

[ of may'be;sul;seqqentlympproved b yD’I‘SC .
314 'STQRAGEX*STORE " *STORED, b and “STORING? knedns thie: boldiiig O

title22, seetion 66260.70. |
8.5 “SUBERVISORLEATMANYis dhepeisonidentifid s RERMIT Byt B, secon

IX, Training Plan;
4,.

DTSC 16 HEFAGIETTY, en Apnl 25, 367 and all:subsegquent: mddlﬁ'cﬂhons‘that ‘hvebedn mAde. "

HAZARDOLUS “WASTE fora temporary penqd*, dtthie and-of which fhe. FAZARDOUS WASTE |
ds TREATED, disposed.ofior STORED élsewhiere de.setforth in Califomiz Cuile of Re'gfm',ﬂﬁ'tions;
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3,16 “TREATMENT;” “TREAT," énd " TREATING" means sny methed; sechniqué, or -
process. whigh chafges or'is designed tqc"z'.chén ge the:physical, ghemical, or b idlpgﬂic&l‘}bﬁhmbtcr"@r’
;compotition pf any HAZARDOUS WASTE or.any maferial contained therein, or removes-or

edudesits hanmiful proptities orcliaragteristics for-apy purpos including, but kot fimited to;

" enegByTECoVEry, inatéidl Fécovery or'reduction in vélume, as set forth in CaliforniaCode of-

Regiilatitng title 22, secticn 66260, 10
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3T WASTE™ i “WASTE,S" shall have] the definjfion as set'fdrth:m Health and.: Sifety
Codesection 25124
4., JURISDICTION AND V]‘ZNUE

g Patties’ agrec m:nd hgrqhy.supglatp that Sfor-purposesot; ﬂusvSttpul,phqu,fthls Court hias,

subj Ect imattérjurisdiction-over the matters allegéd inthe Comp]amt and- persone.l Junsdnchon

u:‘-oﬁér'GEMﬁaﬁH..Stericydlepahd.-t_l;;;t };pggq1uvgh4gx,,_ Gurtiiy proper under;Health and Safety.@odb

f i
. ."

sectlons.25 181%andi25183
5 7 WAIVER'OF EEARING AND nuAL AND ENTRY"OF JUDGMENT
' By Higiithi A0 enteting i’ th;s Supulat:on,'GEMaand-sStmwelg wive fheirright 4s B

~heanng1md i pialoh tHE atters: allgyd mvthe,(:omglamt qnd,.wmve their nghf tofipeal.,

APPLICATION OF THI&ST[PULATI@N AND THE FINAL TOD EMRENT

mqsnauuﬂ' g TheFinel .rudgmapf shall applydona be blundiiegon: ) DTS G
é.ny SUCSOF agenty sid(@) GEM, an& Stencycle, andiheirpfiicets; dlrectors;'manhgers,&GEM

S AND STERICYCLE,EMPLOYEES sagedts; cqn_t;rap{o,x:s,’,rggresmtawes;lnnd,my\suqm_r;ﬁ%.;ggjd- ;
) -+a58lEnsif fhelfiofficial éipacity.. |

%, MA’I"I‘ERS?C@VERED
7.1 Except as otherwise provided.in this; Slﬁ_pu‘l"ai'-'ioq,.flhi!’.ﬁt;'pul‘ati'dii;in‘d%t_fjﬁ Fiflér
Judgiménitiré axfina

‘specifically: Allege by ITSE agdinst GEM.and Stedcydfeiinrthie Complaint. Théatters,
-dpsp;iqu%ﬁbfhegpmvicu; senfenceate¥Covered' Matters" .Anyélmm viePution B s oF

-achonathatls not,a Covered Matteris;aReserved. Claitn:” DFSG resetvesits diitliorify tofpurs.uer

Regerved,Claimsas sef. forthin’ Paragraph 42 Hetetn,

al: ggg;';];gi‘gdinlg;mdluiibn:anﬂ:sefﬂe;nqnt‘uFﬂl‘t&lﬁf‘?ﬁ[,=ﬁﬂc’lﬁ%§ﬁ%}@£éﬁ{i§a}ﬁf§ﬁ§: '

Stipulain for Entey of Orden ardiF ia] Judpment o CopseatGASE N0 SAZ017 D03 158

FRRCTOET AN S W

—



—

7.2 Nothing in this Stipulatio of the Final:Judginent shell limit the sights of DTSC

ngainst-.@Ei\J[/Eterieyc]'e uinder the Coriiprehienisive Environmental Response, Compensation, afid. |
_Liability Act (42 U.5.Ci; § 9601 et §iq:); the Californja Hazardous Substance Account. Act

(Health'& Shf: Cods, §:25300 et 8eq b r:brrectwa actign under Heatth and Safety Codo sectioh
725187, subid, (b) concérning a release gfmmpous__wasra or 8 HAZARDOUS constituent

into the‘envitbrimet, Gt f67 vitlitions of fie HWEE 1ot iticluded under Covered Matters i
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73 DTSC furthier feservity all nghts to enforcmhe injinctive terms of this Stipulation:

8, GENERAL INJUNC’I‘IVE PRQVISIONS
Lo \GEM and Stmcyclefshan be; and are; pﬁmmuutly enjoinéd;es follows;.

- Pursuantto the’ pmwswns of Health and Saféty Cde sections 25181 and 25184, GE'M and
Stcncycle shall. compi'y Wlt}x tHe HWCL ‘Bid Ti’tle ngat dind i1 sonnection vmh, thexapernuonstof
-atd the:Fimal Judgmcnt— Tor the--nxtént’&us 'Stlpulnﬁon,réqw&; moreof,GEM and Stencycle thhn
the I{WGL antfor. the PERMIT;: GEM Arid: Stedpyele agEe to, comply«mth’thu Stiputation: kit
the Final Jodgrient..GEMiha Sterioy::.lb alsq igree fstth assertthe PERMIT gs.0.defenss:

- dgairist ady Violdtion'of thissﬂpulht;bnjﬁhd the‘Fmﬂl Judement or Violation ofithe HWCL.. GEM |
g and Sterigyeits afSo.agreéﬁdtto assait;.';xe HWCL LY de’fme agnnst ‘a0y: -vjblation:¢f Hils.

SthuIBtl(m irid thc'FihhlJﬂdgmept msc n:la_\t e_‘;,j,; ,

ik Stipilation and “Final. Iudgfnent H§

1| mcltidtﬁg.;but not.lim;tgmfg.mgsgﬁqglgg,gx ;gy.og}gpg;g:gﬂﬁhg P,EEQMI'F un:seehng__qumhtnptﬁoﬁ

mul't'.-
9. SPECIFICINJUNCTIVE FROVISIONS.
9.1 . HAZARDOUS WASTE itérinination. ‘GEM, andiSisiicycle shall inskera

" HAZARDDUS WASTE deteiriiintion for all WASTE generated atitie PACTLITY ‘asretifired
| by Cilifornia Code of Regilations; tifle 22, section 56262.11, mibdivision. (a):
‘ 9.2 p: to'lale Binerpency: Goortinator Contact Informistioh, -GEM-ihi; Steripyclesiall.

keépthe-lisf ofinames, addresses, and phone nunibers oﬁl!fgdﬁhﬁ‘s‘quﬁliﬁéd: ;ﬁ;fﬁg[ as;ihe.
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1 | FACILITY’ emergency-coordinatorup fo-date asrequired by Caiifornia Code 0f Régulations,
2 | fitle 22, section 66264;52, subdivision (d). ‘
3, 9.3 RERMIT Modification Wi anges. GEM and
" 4| Stericycle:shall u:nmedmtely amend the FACILITY’S Coutmgency Plan and sybmil'd PERMIT
- 5 | modificasion:to DTFSC whenever.the llst of" mhergency coordinators changes as re_:qhn;eql by
& | Californig Chde of Regulatxg__ s, title 22,3sectmn 66264:54, subﬂsv:sron {a)
g ' 04 Minimi i GE‘,M and Stencycle shall maintain: nnd&aperate the FAGILITY.
.8 .to miniinize the.possibility of a fire, .e:gplqs:oc%, or unplanned sudden orgon-suddéd release’of
g "»HAZARb@USiWHSTB'aﬁHQAZﬁRﬁbUS WASTE coristituents to air, sl D stirfade Water. 5§,
10+ | required by California Code of‘R‘égﬂlat;pus, t1t1e 22, sechion 6626431 mcludmg,"but 'not timited '
RN CH separatmg mCGPvIPATI.BLE‘WASTE .not releasing, HAZARDOUS WASTR it ot outslde the.
12 | FAGILITY, andremoving liquids: and sp1lls d:'rom secondary ¢ontditiniest and spiiled.
“13° | BAGARDOUS WASTEafithe FAGILTT'? ’as~soon as fhie liquidsiand'spills aré obsstied by. GEM
1% [ AND $1“ERfIC¥CLE EMPLOYE'ES f
¥ | s TREATING.SFORING. c i <i':si gof.Recovered WASTE o Miitefial, GEMitgd;
16 SteﬂcwlesbalIMchalth&FACILlTYs emergenb.y coorditiator proviles o TREATING;
Y74 S:'I'.Q.l?sm@i'Or:'di#gpéihg:pf,l;ggpx@p&?ﬁASTﬁ\or.-anynother riaterial thatresilts:fioi 4 teledse,
g fire obenplosion'aifhe FACILITY ’as;;regﬁi':é& By Califtrnty.Osde of Regulatiens, il 2%,
19 | -section 66254.56, sibdivision (). :
20 96 Use and MANAGEMENT of. Contamer& GEM e S&ncycle‘ihnll viie,ahd
51 | MANAGEHAZARDOUSWASTE containersias tegoired by Ealifortia Gode df Régulitions,
22 | -titte 23, sections 65564174, tirqugh 66264475, |
33 ja. Piohibitiott ou Using Datnaged Cofitaners: "GEM. did Stétityclé stiallnoESTORE
.24 ARBGUS WASTE i contaiiiérs: that'are fiot" it goiod stoditibh AxrEaviréd by Celifornia
25§ Codé oﬁ.ngg'ulattotigé_ntIezz sections66364.171,
26l b GladingpChntaliers GEM 5 Stercyelsshan g5 caniigers belding
39.| HAZARDOUS WASTH durisg transfes ahd STORAGE; exogt wiied it isnecessary toaddor |
."2-8 remijve WASTE i3 required by Califomid Codg 6f Reguldtions, tite 22, section; 66264 173 -




1| subdivigidn (a). A contiinerholding HAZARDOUS WASTE shall,not’ be operted; HANDLED,
2 | trapsfeifed ot STORED i amanner v:'hich mﬁy rupture the container or cause:ittotedk as
3 | required by Califgmin:Codeof. Regulahons, ntle 23, section 66264:173, subdivision (1).
4 g R STE ; ‘GEM &ndl Steritycle shail sepiratela
s | container holdmg ‘2 HAZARDOUS WASTE that 1s incompatitle with -any WASTE biothér
6 || roateridl s—«lransferred or STORED neatby in other confainers by means of & dike .bem_.all.ot
. | “othéf devite as requited by California, ‘Code ef Remilations, tifle 22,,sechon 66264197
8 || ‘subdivision (c). l
R ; ' LOMP; ; : . GEML iinidt
10 || 'Steticygléshall nét pldos INCOMPAT—IBLE WASTB O INCOMPATIBLE ‘WASTES ‘Hnd other
vl | matenals in. the samie contmner cxcept forthe ‘pmpose of: conductmgcommmgled corqpahbih(y
12 tesiing 45 degtrbed ifl e RERMIT Parf'.B, a,equnv {Waste.Aralysis.Plan), Altachient ¥22:
~13 . .{§@a,q¢ﬁ{;lr,9ﬁgmnqsﬁm@duzﬁ,.-mmg:@lan{.lm Oporibog Progedure, ArealD; and GEM
14 | Labgritory-Standesid; Operiiting. P;di:eéurqs) :
v} 8 Uhwashed Gontainers, RN and Steneycle shallxiof; placpHAZARDQUS WASTE«
16 [ i Vowashied contiines thaf ppemuszy hgld, an INCOMPATIBLE WASTE or niterialiss
37, reqmredbndhfom:a Cade of Regulahons, txtfe 22 section: 66264" 177 aubdwmwh(b)
18F f \Compahgdlmlof.HAZLR_l__hE)US W{;S'DE with Contaiers., GEMfmiStmcy;ljgesﬁm '
TR, ,_y_!_'g:&@Qﬁ@iﬂg{;ﬁﬂgﬂ@dﬁ@;{li‘p&dwiﬂi;@qatgﬁh]ﬁétﬁﬁich\#iﬂxﬁotimci‘mﬁiﬁzitmﬁmzbtﬁgﬁ&ﬁ_s&
20 | compitible _Wi-ﬂ'x,"thcMZMUSaWNSﬁbibat&ans'fen'eﬂ%oré’s"’:f@ftﬁb,—iéﬁ tharthie bility of |
21 | theconfainerio containdhe HAZ.AR.DOUS WA‘STE is;nob’ ::upmred ‘as;requitéd b Califoifia
22 | Code,ofReguldtions; title 22, section 86364, 17
‘23 &  Marking Containers, .GEMLand Stecloyéleshall miark-esch cdittdingr of;
o  HAZAR: IS WASTE clearly witly thio-dute oftacosptatioe witin 24 Bouts of setefuinig tie
26°) WASTE,usrequired by PERMIT:PirtB, section VI(B]{e).
26 i phyClontainiers, GENTanttiSterleycle shall dibeabamanc gape:
97 | tontiners:as, “emp}y" mth the date thecbntaines were, Cuiplied, ESTRgited by Califomial Code,
281 of Regulahdns t1ﬂc~22 ‘section 66261 , Suhdwzswn {38

:8'
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9.7 Precaiitions. GEM and Steridycle shall ié&e,grgcautibn& to"prevent accidental ignitiqn'
or reactiofi of ignitable Grreactive WASTE, as'required by Califoriiia Code of Reghlativhs, ﬁ’gl“e
22, section 66264.17, subdivision (a)..

98 ifying INEOMPATIEL

C. (BM and Steficycle shill idehtify

INCOMPATIBLE WASTE arid stiall ﬁse_cmifomin Code of Regulations, fifle 22, chapter 14,

_artiéle 19,-Apfeddix V, td Telp identify INCOMPATIBLE WASTE. Aigeendix ¥ '6nl'yprovides

G oo o ke ow

e-iaﬁfp_xjefsjt:-'f;’;&gsm;iauy-mcqmmmﬁr;ﬁwf‘e;s‘mmis not-intended to be exhauskve,
99 mcoMpA ((BLE'WASTE. GEM end Stericycle shall ot

I STORE; *MANAGE, IREA‘I BfULK1 oF CONS@LID?\TE INCOMPATIBLE WASTE n+ Area. €

10 || or Ared’ D or-Withinthe same STDKAGE cell:m Ares B, 8s: quu,\md by PERMIE ‘PartB, Eectmns 3
1T | VIEX8): VIGXT), W(DEZ) and Vﬂl(ﬂ)(l)(h)
2 g e Gifd CO SOL]DATIGN SEM and Stetitycle.shall notBULK
13 | HAZARDOUS WASTE it Ajéai A dhd B, | GENT sad Sterigycleshall:comply:with thie DTSC-
‘14 | approvéd: PERMIT Bm-B-Standard Opqgghng Procedures. devclqped for Areas G gnd B. to-msum-;
=N B HQO@MPATIBLE’WAST&S Aot B :..'. BT or GONSOLIDATED from'Tovse ek, lab-packs;
-16. | ‘or ether {eGHAITETE 5. draihs.¢ oﬁ*othen contame:sm Aren G anforaolt:6fE bing éﬁ'othbr
17 | eonfeEs Ace D iinizediy P"ERMII‘.xPart‘B,tsept:ons VORI, VR AVO),
1g - k1 “Réquited Apbroval. BeforeBULKNG; GEM anid Stm:lt:ycfe shiall ohtmh.wntten
.19 | -anthiSviZation from, th%w*\f@ CHEWST»!CHEMIQ’I‘W Yquaitied personmiel™as: ‘deﬂnedg hie
20y PERMJ.?.-l.’.d.:f..b.‘hr.s..es,t.!gn,M,,Amhmenwiis..(@uﬂ:ﬁcnﬂemfEersnnm PertithliE TEsiE)
A hqfom“B[ﬂ,KNGHAZARDOUSWASTEaudshﬁllmmntamm;rdontmentsfelnted,fothe |
2¢ | BULKING 6FHAZARDOUS WASTH as pa'i’q of the ﬁﬁélir;m‘*x-oﬁmﬁng:mara-qu &
23 | wminimpm.offve(S)years; as, requued by, BERMIT Pant B, geclitii V{G)(T) g tht: ag anand
24§ Subitintial Endangerment:Determination and Enquertxgnt- ‘Otder issued to GEMbDTSE pa.
29| April3; 2013,
48 9,12 _Prohibitions Regarding Reactive WASTE.. dBEM and Seerieycld shalk g STORE;
97| MANAGE, FREAT, BULR, or CONBOLIDATE résttive WASTE, 68 defified in Galifordi Code
28] ofRegulalions; fitle:32; seotion '66261 I3, arthE FACILITY.

)
;
)
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9.3 Prihibi

S WASTE, GEM aid Stericycle
shall not ipose ngAZARDOUS WAS"TE:exceptT at-an suthorized point as réqulréﬂ.i:y Health

~ad.Saféty Codg sections 25201, 25203, and 25 189.5, subdivision (a):

9.1 AisleSpace: GEM and Stericycle shall méintain aisle:space adeqyiate fo dllow the

- ' . -:i ! . . . I .
imobstmcted movementiof personnel, fire protection equipment, spilt control equipment, dnd
decoiitaiiafion:equipment.as rqqgkgd’lby_ﬂalifbﬂﬁaﬁoda of Reguhtions .titlé 2 _ séction

iameaog"c.g.nwu

R % bl s A g 3R G wh e
LB W o S B R W N e O

20

21|

: and PER

66254135, GEM sind Steficycle shall épsure that:the Iabels on each container aré:ficitig thie

 wielkway oftfie. aisle-and are easily visible for inspection by DTSC and OEM AND

STERIC‘SECLE ‘EMPLOYEES, wnlkmg down ‘the aigles,

. ihitena ce ‘GEM and Stencycle shall notxfirDTSC at [egg( 43r
busihess hours. bqfo;e per,femnng mamten,ance in either Area A or.Area B, whxchreqmreé GEM.

_nnd Steh.;:ycle fo q:qnsﬁ'uéﬂqrnpem:ny"I‘ORAGE cellss usmg polyethylene plashcs'hectmg aichy’

--—ns w.pqpeep,,amd sandb_ags a_:ound cqntgme,rs ponta_mmg.lg;ntabl c,ﬁeprroswe..‘ ot foXic WASTE in

the’ I@admg 4pd Urloading Area, ’
ir ' 5, GEMand Stericyclesshaliaintsis Hpd rephit

- -ctagks in.concrete: ﬂoarg oF. secupdary‘centmnmentcsﬁuchnw atthe BACILITY, 5 ax'redhired by.
'Qahfp:mgcha-of Regulahqns,,hﬂaiﬂ, ,secham6&264nl 75, :sobdivision. (b)(l)

A PERMIT Parf I3 R’ qUITEHISIE, GEM and! Sterieycle shall:ootiply with |

T

:ithe qand;hpns qf‘tha PERMIT a8 :equued bi HeéIﬂzmnd;Sal‘ety Cords: Sectiol] 25207; pubdmsmn
?(g)nnck Cslifomia Codeaf. Regu]auuns, title22, secndaﬁ&zm 30, kubdmmon (8),.\His

;_S?}gulaﬂon, and fhi¢ Final Judgment, mcludxngbutndtr:lmte"& ot

‘w, "Maintaining-fhe resin coafingy’ applied to siirfaces fii Ared$iA; B;:and C ag required By
' EERMIT Fack By setions; VID)EL), VIE)(1), it FIEG)(E); end indyillinig s iri#igtatning: a

. Tesiiy gpal;mg gﬂpheﬂ:m--the;snrfatﬁ iti Az D uis quréd]):y th;s-ﬁttgplat..lgp,

D GUSWAS TE om0 1ilohe il o (10) ditys inhvea Ay 6 e

" FAGILITY drom he duyit istarived atths FAGHETTY: réquirsd By the PERVATT, BartFit

ALty

T2, seafoVI(D). Ares 418 Sty STORAGE aren or egeiving,

A —_—

" Jiispiecting) tépackagin; aiid preparatiolt of confalerizedt WASTE, for shippig,

ro
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| shallnothotd.

- effectivel ;Lmove the'WASTE from. t.hetranspoﬂ yohicle 1o tHe dathgizé

¢,  Moving HAZARDOUS WASTE directly between the tralispont, vehiicle ini the

Loading and Unloading Area and. Aress A, B, G, and.D (“éuthor‘ifz‘c‘& units™) as fequired by Health,

and, Safety Code section 25200.19(c)(1) and'?PERMIT Part B, sectio Vi{c).. GEM and Stericycle

ARDOUS WASTE for any tifne off the transpiott yehicle and ontside ofithe.

- anfhiorized units, except for that indident'a] péﬁod of time that is necesdary to safely end

13

Pan B, section ’V]'(CJ

" authorizedingits to the! transport ve}uc}e Tbc “insidentsl petiod 6f time” shall thean, 2 period-of

timeg that;shall niot exceed. 12 hours,,

i }
; !

A ieeepiti fibownd and outbound HAZAKDOUS WASTE that ig btz réceived o
1. shippéd by e FEACILIT Y in aransport veh? dleimtiie Lonadingand Wnloading Afea for-no more. |

hari ten (¥0) deys'es required by 'Heéiﬂl.nnd;_Safet-y-ﬁoda;se'cﬁoh'zs-iﬂ@.tl 9(5)(1), snd PERMIT

......

: dpstmed for other: fa;nhhes other tha.n outbound WASTE: 'gcnerﬂtsd‘by GEMzand Stencycle 48
reqmred by BERMIT Part'B, swtnon*‘fl,.@ :

.- Requtving GEmNn-;s-'x“'amﬁ%éLﬁ EMPEOYEES BANDEING HAZARDOUS,

' 'WASTE fowvear persopalgpmtechv:reqmpmenn indlading; butiot 'lm:utcd toy hiard hats as;

:aqmraafby PERMIT Part B section. "JIIT(Bi(‘l)
- Notifying DTSE w2l hammimveq( of ¥relgass; mcludﬁ)‘g, ubmofiingited.

Py TR

10, .ﬁ:cg.»and explqswns.mvolm.g‘; LA

"PEEMIT, sechipn VL,

h, TFollowing HeFACTEITYs Cﬁnhngencfoan after 4 £i¢-Getilfs dtthe BACILY 'I\?

sincluding; but not limiited to evicuating the FAGILITY fotifyingisupérvisors, the emergency
-coopdinaters.and fhs GENERAL MA'NA.GERf and-placing debris dnd Hatériglsused ihl ihe;-,é:liiaﬁ'-.
Z ‘up‘of;\t'he. E.te_‘,;}irhich ate prefumed to'be HA‘ZARDOUS WASTR, ik proper-coptdiners, labeled:

i et MANAGED, spproptiately-as quiogd by PERMIT PALE; section xm(!?}ij'_caf)', and

. Atddhineat 33, o

1}

RIOUS WAYIE il (i BACIEITY agrequitediby-

#Stipplotion foriEiitry:f Otder and Final udgaterth Constrt CASENG; 34.2017-0Z1 1348




"5"8:‘,.

omn

aid riade available tpon fequest-to. DTS Crand the Sheintiiento, County Bnvironmental
12

£Stipiletion forEriry of Grser wnd ¥ il Jodgment o Gonset CASEND:, 34201 1- 0027 T3% ™

1 9.J8 Chingein Titles. GEM and Stericycle must notify DTSC.48 horsptiot to changing
2 | thetifle.ofthe FACILITY representative,responsible for‘compliantic with tréiningdentified i
- 3 | Paragraph 927 orthe “GENERAL-MNAGER,-” LEAD CHEMIST/GHEMIST? or
4- | “SUPERVISOR/LEADMAN" as, thusevtenns are defined in Paragragh 3 of this  Stipulation.
. 5 ' in Owilershi ig 1, GEM.and Steticycle shall obtain
6} DTSC3piigr writtenapproval and’ mmglymﬂ\ DTS PERMIT modifieation gididures:
oy “pefore A+-tiange in'gwnerstiip pr'p,pg;qhonal.,qonnql,'qﬂthe FACILITY. occurs @8 réquired by’ '
8" | Califormiiz Codg of Regulations, -ﬁue"z;;z. secfious 562?O;40,_subdi visions (a)add (5)(2) and
) + 66279:42,5, SabAIViEB L. quater fhan! 90, days prior to'the'lidrige offwiiership.or
LA -gpptgti"qﬁél'chtré[‘Q,f_?&be,'EAQﬂ;HfY;;ﬁEM q;xﬂ;:’j,sj'tjqrj'qgcla.sﬁail,sﬁbnﬁt-tb'lb“rse,g rEvised.
11 |- BERMIT gpplication.atid.a, oo‘pynof-\h'ewﬁtteﬁ Apreement-between the.current' and prospectivé
12 |- Hew pérmifieey thiat itiélullenn. speg;ﬁq date;for transfer of, PERMIT rﬁpmnslblh t; coverage; atid;
: 13 . habu,ity "hehweén the currenkand Pmsmqhwhew‘mnmﬁees. '
4 - 9:20° Closute Blasi. JGEM aind’ Slmr;yc'ie shall haves “Closure, Pfan"npp;ovcd.by DTSC:
‘ 15 tha;.mc],pggs an. égtimaie ofit the: mammummventary pfHAZ ARDGS: WASTESLUh-sne oyer,the.-'
o ;‘,g'i.. aétlyejtfq‘of ihe FAQILTIY dndip: ds:xmlqd desenpho‘u,ofmetméﬂioﬂs 1o be: Sed ‘thifing pastial
1T -clo;urcsyaqd’ﬁnalaclosure, mpludmg,.-but not hm;ted fo,, iivehiods for: fﬁmovmg‘, Aiahiporting,,
;.8 “TREATING; STORING,qf dtsposmg;of il HAZRR‘EOUS WASTES, hnduzt]exihﬂcahﬂn Dfithe ‘ :
- 19 f- type(s}oftﬁq ofFsitel HAZAT _GUS‘WA&TE MANAGENMENT- umt&to‘bg,\iseg, iffapplicible, as .
20 «arequuedey Galifornia Codeof: Regulanqm, htle‘Z?.?;s&:noh 66264112, SuUbBIISEE BYE).
21l 92 Hinancial Assurance. XNt Stesiogeleshallwisinesinafisguats Tiranciad
52 J .asgyrance fr the FACILITY as*requih'.d by ‘Califsmia Codessf: Rdgulhht}ns; title:22 :séctions.
29 +662647i40 et seq.
4 ‘ 16,22 Daily. . I v, Giiand Steneyilesinledndiichdaily
128 | 'mspﬁchbns-of,aﬂ areag-of: the FACILINY - whert HAZARDOUS WASTE ishiccimulated,
© 126 1 TREATED on STORED; tnd recondtheiihspection findifigs arid Ay icstonses by GEM:and
197 iSterioyeletin writton'ingpectiontos. tﬁge@sﬁgdﬁqﬁ;l_ggjgtﬁts;g_lrﬁg}@qeiﬁ;aipéq;agﬁgﬁqﬁﬁcitﬁ

7

1Y e - u--'-,, — ———— 2

T

ey i




It

Manageriiesil Départivient: The inspaction logs shall be reviewed-and signed by the FACILITY
" MANAGER or designet daily and s/he will b;e responsiblée for ensuring that any deﬁ'cierici&s'-
‘noted durtrig a daily, inspection have ,b_é_ex;:cm;ectqd as yequiced by the H-WCL.,.ﬂi'e PERMIT, this
Stigulitio, ahd/or the Fina} Judgment, Within fwo caléndar days of the coraplétion 6 the
cofvection of any deficieficies noted du;mg a8 f_:laily inspection, the resclution or reniedy for those

defigiericies Shall b fioted i the Log:

O o0 A jd v & owoo

-r;i l-" o - - ol k- -. [ — =1
P 83 % @B G XD B = B

21
2

26
27
28

C RS Thedaily 'j;ii;afjs.q‘gtiqx_i;,:ishg,ll;ggsuré that HAZARDOUS WASTE at the EACILITY is
MANAGED i accoidafice wittitis HWCL, including, but not limited 1o, California Code'of

| Réguiations, itls 22, setons 66261.7, 66264.17, 66264.31, 66764:33, 6626473, 662642171,

66264172, 66264:173, 56264174, 65764, 175, 66264.176, 66264.1:77, 66266:81; 6627030,
-66273.31-39; andichapter 14, article l_:?,:lﬁppéndix 'V-and Health.and: Safety Code section
25200.19. L

B RawewofWASTETypes The duily inspection stiall, include arevicwsof WASTE

{1 types STORBD at.thie FACILITY to delemunﬂ if NECOMPATIBLE WASTE is wniswfully
5. | STORED:tojkther. If mc_@yggﬁxLa'wﬂs,m’ié;.‘féund.m.ﬁg.uﬁlmﬁﬂlyfs‘fﬁm,tqgggfeﬁ
|- the wistei inspeoto Tog shall- deeibe how the FAZARD

Olis WAKTE, was seprepited of

. othiezviigh HANDLED fo pievenfincpmpalibility.

L

o REviey SFSpills andlor Rigleases, TEHAZARDOUS WASTE spitleantfbe reledes
- e Wigtiited it M FACTLITY, GENand g%::icgere shall respurd aproptiately utd.

Consistently. with the WG, and as,requued by th PERMII‘,« thiiy Stpalasan; aid heFinal
Juditnent,

- condugt daily inspections ofithe Loading and Unlosiding:Area;for ctiicks 1nd STORAGE of
INCOMPATIBLE WASTE. _ .

24 Locations of Video' Comerss; Within 46 days of'thie efitiyy of Akig Biital T udgrenit,
GEM:and Srericycleshall:provide DTSE with a FAGILITY. riapidétifying, (8 1irions, of
video camieras in Aress A, B, €, and B and the Loadig ind Ynlogajiig Ares (Video Camers

13

FACILITY Mepy. FGEWiand Steficyela makd anyeHasiges fo thedguation ofany video camera |

“Stipulétion for Entry ofOfder arid Fipsl Tudgmeni oy Copsent CASE NQ: 50 TT-002 1308
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=

inAreas A, ;B_, C, or D.or the Loading arid Unloading Atea, GEM arnd:Stericycle must-submit a
| revised Video Camera ;E'AGII:ITY Mip within sevesi (7) days after.a cliange has heed made.
. 925

Retention of Audio and Video Footage: GEM and Sterieycle shall-maintain oll andis.
- and video foetdge used by the FAGTLITY 6 morilthi-Areat 4, B, C, and:D and the Loadirig and
I .Unloﬁdiiig'a&rea fora minimum of one'(1) yed aifd stiall make the-apdio.aud video footage

available:tdo DTSE, upon request.

R
Y

€]

[ 926 i frdining; GEM and Stericycle sHal ngt A)l6w GEMAND/STERIGYCLE

AR TORE; MANKAGE, TREAT, BULK; 6t CONSOUIDATE HAZIA

| v talsings a5 tesing it Pabagraphy6:26(s). SEM 850 Stetcydle il Akl SEME AND.
-'-»‘S'II"EI;I”G-'Y(--:'-'IZE:EME-ILOYIBES;WEUaﬁd:mmeﬁgca thieir griployment atiie FACILFTY on or after.the.

3 " BERECTIVE DATE to%TORE!;MAGE@RE&&BUQ&,;ts'i-*._(;,Qgs_,gam‘;g;{:g' : i

RO W B completes 1 el e B o

{ mection@2EH) Y-

EMPLOYEES who.started jtheir’é‘ui[jli?‘ :,rr‘q'erigi'at thi¢ FACILITY, before the EFFECTIVE DATE to
| ROOUS WASTE uris! Eelihic
- completes;ull the,trﬁiningianhqheﬁ:as:T;;:'xh"iﬁitﬁ-'ﬁ tothits Stipulation, ¥&épt Tor fhe five trainings-and
* fosting identified i Pardgraph 9;26@)_’?6?-’:@ Stipulation, GEM:AND:STERIGYCLE

EMPLOYEES will hiive 30.days Eomittie .trqie of entey.6F the Fitil Hidgment to.complete the

- Stipuiafbiand fitestis fdentified in Patagriph 9.26(5)(3) 8xept for the teairing ideatified 4
Altfornls CorpliiGe'Shtol: GEMANBSTERICYELEEMPEOYEYS

il ip s i frovi et ditel S Coyn@iideihent of Hielk employmedhis complets thex. |

‘Califorsi, Goniplistice Sthidol tiainitig;
Pipgiam6F ClaSsrodin HowGition, GEN.Aud:Steficyel shallansure tiat all GEN
“AND STERICYCLE EMPLC})Y}ZE S ;p%kﬁ][;gggﬁjﬂétpanM‘ of:classroom ihstriiction

Bz,

theit:teachies themmto perforti theic duties at the FACILITY, in connection withttie
MANAGEMENT6f HAZARDQUS WASTE in:# Way, thut ensuges-compliantieiithfhe.
reqiivrarentsof the PERMIT, the HWCL; Galiforaia Cpde ofRepulations, title: QQ',;sEtitf oiis
66264;16 anid 66273,36; atid thie,allditionsl requirements in this-Stijruldtior: arid-thie Fihat

- Judgrisiit: “Fhis fromuin of tlassroominstmction; shallibe, supervised:by a. persoi tiditied i

HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT procedures, dnchiding, but nét linaited:t6.the HWCL,

14
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W

&

andishali.include instruction that testtiss GEM.AND STERICYCLEEMPLOYEES
HMAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT pmcedures: that are relevant to the pnmtmns in which
they-are: emp]oj‘ed atthe. FACILITY:. .

" b. GEM and Stencycle shall wlthm 30 dnys ‘of entry of the Final Judgment prov:de the:

. folluv{ring -five trainings and testifg 1de.ntlﬁed it this §éétion and provide documentation that the

tfammg was-Conduetsd:inia timely manne'r'wlﬂuu 45 days df etitry.6f the Final Jud grent:

2 1..'0..
d1

A2
13

14,

23

24| st for HANDLING S MANAGING INCOMEATBLE WASTEn Areasia, B, C; Diind the:

‘23
26

28

o e - iow W

Sl Gall o G Com plianiges hath -GEM'and Steticyéle shall provide trajiipg in

~ Modulés 1 through 5 froiri the Ca]:forma Comphanca Schodl fof a]l GEM AND STERICYCLE
. EMPLOYERS who HARDLE HAZaR

y OUS*WASTE.at the FAGILITY... Employees who are
hired after-the Caiifomja Comphance scligol! traimng jsnitially provided must takeithe
California, GCompliance; Seliaol traming béfore they. STORE, MANAGE, TREAT, BULK or

- CONSOLIBATE HAZ:\RD@US‘WASTE at e PACTLITY; 6t Wilhini six-fhonthis: ofhirc

whichever dctursfitst;

}
I
|
T
‘!

- STORING: méompatlbles tagethé.rs A’t & m:ﬂi:qﬁm ﬂn& tediding stigll- ;nclude the. follomng

elamients:

‘ fﬁ bidsic chernistry nid: 1d“ehﬁﬁﬁﬁtmn DﬁNCQMPATIHI-ﬁWASTB{chmc&Is mcludingv
‘. theitypé(s) of cherleal HBastiont Essutrated: ﬁhtﬁ INCOMPATIBLE, WASTE iemicals:
*(1)y. Deprrient §F Trahsporiation; (EBT) Feduirements’ mcludmg mte‘s;mmﬁq pror:edum

for Ioidiigigid- unloading bhek3,

(i) chlifdtnidCode 6f Regulauons; PERM]anmrqmcnts, and. snte—speo:ﬁcaproocdures,

~ Rpiing HANloAdig Afeh; 1AiBing Teting provedimesitoidontiy poteniial

'INCONMPATIBLE WASTE in Arge €.
Hi¥) -GEM.and Stesfeycle shall provifeitrainngin ulilizing fhig:Finited States

‘Environmental Protection Agency, (USEPA} Chemicd Gompatibility'Chait (BRA 600/2:80-076

‘15
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Apri‘l..l'.ﬁéﬁ,'oi- ‘any subsequéntirevisioas); California Cade of ‘Reguldticn, title 22, ¢hapter 14,
a:ticle‘-.l-'é;? Appendix V; Exa,x_r‘xgl'és.of -'P.i'}tentii_illy INCOMPATIBLE WASTE tdble; and Code of
Federal Repulations, title 49,.pait l~'77:' subpa:rts A (Ciurriagé by Piblic Highwiy) ideluding, but, .
iot limited-to, section 177 848 e Segregatlon ofHazardons Materials talile. The USEPA
Chernical Compahb:hty Chiarty Cnllfonua Code of chulatmns title 22, chapter 14, Appendix V,
 Exaniplesiof Poteniially INGD

R

Matennis‘thb"fe ‘shigll e posted i Amas A, BL €, arid'D:so that GEMAND STERICY.CLE,
'EMPLOYEES working:in ihesg,.RER&ﬁm‘EP areas of the FACILITY ¢an tefer to hem ivhen
HANDLING HAZARDOUS WisTE: | _
R ) % -thp_.msm:ojﬁﬁbﬂaﬁmﬁqcrd'emg at FAGILITY igvelviig INCOMPATIBLE,
WASTE. ' ”- ;‘

(vi) ‘Hpplicible poitiohs of the Embrge[icy Gontmgency Plaicaid Sité-spéeific. safety
procednres*nhciudmg personal’ protactlva cqu:pmentLQnd othersaféty eduipmént  utilized:n the
gvent:of in INCOMPATIBLE' WASTE mcldent ‘at the'F, ACILITY

B Yesting Al

‘ahblh ¢ Frdinir; GEM #nd-Stéticycle shiall conduct
-testing: afier thie 8. Hcirs, of! Iﬂuompah’bshty 'I‘mmng is provided io-demonStratethiat aining
parﬁo"pnnts are-abiléio- MANAGE.INCGMI‘ATIBLE "WASTEScondistent with theraquirements

er'8. Heursfof Incom

- of? thc BWEL. .AGEMuid: Stencyc.ln Eﬁ;ployee WD reteivedd shate of 90 peroenhon atest:will. ‘

fmve pﬁssudthc test: AGEN:and St’cncycleﬁmployec Who TéCeives aScore Between: 70 nnd~‘90
pércentiiustretak fhe:test Grtibia mmnnum 5e0ré.6f 90 petcatis Sbfdined. AGEM Steficycle
Emplqyeu Whe' eadives & scorc;be!ow_'?q pgcgpl‘mggt:pl&kpzﬂig Sraiping 4iid the test. Ttie
testitig résutts will'Vie providedto DTSG ¥fér achitraintiig:

4. AHoufsUiversit WASTE Tesining; GEM #hd Stefiyolé shiall provide at least four
(4) Rotiey G tainif g every s ioTitis o theHANDEING: and MANAGEMENT of universal
' WASTE 1o GEM AND STERIGYCLE EMPLOYEES,

8 Kred € diiiAres D' Stifidurd Operiting Proctdures (SOP) ‘I?rainhg GEM and:
Stencycl; shall, pmwde Afes G did Axeé D SOP Training, gpmﬁmally!companhlht‘y training for

BULKING_\ and GQI;{S_QLIDA-TION oflah packs, lqos,@pqcks,;and ‘solid WASZ[‘E;m,roll—oﬂ':bms.
16
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+)

{ { Thereafter, GEM and Stericycle will provide the Ar¢a C and Ared D SOP Traininig every six
2. | monthsafier entry of thie Einallhdgmgnl. That traifing shall include; but ndtbe limited to, the
3 | following according fo.each SOP: :
4 () thescopeand application i of' the proc.cdure '
5 I (i} significance of the procedure. 1
é (ii5)_Uie apparatusused, 5
T (VY reagents end materials., | l
& - (¥}, samplecaliection, pl‘esex:gnitien BJ:Jd HANDLING pricedure. 3
]+ ) BULKING sid CONSSLIBATION proceduces, indhudihg thieckiig the pH. :
i)l radxoactwty and'physical churactensncs of tha material as.reguired by TableViz of  the j
T Waste Anslysis Plan. _ _ f:
vl gv,h:)': : Q;_;a1ny;c;gn‘t’m*1:§wggaw,§s e pliysical atiibutes .6E'ﬂ'ieWiégs‘.=nE-;aﬁd the protedures )
e | ebenfar CONSOUDATION, aad tesh wnfainer.usuge. '
B 1 6. HAZARDOUS W‘_ STE ‘eratlonssaud Efoigénty R +houg:
B ing; Tratidition:fo: tho PERMIT réquited tiafitiig whichrveqiies GEM and ]
E +¥6.1:: Stmcynlg 1o pruvxde -ut Tenst exgm-(aa Fiolxs. oFHAZW@PER«supervifsw trdififig to ‘l
“jir] - SUPBRVISOR/CBATIMAN whofieve lumtqd HANDEING 5t HAZARDOQUS WASTE, GEM: :
g | aod’Stetioycle:shailiprovide atiiease ‘elghl» (S)qurs of HAZWOPER, shpmqsnﬂtmmng annually
o : (every'zﬁs days) for: SUPERWS@RILEADMA‘N who: dite¢tly: HANDLEHAZARDIOUS,
B0 WASTE vl uding but tiot:limised t0: HANDEING thiat does: :ahdl dossnot iivnlyel i
@1 | CONSOLIBATION and/or BULKING sFHAZARDOYS WASTES: .
23 6 iSitisequentRevisiongto Tiilhing Mteiils. GEM-giid Steticytle;shall provide )
24 | DTSC wittall PERMIT atid. Stipuletion anid Fifial Judgiieatielaed kg igterials, including | {
%4 | tiny shbsaguent:fc\'ﬁ'sibﬁ:ﬁ‘;tb‘ tﬁmmg matétials, 65 days. Brivr 9. Oing ey, DISC may-meview. |
#5 4 atidcomment on the adggiacy ofitie tralhing rijatetidls. [EDTSC.ievielys the training taterials |
281 and determiings théri tabe ihdggiiate! DTSC wilt identify thig:defipidiicies and Tequest: Hat GEM |
27} .4nd Stetieyele reyise the frtindilg tatdnals, GEM afd Stericycle will remain: r.ea.:gons_lble for the )
28 | adéguacy ofthe trairiing 43d shall nat be relieved of the requirements;ofithe Stipulation and Final :
17 )
!
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Judigpmesit: DTSC’s actio or idction vifh regard to the fraining materials shali neither impair
nor waive DTSC's aythiority to.enforce thig PERMIT, HWCL orthe.Stipulation and the Final

Judgrmieht:

4.

19
20
2L

22

23

ey

24
25
26

- afid-Stetigycle and who-shall bé respousiblc fbrr efiSuring complisnee-with the training -

. requigernénts under. thc HWCL, the PERMIT and this Stipulation and the Final Judgment.

928 Verificativn: ofTraiiigg;
W loitiol Vedficatighf .|

P
1

" (1) “GEM and Steriycle Shill; ithis 30 days of s enity of the Final Yudgment, provide. |

| dogiimientation to DTS CdihBaStraiGE thatallGEM AND STERIGYCLE EMPLOVEES

| enipioyed at e FACIEITY: on.ot ‘befcre tbe‘EFF EGTIVE DATE sitio STORE, MA.NAGE
'TFREAT,' BULK;, CONSOLIDATE;, orqthen'susa comeinto.contactwith HAZARDGUS WASTE
i o sv::ope of theiz’ duhcs*rblated‘tg}‘the operat;_ons Qi‘Ehc'FACH,lTTr haVecompTr:ted all the;
youer B
17

" tﬂ%ﬂﬂg-lgﬁuﬁ‘?@:’.ﬂ ..sbq!c:rn;?;aﬁ(h)u@ﬂ&!u.s .S.t;nssla.tis;n, For me_,ggggp;-;ralmngs ,and-..teang_,.

45.0dy3 STEntiy OP G BIRL R, | :
@) Farall GEVLANDSTERICYCUB EMPLOYEES biredtafierdhe HEFEGTIUE
DATE; B0 llowini GEM g STERICY OUBEMETOVERS tosemgapedin HATARD O
WASTE MANAGEMENT; GEM:ad'Stedcyclemust provide.documentationctd DFSC thatall
thetrainingsset forh id BXMIYIE to this Stipulation have beencompleted.. GEMuind:Stotigyeis

GEM ey Stenicydle AN piovide dodiiveshition Hiak fravithe sl testing was. compieted.witiin

shalliprovide docuntation that Califormia Compliange Schoo! traliing was:evtnpTeted fioilatet
thad;6 ghtlis and 15 days;after the person was inifialy hired.

(@) The-person identifiedin-Paragraph 97 welliccertify, zmdar ety ofpesity ungef’;he !
laws.of the; State: of Californin thatthedotumentafion pm\n detto. ELTSC rcgardmg (- initiat

| verification.ds true'and correct,

18
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..

b _ﬁ' ubsequént Vérification; Every six months foffy enlry:of the Fina) Judgroent, and
cotinuing for five (5) years; GEM-and Sterigycla shall subiiiit to, DTSC a training table that
includes thiesarmcs of all GEM AND STERICYCLE EMPLOYEES that supervise, STORE,
MANAGE, TREAT, BULK or CONSOLIDATE HAZARDOUS WASTE, including, butmot,
limited tG SUPERVISORLEADMAN sid thosewhio,act as 8 SUPERVISOR/LEADMAN, The

Alinze and p Exhibito

Y- LRI 1 Y. U OO+

— T

43,

hire and date pfiterdifiation, ifapp‘licabxe Thetable shall also fncludle thie GEM AND
“STERICYCLE BMPL@YEES‘ ”Ual"trammg alid: aa(‘.h subsetjuent donusl/refrosher. training for.
the: iarcvxous.three Yeats: “With gach *suhm;ttal toDTSG, GEM dnd Stericycle shall:provide the .
follbing; : :
(‘1} ';g'uﬁpﬁrﬁq‘g‘dbmurﬁédtﬂﬁﬁh‘;vi'ﬁéluﬁiﬁ'g tetificatesandiof Leainifig s.ign-npghgqt's.
i (39, 0 MieisyAlabius ised Hor . c:g]ﬂ (8) Hovisiof Inconipatibility Traifing:

[BY  Gourse tuitfines th&t'dqscnbe (@) RCRA HAZARDOUS WASTE Qﬂqmtor;."f?r.diuihg;.
(B)rFolm”(fl) Hoitieofbintversal: WASTE Tmnm (&) Emefgehey Response Progedures and
Cdntlhgcncy Plau Tﬂuhu‘ig. (¥ PE.RMI'I’ Trammg andi(2) Ared €and-Area.D SOP Tmmng)

09.29 'Certlﬁcahoh THat: AILGEM 'AND STERICYCLEEMPLOYEES Have R

B, By S ionts aftés eqtry of Lh :Fiiaf Tdeniefit, the nerson identified in’ Paragraph
il cettify inder Penley of; peuuh' under thé Jaw pfithe Statg,of Califormiado DIXE thatdll
GEMANB STERICYCLEEMELOYEES: who STORE, MANAGE, TREAT, BULK o

CONSOQEIDATE HAZARDOUS WASTE hiyetecéived the frairingrequitedunder e HlWEL,
thGPERMPP i St aticd; 50 he Final Judgment; withivihedime periods required. '

930 Retélitioh 6 ThainingRecords: ‘GEM.and Stericyélershall retdin training réords oh

of {ig:Stpulatsn itk elosure'of by FACILITY is cerfified by DISG; drainingrecords f6-
AetinAted GEMAND STERICYCLE EMPLOYEES shatlbekepfiTor atileast thrée-yeats fop-
the 83te of temination;

1%

to this Spulatiots. Thie tabie shall iiiclude the GEM AND STERICYELE EMPLOYEES' date of. .

.
h R e s e A b

‘GEM ANDSTERICYCLE EMPLOYEES, indfuding all records associated withiPatagraph 926

Stiplatido for Bntry AFOder andihalidgiment o Conseit CASENG, 3920170221348




LY}

: Withiin foriy-five (45) calendat;
days of he entry of-the Fimal Judgment; GEM aid Sterioycle $hall éniploy aid miiatain for
Jperiod.of five (5')' years a third-party, ec:)'ntrfacto'r‘-.knbﬁledgeablb'm the'Califgtnid ehvirpimerital;
laws thatare flie sibject of this Stipulation and the il Jadgiticht hy-al *-Envgfbgiqiﬁntai_

- Compliance Assurance Contractor.” P;rio“r'to selecting the Enﬁrd"ﬂﬁiéﬁt{l Comipliaice Assurance

Contractor, GEM arid Steric

14

1 sprotection fnw; relafiigrte e FAGHLIFY for apetiddoffive (S)yeash

the qualifications of the proposed Coijliarice Assurniice Contiaetor t6 DTSC, “THe,

‘Eivironmentel Compliance Assurance Contractor’s Yesponsibility: shill et fasiiigé GEM and

1 .S‘tei‘i'cyé'lé-t&acompliwgeayﬁt'ﬁ;theinjunktiyeetmmsf’in:ﬁsi-s:sﬁgﬂiaﬁamaﬁa;the Fidl Tidgment:
L1
1

4

. GEM.aod Stericysle:shali remain rosponsibleifir the acfionty sfisald cotractor axid shall nof

' otherwiseibe relievediof anyi'retpﬁrem‘énts -set forth ih the PERNT, this Stipulatiofi,of thé Firi]
Jud gmenut The duties.pf'the Envuonmental Compliatice- Atsyinie Contractorishall helide;

undenﬁh'nfg good: faith cﬂ'nrts 1o nssess-SEMand, Sté:ibyele suotnphisice wr.{h

e_lppllcable. laws end.regulations;
Voothe cddvising GEMAND STERIGYCLE EMPLOYEES ou ootiiptiines withall sigohiastle

Aawsand sagirlations:and ta-corteit, any notel:deficienciss eivvielidons, 4

_ co]]ectmgﬁ andqmnmtanmngrcopm of all wmfan*'adwsh;ﬂaﬁts "6 Viglatoh, mcludlng*a

'-Nohcef‘o: Summmy b Violation. ("NGW" anl: 0% e andipEsHon TE0E, disied or

; pesformedbyanyiloesl;statepor fedsal sgency ot ang DN Sy, envionmerte)

532 dnnvilReports; Begitirtig ohe:yedrafief tie-ontey oEXHE st idinent and
confimnivig fr fiva (3)yenrs fom the.ertyiof Wie Finkl Judgiietis, GEM/id:Steficycle’s

—

Brvircniietital- Compliance Assiranice Contracotshall Sibiit foITSE; an afigial stats.report,

LT des Eribﬁ'g’_i

g, Hidefis by GEM:and S{FHCycls to:Sommiply ith e tesing of tils Stipulation andf.
' the FiRELR ERsH:

by thebERInEicE of A fepioitible event S finontable ovents.ag definedinTealthnnd:

Sufety Coffe seétion 25508.1, NOVs or SOVsiissued to GEM ind Stericycle for the FACILITY,
20
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a—"

c. gy actions faken by-the- FAGIEITY in response to arreportable eveiit ad
NOVs/SOVs, and |
d.- any penaluespald by GEM and- Stencyciesmth tespecttosuch NOYs/SOVs.
' Each,,apqua'lzrepqxjshall be,s:gped "By GEM and Stcncxcle',s'EnWmnmengql Compliance:
. Assurance Contractor, 6ne coxpomte'éfﬁcw éom-GEM one corpotate ofticer froni Sterieydle
3 pefialteaf

- Enviroumental Solutions;. Ine. ; and~on‘é’corporate=ofﬁcer Fom: Stenigyile, Tag,

[ R —

B 00, Dy Cwik b ow,

I I S TN S
th B L W =)

36

| ~this SttpulationandstheFinal uﬁ'g‘gnb‘ﬁt: The‘HAZARD@T-]S WASTE: omplidnce:dudits:shall

1 +inis Stipulation;and:ths Final Judgpies.

perjury. under the.laws;of the State: of Califorma
933, Environmental Audifs, Within firty-fivis (45) talendardags-of theentry of hig Findl
i agm.e'nt.:GEM:-deS:eﬁeycle:ahaﬁ:éelb‘et and reteinthie servitessofin independentihira-pirly

o it

..i.

_the HWCL, the P,ERMIT- ihls-'ShpuI'aiibn, ana iieFindl Jidgment. et shall e Bitkier' Registered

' Environimental Assessar. or Profbg.smna}‘Engmeer Jieensed in Califoriie, hnd*knowled geablcaand

expengpced in: envirgumentl: wgu]a_twns, ludmg g WEL: (“Aud:tor“) Prictioselécling

' the:anditor, GEM and Stericycle.shall LI‘J.I'ON'IdF Thieindie and duiricaton vithe drotherwise prgsqgt‘-'.%
- the, qual’{ﬁcaﬁons ofithe frgposet Auditoric: DFSE-

oo {The, Aualm.m'u usn,the"“Haandous Waste Genzfatn’nlﬁspectmn Repvitattackicd,
]‘lmte -85 Exlub:i 3 pasiguidanceiforsa, HAZA.RD@US WASTE audirpiotseol thist-will beused be
t‘as Audltoq’fcr d’etermm&whether@GEM*and .Stem:yclb—am meetmg\thﬁequuéﬁlﬁnis of thies
HWCL, PERMIT. tﬂns\ShpuIatlon, aﬂd théFmal [ndient. 15 a&'dxﬁdn‘to A, nthgymdmt
,ub,.]tec.tl\ﬂﬂaﬂémned;ggptepnatefb_ﬁﬁlim amd.S’tenc;{clq;:mc edvirprifiental cdiipliante audits shaly

. evalvate{CEM and Slericydielscottiplianve. it SHWCL, RERVIT, siid, e Tediementspfy '

«alsoevalunte the‘inipleriientatiorvend stfévtiveriess of GEMraiidiStersycle's HABARDOUS

"WASTE: eamplintice; program, inténdeduo maintainyobinpliange widithe HWCL, FERMIT, and
6 The:Anditorshill eondiict g (3) HAZARDOUS WASTE compliance audisidf thie

'-FAE?IEFF:YI;@?M‘ 806, intervaly; THE AEStWiLkbechnivcted. 8 monthsafieredtryrofitie:

2 ARDOYGWASTE smatitirto deteriinecopipliance syith. |

21
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R e

Fina] Judgmént, the:second will be 36 months after en&y of the Pinal 'jila,g_mcnt; and the thixd will

b¢'S4 months aftesentry-of the Fingl Jadgment.

9.34 Naative Andit Repotts:, For.each audit, the Auditor.shall also prepare diid sybmit a;
narative HAZARDOUS WASTE, qudit-yeport 1o, GEM aind Stecicyile, with-4 opy to DTSG; g,

' within 60:calendar daysiafter each of lhe three audit deadlines stetedin Pamgraph 9.33(b); The

o
% Tre oA
Tt i
Nl

2 L L
= L
j St

O o.pa =3 = V. P

|
By}

ey

o
1-_2_‘.
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2

8 |

: r;omplémgcfesqnpnon p,pd"dmcusslpmcc all.audit Ob_]edtﬂes 3C0pe; nnd.cnlcna,ﬁudttnictimtles.
-audit;findings 'and,m{dxt 'conclusions, mcommendatmns and ahall 1deut1fy and disciss all andit
A evidentE conisidefedpr rélied upon fh: support'thc auglif.conclasibns: The HAZARDOUS

WASTE;atdit tepotfs.shélldlso pontap:;a,'bnef desmphon ofany: writien advistinénts ot

~violation, iitluding:facmal NOVs of: SOVs and'lnspectmn repons,dlrectad to GEM énd Sttmnycle

by-sry-1egEL, state, v fedéral agengyat}mt :dentlﬁes any viplatibnof; aDY environia ental prbtccnmp

. ‘1a;w-m;lkung,;to~ﬂie"MANﬁG qf any hazgrdcus'ma'lenal o HAZARDOS' ‘WASTE.« Sﬁch
|- fepoits:Shallalzo! mclud’e,,but nqt"be lumted.to 2 bneﬁdescn'j:hoh ofithe dlsposmon ‘of ey glih,

s
BEH: |

'notgd-v;olanons{rmdluﬂmgewhgtheﬂGEM: and Stc:myﬁle‘pmcf arty fines, cost.or: cn]:uatr PRYiEhiS

regdiremertiisnof infendeddoihesand; nhaifnot-be vobistrued. o a,“éumfpcnocf""aﬁd desot

mheveGBM4nd»Stuipyde .of their: abhganun ‘totpromptly corict anydeficlenidyor violatords:

rqquued’ b)vthe'HWQL, ihe‘PERMI% orthisi Shpulatron arrd Jisdgnieat,
R35" Compliance: Audits are Mol Binding:ord S, "FhePartiesgree that the:

ZARDIOUS WASTE, co;q:o"l'ignpe*auﬂiti:a‘ri?i‘cbngjgbndmggnudft’rhﬁoﬁ§' Arg ot tindingon'
DTSG.; DTSCin noway:delegates.or waives ts;ériforceiiient authioity:, Fiitthetninie, DTSG!s
action.prinaction withirespectitonthe: -andits shaT[nmthorx a:r‘nbl‘Wawc%DTSC’ s agthority:to
enforce,the HW@I:,lthe PERMTI‘L‘ ar this:Stipulation 'ér'ld.t]ic: Fl&&!z}u}ig;geﬁt;:

2%

’ HAZARDOUS ‘WASTE audit réports refereuced dbove shall inchide; butnot bieliigk é:15,m

- andwhetcorechvemisasures, takex;-her'EM st Stetiogcindo: coﬁmrhny&eﬁménmosﬂmsed i |
'] e HAZARDOUS WASTR: E!lei‘brepm‘}s 1fany, wote-taken by GBM.and.Sterieydle, This

Slfialfoa o Enerysof Grderand Floal Jodgment on Tianstnt GASEING. 34201 7:00221348,

sowes 4
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10, CIVIL PENALTIES

10.1. SETTLEMENT PAYMENT

a.. GEM and Stericycl¢ shall pay DTSC a:total. of$1,412,400 in civil penalties withiii
thirty (30) days of.the BEFECTIVE DATE.

b.  This payment shall be made by cashies's check, payable'to the “Depattment of Toxic

. Substances Gontrol” and bearin the notation “GEM and Steric ©le, Inc. and Case No;14,2017-

00221348," and mailed to;

{Caghier

Acgounting Office, MS-2VA
Doputtiment of Toxic Substances Eontrol
R, D Box 806

Sacramento, Californiz §5812-0806

g - #4n gleétiohic (8.g., Adobe BDE) copy of paper photacopy of the payment stiall'be

. et 8'the samb tire; {o- thuse pérsohs idénwhed iy Pardreiib 11,

102 LATE RPAYMENT
. 'GENL g Steribiele shs( Py, a1t paytentof §10,000 per day for-each: dayithe payment
is:laté. Diiailditiof, GEM aid Steficytle shell pey DTSCipaskivdgment interest asprovidedin
Code GECivi) Procstiré seetidn 685.010 (10%) from the date of defaplt. Further, GEMiand

. Stericytl&is:gbligated 1o pdy.costs fncurréd by DTSC in soforeing ifie moneyjudgment agdinat

GEN andiStericycle,in thils matier, inchiding, bufindt limifed fo reasonsblaationey's fees.

1. NOTICES, |

11,3 Alootices under thisStipnlation andthe:Final Judgment shall be inwnting and:shall
be sgn:to:

Demseif‘su_}l

Brarich Chief

Department of Toxic Siibstinées Control
Enforctthentiand Emergency Response Division
88(}0 Cal Center Dnye

Saramento, CA 958263300

Eiiaik Petdise Tsiiji@disc.ca giv
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‘Berkeley, CA 94710

" Rose B..Fiié

Brooke O'Hanley Selzer

‘Senior Attorney

Office of Legal Counsel :
Department of Toxic Substances. Control
700 Heinz Ave:

Einail: BrookeSelzer@disc.ca.gov

§

—_—

W = R e R Wy

= W o

15

25

26:
27
28,

1515 Clay Swest, Stite' 2000 v
P.0. Bok 70550 ‘ !

Qaldand, CA'94613-0350 : ;
Erifiil: Yose fini@dbi.ca tov. : i

‘Legal Dépiiftipnt

GEMIStencyclc, Ing: i
28161 ‘'N. Keith Dfive : -
Lake Foregt; 1160045

Matt M : i
SV, Safé ly, sHealth. & Comphancm : !
28161 N. K.m!h Drive
Lake Potesl%‘ lL 60045

Jiiies Dy Trelbar: : )
Vice President; TSDF-Operations ‘ i
28161, Kmﬂi Dijve '_- !
I.gﬂkc Fme&i; TL 60045 ! ’
Biidil: games.rremar@smmcvcuﬁfaom :

112 Euch f@ﬁ?@ﬁi‘@hﬁaﬁﬁ‘zﬁﬂé;fh'Slié&ﬁyﬂmﬁﬂmﬁﬂk&@-.fc’z.r::puryom*:o"r‘;hoﬁb'egﬁg

‘nrovidinit e haite-and, gtldiess of Hemew represeritetive, in-writing, to;those;persons;identitied:;

ity RafagFaph 111, “Adl:fidfices orottiersommunicafions vequiredior. permifted under the Final

Fudirigh thal g dddressed'as: provided. frv itiisiParagraghi ate effectiveiupon Jelivery if delivered: |

personally oy ovemight mail, or, it déliversdhy sertified mall are.elfectivfive (3) caltidor
.ﬂamﬁféligmn_g;q%osig-udtﬁ ih;-,U:ﬁii:ﬂf’S%gtm;maillé :;J_os'tng_p_pregaid,—'y'i‘f?delivémdfbx ‘nféilhbﬁm
effectiveithe pgxfmuﬂ‘a:ﬂyt'-fmt’ dlecironie maiilis senfbefore Sip.t: (PS‘I‘) to lhéxeieoimmoma}l
addresses-ofithe dgsi’gdgted'rgmjp1pn&fdhnbﬁcé:cohbu}tmtv&tix-sma§}i githe notiee b§*United:
‘States.mail. |

24

s -
. v e e ——— e em e

‘StipGlation for Bntry of Grder and Fipal Tudement ononsent CASE NO; 442017 0011 1348,

S e ——




A1

o

11:3 Al tivkices; approvals, and détisions of DTSG under the terinis of this Stipilation o,
the Final Thdpment shiall b¢ Communicatéd to GEM sAd Stericycle in writing, Ng@h;l advice,
guiddiice, sdigestions, dr commitits by énipldyeesior.officials of DI'SC or peoplé.or entities.
acting di 'Behialf of GEM aiid Stéricysle, regardifig fratiers covered'in this Stipulation orithe Fingl
J ud,éﬂijcnt, shiall be construzd to relicvé _GEM: and Stc‘;-icyéle of its obligations under this,

I - T R Ty

=~
B = B e

w23
14

I
;T8

19

20
21

22

n

125
26
127
28

relibve GEM,ind Stericyole ofits existing obligations Y provide copies of dociititfation 10,8
* localiggericy o Cartifiel Uil fied Progiain- Ageiicy (CUPA) o teifuired by Statits; fégulation; or

‘Tequiremiit,

- 4iithorily DTSC fiagtingef the' HWGL o I)*enforce the Fina] Judgnent,2) e :the. waaﬂons.‘in

- Gompleintina penmﬂmmpmcéedmg;‘decmon,x‘gndf&r Process,

11 Notbing in s Stipulatioror the Fiii idgiont shall bé interpreted v aisliedsa

2. RESERVATION OF A'IJTHORITY
I2 1. ©ther s “Covered. Matters'"48 dcﬁned 4f patagraphy 7:1, fiothinghersin s intended;

"ﬂqr’sb.all Lt-ibbcnnsrued -to'proclude ETSC= or”aﬂy staee;. coud_t_y,.grl.ochl;.:;gent}g.;gmﬂpggt,, N

boarcf,«brénnty‘ froH exErcisingits authonty upder Ay, Jaw; statjits, o régulatior.
122 Nothmg m“:hm Shpulattoh G- tlig thl Tutgiefit- i Hiy way wiives: m; il any:

B pittein of eouisE g Fcondiict o a'h:stqry ot‘ Hon-Edfupiliafice; ind 3Y e the vidlafiony:in.the
123 Nothihgifbe ibrcgomg‘ if mtended 16 oristteli b Sostrued as Timiting.or preqhd’ing i
DTSC:Kam. purslifig fll.of its rediedics to caforeithis Stipylation. andbthe F]MIIudsmentnr '
from’ gm;;ahgg-&g‘qp;fogdpmpnt.ucnob.agams_t _GEMgnﬂ!or-S,qucyq!c.s_&ekmg:lnjunchye reliefior
penéltiey fofithe petiod of tiihe GENL drd/ot-Stéricytleiviolated the terms.of tjis Stipwlation or fhe.
Findl Judgiient offigri- illiating:an shfdteement-action.againstGEM and/or! Stsﬁ@é'sl,e'f@;.my; '
violatidns ofthé HWCL:6r Title 22 excéptns provided by section'?; Ma.ttmjs‘éoxereﬂé. )
12:%. . A Becision by, DFSE: nobto; enforce any provision, gﬁiﬂﬂ§§sﬁ2ﬁ1§'ﬁ.b&.qrdihe:Fiﬂal
Judgmentshathneilher be deemed.u waiver Df:ﬁ;gpgmﬁi_aian, noritsany Way afficithtn vaiidityol

e e e

this:Slipulation, the inal Judgment, or DTSE! scenforcément auth ority. A decisioriby DTSCx6t,
) 25

Srfgalarion for Edtry - Orde aid Fislindgratil on Catsem CASE NO. 34-20F7- 00221378,

saeh L

; the Complaintto seak. éﬂhme&pmalucs i my ‘Subgeqiient’ admam!;ggwg of Givil. betion o sh ow: R



A

1 | to enforceany provision:oF this Stipulalion or ftie Final-Judgment:shaltnot g"reclu({e'-DTSC. frm
21 exencisipg_-ité'statutory=aull=(ority to emforc,e. the samg oriother provisions.
3 .12.5 GEM.and Sterigycle c;ovenmt not:-"to pursue any civil or administrative elaims agginst
4 | DTSC oragainst eny governmental: umt of the State of, Cuhfomm, any courittes’ ok, mummpnlmbs
7 5 1 intheStaic of Califomm , Pragainst theu- ofﬁgers, 'cmployees, representnhves Hgents, or attomeys
é | for actlpmtaken against:GEM and ﬁtedcvcle mangg‘out of or-refated to Coveréd Matters.
7 13, VIOLATIONS DEEMED P,RGVEN
8 GEMiand: Stencycle agree that, solely fpr purposes-of subsestion {a) and (b) below-
@ | (herzinafterDefined Situations™): , jl
0] (@) afureDTSCienforcement ae.liO.l;: far new vielelons{ie:, not within Matters
11 | CQovered) atthe FAGICITY; and/ox { |
12 (b) g‘peﬁrﬁfﬁng}pgqégedihg;s:d.'fei!'fsiqn'g.‘ﬂnﬂ/:.ﬁl?_pmc_esa}rg“g&rﬁi'ﬂ‘g_iGEM'zaﬁdfbf'éféi"i?ﬁjﬂié‘5'5"-;
© 131 an apilicant for 'o‘r,-ha1der=‘of-n'mmn'oué WASTE ficilifies:BERMIT andfor HAYARD GBS
i | WASTE transportar;egmhah on, mcludmg, but nat:limited: 10, ‘any: decisionmatle - pidrSuait. to:
15 H@mlth and Safgfy Codesegtion, 25]r86:md!qr p;ot:ess ansmg{fmt:r Healih and. Safcty Codé
16 | -seclion'25300.21, o i
A ~ ithigfiolations alleged inthe: Complamt .wl[] he:deemed proven: -without any:need Tor
18 | testimony:s or.afher. ev;dqnqa.. GEb and Stenuycla euchiagies fhnH]ler Wanﬁﬁhs"allegc& ifi'thé:
S L-F .: .Complaitifmay; bensed'by V1 (03 mthe Beﬁnad.swﬁﬁous» initer;alia; asabiists: foberbaiicsd
50 | ‘penalties. Ur'pamuthng proceedmg(s), decmon(s) anﬂ!dt-.probess(&} Fl.‘mhers {2508 ahd
BL | -Steficycle agresthal;intnyof the Botived S;hahbng,menthu-@m.nnr StefieySlowil dispis:
83  -the facts: uqﬂ'tarlﬁi{ygﬂi‘q viol dﬁona*aﬂisg:ed.ﬁin,:t;he-éﬁﬂ-ip'_ldiﬂti_-'of{lﬁﬂfSE*&‘ s ok tii'_e Vidlatioiis,
23 | sallegedn the:Complaint.as o buisis:for enhanced peniltics orfSrpéfrnitting protéeding sy aidior:
24 | decidion(¥} andlor:processgs). If DTEC socksto sethe violationsralleged if tic Cofiplairt,.
28| GEM-and Steticyéle cacti-also agrec it in-any;of i Defiried Sinatibny; tHoywill npt assertady,
198 | -deferses based o i parssige. oftirng;, indliidiiig; Buttiovfiired oy Jachay; estopel, and stafine
29 | iofliniitations
28

26

Stipulation for Entey of Order ped Final Judpmenton, Gonsedt.CASE NO, 34:2017-003 21348




—

14. NO LIABILITY OF DTSC
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Case: 1:08-cv-02390 Document #: 95-2 Filed: 01/11/16 Page 2 of 11 PagelD #:601

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement of Settlement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between Plaintiff-
Relator Jennifer Perez (“Relator™), and defendant Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle™), through their
authorized representatives, Relator and Stericycle are collectively the “Parties.”

RECITALS
WHEREAS:

A. Stericycle, based in Lake Forest, Illinois, is a provider of regulated medical waste
management services and pharmaceutical returns services to medical offices, hospitals, other
health care providers, and other entities. Stericycle does or has done business with government
customers at the federal, state, and local government level (“Government Customers™).

B. Relator is an individual resident of the State of Tllinois. On April 28, 2008,
Relator filed a gui tam action in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
[llinois captioned Unired States of America ex rel. Jennifer D. Perez v. Stericycle, Inc., Case No.
1:08-cv-2390 (hereinafter referred to as the “Action™).

C. On June 28, 2010, Relator t1fed an Amended Complaint adding the States of
California, Delaware, Florida, Illinois, Indiana, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New
York, North Carolina, Rhode Island, Tennessee, the Commonwealths of Massachusetts and
Virginia, and the District of Columbia (except for New Hampshire and New York, “Government
Entities”) as plaintifts and alleging claims for relief under the respective state false claims law on
behalf of state and local governmental agencies, as applicable.

D. On July 23, 2013, Relator filed her Second Amended Complaint (“SAC”) in
which she alleged claims on behalf of the Government Entities. The SAC dropped any claims on

behalf of the State of New Hampshire. The SAC alleges Stericycle improperly increased its
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Case: 1:08-cv-02390 Document #: 95-2 Filed: 01/11/16 Page 3 of 11 PagelD #:602

service price to certain government customers, from January 1, 2003 until June 30, 2014, without
consent of the Government Customers or contractual authorization, resulting in overpayment for
products and services (“Covered Conduct”).

E. Stericycle denies all allegations of wrongdoing in connection with the Covered
Conduct, and this Agreement shall not be construed as an admission of any wrongdoing or

liability by Stericycle.

F. Neither the United States, any State, or the District of Columbia has intervened in
the Action.
G. Relator claims an entitlement to a share of the proceeds of this Agreement, the

terms of which are incorporated in a separate agreement between Relator and the Government
Entities, and (o reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses under the federal False Claims
Act and its state analogues.

H. The Attorneys General for the States of California, Florida, New Jersey and
Rhode Island do not represent all governmental entities within their states under their respective
false claims acts, including local governmental or political subdivision customers within their
States, which were also allegedly affected by the Covered Conduct {*Affected Local
Governmental Customers™). The Atlorneys General of California, Florida, New Jersey and
Rhode Island will provide effective notice of the Settlement to each Affected Local
Govemnmental Customer pursuant to Paragraphs 8 and 9 of this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, to avoid the delay, uncertainty, inconvenience, and expense of
protracted litigation of the above claims, and the unique remedies and penalties exclusively
available under the federal False Claims Act and its state analogues, and in consideration of the

mutual promises and obligations of this Agreement, Relator and Stericycle agree as follows:
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1. Stericycle agrees to pay $26,750,000.00 (“Settlement Sum™) plus $1,750,000.00
{“Attorneys’ Fees Settlement Sum™), for a total payment amount of $28,500,000.00 (“Total
Payment Sum™). Stericycle will pay the Settlement Sum to a third party as described below.

The allocation of the Settlement Sumn between the Government Entities has been determined by
and among the Government Entities without any involvement by or input whatsoever from
Stericycle or Stericycle’s counsel. In addition, Stericycle alone agrees to pay the Attorneys’ Fees
Settlement Sum in full and final satisfaction of any claims by Relator and Relator’s Counsel for
reasonable expenses, attorneys’ fees, and costs. The Total Payment Sum resolves any and all
claims that were alleged on behalf of the Government Entities by Relator in the Action and
Relator’s claim for attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses under 31 U.5.C. § 3730(d) and analogous
provisions of state False Claims Acts.

2. No later than fourteen (14) days after the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Stericycle shall pay, pursuant to written instructions from Relator’s counsel, the Settlement Sum
to the third party administrator, Garden City Group, LLP. No later than fourteen (14) days after
receiving payment of the Settlement Sum from Stericycle, Garden City Group, LLP shall
distribute the Settlement Sum to the Government Entities pursuant to written instructions
provided by the Government Entities. No later than fourteen (14) days after the Effective Date
of this Agreement, Stericycle shall pay the Attorneys’ Fees Settlement Sum to and in the manner
directed by Relator’s counsel.

3. Stericycle shall comply with all applicable state and/or federal laws, rules, and

regulations as now constituted or as may hereafter be amended.
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4, Relator affirms that this Agreement is fair, adequate, and reasonable under all the
circumslances in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 3730(c)(2)}(B) and similar state statutes, and
promises not to challenge the terms of this Agreement.

5. A slipulation of dismissal with prejudice will be filed, along with the
Government Entities consent to dismissal, if so required, fourteen (14) calendar days after
payment 1s received by all Government Entities pursuant to paragraph 2.

6. Other than payment of the Attorneys’ Fees Settlement Sum, each party to this
Agreement shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs.

7. Subject to the other provisions and limitations set out in this Agreement and
effective as of the receipt of the Total Payment Sum, Relator, on behalf of herself, and for her
heirs, successors, attorneys, agents, and assigns, hereby agrees to and shall release Stericycle,
and each of Stericycle’s respective past and present affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, divisions,
branches, departments, predecessors, successors, assigns, and the heirs, principals, employees,
associates, owners, stockholders, devises, agents, distributors, directors, officers, representatives,
insurers, attorneys, and predecessors and successors in interest from any and all claims that she
may have against Stericycle in her own right or that she brought in the Action for the Covered
Conduct, including but not limited to claims under the federal False Claims Act, 31 U.8.C. §§
3729-3733 and/or its state analogues.

In connection with the foregoing, Relator acknowledges that she is familiar with and
hereby waives and relinquishes any and all rights and benefits she may have under the laws of
any state, similar to and including Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which provides as
follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does
not know or suspect to existin his favor at the time of executing
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the release, which if known by him must have materially affected
his settlement with the debtor.

8. Within ten (10) business days of the Effective Date, Stericycle will provide the
Attorney General’s Offices in California, Florida, and New Jersey with sufficient contact
information of presently-known government custoruers in the respective State to allow them to
provide effective notice to each Affected Local Governmental Customer (“Contact
[nformation™). Within 45 business days of the date by which the Attorney General’s Offices in
California, Florida, and New Jersey receive the Contact Information, the Attorney General's
Offices in California, Florida, and New Jersey will provide to each Affected Local Governmental
Customer its check along with a letter or other notification that contains the following language
in boldface text: “By accepting and depositing the enclosed check within 60 days of its
issuance, you are consenting to the provisions of the enclosed Settlement Agreement,
including the provisions in paragraph 7 of the Agreement. If you do not deposit the
enclosed check within 60 days of its issuance, you will forfeit your pro rata share of the
settlement proceeds.” Rhode Island has received the Contact [nformation from Relator’s
counsel and will provide to each Affected Local Governmental Customer its check along with a
letter or other notification that contains the language cited above. Contemporaneous copies of
the notiftcation will be provided to Stericycle. Any amounts that an Affected Local
Governmental Customer does not timely deposit under this paragraph shall be retained by the
State where that Affected Local Governmental Customer is located.

9, Each Affected Local Governmental Customer in California, Florida, New Jersey
and Rhode Island will have 60 days of the 1ssuance of the check and letter or other notification

described in the above paragraph, to review the Notification, seek additional information, if
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needed, from the Attorney General’s Offices in those states, and decide whether to consent to the
settlement consistent with the terms set forth in paragraph 8 herein. An Affected Local
Governmental Customer’s failure to deposit the check within 60 days of its issuance will not
result in any increase in the pro rata share of the settlement funds to which any other Affected
Local Governmental Customer is entitled under the terms of this Agreement.

10.  Subject to the other provisions and limitations set out in this Agreement and
effective as of the receipt of the Total Payment Sum, Stericycle, for itself as well as for each of
Stericycle’s respective past and present affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, divisions, branches,
departments, predecessors, successors, assigns, and the heirs, principals, employees, associates,
owners, stockholders, devises, agents, distributors, directors, officers, representatives, insurers,
attorneys, and predecessors and successor in interest, does and hereby agrees to and does release
Relator, her heirs, successors, attorneys, agents, and assigns from any claim (including attorneys’
fees, costs, and expenses of every kind and however denominated) that Stericycle has asserted,
or could have asserted, or may assert in the future against Relator and her heirs, successors,
attorneys, agents, and assigns, including without limitation, claims related to the Covered
Conduct and the investigation and prosecution thereof.

In connection with the foregoing, Stericycle acknowledges that it is familiar with and
hereby waives and relinquishes any and all rights and benefits it may have under the laws of any
state, similar to and including Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which provides as
follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does
not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing
the release, which if known by him must have materially affected

his settlement with the debtor.

11, Relator and her counsel agree that all documents, data, or other information
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provided or produced to Relator by Stericycle in connection with or related to the Action, will be
(1) returned to counsel for Stericycle; or
(2) destroyed and Relator will certify in writing that all such information was
destroyed;
within thirly (30) days of the dismissal of the Action.

[2.  Documents provided or produced by Stericycle to the States of North Carolina and
Tennessee and the Commonwealths of Massachusetts and Virginia, will be treated as and kept
confidential to the extent provided by law.

13.  FEach party and signatory to this Agreement represents that it freely and voluntarily
enters into this Agreement without any degree of duress or compulsion.

14, This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Illinois. The exclusive
jurisdiction and venue for any dispute relating to this Agreement is the United States District
Court for the Northern District of [llinois.

15, This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement between the Parties. This
Agreement may not be amended except by written consent of each of the Parties.

16.  The undersigned counsel represent and warrant that they are £ Iy authorized (o
execute this Agreement on behalf of the person and entities indicated below.

17.  For purposes of construing this Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to
have been drafted by all Parties to this Agreement and shall not, therefore, be construed against
any Party for that reason in any subsequent dispute.

18.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which constitutes an
original and all of which constitule one and the same Agreement. Facsimiles of signatures shall
constitute acceptable, binding signatures for purposes of this Agreement.

PE

Page 7 of 10



Case: 1:08-cv-02390 Document #: 95-2 Filed: 01/11/16 Page 9 of 11 PagelD #:608 -

19. This Agreement is binding on Sterieycle's successars, tmnsfcrées, heirs, and
assigns.

20.  This Agrecment is binding on Relatar’s successars, transferees, heirs, and assigns.

2t.  The Parties agree that either Party may disclose this Agreement publicly, but all
other information r¢lated to this Action or this Agrecment that has nol been publicly filed or is
not a matter of public record is confidentiul and may not be disclosed by either of the Parties for -
aty reason, except as otherwise required by law or cowrt arder.

22. This Agreement is effective on the date the last party signs this Agreement

(“Effective Date™).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement,

JENNIFER . PEREZ

DATED: @&J’ ( (g 2015
(TERNIFER D. PERE7

paten: Octob S o015 (A, j@'

es T. Ratner
{Admitied pro hac vice)
P.0O. Box 1035
Woodstock, NY 12498
Tel.: (845) 68§8-5222
Email: jamestratner@yahoo.com
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DATED: Qg . QQ , 2015 MENZ BONNER KOMAR &

K N}GDBERG LLP

David A. Koenigsberg
(Admiited pro hac vice)
John R. Menz

444 Madison Avenue, 39" Floor

New York, New York 10022

Tel.s (212) 223-2100

Email: dkoenigsberg@mbkkiaw.com

DATED: ‘/% 2015 /é//‘{ W‘

Michael C. Rosenblat

Michael C. Rosenblat, P.C.

707 Skokie Boulevard, Suite 600
Northbraok, [ilinois 60062-2841
Tel.: (847) 480-2390

Email: mike@rosenblatlaw.com

Attarneys for Plaintiff-Relator
Jennifer Perez
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DATED: leaéy <g:zms

DATED: Oef%" § 2015

STERICYCLE, INC.

BY:

RIS

N E:
John Schetz
TITLE EVP an%General Counsei

mond 1. Etclfeverr?? Ei
(Admitted pro hac vice)

Cory D. Sinclair (ddmitted pro hac vice)
PARSONS BEHLE & LATIMER

201 South Main Street, Suite 1800

Salt Lake City, UT 84111

Telephone: (801) 532-1234

E-mail: REtcheverry@parsonsbehle.com
csinclair@parsonsbehle.com

and

Paul E. Chronis

Elinor L. Hart

Duane Morris LLP

190 S. LaSalle Street, Suite 3700
Chicago, Hlinois 60603

Telephone: (312) 499-6700

Email: PEChronis@duanemorrtis.com
EHart@duanemoiris.com

Counsel for Defendant Stericycle, Inc.
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News

Stericycle Settles for $28.5
million in Qui Tam Action;
Healthcare Whistleblower to
Collect $5.5 million

Written by Fraud Fighters // Blog.

Thie Northern District of lllinais
approved the $28.5 million final
settlerment of the action styled
US ex rel. v. Stericycfe, Inc., 1:08-
cv-02390 (N.D. i) earlier this
month. Stericycle, an
internaticnal medical waste
disposal company, was accused
of artificially inflating its prices
by 18% for its state and federal
government customers, totaling
to almost $12 million in
overcharges. Plaintiff-relator
Jennifer Perez will collect a $5.5

https:/www.fraudfighlers.net/stericycle-settles-for-28-5-million-in-qui-tam-action-healthcare-whistleblower-to-collect-5-5-million/
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million relator's share of the
settlement.

Stericycle, headquartered in
Lake Forest, lllinois, services
both government and private
customers. In the initial
complaint, Plaintiff-relator Perez
exposed Stericycle’s suspected
overpricing scheme, whereby it
purportedly withheld accurate
pricing data from potential
customers, and then added on
‘fuel and energy’ surcharges after
contracts had been finalized.
Fourteen states and the District
of Columbia were damaged by
Stericycle's alleged price-
inflation.

Perez served as a government
customer-relations specialist for
Stericycle from 2004 to 2008,
She became suspicious of
Stericycle’s billing practices in or
around 2006 when she first
noticed the periodic 18%
increases that were charged to
government accounts in advance
of services rendered.

Although the government
declined to proceed with the
Plaintiff-relator's False Claims
investigation, Perez and counsel
were undeterred in pursuing the
action. During the course of the
investigation, Perez and counsel
reviewed thousands of Stericycle
documents spanning over a ten-
year period. As a result, Perez's
relator's share reflects a larger
portion of the total settlement.
Typically, a whistleblower is
entitled to an award between
15% and 30% of the total

https:/Awww. fraudfighters.net/stericycle-settles-for-28-5-million-in-gui-tam-aclion-heal lhcare-whistleblower-to-collect-5-5-million/ 26
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amount recovered as a result of
the qui tam lawsuit.

Even though Stericycle’s alleged
deception cost the government
around $12 million, state and
federal entities will recover not
anly these losses, but substantial
additionat penalties. Under qui
tam law, the government is
allowed to collect up to three
times the alleged damages, plus
additional civil damages.

Stericycle’s suspected pricing
scheme is not unique,
Healtheare fraud, including
Medicare fraud, is one of the
most common types of False
Claims Act viclations. Other
examples of healthcare fraud
cases include billing for services
or supplies that were not
provided, or the submission of
improper Medicare and
Medicaid claims as a resuit of
aggressive off-label marketing of
name brand pharmaceutical
products.

If you have information about a
potential case involving a
company or individual
committing government
programs fraud, do not hesitate
to take action. You might be able
to bring your own qui tam
lawsuit under the False Claims
Act, acting as a whistleblower on
behalf of the US government.

Before filing your lawsuit, be
sure to consult with a qui tam
attorney familiar with the
intricacies of the False Claims Act
and government fraud cases, as
these attorneys are best

https:/Aww.fraudfighters.netistericycle-setlles-for-28-5-million-in-gui-tam-action-healthcare -whistieblower-10-collect-5-5-million/ 3/
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equipped to protect your rights
and help you secure your share
of any potential monetary
reward.

If you would like to consult with
one of our False Claims Act
attorneys, please fill out our
Confidential Case Evaluation
form, or call (202) 973-0500 to
speak with a lawyer at the law
office of Tycko & Zavareei LLP.

Begin Your Confidential Case
Evaluation

Information we will need to contact

Information about the company you
believe is committing fraud on the
government:

What type of products or services does the
company provide?

Whistleblower Lawyers, Stericycle Seftles for $28.5 million in Qui Tam Action; Heallhcare Whistleblower to Collect $5.5 million - Tycko & ...
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Are you current or former employee of the
company?

Information about the fraud:

Describe the froud in as much detail as you can,

Provide your best estimate of the amount of
money the company has received from the
government as a result of the fraud,

I'm not a robot
reCAPTCHA

Privacy - Terms
sSend

Browse by Category

Blog
Mewsletters

Browse by Topic

Government Programs Fraud
Securities and Commodities Fraud
Tax Fraud

Bank Industry Fraud
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

IN RE: STERICYCLE, INC., STERISAFE No. [:13-cv-05795
CONTRACT LITIGATION
MDL No. 2455

Judge Milton 1. Shadur

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Class Action Settlement Agreement and Release is entered into between and among
(1)} Lyndon Veterinary Clinic, PLLC, RESEARCHDX, LLC, Cochranton Veterinary Hospital,
Amores Dental Care, McMackin & Zimnoch, P.C., Madison Avenue Professional Building, and
Greater Hampstead Family Medicine, PC. (“Plaintiffs™) on behalf of themselves and as
representatives of the Class and (2) Defendant Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle™) in order to effect a
full and final settlement and dismissal with prejudice of all claims against Stericycle alleged in
the Actions comprising the multidistrict litigation proceeding known as In re: Stericycle, Inc.,
Sterisafe Contract Litigation, MDL No. 2455, Case No. 1:]13-cv-05795 (N.D. IlL.), on the terms
set forth below and to the full extent reflected herein. Capitalized terms shall have the meaning
ascribed to them in Section 1I of this Agreement.

1. RECITALS

WHEREAS, on April 3, 2013, Lyndon Veterinary Clinic, PLLC filed a class action
complaint in Lyndon Veterinary Clinic, PLLC v. Stericycle, Inc., No. 1:13-cv-02499 (N.D. 111),
alleging, among other things, that Stericycle engaged in (a) a practice of imposing Automated
Price Increases in violation of the contracts between Stericycle and its customers and (b) unfair
and deceptive acts or practices by misrepresenting or concealing material facts from its
customers regarding its pricing practices in violation of, infer alia, the Illinois Consumer Fraud
and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS § 505/1 et seq., and the Illinois Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practices Act, 815 ILCS § 510/2;

WHEREAS, on August 6, 2013, Lyndon Veterinary Clinic, PLLC v. Stericycle, Inc. was
consolidated for pretrial proceedings by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation with

additional class and individual actions alleging similar or identical claims, captioned /n re:
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Stericycle, Inc., Sterisafe Contract Litigation, MDL No. 2455, and pending before the Honorable
Milton I. Shadur in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois;

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2013, the Court entered an order appointing Hagens
Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP as interim lead counsel;

WHEREAS, on November 11, 2013, Plaintiffs filed the First Amended Consolidated
Complaint;

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2016, Plaintiffs filed the Second Amended Consolidated
Complaint alleging, among other things, that Stericycle engaged in (a) a practice of imposing
Automated Price Increases in violation of the contracts between Stericycle and its customers and
(b) unfair and deceptive acts or practices by misrepresenting or concealing material facts from its
customers regarding its pricing practices in violation of, inter alia, the Illinois Consumer Fraud
and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS § 505/1 et seq., and the Illinois Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practices Act, 815 ILCS § 510/2 or, in the alternative, the consumer protection
statutes of 26 additional states and seeking monetary damages, punitive damages and injunctive
and equitable relief;

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2017, the Court entered an order appointing Hagens
Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP as Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and certifying a nationwide class in this
matter consisting of ““All persons and entities that, between March 8§, 2003 through the date of trial
resided in the United States (except Washington and Alaska), were identified by Stericycle as “Small
Quantity” or “SQ” customer, and were charged and paid more than their contractually-agreed price
for Stericycle’s medical waste disposal goods and services pursuant to Stericycle’s Automated Price
Increase Poiicy. Governmental entities whose claims were asserted in United States ex rel. Perez v.

Stericycle Inc. shall be excluded from the class™;
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WHEREAS, on March 2, 2017, Stericycle filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the
Court’s order certifying the class, the consideration of which has been continued by the
agreement of the Parties to allow for settlement negotiations and which motion remains pending;

WHEREAS, as a result of extensive arm’s length negotiations, including multiple in-
person mediation sessions before Judge Wayne Andersen (Ret.) and numerous follow-up
negotiations in person, via email and by telephone, Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs” Class Counsel and
Stericycle have entered into this Agreement;

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel have conducted substantial discovery, have
investigated the facts and underlying events relating to the subject matter of the claims, have
carefully analyzed the applicable legal principles and have concluded, based upon their
investigation, and taking into account the risks, uncertainties, burdens and cests of further
prosecution of their claims and taking into account the substantial benefits to be received
pursuant to this Agreement as set forth below, which, in the view of the Plaintiffs and Plaimntiffs’
Class Counsel, is designed for the purpose of putting to rest all controversies with Stericycle that
were or could have been alleged or brought and that a resolution and compromise on the terms
set forth herein is fair, reasonable, adequate and in the best interests of the Plaintiffs and the
Class;

WHEREAS, Stericycle denies and continues to deny each and every allegation of
liability, wrongdoing and damages and further denies that the Action may be properly
maintained as a class action except for settlement purposes. Nonetheless, without admitting or
conceding any liability or damages whatsoever and without admitting any wrongdoing and
without conceding the appropriateness of class treatment for claims asserted in any future

complaint, Stericycle has agreed to settle the Action on the terms and conditions set forth in this
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Agreement solely to avoid the substantial expense, inconvenience, burden and disruption of
continued litigation;

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel represent and warrant that they are fully
authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of Plaintiffs and the Class and that Plaintiffs’
Class Counsel have consulted with and confirmed that all Plaintiffs fully support and have no
objection to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is agreed that this Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to be an
admission, concession or evidence of any violation of any federal, state or local statute,
regulation, rule or other law or principle of common law or equity or of any liability or
wrongdoing whatsoever by Stericycle or any of the Released Parties or of the truth or validity of
any of the claims that Plaintiffs have asserted;

NOW, THEREFORE, without any admission or concession by Plaintiffs or Plaintiffs’
Class Counsel of any lack of merit to their allegations and claims and without any admission or
concession by Stericycle of any liability or wrongdoing or lack of merit in its defenses on the
merits or to the propriety of class treatment of Plaintiffs’ claims in a non-settlement context, in
consideration of the mutual covenants and terms contained herein and subject to the final
approval of the Court, Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and Stericycle agree as follows:

I1. DEFINITIONS

A. As used in and solely for the purposes of this Agreement and the attached exhibits
(which are an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated in their entirety by reference),
the following terms have the following meanings, unless this Agreement specifically provides
otherwise:

1. “Action” or “Actions™ means all class, mass and individual actions, however

denominated, that were or will be transferred and consolidated for pretrial proceedings in the
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United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinots in In re: Stericycle, Inc.,
Sterisafe Contract Litigation, MDL No. 2455, Case No. 1:13-cv-05795, before the Honorable
Judge Milton I. Shadur, including but limited those listed in Exhibit 1 hereto.

2. “Actual Price” means the total amount paid by each Class Member during the
Class Period for Stericycle’s regulated medical waste disposal services, as reflected in
Stericycle’s customer transactional database and/or other documents.

3. “Agreement” means this Settlement Agreement and Release as well as the
exhibits attached hereto or incorporated herein, including any subsequent amendments and any
exhibits to such amendments.

4, “Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses” means such funds as may be awarded by the
Court to compensate any and all attorneys representing parties who claim to have assisted in
conferring benefits upon the Class, as described in Section I'V of this Agreement.

5. “Automated Price Increase” or “Automated Price Increase Policy” mean the
practice of increasing prices on Stericycle customers identified as “Small Quantity” or “SQ”
customers by fixed percentages or otherwise on a periodic basis.

6. “Challenged Pricing Practice” means the pricing practice alleged in the Action of
increasing prices on Stericycle customers identified as “Small Quantity” or “SQ” customers by
12%, 15% or 18% (depending on the time period) on a periodic basis. This definition does not
include price increases where the percentage increase is fixed in the contract.

7. “Claim” means the claim of a Class Member or his, her, or its representative.

8. “Class™ means, for settlement purposes only:

All persons and entities that, between March 8, 2003 through the date of

Preliminary Approval resided in the United States (except Washington and

Alaska), were identified by Stericycle as a “Small Quantity” or “SQ” customer,
and were charged and paid more than their Contractually Agreed Price for
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Stericycle’s medical waste disposal goods and services. Excluded from the class
are governmental entities whose claims were asserted and resolved in United
States ex rel. Perez v. Stericycle Inc. and any entities that have previously settled
similar claims with Stericycle and released those claims.

Members of the Class have been identified from Stericycle’s customer transaction database,
along with the Gross Compensation Basis for each member of the Class calculated using
Stericycle’s customer transaction database.

9. “Class Action Settlement Administrator’” means the third-party agent or
administrator agreed to by the Parties and appointed by the Court to implement the notice and
other settlement requirements of this Agreement including but not limited to issuing checks in
the appropriate amounts to each Class Member for that Class Member’s share of the Settlement
Fund, subject to the Court’s approval. The Parties agree that GCG, 1985 Marcus Ave., Lake

Success, NY 11042 shall serve as Class Action Settlement Administrator, subject to approval by

the Court.

10.  “Class Member” means a member of the Class who has not Opted Out of the
Class.

11, *Class Notice” means the notice program described in Section V.

12. “Class Period” means March 8, 2003 through the date of Preliminary Approval.

13, “Contractually Agreed Price” means the initial price charged to the member of the
Class pursuant to agreement between it and Stericycle, as reflected in Stericycle’s customer
transaction database. In the event of a price change not identified by Stericycle’s customer
transaction database as being the result of the Challenged Pricing Practice, that changed price
becomes the Contractually Agreed Price for purposes of calculating Gross Compensation Basis

for any later price changes as described in the definition of the term Gross Compensation Basis.
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14. “Contractually Allowed Price” means, solely for the purposes of this Agreement,
the initial price charged to Class Members, as reflected in Stericycle’s customer transaction
database, plus annual price increases of 8%.

15. “Court” means the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Illinots.

16. “Escrow Agent” means the entity proposed by the Parties and designated by the
Court to address and hold for distribution the funds identified in this Agreement pursuant to the
terms of an Escrow Agreement.

17. “Escrow Account” means the custodial or investment account administered by the
Class Action Settlement Administrator in which the funds to be deposited will be held, invested,
administered, and disbursed pursuant to this Agreement and an Escrow Agreement.

18.  “Escrow Agreement” means the agreement by and among Plaintiffs’ Class
Counsel, Stericycle’s Counsel and the Class Action Settlement Administrator with respect to the
escrow of the funds to be deposited into the Escrow Account pursuant to this Agreement.

19. “Fairness Hearing” means the hearing for the purposes of the Court determining
whether to approve this Agreement as fair, reasonable, and adequate.

20. “Final Effective Date” means the date on which the Final Order and/or Final
Judgment approving this Agreement becomes final. For purposes of this Agreement the Final
Effective Date will be:

a. The date on which the time to appeal therefrom has expired, if no
appeal has been taken from the Final Order and/or Final Judgment; or
b. The date on which all appeals therefrom, including petitions for

rehearing or re-argument, petitions for rehearing en banc and petitions for certiorari or any other
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form of review, have been finally disposed of in a manner that affirms the Final Order or Final
Judgment, if any appeal has been taken from the Final Order and/or Final Judgment; or
c. Any other date agreed to in writing by Plaintiffs” Class Counsel

and Stericycle’s Counsel.

21.  “Final Judgment” means the Court’s final judgment as described in Section IX.B
of this Agreement.

22, “Final Order” means the Court’s order approving the Settlement and this
Agreement, as described in Section IX.B of this Agreement.

23.  “Gross Compensation Basis” means the amount by which Plaintiffs alleged each
Class Member was charged over the Contractually Agreed Price. “Gross Compensation Basis”
is calculated as the difference between (a) the Actual Price each Class Member paid during the
Class Period, including price increases resulting from the Challenged Pricing Practice and (b) the
Contractually Allowed Price. If a Class Member received statement credits during the Class
Period, both the original transaction and any corresponding credit shall be excluded from the
Gross Compensation Basis. [f a Class Member received credits that cannot be matched with any
specific transaction, the Gross Compensation Basis shall be reduced by the amount of such
credits. The calculation of the “Gross Compensation Basis” shall take into account the total
amount by which Plaintiffs allege each Class Member was charged over the Contractually
Agreed Price during the Class Period. In the event of a price change that was not identified in
Stericycle’s customer transaction database as being the result of Stericycle’s Challenged Pricing
Practice, the resulting price becomes the new Contractually Agreed Price, and additional Gross

Compensation Basis will only accrue based on the new Contractually Agreed Price.
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24, “Long Form Notice” means the Long Form Notice substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

25. “Notice And Administrative Costs” means the reasonable and authorized costs
and expenses of effecting notice in accordance with this Agreement and the Preliminary
Approval Order and all reasonable and authorized costs and expenses incurred by the Class
Action Settlement Administrator in administering the Agreement, including but not limited to
costs and expenses associated with assisting Class Members, processing claims, escrowing
funds, issuing and mailing awards, paying taxes and tax expenses and other reasonable and
authorized fees and expenses of the Class Action Settlement Administrator.

26. “Notice Date” means the first day on which the Class Action Settlement
Administrator or its designee disseminates the Short Form Notice.

27. “Opt-Out’” means member of the Class who properly and timely submits a request
for exclusion from the Class as set forth in Section V1.

28. “Opt-Out List” means the list compiled by the Class Action Settlement
Administrator pursuant to Section VI, identifying those members of the Class who properly and
timely submits a request for exclusion from the Class.

29. “Opt-Out and Objection Date™ means the date, to be set by the Court, by which a
request for exclusion from the Class must be filed with the Class Action Settlement
Admuinistrator in order for a member of the Class to be excluded from the Class and the date by
which Class Members must file objections, if any, to the Settlement.

30. “Parties” means Plaintiffs and Stericycle, collectively, as each of those terms 1s

defined in this Agreement.
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31 “Plaintiffs” mean Lyndon Veterinary Clinic, PLLC, RESEARCHDX, LLC,
Cochranton Veterinary Hospital, Amores Dental Care, McMackin & Zimnoch, P.C., Madison
Avenue Professional Building, and Greater Hampstead Family Medicine, PC.

32.  “Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel” means counsel for Plaintiffs in the Actions, Hagens
Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP.

33, “Preliminary Approval Order” means the order to be entered by the Court
preliminarily approving the Settlement as outlined in Section IX of this Agreement.

34. “Release™ means the release and waiver set forth in Section VIII of this
Agreement and in the Final Order and Final Judgment.

35. “Released Parties” or “Released Party” means Stericycle and each of its past,
present and future parents, predecessors, successors, spin-offs, assigns, holding companies, joint-
ventures and joint-venturers, partnerships and partners, members, divisions, stockholders,
bondholders, subsidjaries, related companies, affiliates, officers, directors, employees, associates,
dealers, representatives, suppliers, vendors, advertisers, service providers, distributors and sub-
distributors, agents, insurers, attorneys, administrators and advisors. The Parties expressly
acknowledge that each of the foregoing is included as a Released Party even though not
identified by name herein.

36. “Service Awards” means such funds as may be awarded by the Court to Plaintiffs
to compensate them for their participation in the Action, as described in Section IV of this
Agreement.

37. “Service Location(s)” means the place(s), location(s), or address(es) where a
member of the Class received regulated medical waste disposal services from Stericycle during

the Class Period.
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38.  “Settlement” means the settlement set forth in this Agreement.

39. “Settlement Monitor” means the third-party agreed to by the Parties and
appointed by the Court to monitor the Settlement in accordance with Section III. The Parties
agree that Hon. Wayne Andersen (ret.) shall serve as the Settlement Monitor, subject to approval
by the Court.

40, “Short Form Notice” means the Short Form Notice substantially in the form as
attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

41. “SACC” means the Second Amended Consolidated Complaint filed in fn re:
Stericycle, Inc., Sterisafe Contract Litigation, MDL No. 2455.

42, “Stericycle” means Stericycle, Inc.

43. “Stericycle’s Counsel” means Mark S. Mester and Kathleen P, Lally of Latham &
Watkins LLP.

A. Other capitalized terms vsed in this Agreement but not defined in this Section
shall have the meanings ascribed to them elsewhere in this Agreement.

B. All terms defined in this Agreement have the definition asserted herein solely for
the purposes of this Agreement.

C. The terms “he or she” and “his or her” include “it” or *“its” where applicable.

D. The plural of any defined term includes the singular, and the singular of any
defined term includes the plural, as the case may be.

III. SETTLEMENT RELIEF

In consideration for the dismissal of the Actions with prejudice, as contemplated in this
Agreement, and for the full and complete Release, Final Order and Finat Judgment provided

below, Stericycle agrees to provide the following:
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A. Settlement Consideration. Pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein,
Stericycle agrees to pay the sum of two hundred ninety-five million U.S. dollars
($295.000.000.00) (the “Settlement Amount”). Stericycle’s payment of the Settlement Amount
shall be in full satisfaction of all Settlement costs including, without limitation, all payments to
Class Members, Notice and Administrative Costs, Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses, Service
Awards and Taxes. In no event shall Stericycle be obligated to contribute in excess of the
Settlement Amount for any aspect of this Settlement, except for the payment of the Settlement
Monitor’s costs and fees as described in Section I[1.E.4.

B. Establishment of Qualified Settlement Fund. The Parties shall move the Court
to establish and create a Qualified Settlement Fund, pursuant to Internal Revenue Code § 468B
and the Regulations issued thereto. Stericycle’s payment of the Settlement Amount, which
includes any amounts pre-paid for Notice and Administrative Costs pursuant to Section V. A,
shall be made by wire transfer into an Escrow Account, as warranted, established and controlled
consistent with and pursuant to an Escrow Agreement at a mutually-agreed upon bank. The
Escrow Agent shall invest this payment in short-term United States Agency or Treasury
Securities {or a mutual fund invested solely in such instruments), or in an account fully insured
by United States Government, and shall collect and reinvest any and all interest accrued thereon,
if applicable, unless interest rates are such that they would effectively preclude investment in
interest-bearing instruments as defined herein. All (i) taxes on the income of the Escrow
Account and (ii) expenses and costs incurred with taxes paid from the Escrow Account
(mcluding, without limitation, expenses of tax attorneys and accountants) (collectively, “Taxes™)
shall be timely paid out of the Settlement Amount and Escrow Account without prior order of the

Court. The Parties agree that the Escrow Agent shall be responsible for filing tax returns for the
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Qualified Settlement Fund and paying from the Escrow Account any Taxes owed with respect to
the Qualified Settlement Fund. The Parties hereto agree that the Escrow Account shall be treated
as a Qualified Settlement Fund from the earliest date possible, and agree to any relation-back
election required to treat the Escrow Account as a Qualified Settlement Fund from the carliest
date possible.

C. Cash Payment for Alleged Overcharges. The Class Action Settlement
Administrator will distribute the Settlement Amount from the Escrow Account in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement.

1. Within thirty (30) days of the Final Effective Date, Stericycle will deposit
into the Escrow Account the sum of $295,000,000, less any amounts previously paid for Notice
and Administrative Costs pursuant to Section V.A. A Class Member shall be entitled to a share
of the Settlement Fund if the Class Member has a Gross Compensation Basis of greater than $0.
In no event shall a Class Member receive more than one payment from the fund under this
Section, except that a Class Member with multiple Service Locations, whether billed separately
or together, may recover for each Service Location provided that the Class Member has an
aggregate Gross Compensation Basis across all Service Locations greater than §0.

2. A Class Member’s share of the Settlement Fund shall be determined as
follows: the Gross Compensation Basis for all Class Members will be added to become the
“Total Gross Compensatton Basis.” The Total Gross Compensation Basis will then be compared
to the “Net Settlement Fund” (i.e., the Settlement Fund less Notice and Administrative Costs,
Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses and Plaintiffs” Service Awards) in order to determine what
percentage of the Total Gross Compensation Basis is covered by the Net Settlement Fund. Each

Class Member’s Gross Compensation Basis will then be adjusted according to that percentage.
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By way of example only, if it is determined that the Net Settlement Fund will cover 60% of the
Total Gross Compensation Basis, each Class Member will receive 60% of their Gross
Compensation Basis,

D. Timing of Cash Payments. The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall use
its best efforts to begin to pay Class Members’ shares of the Settlement proceeds by 1ssuing a
check to each Class Member within one hundred eighty (180) days after the Final Effective Date.
The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall use 1ts best efforts to have completed the
payment to Class Members not later than two hundred seventy (270) days after the Final
Effective Date.

1. Check Cashing Deadlines & Reissuance. The checks mailed by the

Class Action Settlement Administrator to Class Members shall be valid for one hundred fifteen
(115) days, after which time the checks shall be void. Reissued checks witl be valid for ninety
(90) days from the reissue date.

2. Reminder Notices. Approximately ninety (90) days after the issuance

date of a check, a reminder notice will be sent by the Class Action Settlement Administrator to
Class Members who have not cashed their checks. The reminder notice shall inform the Class
Member of the following: (i) that a check was previously mailed to the Class Member; (i1) that
the deadline for cashing the check is one hundred fifteen (115) days from the issuance date of the
check; (1ii) if the Class Member no longer possesses the check, the Class Member can request 2
reissuance of the check if it timely notifies the Class Action Settlement Administrator; and (iv) if
the check is not cashed before the deadline the funds will be redistributed in accordance with this

Settlement Agreement.
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3. Redistribution of Unclaimed Settlement Proceeds. After all issued and

reissued checks have expired, the amounts of all uncashed checks will be returned to the Net
Settiement Fund, and any remaining proceeds from the Net Settlement Fund (“Remaining Net
Settlement Fund”) will be distributed as follows:

a. The Remaining Net Settlement Fund will first be used to pay any
remaining Notice and Administrative Costs.

b. Next, second distribution will be made to Class Members who
cashed their initial checks, provided that the cost of administering such a distribution is less than
50% of the Remaining Net Settlement Fund. Each eligible Class Member’s share of any second
distribution will be calculated in the same manner as the initial distribution was calculated (as set
forth in Section I11.C), except that only the Gross Compensation Basis for Class Members who
cashed their initial checks (less the amount each such Class Member was paid in the initial
distribution) shall be used in calculating the Total Gross Compensation Basis for the second
distribution.

C. [f the cost of administering such a second distribution is greater
than 50% of the Remaining Net Settlement Fund or if after a second distribution the Net
Settlement Fund has not been exhausted, the remainder of the Net Settlement Fund shall be
distributed as ¢y pres to such recipients that are agreed upon by the Parties and reported to the
Court. Any recipient of such funds shall be required to provide the Parties and the Court with

annual reports, and a final report, on the project(s) or service(s} funded by the ¢y pres award.
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E. Prospective Relief. Stericycle agrees to the following perspective relief;

1. Termination of Challenged Pricing Practice. Within sixty (60) days of

Preliminary Approval, Stericycle will discontinue the Challenged Pricing Practice for all Class
Member contracts still subject to such increases.

2. Capped Price Increases Following Preliminary Approval.

a. To the extent a Class Member has a contract that is still subject to
the Challenged Pricing Practice on the date of Preliminary Approval, Stericycle agrees not to
impose an annual price increase of more than 6% of the price in effect for such Class Members
on the date of Preliminary Approval. Stericycle will also be permitted to implement price
increases to cover non-controflable costs, including but not limited to taxes, fuel and regulatory
fees that can be documented and verified, but prior to imposing such costs on Class Members,
Stericycle will verify the sufficiency of such a cost increase with Hon. Wayne Andersen (ret.),
who will act as a monitor from the date of Preliminary Approval, through the Final Effective
Date and for a period of time of three (3) years from the Final Effective Date, subject to Section
HI.LE.4. below. Class Members subject to this subsection of the Agreement will otherwise
continue to be charged in accordance with their contracts until such time as those contracts are
either renegotiated or expire in accordance with their terms.

b. Class Members who, at any time, previously renegotiated their
contracts with Stericycle such that they are no longer subject to the Challenged Pricing Practice
on the date of Preliminary Approval and instead are being charged annual price increases that are
set forth in their contracts will continue to be charged in accordance with those contracts until

such time as those contracts are either renegotiated or expire in accordance with their terms.
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C. Except as modified in this Paragraph, all existing contracts
otherwise remain valid and enforceable on their terms.

3. Future Price Increases After The Final Effective Date. For a period of

three (3) years after the Final Effective Date, Stericycle agrees that all new contracts for SQ
customers, including any contracts for Class Members that are entered into upon the expiration
of the Class Member’s current contract, will comport with the following requirements:

a. The contract price will include the cost of service as well as all
fees and surcharges, except taxes and regulatory fees over which Stericycle has no control;

b. The contracts will allow Stericycle to impose an annual price
increase not to exceed 8%:;

C. The contracts will allow Stericycle to implement price increases to
cover non-controllable costs, including but not limited to taxes, fuel and regulatory fees that can
be documented and veritied, but prior to imposing such costs on Class Members, Stericycle will
verify the sufficiency of such a cost increase with Hon. Wayne Andersen (ret.), who will act as
Settlement Monitor from the date of Preliminary Approval, through the Final Effective Date and
for a period of time of three (3) years from the Final Effective Date, subject to Section IIILE.4.
below;

d. On the first page of the agreement, the contracts will identify
(1} the price of the contract and (11) the annual maximum price increase percentage; and

e. Nothing in this Agreement will prevent Stericycle and any given
Class Member from negotiating terms different from those set forth above, provided that
Stericycle initially offers the terms set forth above, This provision does not require Stericycle to

affirmatively renegotiate its contracts with any Class Member, which contracts otherwise remain
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in force and effect, but to the extent that a Class Member requests renegotiation of his, her or its
contracts upon the expiration of that contract, Stericycle will adhere to the terms set forth above.

4. Settlement Monitor and Additional Price Increase Criteria. Hon.

Wayne Andersen (ret.) will act as Settlement Monitor from the date of Preliminary Approval,
through the Final Effective Date and for a period of time three (3) years from the Effective Date.
The responsibilities of the Settlement Monitor, and the procedures governing the Settlement
Monitor’s activities shall be as follows:

a, The Settlement Monitor shall periodically (but at least once per
year) solicit and review such information from Stericycle as he reasonably deems necessary and
appropriate to ensure that Stericycle has (1) terminated the Challenged Pricing Practice within the
period provided for in this agreement, and/or has not re-started the Challenged Pricing Practice;
(1) appropriately capped price increases at 6% annually for Class Members with ongoing
contracts subject to the Challenge Pricing Practice at the time of Preliminary Approval; (iii)
appropriately capped price increases at §% annually for SQ customers enfering into new or
renewed Contracts with Stericycle and otherwise complied with the requirements of such
contracts set forth in this Agreement.

b. In addition to the foregoing, the Settlement Monitor shall promptly
review any proposals by Stericycle to implement price increases to cover non-controliable costs,
including but not limited to taxes, fuel and regulatory fees that can be documented and verified.
In considering such requests, the Settlement Monitor shall approve any such price increases only
if he finds that:

i Stericycle has sufficiently documented and verified increases of non-

controllable costs such as taxes, fuel and regulatory fees.
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1.

1il.

v,

additional rules:

11.

il
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Such non-controllable costs are properly attributed to Stericycle’s
provision of regulated medical waste disposal services to SQ customers.
The requested price increase is due to a non-controllable cost increase that
1s unusual, significant or unexpected, such that it would not have been
considered in a typical annual cost increase.

The requested price increase is not excessive in amount or duration, and/or
is subject to periodic review such that the requested price increase may be
reduced or eliminated in the event the non-controilable costs that justified
the price increase are reduced.

c. The Settlement Monitor shall be governed by the following

The Settlement Monitor shall include Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel in all
communications with Stericycle relating to the monitoring functions
described herein, and Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel shall receive copies of all
data and other submissions made by Stericycle to the Settlement Monitor,
which shall be treated as Confidential under the terms of the Agreed
Confidentiality Order entered in this case.

The Settlement Monitor may, at his discretion, request additional
information from Stericycle or seek the advice of independent consultants
to determine Stericycle’s compliance.

The Settlement Monitor may find Stericycle in compliance with the terms
of this Agreement, or may find that Stericycle is not in compliance and

order such remedial action as he may deem necessary.
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v. The Settlement Monitor may etther grant or deny Stericycle permission to
implement the price increases discussed in Section JILE.4.b.
v. Stericycle’s failure to comply with any decision, order, or instruction by
the Settlement Monitor shall be deemed a material breach of this
Agreement.
d. Stericycle shall pay the reasonable costs for the Settlement
Monitor’s services, including the cost of any independent consultants retained by the Settlement
Monitor in the performance of his duties above and beyond the amount paid into the Settlement
Fund.

5. Alfernative Dispute Resolution. Any disputes arising out of or relating to the

1ssues raised in the Actions between the time of Final Approval and the Final Effective Date that
are not otherwise resolved by the Agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in
accordance with the Federal Arbitration Act and as described fully in Exhibit 5 hereto. Any
arbitration pursuant to this provision will be solely between the Class Member and Stericycle,
class arbitratjon will not be permitted and no arbitration will be combined with another without
the prior written consent of all parties to all affected arbitrations or proceedings.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Plaintiffs® Class Counsel shall not be barred from seeking to
enforce this Agreement on behalf of the Class, and any such enforcement action shall not be
subject to arbitration under this paragraph.

IV.  ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES AND PLAINTIFFS’ SERVICE AWARDS

Al Plaintiffs will apply for reasonable Service Awards to be paid from the Settlement
Fund for the time and efforts spent by Plaintiffs in this matter. Plaintiffs will request Service
Awards equal to the greater of $5,000 or $100 per hour for time spent on the case for each

Plaintiff, each of whom was deposed in this matter and/or provided written and documentary
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discovery and other information as a result of their participation in the case as Plaintiffs. Any
such awards shall be subject to Court approval and will be paid from the Settlement Amount.
Stericycle will not object to or contest any awards made pursuant to the terms of this Paragraph.
Stericycle’s obligation, however, to pay any such awards shall be limited to the amounts set forth
in this Paragraph, and Stericycle shall be under no obligation to pay any amounts in excess of
those amounts.

B. Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel will apply to the Court for an award of Attorneys’ Fees
and Expenses from the Settlement Fund. Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel’s application shall not exceed
a total of forty million U.S. dollars (§40,000,000.00) in attorneys’ fees and up to two million
U.S. dollars ($2,800,000.00) in out-of-pocket expenses for time and expenses already incurred in
prosecuting this case and estimated time and expenses through the final implementation of this
Settlement Agreement. Any award of Class Counsel Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses from the
Settlement Fund shall be subject to Court approval and will be paid from the Settlement Amount.
Stericycle’s obligation, however, to pay any attorneys’ fees and expenses shall be limited to the
amounts set forth in this Paragraph, and Stericycle shall be under no obligation to pay any
amounts in excess of those amounts.

V. NOTICE TO THE CLASS
A. Settlement Notice and Claims Administration.

1. Notice and Administrative Costs, as agreed to by the Parties, will be paid
from the Settlement Fund. Stericycle agrees to pay $175,000.00 of the Settlement Fund into an
escrow account administered in accordance with the provisions of Section III.B of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days after Preliminary Approval for the sole purpose of paying

Notice and Administrative Costs. Stericycle shall make additional payments sufficient to cover
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any additional Notice and Administrative Costs as may be necessary before the Final Effective
Date.

2. If this Agreement does not for any reason achieve a Final Effective Date
or 1s otherwise rescinded, withdrawn, or abrogated before a Final Effective Date, then all
amounts that have been paid by Stericycle out of the Settlement Fund into Escrow pursuant to
Section II1.B above that are not necessary to pay Notice and Administrative Costs already
incurred shall be returned to Stericycle.

3. The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall use its best efforts to
send such Notices to the Class as are described in this Agreement, and as may be ordered by the
Court.

B. Components and Cost of Class Notice.

Class Notice will be accomplished through a combination of the Short Form Notices,
notice through the Settlement Website, Long Form Notice, and other applicable notice, each of
which is described below, as specified in the Preliminary Approval Order and this Agreement
and in order to comply with all applicable laws, including but not limited to, Fed. R. Civ. P. 23,
the Due Process Clause of the United States Constitution, and any other applicable statute, law or
rule.

C. Short Form Notices.

Beginning not later than tbirty (30) days after Preliminary Approval, the Class Action
Settlement Administrator shall send the Short Form Notices in postcard format, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit 4, by U.S. Mail, proper postage prepaid, to members of the
Class identified using Stericycle’s customer transaction database. In addition, the Class Action

Settlement Administrator shall: (1) re-mail any notices returned by the United States Postal
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Service with a forwarding address no later than the deadline found in the Preliminary Approval
Order and (2) by itself or using one or more address research firms, as soon as practicable
following receipt of any returned notices that do not include a forwarding address, research such
returned mail for better addresses and promptly mail copies of the applicable notice to any better
addresses so found. The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall complete the mailing of
Short Form Notices to class members no later than fifty-one (51) days after Preliminary
Approval.

D. Settlement Website.

The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall establish a Settlement Website that will
inform Class Members of the terms of this Agreement, their rights, dates and deadlines and
related information. The Settlement Website shall include, in .pdf format, materials agreed upon
by the Parties and/or required by the Court.

E. Long Form Notice. The Long Form Notice shall be in a form substantially
similar to the document attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2. The Long Form Notice shall be
avatlable on the Settlement Website, The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall send, via
first-class mail, the Long Form Notice to those persons who request it in writing or through the
toll-free telephone number.

F. Toll-Free Telephone Number. The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall
establish a toll-free telephone number that will provide Settlement-related information to
members of the Class,

G. Class Action Fairness Act Notice. The Class Action Settlement Administrator

shall send to each appropriate State and Federal official, the materials specified in 28 U.S.C.
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§ 1715 and otherwise comply with its terms. The identities of such officials and the content of
the materials shall be mutually agreed to by the Parties.
H. Duties of the Class Action Settlement Administrator.

l. The Class Action Settlement Administrator shall be responsible for,
without limitation: (a) printing, mailing or arranging for the mailing of the Short Form Notices;
(b) handling returned mail not delivered to members of the Class; (c) attempting to obtain
updated address information for any Short Form Notices returned without a forwarding address;
(d) making any additional mailings required under the terms of this Agreement; (e) responding to
requests for Long Form Notice; (f) receiving and maintaining on behalf of the Court any
correspondence from members of the Class regarding requests for exclusion and/or objections to
the Settlement; (g) forwarding written inquiries to Plaintiffs” Class Counsel or their designee for
a response, if warranted; (h) establishing a post-office box for the receipt of any correspondence;
(1) responding to requests from Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and/or Stericycle’s Counsel;

(j) establishing a website and toll-free voice response unit with message capabilities to which
Class Members may refer for information about the Actions and the Settlement; (k) fulfilling any
escheatment obligations that may arise; (1) consulting on Class Notice; and (m) otherwise
implementing and/or assisting with the dissemination of the notice of the Settlement.

2. If the Class Action Settlement Administrator fails to perform adequately
on behalf of Stericycle or the Class, the Parties may agree to remove the Class Action Settlement
Administrator. Under such circumstances, no Party shall unreasonably withhold consent to
removing the Class Action Settlement Administrator, but this event shall occur only after

Stericycle’s Counsel and Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel have attempted to resolve any disputes
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regarding the retention or dismissal of the Class Action Settlement Administrator in good faith,
and, if they are unable to do so, after the matter has been referred to the Court for resolution.

3. Subject to the approval of the Parties, the Class Action Settlement
Administrator may retain persons and/or entities necessary to assist in the completion of its
responsibilities.

4, Not later than thirty (30) days before the date of the Fairness Hearing, the
Class Action Settlement Administrator shall file with the Court a document detailing the scope,
method, and results of the notice program along with a list of those persons who have opted out
or excluded themselves from the Settlement.

5. The Class Action Settlement Administrator and the Parties shall promptly
after receipt provide copies of any requests for exclusion, objections and/or related
correspondence to each other.

VI. REQUESTS FOR EXCLUSION

A. Any member of the Class who wishes to be excluded from the Class must mail a
written request for exclusion to the Class Action Settlement Administrator at the address
provided in the Long Form Notice, postmarked no later than the date ordered by the Court,
specifying that he or she wishes to be excluded from the Settlement and otherwise complying
with the terms stated in the Long Form Notice and Preliminary Approval Order. The Class
Action Settlement Administrator shall forward copies of any written requests for exclusion to
Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and Stericycle’s Counsel. A list reflecting all requests for exclusion
shall be filed with the Court by the Class Action Settlement Administrator later than thirty (30)
days before the date of the Fairness Hearing. If a potential Class Member files a request for
excluston, he or she may not file an objection under Section VII. A member of the Class may

opt-out on an individual basis only. So-called “mass” or “class” opt-outs, whether filed by third
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parties on behalf of a “mass” or “class” of class members or multiple class members where no
personal statement has been signed by each and every individual class member, shall not be
allowed.

B. Any member of the Class who does not file a timely written request for exclusion
as provided in Section VI.A shall be bound by all subsequent proceedings, orders and judgments,
including, but not limited to, the Release, Final Order and Final Judgment in the Actions, even if
he, she or it has litigation pending or subsequently initiates litigation against Stericycle relating
to the claims and transactions released in the Actions. Stericycle’s Counsel shall provide to the
Class Action Settlement Administrator, within twenty (20) days of the entry of the Preliminary
Approval Order, a list of all counsel for anyone who has then-pending litigation against
Stericycle relating to ¢laims involving the pricing practices at issue and/or otherwise covered by
the Release.

C. Any member of the Class who institutes a lawsuit against Stericycle arising out of
or relating to the issues raised in the Actions and/or resolved by this Settlement between the time
of Preliminary Approval and Final Approval will be considered an Opt-Out. If that member of
the Class agrees to resolve his, her or its dispute through the Alternative Dispute Resolution
procedure discussed in Section ITLE.5, then he, she or 1t will no longer be considered an Opt-Qut
and will be able to participate in the Settlement.

VII. OBJECTIONS TO SETTLEMENT

A. Any Class Member who has not filed a timely written request for exclusion and
who wishes to object to the fairness, reasonableness, or adequacy of this Agreement or the
proposed Settlement, the award of Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses or the individual awards to the
Plaintiffs must deliver to Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and to Stericycle’s Counsel and file with the

Court on a date ordered by the Court a written statement of his or her objections. Any such
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objection shall include the specific reason(s), if any, for the objection, including any legal
support the Class Member wishes to bring to the Court’s attention, any evidence or other
information the Class Member wishes to introduce in support of the objections, a statement of
whether the Class Member intends to appear and argue at the Fairness Hearing, and the Class
Member(s) and all Service Locations to which the objection applies. Class Members may do so
either on their own or through an attorney retained at their own expense.

B. Any Class Member who files and serves a written objection, as described in the
preceding Section VII, may appear at the Fairness Hearing, either in person or through personal
counsel hired at the Class Member’s expense, to object to the fairness, reasonableness, or
adequacy of this Agreement or the proposed Settlement, or to the award of Attorneys’ Fees and
Expenses or the Service Awards to Plaintiffs. Class Members or their attorneys who intend to
make an appearance at the Fairness Hearing must deliver a notice of intention to appear to one of
Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel identified in the Class Notice and to Stericycle’s Counsel, and file said
notice with the Court, on a date ordered by the Court.

C. Any Class Member who fails to comply with the provisions of Sections VI or VII
above shall waive and forfeit any and all rights he or she may have to appear separately and/or to
object, and shall be bound by all the terms of this Agreement and by all proceedings, orders and
judgments, including, but not limited to, the Release, the Final Order and the Final Judgment in
the Actions. The exclusive means for any challenge to this Settlement shall be through the
provisions of this Section. Without limiting the foregoing, any challenge to the Settlement, Final
Approval Order or Final Judgment shall be pursuant to appeal under the Federal Rules of

Appellate Procedure and not through a collateral attack.
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D. Any Class Member who objects to the Settlement shall be entitled to all of the
benefits of the Settlement if this Agreement and the terms contained herein are approved, as long
as the objecting Class Member complies with all requirements of this Agreement applicable to
Class Members.

VIII. RELEASE AND WAIVER

A. The Parties agree to the following release and watver, which shall take effect
upon entry of the Final Order and Final Judgment.

B. In consideration of the Settlement, Plaintiffs and each Class Member, on behalf of
themselves and any other legal or natural persons who may claim by, through or under them,
agree to fully, finally and forever release, relinquish, acquit, discharge and hold harmless the
Released Parties from any and all claims, demands, suits, petitions, liabilities, causes of action,
rights, and damages of any kind and/or type regarding the subject matter of the Actions,
including, but not limited to, compensatory, exemplary, punitive, expert and/or attorneys’ fees or
by multipliers, whether past, present, or future, mature, or not yet mature, known or unknown,
suspected or unsuspected, contingent or non-contingent, derivative or direct, asserted or un-
asserted, whether based on federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, regulation, code,
contract, common law, or any other source, or any claim of any kind related arising from, related
to, connected with, and/or in any way involving the Actions, Stericycle’s practice or alleged
practice of imposing Automated Price Increases relating to the collection and disposal of waste
during the Class Pertod, Stericycle’s imposition of surcharges and/or fees during the Class
Period, in any manner that are, or could have been, defined, alleged or described in the SACC,

the Actions or any amendments of the Actions.
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C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Plaintiffs and Class Members are not releasing
claims relating to Stericycle’s performance of the obligations imposed upon it by virtue of this
Agreement, or its compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

D. The Final Order and Final Judgment will reflect these terms.

E. Plaintiffs and Class Members expressly agree that this Release, the Final Order,
and/or the Final Judgment is, will be, and may be raised as a complete defense to, and will
preclude any action or proceeding encompassed by, this Release.

F. Plaintiffs and Class Members shall not now or hereafter institute, maintain,
prosecute, assert, and/or cooperate in the institution, commencement, filing, or prosecution of
any suit, action, and/or proceeding, against the Released Parties, either directly or indirectly, on
their own behalf, on behalf of a class or on behalf of any other person or entity with respect to
the claims, causes of action and/or any other matters released through this Settlement.

G. In connection with this Agreement, Plaintiffs and Class Members acknowledge
that they may hereafter discover claims presently unknown or unsuspected, or facts in addition to
or different from those that they now know or believe to be true concerning the subject matter of
the Actions and/or the Release herein, Nevertheless, it ts the intention of Plaintiffs’ Class
Counsel and Class Members in executing this Agreement fully, finally and forever to settle,
release, discharge, and hold harmless all such matters, and all claims relating thereto which exist,
hereafter may exist, or might have existed (whether or not previously or currently asserted in any
action or proceeding) with respect to the Actions, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement.

H. Plainti{fs expressly understand and acknowledge, and all Plaintiffs and Class
Members will be deemed by the Final Order and Final Judgment to acknowledge and waive

Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, which provides that:
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A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER
FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF
KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS
OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.

Plaintiffs and Class Members expressly waive and relinquish any and all rights and benefits that
they may have under, or that may be conferred upon them by, the provisions of Section 1542 of
the California Civil Code, or any other law of any state or territory that is similar, comparable or
equivalent to Section 1542, to the fullest extent they may lawfully waive such rights.

1. Plaintiffs represent and warrant that they are the sole and exclusive owners of all
claims that they are releasing under this Agreement. Plaintiffs further acknowledge that they
have not assigned, pledged, or in any manner whatsoever, sold, transferred, assigned or
encumbered any right, title, interest or claim arising out of or in any way whatsoever pertaining
to the Actions, including without limitation, any claim for benefits, proceeds or value under the
Actions and that Plaintiffs are not aware of anyone other than themselves claiming any interest,
in whole or in part, in the Actions or in any benefits, proceeds or values under the Actions. Class
Members receiving payments from the Settlement Fund shall, by cashing the payment check,
represent and warrant therein that they are the sole and exclusive owner of all claims that they
are releasing under the Settlement and that they have not assigned, pledged, or in any manner
whatsoever, sold, transferred, assigned or encumbered any right, title, interest or claim arising
out of or in any way whatsoever pertaining to the Actions, including without limitation, any
claim for benefits, proceeds or value under the Actions, and that such Class Member(s) are not
aware of anyone other than themselves claiming any interest, in whole or in part, in the Actions
or in any benefits, proceeds or values under the Actions.

J. Without in any way limiting its scope, and, except to the extent otherwise

specified in the Agreement, this Release covers by example and without limitation, any and all
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claims for attorneys’ fees, attorneys’ liens, costs, expert fees, or consultant fees, interest, or
litigation fees, costs or any other fees, costs, and/or disbursements incurred by any attorneys,
Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel, Plaintiffs or Class Members who claim to have assisted in conferring
the benefits under this Settlement upon the Class.

K. In consideration for the Settlement, Stericycle and its past or present officers,
directors, employees, agents, attorneys, predecessors, successors, affiliates, subsidiaries,
divisions, and assigns shall be deemed to have, and by operation of the Final Approval Order
shall have, released Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and each current and former Plaintiffs from any
and all causes of action that were or could have been asserted pertaining solely to the conduct in
filing and prosecuting the litigation or in settling the Action.

L. Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and any other attorneys who receive
attorneys’ fees and costs from this Settlement acknowledge that they have conducted sufficient
independent investigation and discovery to enter into this Settlement Agreement and, by
executing this Settlement Agreement, state that they have not relied upon any statements or
representations made by the Released Parties or any person or entity representing the Released
Parties, other than as set forth in this Settlement Agreement.

M. The Parties specifically understand that there may be further pleadings, discovery
requests and responses, testimony, or other matters or materials owed by the Parties pursuant to
existing pleading requirements, discovery requests, or pretrial rules, procedures, or orders, and
that, by entering into this Agreement, the Parties expressly waive any right to receive, hear, or
inspect such pleadings, testimony, discovery, or other matters or materials.

N. Nothing in this Release shall preclude any action to enforce the terms of the

Agreement, including participation in any of the processes detailed heretn.
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0. Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs” Class Counsel hereby agree and acknowledge that the
provisions of this Release together constitute an essential and material term of the Agreement
and shall be included in any Final Order and Final Judgment entered by the Court.

IX. PRELIMINARY APPROVAL ORDER, FINAL ORDER, FINAL
JUDGMENT AND RELATED ORDERS

A, The Parties shall seck from the Court, within fourteen (14) days after the
execution of this Agreement, a Preliminary Approval Order. The Preliminary Approval Order
shall, among other things:

1. Preliminarily approve the Settlement;

2. Require the dissemination of the Notice and the taking of all necessary and
appropriate steps to accomplish this task;

3. Determine that the Class Notice complies with all [egal requirements,
including, but not limited to, Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 and the Due Process Clause of the United States
Constitution;

4. Schedule a date and time for a Fairmess Hearing to determine whether the
Settlement should be finally approved by the Court;

5. Require that members of the Class who wish to exclude themselves to
submit an appropriate and timely written request for exclusion as directed in this Agreement and
Long Form Notice and that a failure to do so shall bind those Class Members who remain in the
Class;

6. Require Class Members who wish to appear to object to this Agreement to
submit an appropriate and timely written statement as directed in the Agreement and Long Form

Notice;
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7. Require attorneys representing Class Members, at the Class Members’
expense, to file a notice of appearance as directed in this Agreement and Long Form Notice;

8. Issue a preliminary injunction and stay all other Actions in the MDL
pending final approval by the Court;

9. Issue a preliminary injunction enjoining potential Class Members, pending
the Court’s determination of whether the Settlement should be given final approval, from
challenging in any action or proceeding any matter covered by this Settlement, except for
proceedings in this Court to determine whether the Settlement will be given final approval;

[0.  Appoint the Class Action Settlement Administrator;

11.  Authorize Stericycle to take all necessary and appropriate steps to
establish the means necessary to implement the Agreement; and

12, Issue other related orders to effectuate the preliminary approval of the
Agreement.

B. After the Faimess Hearing, the Parties shall seek to obtain from the Court a Final
Order and Final Judgment. The Final Order and Final Judgment shall, among other things:

1. Find that the Court has personal jurisdiction over all Plaintiffs and Class
Members, that the Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims asserted in the SACC and
the Actions, and that venue is proper;,

2. Finally approve the Agreement and Settlement, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.

P. 23,

3. Finally certify the Class for settlement purposes only;
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4, Find that the notice and the notice dissemination methodology complied
with all laws, including, but not limited to, Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 and the Due Process Clause of the
United States Constitution;

3. Dismiss the Actions, including the Actions listed on Exhibit 1, with
prejudice and without costs (except as provided for herein as to costs);

6. Incorporate the Release set forth in the Agreement and make the Release
effective as of the date of the Final Order and Final Judgment;

7. Issue a permanent injunction enjoining Class Members from challenging
in any action or proceeding any matter covered by this Settlement;

8. Authorize the Parties to implement the terms of the Agreement;

9. Retain jurisdiction relating to the administration, consummation,
enforcement, and interpretation of the Agreement, the Final Order and Final Judgment, and for
any other necessary purpose; and

10.  Issue related Orders to effectuate the final approval of the Agreement and
its implementation.

X. MODIFICATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

Al Within fifteen (15) days after the occurrence of any of the following events and
upon written notice to counsel for all Parties, a Party shall have the right to withdraw from the
Settlement and terminate this Agreement:

1. If the Court fails to approve the Agreement as written or if on appeal the
Court’s approval is reversed or modified;

2. 1f the Court materially alters any of the terms of the Agreement, except
that a reduction in an award of Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses or Plaintiffs’ Service Awards shall

not be deemed to be a material alteration; or
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3. If the Preliminary Approval Order or the Final Order and Judgment is not
entered by the Court or is reversed or modified on appeal, or otherwise fails for any reason.
In the event of a withdrawal pursuant to this Paragraph, any certification of a Class for purposes
of settlement will be vacated, without prejudice to any Party’s position on the issue of class
certification and the amenability of the claims asserted in the Litigation to class treatment, and
the Parties shall be restored to their litigation position existing immediately before the execution
of this Agreement.

B. If members of the Class properly and timely submit requests for exclusion from
the Class as set forth in Section VI, thereby becoming Opt-Outs, and are in a number more than
the conftdential number submitted to the Court by the Parties under seal at the time of filing the
Motion For Preliminary Approval, then at its sole election, Stericycle may withdraw from the
Settlement and terminate this Agreement. In that event, all of Stericycle’s obligations under this
Agreement shall cease to be of any force and effect, and the Parties shall be restored to their
litigation position existing immediately before the execution of this Agreement. In order to elect
to withdraw from the Settlement and terminate this Agreement on the basis set forth in this
Paragraph, Stericycle must notify Class Counsel in writing of its election to do so within ten
business days after the Opt-Out List has been served on the Parties. In the event that Stericycle
exercises such right, Class Counsel shall have twenty (20) business days or such fonger period as
agreed to by the Parties to address the concerns of the Opt-Outs. If through such efforts the total
number of members of the Opt-Out List subsequently becomes and remains fewer than the
number of Class Members submitted to the Court under seal at the time of filing the Motion For
Preliminary Approval, Stericycle shall withdraw its election to withdraw from the Settlement and

terminate the Agreement. In no event, however, shall Stericycle have any further obligation
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under this Agreement to any Opt-Out unless such Class Member withdraws his/her request for
exclusion. For purposes of this Paragraph, Opt-Outs shall not include (1) persons who are
specifically excluded from the Class; (2) Class Members who elect to withdraw their request for
exclusion and (3) Opt-Outs who agree to sign an undertaking that they will not pursue an
individual claim, class claim or any other claim that would otherwise be a Released Claim as
defined in this Agreement.

C. In the event of withdrawal by Stericycle in accordance with the terms set forth in
Section X.A. and X.B. above, the Agreement shall be null and void, shall have no further force
and effect with respect to any Party in the Action and shall not be offered in evidence or used in
any litigation for any purpose, including the existence, certification or maintenance of any
proposed or existing class or the amenability of these or similar claims to class treatment. In the
event of such withdrawal, this Agreement and all negotiations, proceedings, documents prepared
and statements made in connection herewith shall be without prejudice to Stericycle, the
Plaintiffs and the Class Members and shall not be deemed or construed to be an admission or
confession in any way by any Party of any fact, matter or proposition of law and shall not be
used in any manner for any purpose, and the Parties to the Action shall stand in the same position
as 1f this Agreement had not been negotiated, made or filed with the Court.

XI. GENERAL MATTERS AND RESERVATIONS

Al Stericycle has denied and continues to deny each and all of the claims and
contentions alleged in the Actions and has denied and continues to deny that it has committed
any violation of law or engaged in any wrongful act that was alleged or that could have been
alleged in the Actions. Stericycle believes that it has valid and complete defenses to the claims
asserted against it in the Actions and denies that it committed any violations of law, engaged in

any unlawful act or conduct or that there is any basis for liability for any of the claims that have
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been, are or might have been alleged in the Actions. Without in any way limiting the scope of
this denial, Stericycle denies that its pricing practices were, are or have been in violation of its
contracts with any customers or with the laws of any state. Nonetheless, Stericycle has
concluded that it is desirable that the Actions be fully and finally settled in the matter and upon
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

B. The obligation of the Parties to conclude the proposed Settlement is and shall be
contingent upon each of the following:

1. Entry by the Court of the Final Order and Final Judgment approving the
Settlement, from which the time to appeal has expired or which has rematned unmodified after
any appeal(s); and

2. Any other conditions stated in this Agreement.

C. The Parties and their counsel agree to keep the existence and contents of this
Agreement confidential until the date on which the Motion for Preliminary Approval is filed;
provided, however, that this Section shall not prevent (1) Stericycle from disclosing such
information, prior to the date on which the Motion for Preliminary Approval is filed, to state and
federal agencies, independent accountants, actuaries, advisors, financial analysts, insurers or
attorneys; (2) Stericycle from disclosing such information based on the substance of this
Agreement; and/or (3) the Parties and their counsel from disclosing such information to persons
or entities (such as experts, courts, co-counsel, and/or administrators) to whom the Parties agree
disclosure must be made in order to effectuate the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

D. Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs” Class Counsel agree that the confidential information
made available to them solely through the settlement process was made available, as agreed to,

on the condition that neither Plaintiffs nor their counsel may disclose it to third parties (other
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than experts or consultants retained by Plaintiffs in connection with the Actions); that it not be
the subject of public comment; that it not be used by Plaintiffs or Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel in any
way in this litigation or otherwise should the Settlement not be achieved, and that it is to be
returned if a Settlement is not concluded; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall
prohibit Plaintiffs from seeking such information through formal discovery if not previously
requested through formal discovery or from referring to the existence of such information in
connection with the Settlement of the Actions.

E. Information provided by Stericycle or Stericycle’s Counsel to Plaintiffs,
Plaintiffs” Class Counsel, any individual Class Member, counsel for any individual Class
Member and/or administrators, pursuant to the negotiation and implementation of this
Agreement, includes trade secrets and highly confidential and proprietary business information
and shall be deemed “Highly Confidential” pursuant to the protective orders that have been or
will be entered in the Actions, and shall be subject to all of the provisions thereof. Any materials
inadvertently produced shall, upon Stericycle’s request, be promptly retumed to Stericycle’s
Counsel, and there shall be no implied or express waiver of any privileges, rights and defenses.

F. Within ninety (90) days after the Final Effective Date (unless the time is extended
by agreement of the Parties), Plaintiffs” Class Counsel and any expert or other consultant
employed by them in such capacity or any other individual with access to documents provided
by Stericycle and/or its Counsel, to Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel shall either: (1) return to
Stericycle’s Counsel all such documents and materials (and all copies of such documents in
whatever form made or maintained) produced during the settlement process by Stericycle and/or
its Counsel, and any and all handwritten notes summarizing, describing or referring to such

documents; or (2) certify to Stericycle’s Counsel that all such documents and materials (and all
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copies of such documents in whatever form made or matntained) and any and all handwritten
notes surmmarizing, describing or referring to such documents have been destroyed, provided,
however, that this Section shall not apply to any documents made part of the record
connection with a Claim, nor to any documents made part of a Court filing, nor to Plaintiffs’
Class Counsel’s work product.

G. Six (6} months after the distribution of the settlement funds to Class Members, the
Class Action Settlement Administrator shall return or destroy all documents and materials to
Stericycle and/or its Counsel and/or Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel that produced the documents and
materials, except that it shall not destroy any and all information and/or documentation submitted
by Class Members, Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any confidentiality order or
protective order in the Action.

H. Stericycle’s execution of this Agreement shall not be construed to release — and
Stericycle expressly does not intend to release — any claim Stericycle may have or make against
any insurer for any cost or expense incurred in connection with this Settlement, including,
without limitation, for attorneys’ fees and costs.

1. Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel represent that: (1) they are authorized by the Plaintiffs
to enter into this Agreement with respect to the claims in these Actions; and (2) they are seeking
to protect the interests of the Class.

J. Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel further represent that the Plaintiffs: (1) have agreed to
serve as representatives of the Class proposed to be certified herein; (2) are willing, able, and
ready to perform all of the duties and obligations of representatives of the Class, including, but
not limited to, being involved in discovery and fact finding; (3) have read the pleadings in the

Actions, including the SACC, or have had the contents of such pleadings described to them;
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(4) are familiar with the results of the fact-finding undertaken by Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel;

(5) have been kept apprised of settlement negotiations among the Parties, and have either read
this Agreement, including the exhibits annexed hereto, or have received a detailed description of
it from Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and they have agreed to its terms; (6) have consulted with
Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel about the Actions and this Agreement and the obligations imposed on
representatives of the Class; (7) have authorized Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel to execute this
Agreement on their behalf; and (8) shall remain and serve as representatives of the Class until the
terms of this Agreement are effectuated, this Agreement is terminated in accordance with its
terms, or the Court at any time determines that said Plaintiffs cannot represent the Class.

K. The Parties acknowledge and agree that no opinion concerning the tax
consequences of the proposed Settlement to Class Members is given or will be given by the
Parties nor are any representations or warranties in this regard made by virtue of this Agreement.
Each Class Member’s tax obligations, and the determination thereof, are the sole responsibility
of the Class Member, and it is understood that the tax consequences may vary depending on the
particular circumstances of each individual Class Member.

L. Stericycle represents and warrants that the individual(s) executing this Agreement
1s authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of Stericycle.

M. This Agreement, complete with its exhibits, sets forth the sole and entire
agreement among the Parties with respect to its subject matter, and it may not be altered,
amended, or modified except by written instrument executed by Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and
Stericycle’s Counsel. The Parties expressly acknowledge that no other agreements,
arrangements or understandings not expressed in this Agreement exist among or between them

and that in deciding to enter into this Agreement, they rely solely upon their judgment and
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knowledge. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, understandings, or undertakings
(written or oral) by and between the Parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.

N. This Agreement and any amendments thereto shall be governed by and
interpreted according to the law of the State of Illinois notwithstanding its conflict of law
provisions.

0. Any disagreement and/or action to enforce this Agreement shall be commenced
and maintained only in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois.

P. Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel and all other counsel of record for Plaintiffs
and Stericycle’s Counsel hereby agree not to issue any press releases regarding this Settlement or
publicize it in any way and further agree not to engage in any communications with the media or
the press, on the intemnet, or in any public forum, orally or in writing, that relate to this
Settlement or the Litigation other than statements that are fully consistent with the Class Notice.

Q. Whenever this Agreement requires or contemplates that one of the Parties shall or
may give notice to the other, notice shall be provided by e-mail and/or next-day (excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and Federal Holidays) express delivery service as follows:

1. If to Stericycle, then to:

Mark S. Mester, Esq.

Kathleen P. Lally, Esq.

Latham & Watkins LLP

330 North Wabash Avenue, Suite 2800
Chicago, llinois 60611

Telephone: 312-876-7700

Facsimile: 312-993-9767

Stericycle, Inc.

Attn. General Counsel

28161 N Keith Drive

Lake Forest, Illinois 60045
Telephone: 847-367-5910
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If to Plaintiffs, then to:

Steve W, Berman, Esq.

Garth D. Wojtanowicz, Esq.
Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP
1918 Eighth Avenue, Suite 3300
Seattle, Washington 98101
Telephone: 206-623-7292
Facsimile: 206-623-0594

R. All time periods set forth herein shall be computed in calendar days unless
otherwise expressly provided. In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed by this
Agreement or by order of the Court, the day of the act, event, or default from which the
designated period of time begins to run shall not be included. The last day of the period so
computed shall be included, unless it is a Saturday, a Sunday or a Federal Holiday, or, when the
act to be done is the filing of a paper in court, a day on which weather or other conditions have
made the office of the clerk of the court inaccessible, in which event the period shall run until the
end of the next day that is not one of the aforementioned days. As used in this Section, “Federal
Holiday” includes New Year’s Day, Birthday of Martin Luther King, Jr., Presidents’ Day,
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans Day, Patriot’s Day,
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and any other day appointed as a holiday by the President,
the Congress of the United States or the Clerk of the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Itlinois.

S. The Parties reserve the right, subject to the Court’s approval, to agree to any
reasonable extensions of time that might be necessary to carry out any of the provisions of this
Agreement.

T. The Class, Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel, Stericycle and/or Stericycle’s
Counsel shall not be deemed to be the drafter of this Agreement or of any particular provision,

nor shall they argue that any particular provision should be construed against its drafter. All
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Parties agree that this Agreement was drafted by counsel for the Parties during extensive arm’s
length negotiations. No parol or other evidence may be offered to explain, construe, contradict,
or clarify its terms, the intent of the Parties or their counsel, or the circumstances under which
this Agreement was made or executed.

U. The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that this Agreement and its exhibits,
along with all related drafts, motions, pleadings, conversations, negotiations, and
correspondence, constitute an offer of compromise and a compromise within the meaning of
Federal Rule of Evidence 408 and any equivalent rule of evidence in any state. In no event shall
this Agreement, any of its provisions or any negotiations, statements or court proceedings
relating to its provisions in any way be construed as, offered as, received as, used as, or deemed
to be evidence of any kind in the Actions, any other action, or in any judicial, administrative,
regulatory or other proceeding, except in a proceeding to enforce this Agreement or the rights of
the Parties or their counsel. Without [imiting the foregoing, neither this Agreement nor any
refated negotiations, statements, or court proceedings shall be construed as, offered as, received
as, used as or deemed to be evidence or an admission or concession of any liability or
wrongdoing whatsoever on the part of any person or entity, including, but not limited to, the
Released Parties, Plaintiffs, or the Class or as a waiver by the Released Parties, Plaintifts or the
Class of any applicable privileges, claims or defenses.

V. Plaintiffs expressly affirm that the allegations contained in the SACC were made
in good faith, but consider it desirable for the Actions to be settled and dismissed because of the

substantial benefits that the proposed settlement will provide to Class Members.
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W. The Parties, their successors and assigns, and their counsel undertake to
implement the terms of this Agreement in good faith, and to use good faith in resolving any
disputes that may arise in the implementation of the terms of this Agreement.

X. The waiver by one Party of any breach of this Agreement by another Party shall
not be deemed a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach of this Agreement,

Y. If one Party to this Agreement considers another Party to be in breach of its
obligations under this Agreement, that Party must provide the breaching Party with written
notice of the alleged breach and provide a reasonable opportunity to cure the breach before
taking any action to enforce any rights under this Agreement.

Z. The Parties, their successors and assigns, and their counse] agree to cooperate
fully with one another in seeking Court approval of this Agreement and to use their best efforts
to effect the prompt consummation of this Agreement and the proposed Settlement.

AA. This Agreement may be signed with a facsimile signature and in counterparts,
each of which shall constitute a duplicate original.

BB. Inthe event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall
for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision if Stericycle, on behalf of
Defendants, and Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel, on behalf of Plaintiffs and Class Members, mutually
agree in writing to proceed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been
included in this Agreement. Any such agreement shall be reviewed and approved by the Court

before it becomes effective.

Agreed to on the date indicated below.
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY. K&~ DATE: =41 5| [ .
STEVE W. BERMAN :

HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP

PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
MARK S. MESTER
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

STERICYCLE COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.

DEFENDANT

BY: DATE:

LYNDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:
RESEARCHDX, LLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:
GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:
JOSEPH G. SAUDER

MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP

COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY

HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAIL CARE, MCMACKIN &

ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE

PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY: DATE:
COCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY: DATE:

STEVE W. BERMAN
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP
PLAINTIFES’ CLASS COUNSEL

BY: s DATE: October 17,2017

MARK S. STE
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

STERICYCLE COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.

DEFENDANT

BY: DATE:

LYNDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

RESEARCHDX, LLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

JOSEPH G. SAUDER
MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP
COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY
HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &
ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE
PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY: DATE:

COCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY:

STEVE W. BERMAN
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP
PLAINTIFFS® CLASS COUNSEL

BY:

MARK §. MESTER
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP
STERICYCLE COUNSEL

o, AW H—

STERICYCLE, INC.
DEFENDANT

BY:

'LYNDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY:

RESEARCHDX, LLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY:

.GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.

PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY:

JOSEPH G. SAUDER
MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP
COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY

HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &

ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE
PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY:

-COCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY: ‘ DATE:
STEVE W. BERMAN

HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP

PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
MARK §. MESTER

LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

STERICY CLE COUNSEL

BY: ' DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.

DEFENDANT

/ ( A»/ 2 DATE.__ /2. /)3 %7
7

DON’ VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:
RESEARCHDX, LLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:
GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:
JOSEPH G. SAUDER

MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP

COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY

HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &

ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE

PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY: DATE:
COCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY: DATE:

STEVE W. BERMAN
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP
PLAINTIFFS® CLASS COUNSEL

BY: DATE:

MARK S. MESTER
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP
STERICYCLE COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.

DEFENDANT

BY: DATE:

LYNDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFE AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

o DATE: /D/’S 289,
{1.’{.’ 7 / r

} )
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

JOSEPH G. SAUDER
MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP
COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY
HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &
ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE
PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY: DATE:

bOCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY: DATE:

"STEVE W. BERMAN
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP
PLAINTIFES’ CLASS COUNSEL

BY: DATE:

MARK S. MESTER
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

STERICYCLE COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.,

DEFENDANT

BY: DATE:

LYNDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFE AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

RESEARCHDX, LLC,
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

7 e /7} i, D.O

; ;q; s /Thomas Cammiller, D. DATE: //’/7_/7
GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

JOSEPH G. SAUDER
MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP
COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY
HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &
ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE
PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY: DATE:

bOCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CILASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY: DATE:

"STEVE W. BERMAN
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP
PLAINTIFES’ CLASS COUNSEL

BY: DATE:

MARK S. MESTER
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

STERICYCLE COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.

DEFENDANT

BY: DATE;:

LY’NDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

RESEARCHDX, LLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

.GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: Oﬂgfgi& DATE: /cg//}j//‘7

JOSEPHG. SAUDER
M WRIGHT AREVALO LLP
COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY
HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &
ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE
PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

BY: DATE:

COCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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APPROVED AND AGREED TO BY:

BY: DATE:

"STEVE W. BERMAN
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO LLP
PLAINTIFES’ CLASS COUNSEL

BY: DATE:

MARK S§. MESTER
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

STERICYCLE COUNSEL

BY: DATE:
STERICYCLE, INC.

DEFENDANT

BY: DATE:

LYNDON VETERINARY CLINIC, PLLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

RESEARCHDX, LLC
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

.GREATER HAMPSTEAD FAMILY MEDICINE, PC.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

JOSEPH G. SAUDER
MCCUNE WRIGHT AREVALO LLP
COUNSEL TO COCHRANTAN VETERINARY
HOSPITAL, AMORES DENTAL CARE, MCMACKIN &
ZIMNOCH, P.C., AND MADISON AVENUE
PROFESSIONAL BUILDING

DocuSigned by:
BY:_E'W’\ ;;A? f/z/af/‘/&‘_ DATE: 10/14/2017

B32580EEF508CAED. ..

COCHRANTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

_45 .
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DocuSigned by:
By [Df-4 DaTE. 1071472017

FEOD7A521047 4E=

AMORES DENTAL CARE
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

MCMACKIN & ZIMNOCH, P.C.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

MADISON AVENUE PROFESSIONAL BUILDING
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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BY: DATE:

AMORES DENTAL CARE
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

DocuSigned by:
DAVID SVATOS
E DATE: 10/13/2017

— 27BEAFG7IFSFACO.

MCMACKIN & ZIMNOCH, P.C.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

MADISON AVENUE PROFESSIONAL BUILDING
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE
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BY: DATE:

AMORES DENTAL CARE
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

BY: DATE:

MCMACKIN & ZIMNOCH, P.C.
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

DocuSigned by:

Kéfa?u«, Tlomics

10/16/2017
BY:_\__ossecenanzsaro . DATE: /16/

MADISON AVENUE PROFESSIONAL BUILDING
PLAINTIFF AND CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

46 -



ADA. American Dental Association®

America’s leading advocate for oral health

ADANews

Current

Issue

$295 million settlement reached in Stericycle class

action
October 27, 2017

By Kelly Sederlund

A $295 million settlement has been reached on behalf of a nationwide class of
Stericycle customers, following a class-action lawsuit accusing the company of
engaging in a price-increasing scheme that automatically inflated customers' bills up
to 18 percent biannually, according to a news release from Hagens Berman, the
Chicago-based law firm that represented the class.

The U.S. District Court for the Northern District of lllinois on Oct, 26 granted
preliminary approval for the settlement. The fairness hearing for final approval is
scheduled for Feb. 21, 2018.

The class included more than 246,000 dentists, veterinarians and other small
business owners across the country. After the settlement receives final approval,
Hagens Berman will make information available for dentists and others who have
contracted with Stericycle on how to check their eligibility for the settlement and any
other next steps. The ADA News will also provide information and coverage.

In July 20186, the ADA News detailed reports from dentists nationwide who felt
aggravated and deceived at how the Lake Forest, lllincis-based medical waste
disposal company was doing business. These dentists reported escalating fees that
were not explicitly stated in their original contracts and contracts that automatically
renewed with onty a small window to cancel before it re-upped for several more
years.

Under the settlement agreement, Stericycle will discontinue the pricing practices at
the core of the lawsuit within 80 days of preliminary approval by the court.
Stericycle's compliance with the settlement terms will be monitored for three years
by a retired federa! district judge.

The settlement agreement affects Stericycle customers that had flat-fee Steri-Safe or
variable transactional medical waste disposal contracts with Stericycle and were
sUbjected to the disputed price increases, which the lawsuit states were as much as
18 percent, twice per year.



These small businesses affected by the price increases were identified by Stericycle
as "small quantity" customers. When these SQ customers called to complain about
the price increases, according to the lawsuit, they were given false reasons for the
price increases by Stericycle's customer service representatives. According to the
suit, those accounts made up 97 percent of Stericycle's customers worldwide.

In 2013, an investigation of Stericycle's billing software found Steri-Safe customers’
price increases were programmed {o occur regularly as often as every six months,
which plaintiffs alleged was contrary to the contract terms that Stericycle had agreed
to, according 1o court documents.

The contracts state that increases can occur only when "operational changes” are
implemented "to comply with documented changes in the law" or to "address cost
escalation.” According to the complaint, Stericycle's billing software automatically
boosted customers’ rates, regardless of any actual increases in Stericycle's cosis,
according to court documents.

To learn more about the class-action lawsuit against Stericycle, visit
hbsslaw.com/cases/stericycle.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

Inre Stericycle, Inc. Securities Litigation Civ. A. No. 1:16-cv-07145
Hon. Andrea R. Wood

CLASS ACTION

ECF CASE

STIPULATION AND AGREEMENT OF SETTLEMENT

This Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement, dated as of February 14, 2019 (the
“Stipulation™) is entered into between (a) the Public Employees’” Retirement System of Mississippi
(“Mississippi”) and the Arkansas Teacher Retirement System (““Arkansas Teacher™) (collectively,
“Lead Plaintiffs”), on behalf of themselves and the Settlement Class (defined below);
(b) defendant Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle” or the “Company™); (¢) defendants Charles A. Alutto,
Dan Ginnetti, Brent Arnold, Frank ten Brink, and Richard Kogler (collectively, the “Officer
Defendants™); (d) defendants Mark C. Miller, Jack W. Schuler, Lynn Dorsey Bleil, Thomas D.
Brown, Thomas F. Chen, Rodney F. Dammeyer, William K. Hall, John Patience, and Mike S.
Zafirovski (collectively, the “Director Defendants” and, together with Stericycle and the Officer
Defendants, the “Stericycle Defendants™); and (e) defendants Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith Incorporated, Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC (f’/k/a Goldman, Sachs & Co.), J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, HSBC Securities (USA) Inc., MUFG Securities Americas Inc. (f/k/a Mitsubishi
UFJ Securities (USA), Inc.), Santander Investment Securities Inc., SMBC Nikko Securities
America, Inc., and U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc. (collectively, the “Underwriter Defendants™
and, together with the Stericycle Defendants, the “Defendants™), and embodies the terms and

conditions of the settlement of the above-captioned action (the “Action™). Subject to the approval
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of the Court and the terms and conditions expressly provided herein, this Stipulation is intended
to fully, finally, and forever compromise, settle, release, resolve, and dismiss with prejudice the
Action and all Released Plaintiffs’ Claims (defined below) against Defendants.

WHEREAS:

A. On July 11, 2016, a class action complaint was filed in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of lllinois, Eastern Division (the “Court™), styvled St. Lucie County
Fire District Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund, et al., v. Stericycle, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:16-cv-
07145 (ECF No. 1). An amended class action complaint was filed in the Court on August 4, 2016
(ECF No. 5), and a corrected amended class action complaint was filed in the Court on October
21,2016 (ECF No. 41).

B. By Order dated October 31,2016 (ECF No. 43), the Court: (i} ordered that the case
be captioned as In re Siericycle, Inc. Securities Litigation, Master File No. 1:16-cv-7145 (the
“Action”) and that any subsequently filed, removed, or transferred actions that are related to the
claims asserted in the Action be consolidated for all purposes; (i) appointed Mississippi and
Arkansas Teacher as Lead Plaintiffs for the Action; and (iii) approved Lead Plaintiffs’ selection of
Bernstein Litowitz Berger & Grossmann LLP as Lead Counsel for the class.

C. On February 1, 2017, Lead Plaintiffs filed a Class Action Complaint for Violations
of the Federal Secunties Laws (the “CAC”) (ECF No, 50) asserting: (i) claims under § 10(b) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, against Defendant
Stericycle and the Officer Defendants; (i1) claims under § 20(a) of the Exchange Act against the
Officer Defendants; (iii) claims under § 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act™)
against Defendant Stericycle, the Director Defendants, the Underwriter Defendants, and

Defendants Charles A. Alutto and Dan Ginnetti; (iv) claims under § 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act
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against the Underwriter Defendants; and (v) claims under § 15 of the Securities Act against the
Director Defendants and Defendants Charles A. Alutto, Dan Ginnetti, and Brent Amold. The
claims under §§ 11 and 12(a)}(2) of the Securities Act related to Stericycle’s September 2015
offering of depositary shares. Among other things, the CAC alleged that throughout the alleged
class period (February 7, 2013 through September 18, 2016, inclusive), Stericycle made a series
of materially false and misleading statements and omissions regarding its alleged practice of
automatically and improperly raising the rates charged to Stericycle’s small quantity (“SQ”)
customers without any advance notice to such customers. The CAC also alleged that Stericycle
made materially false and misleading statements about the reasons for the Company’s growth,
while knowingly or recklessly disregarding that such growth was attributable to the allegedly
improper automatic rate increases. The CAC alleged that certain of the alleged materially false
statements were also set forth in the offering materials for Stericycle’s September 2015 offering
of depositary shares. The CAC further alleged that the prices of publicly-traded Stericycle
commeon stock and publicly-traded Stericycle depositary shares were artificially inflated as a result
of Defendants’ allegedly false and misleading statements, and declined when the truth was
revealed.

D. On Aprl 3, 2017, Defendants filed a motion to dismiss the CAC and a supporting
memorandum of law (ECF Nos. 54-55). On May 19, 2017, Lead Plaintiffs filed their opposition
to Defendants’ motion to dismiss (ECF Nos. 58-60) and, on June 19, 2017, Defendants filed their
reply memorandum of law in further support of their motion to dismiss (ECF No. 65).

E. On August 7, 2017, Lead Plaintiffs filed a Motion for Judicial Notice of Recent
Development (“Motion for Judicial Notice”) (ECF No. 67) in further support of their opposition

to Defendants’ motion to dismiss the CAC, arguing that the Court should take judicial notice of
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the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2017. The Form 8-K announced Stericycle’s
preliminary settlement of a class action litigation that Stericycle’s customers had filed against the
Company (the “Customer Case”) and made certain disclosures that Lead Plaintiffs claimed
corroborated their allegations in the Action. On August 11, 2017, the Stericycle Defendants filed
their response to the Motion for Judicial Notice (ECF No. 69), which was joined by the
Underwriter Defendants on August 15, 2017 (ECF No. 71), and, on August 17, 2017, Lead
Plaintiffs served their reply memorandum of law in further support of the Motion for Judicial
Notice (ECF No. 72).

F. On March 6, 2018, Lead Plaintiffs filed a Notice of Recent Development and Intent
to Amend the Complaint (“Notice of Recent Development”) (ECF No. 80), in order to further
inform the Court that: (1) on February 21, 2018, Stericycle made several announcements about the
Company’s {inancial condition that were directly relevant to Lead Plaintiffs’ allegations in this
litigation (including a $25 million expense to combat customer “churn” due to customer price
increases), which caused the price of Stericycle stock to fall by 19%; and (i1) Lead Plaintiffs’
intention to amend the CAC in order to incorporate this development into the complaint.

G. On March 20, 2018, Lead Plaintiffs filed an Unopposed Motion to Amend the Class
Action Complaint (“Motion to Amend the Complaint™) (ECF No. 81), which attached a copy of
their proposed Amended Class Action Complaint for Violations of the Federal Securities Laws
(the “Amended CAC” or “Complaint”). By Order dated March 30, 2018 (ECF No. 83), the Court:
(i) granted Lead Plaintiffs” Motion to Amend the Complaint (ECF No. 81) and directed the Clerk
of the Court to separately docket the Amended CAC submitted with the motion (ECF No. 81-1);
and (ii) denied as moot Defendants’ motton to dismiss the CAC (ECF No. 54) and Lead Plaintiffs’

Motion for Judicial Notice (ECF No. 67).
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H. On March 30, 2018, the Clerk entered the Amended CAC on the Court docket (ECF
No. 84). The Amended CAC identifies the same allegedly false and misleading statements as in
the CAC, but incorporates Lead Plaintiffs’ additional aliegations that Defendants misrepresented
the Company’s integration of its acquisitions into its operations and allegations arising out of the
Company’s February 21, 2018 disclosures, and asserts an expanded class period: February 7,2013
through February 21, 2018, inclusive (the “Class Period”).

1 On May 25, 2018, Defendants filed a renewed motion to dismiss the Amended CAC
and a supporting memorandum of law (ECF Nos. 91-92). On June 22, 2018, Lead Plaintiffs filed
their opposition to Defendants’ motion to dismiss (ECF No. 94) and, on July [3, 2018, Defendants
filed their reply in further support of their motion to dismiss (ECF No. 95).

1. In an attempt to resolve the Action, on Apnl 16, 2018, Lead Counsel and counsel
for Stericycle participated in a full-day mediation session before Gregory P. Lindstrom, Esq. of
Phillips ADR as mediator (the “Mediator”) in Chicago, Illinois. In advance of that session, Lead
Plaintiffs and Stericycle exchanged detailed mediation statements, which addressed the issues of
liability and damages.

K. Following the mediation, the Parties engaged in additional negotiations under the
supervision and guidance of the Mediator. The Parties then reached an agreement in principle to
settle the Action that was pursuant to a Mediator’s recommendation and memorialized in a term
sheet executed on December 6, 2018 (the “Term Sheet”). The Term Sheet sets forth, among other
things, the Parties’ agreement to settle and release all claims against Defendants in return for a
cash payment by Stericycle of $45,000,000 for the benefit of the Settlement Class, subject to
certain terms and conditions and the execution of a customary “long form” stipulation and

agreement of settlement and related papers. The agreement to settle was further conditioned on



Case: 1:16-cv-07145 Document #: 108-1 Filed: 02/25/19 Page 7 of 115 PagelD #:4205

Lead Plaintiffs confirming the fairness, reasonableness, and adequacy of the proposed Settlement
based on due diligence discovery to be provided by the Company.

L. Pursuant to the Term Sheet, due diligence discovery commenced on or about
December 10, 2018, In connection with due diligence discovery, the Company produced 25
confidential deposition transcripts of Stericycle executives (and exhibits) from the related
Customer Case, and additional internal Stericycle documents, which were reviewed by Lead
Counsel.

M. This Stipulation (together with the exhibits hereto) reflects the final and binding
agreement between the Parties and supersedes the Term Sheet.

N. Based upon their investigation, prosecution, and mediation of the case, and further
confirmation through due diligence discovery, Lead Plaintiffs and Lead Counsel have concluded
that the terms and conditions of this Stipulation are fair, reasonable, and adequate to Lead Plaintiffs
and the other members of the Settlement Class, and in their best interests. Based on Lead
Plaintiffs” direct oversight of the prosecution of this matter and with the advice of their counsel,
Lead Plaintiffs have agreed to settle and release the Released Plaintiffs’ Claims pursuant to the
terms and provisions of this Stipulation, after considering, among other things: (a) the substantial
financial benefit that Lead Plaintiffs and the other members of the Settlement Class will receive
under the proposed Settlement; and (b) the significant risks and costs of continued litigation, trial,
and any appeals.

O. This Stipulation constitutes a compromise of all matters that are in dispute between
the Parties. Defendants are entering into this Stipulation solely to eliminate the uncertainty,
burden, and expense of further protracted litigation. Each of the Defendants denies any

wrongdoing, and this Stipulation shall in no event be construed or deemed to be evidence of or an
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admission or concession on the part of any of the Defendants with respect to any claim or allegation
of any fault or liability or wrongdoing or damage whatsoever, or any infirmity in the defenses that
Defendants have, or could have, asserted. Defendants expressly deny that Lead Plaintiffs have
asserted any valid claims as to any of them, and expressly deny any and all allegations of fault,
liability, wrongdoing, or damages whatsoever. Similarly, this Stipulation shall in no event be
construed or deemed to be evidence of or an admission or concession on the part of Lead Plaintiffs
of any infirmity in any of the claims asserted in the Action, or an admission or concession that any
of the Defendants® defenses to liability had any merit.

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby STIPULATED AND AGREED, by and among Lead
Plaintiffs (individually and on behalf of all other members of the Settlement Class) and
Defendants, by and through their respective undersigned attomeys and subject to the approval of
the Court pursuant to Rule 23(e) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, that, in consideration of
the benefits flowing to the Parties from the Settlement, all Released Plaintiffs’ Claims as against
the Defendants’ Releasees and all Released Defendants’ Claims as against the Plaintiffs’ Releasees
shall be settled and released, upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth below.

DEFINITIONS

1. As used in this Stipulation and any exhibits attached hereto and made a part hereof,
the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:
(a)  “Action” means the consolidated securities class action in the matter styled
In re Stevicycle, Inc. Securities Litigation, Civil Action No. 1:16-¢v-07145, and includes all actions
consolidated therein.
(b) “Alternate Judgment” means a form of final judgment that may be entered

by the Court herein but in a form other than the form of Judgment provided for in this Stipulation.
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(c) *Authorized Claimant” means a Settlement Class Member who submits a
Claim to the Claims Admuinistrator that is approved by the Court for payment from the Net
Settlement Fund.

(d) “Claim” means a paper claim submitted on a Proof of Claim Form or an
electronic claim that is submitted to the Claims Administrator.

() “Claim Form” or “Proof of Claim Form” means the form, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit 2 to Exhibit A, that a Claimant must complete and submit
should that Claimant seek to share in a distribution of the Net Settlement Fund.

(f) “Claimant” means a person or entity who or which submits a Claim to the
Claims Administrator seeking to be eligible to share in the proceeds of the Net Settlement Fund.

(g) “Claims Administrator” means the {irm retained by Lead Counsel, subject to
approval of the Court, to provide all notices approved by the Court to potential Settlement Class
Members and to administer the Settlement.

(hy  “Class Distnibution Order” means an order entered by the Court authorizing
and directing that the Net Settlement Fund be distributed, in whole or in part, to Authorized
Claimants.

(1)  “Class Period” means the period from February 7, 2013 through February
21, 2018, inclusive.

()  “Complaint” or “Amended CAC” means the Amended Class Action
Complaint for Violations of the Federal Securities Laws filed in the Action on March 30, 2018.

(k)  “Court” means the United States District Court for the Northern District of

Illinois, Eastern Division.
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() “Defendants” means the Stericycle Defendants and the Underwriter
Defendants.

(m) “Defendants’ Counsel” means Latham & Watkins LLP, counsel for the
Stericycle Defendants, and Winston & Strawn LLP, counsel for the Underwriter Defendants.

(n) “Defendants’ Releasees” means Defendants and their current and former
parents, affiliates, subsidianes, officers, directors, agents, successors, predecessors, assigns,
assignees, partnerships, partners, trustees, trusts, employees, Immediate Family Members,
insurers, reinsurers, and attorneys.

(o) “Director Defendants” means Mark C. Miller, Jack W. Schuler, Lynn Dorsey
Bleil, Thomas D. Brown, Thomas F. Chen, Rodney F. Dammeyer, William K. Hall, John Patience,
and Mike S. Zafirovski.

(p) “Effective Date” with respect to the Settlement means the first date by which
all of the events and conditions specified in § 32 of this Stipulation have been met and have
occurred or have been waived.

(qQ) “Escrow Account” means an account maintained at Valley National Bank
wherein the Settlement Amount shall be deposited and held in escrow under the control of Lead
Counsel.

(r) “Escrow Agent” means Valley National Bank.

(s) “Escrow Agreement” means the agreement between Lead Counsel and the
Escrow Agent setting forth the terms under which the Escrow Agent shall maintain the Escrow
Account.

()  “Final,” with respect to the Judgment or, if applicable, the Alternate

Judgment, or any other court order, means: (1) if no appeal 1s filed, the expiration date of the time
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provided for filing or noticing any appeal under the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure, i.e.,
thirty (30) days after entry of the judgment or order; or (i1) if there is an appeal from the judgment
or order, (a) the date of final dismissal of all such appeals, or the final dismissal of any proceeding
on certiorari or otherwise, or (b) the date the judgment or order is finally affirmed on an appeal,
the expiration of the time to file a petition for a writ of certiorari or other form of review, or the
denial of a writ of certiorari or other form of review, and, if certiorari or other form of review is
granted, the date of final affirmance following review pursuant to that grant. However, any appeal
or proceeding seeking subsequent judicial review pertaining solely to an order issued with respect
to (1) attorneys’ fees, costs, or expenses, or (ii) the plan of allocation of Settlement proceeds (as
submitted or subsequently modified), shall not in any way delay or preclude a judgment from
becoming Final.

(u) “Immediate Family” means children, stepchildren, parents, stepparents,
spouses, siblings, mothers-in-law, fathers-in-law, sons-in-law, daughters-in-law, brothers-in-law,
and sisters-in-law. As used in this paragraph, “spouse” shall mean a husband, a wife, or a partner
in a state-recognized domestic relationship or civil union.

(v) “Individual Defendants” means the Officer Defendants and the Director
Defendants.

(w) “Investment Vehicle” shall mean any investment company or pooled
investment fund, including but not limited to, mutual fund families, exchange traded funds, fund
of funds, and hedge funds, in which any Underwriter Defendant has or may have a direct or indirect
interest, or as to which any of its affiliates may act as an investment advisor, but in which any
Underwriter Defendant alone or together with any of its affiliates is not a majority owner or does

not hold a majority beneficial interest; provided, however, that any Claim Form submitted by an

10
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Investment Vehicle shall be limited to purchases or acquisitions made on behalf of or for the
benefit of persons or entities other than persons or entities that are excluded from the Settlement
Class by definition, and the definition of Investment Vehicle shall not bring into the Settlement
Class any of the Underwriter Defendants themselves.

(x) “Judgment” means the final judgment, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit B, to be entered by the Court approving the Settlement.

(y) “Lead Counsel” means the law firm of Bemstein Litowitz Berger &
Grossmann LLP.

(z) “Lead Plaintiffs” means the Public Employees’ Retirement System of
Mississippl and the Arkansas Teacher Retirement System.

(aa) “Litigation Expenses” means costs and expenses incurred in connection with
commencing, prosecuting, and settling the Action (which may include the costs and expenses of
Lead Plaintiffs directly related to their representation of the Settlement Class), for which Lead
Counsel intends to apply to the Court for reimbursement from the Settlement Fund.

(bb) “Net Settlement Fund” means the Settlement Fund less: (i) any Taxes;
(i1) any Notice and Administration Costs; (ii1) any Litigation Expenses awarded by the Court;
(iv) any attorneys’ fees awarded by the Court; and (v) any other costs or fees approved by the
Court.

(cc) “Notice” means the Notice of (I) Pendency of Class Action and Proposed
Settlement; (II) Settlement Hearing; and (III) Motion for an Award of Attormneys’ Fees and
Reimbursement of Litigation Expenses, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I to

Exhibit A, which is to be mailed to Settlement Class Members.

11
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(dd) “Notice and Administration Costs” means the costs, fees, and expenses that
are incurred by the Claims Administrator and/or Lead Counsel in connection with: (1) providing
notices to the Settlement Class; and (i1} administering the Settlement, including but not limited to
the Claims process, as well as the costs, fees, and expenses incurred in connection with the Escrow
Account.

(ee) “Officer” means any officer as that term is defined in Securities and
Exchange Act Rule 16a-1(f).

(ff)  “Officer Defendants” means Charles A. Alutto, Dan Ginnetti, Brent Amold,
Frank ten Brink, and Richard Kogler.

(gg) “Parties” means Defendants and Lead Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and
the Settlement Class.

(hh) “Plaintiffs’ Counsel” means Lead Counsel; Gadow Tyler, PLLC; and all
other legal counsel who, at the direction and under the supervision of Lead Counsel, performed
services on behalf of the Settlement Class in the Action.

(1)  “Plaintiffs’ Releasees” means Lead Plaintiffs, all other plaintiffs in the
Action, and all other Settlement Class Members, and their respective current and former parents,
affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, agents, successors, predecessors, assigns, assignees,
partnerships, partners, trustees, trusts, employees, Immediate Family Members, insurers,
reinsurers, and attorneys.

(03  “Plan of Allocation” means the proposed plan of allocation of the Net

Settlement Fund set forth in the Notice.

12
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(kk) “Preliminary Approval Order” means the order, substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit A, to be entered by the Court preliminarily approving the Settlement
and directing that notice of the Settlement be provided to the Settlement Class.

(1) “PSLRA” means the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, 15
U.8.C. §§ 77z-1, 78u-4, as amended.

(mm) “Released Claims” means all Released Defendants’ Claims and all Released
Plaintiffs” Claims.

(nn) “Released Defendants’ Claims” means all claims and causes of action of
every nature and description, whether known claims or Unknown Claims, whether arising under
federal, state, common, or foreign law, that arise out of or relate in any way to the institution,
prosecution, or settlement of the claims asserted in the Action against Defendants. Released
Defendants’ Claims do not include: (1) any claims relating to the enforcement of the Settlement;
or (i) any claims against any person or entity who submits a request for exclusion from the
Settlement Class that is accepted by the Court (“Excluded Defendants’ Claims”™).

(00) “Released Plaintiffs’ Claims” means all claims and causes of action of every
nature and description, whether known claims or Unknown Claims, whether arising under federal,
state, common, or foreign law, that Lead Plaintiffs or any other member of the Settlement Class
(1) asserted in the Complaint, or (i1) could have asserted in any forum that arise out of or are based
upon the allegations, transactions, facts, matters or occurrences, representations, or omissions
involved, set forth, or referred to in the Complaint and that relate to the purchase, acquisition,
holding, sale, or disposition of publicly-traded Stericycle common stock or publicly-traded

Stericycle depositary shares during the Class Period. This release does not cover, include, or

release: (i) any claims asserted in any ERISA or derivative action, including without limitation the

13
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claims asserted in Weinstein v. Alutto et al., No. 2017-CG-03062 (Cir. Ct. Cook Cty., 111, filed
March 1,2017), Shah v. Alutio et al., No. 2016-CH-11636 (Cir. Ct. Cook Cty., Ill., filed September
1, 2016), Janklow v. Alutto et al., No. 18 cv 00457 (D. Del., filed March 26, 2018), Siu v. Alutto
et al., No. 1:16-cv-07145 (Del. Chancery Ct., filed April 12, 2018), Brennan v. Alutto et al., No.
1:18-cv-00567-RGA (D. Del,, filed April 16, 2018), or Turney v. Mifler et al., Case No. 1:18-cv-
05186 (N.D. 111, filed July 30, 2018); (i1) any claims relating to the enforcement of the Settlement;
or (ii1) any claims of any person or entity who submits a request for exclusion that is accepted by
the Court (“Excluded Plaintiffs” Claims™).

(pp) “Releasee(s)” means each and any of the Defendants’ Releasees and each
and any of the Plaintiffs’ Releasees.

(qq) “Releases” means the releases set forth in 19 5-6 of this Stipulation.

(rr)y “Settlement” means the settlement between Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants
on the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation.

(ss) “Settlement Amount™ means $45,000,000 in cash.

(tt)  “Settlement Class™ means all persons or entities who purchased or otherwise
acquired publicly-traded Stericycle common stock or publicly-traded Stericycle depositary shares
in the open market during the period from February 7, 2013 through February 21, 2018, inclusive
(the “Class Pertod”), including Stericycle depositary shares purchased in or traceable to the public
offering of Stericycle depositary shares conducted on or around September 15, 2015, and were
damaged thereby. Excluded from the Settlement Class are: (i) Defendants; (i1) members of the
Immediate Family of any Individual Defendant; (iii) any person who was an Officer or director of
Stericycle during the Class Period and any members of their Immediate Family; (iv) any parent,

subsidiary, or affiliate of Stericycle; (v) any firm, trust, corporation, or other entity in which any

14
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Defendant or any other excluded person or entity has, or had during the Class Period, a controlling
interest, provided, however, that any Investment Vehicle shall not be excluded from the Settlement
Class; and (vi1) the legal representatives, agents, heirs, successors-in-interest, or assigns of any such
excluded persons or entities. Also excluded from the Settlement Class are any persons and entities
who exclude themselves by submitting a request for exclusion that is accepted by the Court.

(uu) “Settlement Class Member” means each person and entity who or which is a
member of the Settlement Class.

(vv) “Settlement Fund” means the Settlement Amount plus any and all interest
earned thereon.

(ww) “Settlement Hearing” means the hearing set by the Court under Rule 23(e)(2)
of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure to consider final approval of the Settlement.

(xx) “Stericycle” or the “Company” means Stericycle, Inc.

(yy) “Stericycle Defendants” means Stericycle, the Officer Defendants, and the
Director Defendants.

(zz) “Summary Notice” means the Summary Notice of (I) Pendency of Class
Action and Proposed Settlement; (II) Settlement Hearing; and (III) Motion for an Award of
Attorneys” Fees and Reimbursement of Litigation Expenses, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit 3 to Exhibit A, to be published as set forth in the Preliminary Approval Order.

(aaa) “Taxes” means: (i) all federal, state and/or local taxes of any kind (including
any interest or penalties thereon) on any income earned by the Settlement Fund; and (ii) the
expenses and costs incurred by Lead Counsel in connection with determining the amount of, and
paying, any taxes owed by the Settlement Fund (including, without limitation, expenses of tax

attorneys and accountants).

15
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(bbb) “Unknown Claims” means any Released Plaintiffs’ Claims which Lead

Plaintiffs or any other Settlement Class Member does not know or suspect to exist in his, her, or
its favor at the time of the release of such claims, and any Released Defendants’ Claims which any
Defendant does not know or suspect to exist in his, her, or its favor at the time of the release of
such claims, which, if known by him, her, or it, might have affected his, her, or its decision(s) with
respect to this Settlement. With respect to any and alt Released Claims, the Parties stipulate and
agree that, upon the Effective Date of the Settlement, Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants shall
expressly waive, and each of the other Settlement Class Members shall be deemed to have waived,
and by operation of the Judgment or the Alternate Judgment, if applicable, shall have expressly
waived, any and all provisions, rights, and benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory
of the United States, or principle of common law or foreign law, which is similar, comparable, or
equivalent to California Civil Code §1542, which provides:

A general release does not extend to claims that the creditor or releasing party does

not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release

and that, if known by him or her, would have materially affected his or her

settfement with the debtor or released party.
Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants acknowledge, and each of the other Settlement Class Members
shall be deemed by operation of law to have acknowledged, that the foregoing walver was
separately bargained for and a key element of the Settlement.

(cce) “Underwriter Defendants” means Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith

Incorporated, Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC (f’k/a Goldman, Sachs & Co.), J.P. Morgan Securities
LLC, HSBC Securities (USA) Inc., MUFG Securities Americas Inc. (f’k/a Mitsubishi UFJ

Securities (USA), Inc.), Santander Investment Securities Inc., SMBC Nikko Securities America,

Inc., and U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc.

16
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CLASS CERTIFICATION

2. Solely for purposes of the Settlement and for no other purpose, Defendants stipulate
and agree to: (a) certification of the Action as a class action pursuant to Rules 23(a) and 23(b)(3)
of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of the Settlement Class; (b) certification of Lead
Plaintiffs as Class Representatives for the Settlement Class; and (c) appointment of Lead Counsel
as Class Counsel for the Settlement Class pursuant to Rule 23(g) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure.

PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF SETTLEMENT

3. No later than ten (10) business days after the date of execution of this Stipulation,
Lead Plaintiffs will move for preliminary approval of the Settlement, authorization to provide
notice of the Settlement to the Settlement Class, and the scheduling of a hearing for consideration
of final approval of the Settlement, which motion shall be unopposed by Defendants. Concurrently
with the motion for preliminary approval, Lead Plaintiffs shall apply to the Court for, and
Defendants shall agree to, entry of the Preliminary Approval Order, substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit A,

RELEASE OF CLAIMS

4. The obligations incurred pursuant to this Stipulation are in consideration of: (a) the
full and final disposition of the Action as against Defendants; and (b) the Releases provided for
herein.

5. Pursuant to the Judgment, or the Alternate Judgment, if applicable, without further
action by anyone, upon the Effective Date of the Settlement, Lead Plaintiffs and each of the other
Settlement Class Members, on behalf of themselves, and their respective heirs, executors,

administrators, predecessors, successors, and assigns in their capacities as such, shall be deemed
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to have, and by operation of law and of the judgment shall have, fully, finally, and forever
compromised, settled, released, resolved, relinquished, waived, and discharged each and every
Released Plaintiffs’ Claim (including, without limitation, Unknown Claims) against Defendants
and the other Defendants’ Releasees, and shall forever be barred and enjoined from prosecuting
any or all of the Released Plaintiffs’ Claims (including, without limitation, Unknown Claims)
against any of the Defendants’ Releasees. This Release shall not apply to the Excluded Plaintiffs’
Claims.

6. Pursuant to the Judgment, or the Altemmate Judgment, if applicable, without further
action by anyone, upon the Effective Date of the Settlement, Defendants, on behalf of themselves,
and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, predecessors, successors, and assigns in their
capacities as such, shall be deemed to have, and by operation of law and of the judgment shall
have, fully, finally, and forever compromised, settled, released, resolved, relinquished, waived,
and discharged each and every Released Defendants’ Claim (including, without limitation,
Unknown Claims) against Lead Plaintiffs and the other Plaintiffs’ Releasees, and shall forever be
barred and enjoined from prosecuting any or all of the Released Defendants’® Claims (including,
without limitation, Unknown Claims) against any of the Plaintiffs’ Releasees. This Release shall
not apply to the Excluded Defendants’ Claims.

7. Notwithstanding 9 5-6 above, nothing in the Judgment, or the Alternate Judgment,
if applicable, shall bar any action by any of the Parties to enforce or effectuate the terms of this
Stipulation or the Judgment, or Altemate Judgment, if applicable.

THE SETTLEMENT CONSIDERATION

8. In consideration of the settlement of the Released Plaintiffs’ Claims against

Defendants and the other Defendants’ Releasees, Stericycle shall pay or cause to be paid the

18



Case: 1:16-cv-07145 Document #: 108-1 Filed: 02/25/19 Page 20 of 115 PagelD #:4218

Settlement Amount into the Escrow Account no later than ten (10) business days after the date of
entry by the Court of an order preliminarily approving this Settlement.

USE OF SETTLEMENT FUND

9. The Settlement Fund shall be used to pay: (a) any Taxes; (b) any Notice and
Administration Costs; (c) any Litigation Expenses awarded by the Court; (d) any attorneys’ fees
awarded by the Court, and (¢) any other costs and fees approved by the Court. The balance
remaining in the Settlement Fund, that is, the Net Settlement Fund, shall be distributed to
Authorized Claimants as provided in {9 18-30 below.

10.  Except as provided herein or pursuant to orders of the Court, the Net Settlement
Fund shall remain in the Escrow Account prior to the Effective Date. All funds held by the Escrow
Agent shall be deemed to be in the custody of the Court and shall remain subject to the jurisdiction
of the Court until such time as the funds shall be distributed or returned pursuant to the terms of
this Stipulation and/or further order of the Court. The Escrow Agent shall invest any funds in the
Escrow Account exclusively in United States Treasury Bills (or a mutual fund invested solely in
such instruments) and shall collect and reinvest all interest accrued thercon, except that any
residual cash balances up to the amount that is insured by the FDIC may be deposited in any
account that is fully insured by the FDIC. In the event that the yield on United States Treasury
Bills is negative, in lieu of purchasing such Treasury Bills, all or any portion of the funds held by
the Escrow Agent may be deposited in any account that is fully insured by the FDIC or backed by
the full faith and credit of the United States. Additionally, if short-term placement of the funds is
necessary, all or any portion of the funds held by the Escrow Agent may be deposited in any

account that is fully insured by the FDIC or backed by the full faith and credit of the United States.
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11. The Parties agree that the Settlement Fund is intended to be a Qualified Settlement
Fund within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.468B-1 and that Lead Counsel, as
administrator of the Settlement Fund within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.468B-2(k)(3),
shall be solely responsible for filing or causing to be filed all informational and other tax returns
as may be necessary or appropriate (including, without limitation, the returns described in Treasury
Regulation § 1.468B-2(k)) for the Settlement Fund. Lead Counse! shall also be responsible for
causing payment to be made from the Settlement Fund of any Taxes owed with respect to the
Settlement Fund. The Defendants’ Releasees shall not have any liability or responsibility for any
such Taxes. Upon written request, Defendants will provide to Lead Counsel the statement
described in Treasury Regulation § 1.468B-3(e). Lead Counsel, as administrator of the Settlement
Fund within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.468B-2(k)(3), shall timely make such
elections as are necessary or advisable to carry out this paragraph, including, as necessary, making
a “relation back election,” as described in Treasury Regulation § 1.468B-1(j), to cause the
Qualified Settlement Fund to come into existence at the earliest allowable date, and shall take or
cause to be taken all actions as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith.

12. All Taxes shall be paid out of the Settlement Fund, and shall be timely paid, or
caused to be paid, by Lead Counsel and without further order of the Court. Any tax returns
prepared for the Settlement Fund (as well as the election set forth therein) shall be consistent with
the previous paragraph and in all events shall reflect that all Taxes on the income eamed by the
Settlement Fund shall be paid out of the Settlement Fund as provided herein. Defendants’
Releasees shall have no responsibility or liability for the acts or omissions of Lead Counsel or its

agents with respect to the payment of Taxes, as described herein.
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13. The Settlement is not a claims-made settlement. Upon the occurrence of the
Effective Date, no Defendant, Defendants® Releasee, or any other person or entity who or which
paid any portion of the Settlement Amount shall have any right to the return of the Settlement Fund
or any portion thereof for any reason whatsoever, including without limitation, the number of
Claims submitted, the collective amount of Recognized Claims of Authorized Claimants, the
percentage of recovery of losses, or the amounts to be paid to Authorized Claimants from the Net
Settlement Fund.

14. Notwithstanding the fact that the Effective Date of the Settlement has not yet
occurred, Lead Counsel may pay from the Settlement Fund, without further approval from
Defendants or further order of the Court, all Notice and Administration Costs actually incurred
and paid or payable. Such costs and expenses shall include, without limitation, the actual costs of
printing and mailing the Notice, publishing the Summary Notice, reimbursements to nominee
owners for forwarding the Notice to their beneficial owners, the administrative expenses incurred
and fees charged by the Claims Administrator in connection with providing notice, administering
the Settlement (including processing the submitted Claims), and the fees, if any, of the Escrow
Agent. In the event that the Settlement is terminated pursuant to the terms of this Stipulation, all
Notice and Administration Costs paid or incurred, including any related fees, shall not be returned
or repaid to Defendants, any of the other Defendants’ Releasees, or any other person or entity who
or which paid any portion of the Settlement Amount.

ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND LITIGATION EXPENSES

15. Lead Counsel will apply to the Court for a collective award of attorneys” fees to
Plaintiffs’ Counsel to be paid solely from (and out of) the Settlement Fund. Lead Counsel also

will apply to the Court for reimbursement of Litigation Expenses, which may include a request for
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reimbursement of Lead Plaintiffs’ costs and expenses directly related to their representation of the
Settlement Class, to be paid solely from (and out of) the Settlement Fund. Lead Counsel’s
application for an award of attorneys” fees and/or Litigation Expenses is not the subject of any
agreement between Defendants and Lead Plaintiffs other than what is set forth in this Stipulation.

16.  Any attorneys’ fees and Litigation Expenses that are awarded by the Court shall be
paid to Lead Counsel immediately upon award, notwithstanding the existence of any timely filed
objections thereto, or potential for appeal therefrom, or collateral attack on the Settlement or any
part thereof, subject to Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s obligation to make appropriate refunds or repayments
to the Settlement Fund, plus accrued interest at the same net rate as is earned by the Settlement
Fund, if the Settlement 1s terminated pursuant to the terms of this Stipulation or if, as a result of
any appeal or further proceedings on remand, or successful collateral attack, the award of
attorneys’ fees and/or Litigation Expenses is reduced or reversed and such order reducing or
reversing the award has become Final. Plaintiffs’ Counsel shall make the appropriate refund or
repayment in full no later than five (5) business days after: (a) receiving from Defendants’ Counsel
notice of the termination of the Settlement; or (b) any order reducing or reversing the award of
attorneys’ fees and/or Litigation Expenses has become Final. An award of attorneys’ fees and/or
Litigation Expenses is not a necessary term of this Stipulation and is not a condition of the
Settlement embodied herein. Neither Lead Plaintiffs nor Lead Counsel may cancel or terminate
the Settlement based on this Court’s or any appellate court’s ruling with respect to attorneys’ fees
and/or Litigation Expenses.

17. Lead Counsel shall allocate the attorneys’ fees awarded amongst Plaintiffs’
Counsel in a manner which it, in good faith, believes reflects the contributions of such counsel to

the institution, prosecution, and settlement of the Action. Defendants” Releasees shall have no
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responsibility for or liability whatsoever with respect to the allocation or award of attorneys’ fees
or Litigation Expenses. The attorneys’ fees and Litigation Expenses that are awarded to Plaintiffs’
Counsel shall be payable solely from the Escrow Account.

NOTICE AND SETTLEMENT ADMINISTRATION

18.  As part of the Preliminary Approval Order, Lead Counsel shall seek appointment
of a Claims Administrator. The Claims Administrator shall administer the Settlement, including
but not limited to the process of receiving, reviewing, and approving or denying Claims, under
Lead Counsel’s supervision and subject to the jurisdiction of the Court. Other than Stericycle’s
obligation to provide the Company’s security lists as provided in § 19 below, none of the
Defendants, nor any other Defendants’ Releasees, shall have any involvement in or any
responsibility, authority, or liability whatsoever for the selection of the Claims Administrator, the
Plan of Allocation, the administration of the Settlement, the Claims process, or disbursement of
the Net Settlement Fund, and shall have no liability whatsoever to any person or entity, including,
but not limited to, Lead Plaintiffs, any other Settlement Class Members, or Lead Counsel in

-connection with the foregoing. Defendants’ Counsel shall cooperate in the administration of the
Settlement to the extent reasonably necessary to effectuate its tenms.

19.  In accordance with the terms of the Preliminary Approval Order to be entered by
the Court, Lead Counsel shall cause the Claims Administrator to mail the Notice and Proof of
Claim Form to those members of the Settlement Class as may be identified through reasonable
effort. Lead Counsel shall also cause the Claims Administrator to have the Summary Notice
published in accordance with the terms of the Preliminary Approval Order to be entered by the
Court. For the purposes of identifying and providing notice to the Settlement Class, within five

(5) business days of the date of entry of the Preliminary Approval Order, Stenicycle shall provide
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or cause to be provided to Lead Counsel or the Claims Administrator in electronic format (at no
cost to the Settlement Fund, Lead Counsel, or the Claims Administrator) a list (consisting of
names, mailing addresses, and email addresses) of the purchasers of Stericycle common stock and
Stericycle depositary shares during the Class Period.

20. No later than ten (10) calendar days following the filing of this Stipulation with the
Court, Stericycle shall serve the notice required under the Class Action Faimness Act, 28 U.S.C.
§ 1715 et seq. (“CAFA”™). Stericycle is solely responsible for the costs of the CAFA notice and
administering the CAFA notice. At least seven {7) calendar days before the Settlement Hearing,
Stericycle shall cause to be served on Lead Counsel and filed with the Court proof, by affidavit or
declaration, regarding compliance with CAFA § 1715(b).

21. The Claims Administrator shall receive Claims and determine first, whether the
Claim is a valid Claim, in whole or part, and second, each Authorized Claimant’s pro rata share
of the Net Settlement Fund based upon each Authorized Claimant’s Recognized Claim compared
to the total Recognized Claims of all Authorized Claimants (as set forth in the Plan of Allocation
set forth in the Notice attached hereto as Exhibit 1 to Exhibit A, or in such other plan of allocation
as the Court approves).

22, The Plan of Allocation proposed in the Notice is not a necessary term of the
Settlement or of this Stipulation and it i1s not a condition of the Settlement or of this Stipulation
that any particular plan of allocation be approved by the Court. Lead Plaintiffs and Lead Counsel
may not cancel or terminate the Settlement (or this Stipulation) based on this Court’s or any
appellate court’s ruling with respect to the Plan of Allocation or any other plan of allocation in this
Action. Defendants and the other Defendants’ Releasees shall not object in any way to the Plan

of Allocation or any other plan of allocation in this Action. No Defendant, nor any other
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Defendants’ Releasees, shall have any involvement with or liability, obligation, or responsibility
whatsoever for the application of the Court-approved plan of allocation.

23, Any Settlement Class Member who does not submit a valid Claim will not be
entitled to receive any distribution from the Net Settlement Fund, but will otherwise be bound by
all of the terms of this Stipulation and the Settlement, including the terms of the Judgment or, the
Alternate Judgment, if applicable, to be entered in the Action and the Releases provided for herein
and therein, and will be permanently barred and enjoined from bringing any action, claim, or other
proceeding of any kind against the Defendants’ Releasees with respect to the Released Plaintiffs’
Claims in the event that the Effective Date occurs with respect to the Seftlement.

24, Lead Counsel shall be responsible for supervising the administration of the
Seftlement and the disbursement of the Net Settlement Fund subject to Court approval. No
Defendant, or any other Defendants” Releasees, shall be permitted to review, contest, or object to
any Claim, or any decision of the Claims Administrator or Lead Counsel with respect to accepting
or rejecting any Claim for payment. Lead Counse] shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
waive what it deems to be formal or technical defects in any Claims submitted in the interests of
achieving substantial justice.

25.  For purposes of determining the extent, if any, to which a Class Member shall be
entitled to be treated as an Authorized Claimant, the following conditions shall apply:

(a) Each Claimant shall be required to submit a Claim in paper form,
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 2 to Exhibit A, or in electronic form, in
accordance with the instructions for the submission of such Claims, and supported by such

documents as are designated therein, including proof of the Claimant’s loss, or such other
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documents or proof as the Claims Administrator or Lead Counsel, in their discretion, may deem
acceptable;

(b)  All Claims must be submitted by the date set by the Court in the Preliminary
Approval Order and specified in the Notice. Any Settlement Class Member who fails to submit a
Claim by such date shall be forever barred from receiving any distribution from the Net Settlement
Fund or payment pursuant to this Stipulation (unless by Order of the Court such Settlement Class
Member’s Claim 1s accepted), but shall in all other respects be bound by all of the terms of this
Stipulation and the Settlement, including the terms of the Judgment or Altemate Judgment, if
applicable, and the Releases provided for herein and therein, and will be permanently barred and
enjowned from bringing any action, claim, or other proceeding of any kind against any Defendants’
Releasees with respect to any Released Plaintiffs’ Claim. Provided that it is mailed by the claim-
submission deadline, a Claim Form shall be deemed to be submitted when postmarked, if received
with a postmark indicated on the envelope and if mailed by first-class mail and addressed in
accordance with the instructions thereon. In all other cases, the Claim Form shall be deemed to
have been submitted on the date when actually received by the Claims Administrator;

(¢)  Each Claim shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Claims Administrator
who shall determine in accordance with this Stipulation and the plan of allocation the extent, if
any, to which each Claim shall be allowed, subject to review by the Court pursuant to subparagraph
(e) below as necessary;

(d)  Claims that do not meet the submission requirements may be rejected. Prior
to rejecting a Claim in whole or in part, the Claims Administrator shall communicate with the
Claimant in writing, to give the Claimant the chance to remedy any curable deficiencies in the

Claim submitted. The Claims Admuinistrator shall notify, in a timely fashion and in writing, all
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Claimants whose Claim the Claims Administrator proposes to reject in whole or in part, setting
forth the reasons therefor, and shall indicate in such notice that the Claimant whose Claim 1s to be
rejected has the right to a review by the Court if the Claimant so desires and complies with the
requirements of subparagraph (e) below; and

{e) IfanyClaimant whose Claim has been rejected in whole or in part desires to
contest such rejection, the Claimant must, within twenty (20) days after the date of mailing of the
notice required in subparagraph (d) above or a lesser time period if the Claim was untimely, serve
upon the Claims Administrator a notice and statement of reasons indicating the Claimant’s grounds
for contesting the rejection along with any supporting documentation, and requesting a review
thereof by the Court. If a dispute concerning a Claim cannot be otherwise resolved, Lead Counsel
shall thereafter present the request for review to the Court.

26. Each Claimant shall be deemed to have submitted to the jurisdiction of the Court
with respect to the Claimant’s Claim, and the Claim will be subject to investigation and discovery
under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, provided, however, that such investigation and
discovery shall be limited to that Claimant’s status as a Settlement Class Member and the validity
and amount of the Claimant’s Claim. No discovery shall be allowed on the merits of this Action
or of the Seftlement in connection with the processing of Claims.

27. Lead Counsel will apply to the Court, on notice to Defendants’ Counsel, for a Class
Distribution Order: (a) approving the Claims Administrator’s administrative determinations
concerning the acceptance and rejection of the Claims submitted; (b) approving payment of any
administration fees and expenses associated with the administration of the Settlement from the
Escrow Account; and (c¢) if the Effective Date has occurred, directing payment of the Net

Settlement Fund to Authorized Claimants from the Escrow Account.
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28.  Payment pursuant to the Class Distribution Order shall be final and conclusive
against all Claimants. All Settlement Class Members whose Claims are not approved by the Court
for payment shall be barred from participating in distributions from the Net Settlement Fund, but
otherwise shall be bound by all of the terms of this Stipulation and the Settlement, including the
terms of the Judgment or Altemate Judgment, if applicable, to be entered in this Action and the
Releases provided for herein and therein, and will be permanently barred and enjoined from
bringing any action against any and all Defendants’ Releasees with respect to any and all of the
Released Plantiffs’ Claims.

29. No person or entity shall have any claim against Lead Plaintiffs, Lead Counsel, the
Clatms Administrator, or any other agent designated by Lead Counsel, or Defendants’ Releasees
and/or their respective counsel, arising from distributions made substantially in accordance with
the Stipulation, the plan of allocation approved by the Court, or any order of the Court. Lead
Plaintiffs and Defendants, and their respective counsel, and Lead Plaintiffs’ damages expert and
all other Releasees shall have no liability whatsoever for the investment or distribution of the
Settlement Fund or the Net Settlement Fund, the plan of allocation, or the determination,
administration, calculation, or payment of any claim or nonperformance of the Claims
Administrator, the payment or withholding of taxes (including interest and penalties) owed by the
Settlement Fund, or any losses incurred in connection therewith.

30. All proceedings with respect to the administration, processing. and determination
of Claims and the determination of all controversies relating thereto, including disputed questions
of law and fact with respect to the validity of Claims, shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the

Court. All Settlement Class Members, other Claimants, and parties to this Settlement expressly
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waive trial by jury (to the extent any such right may exist) and any right of appeal or review with
respect to such determinations.

TERMS OF THE JUDGMENT

31.  If the Settlement contemplated by this Stipulation is approved by the Court, Lead
Counsel and Defendants” Counsel shall request that the Court enter a Judgment, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.

CONDITIONS OF SETTLEMENT AND EFFECT OF
DISAPPROVAL, CANCELLATION, OR TERMINATION

32.  The Effective Date of the Settlement shall be deemed to occur on the occurrence or

waiver of all of the following events:

(a)  the Court has entered the Preliminary Approval Order, substantially in the
form set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, as required by § 3 above;

(b)  the Settlement Amount has been deposited into the Escrow Account in
accordance with the provisions of § 8 above;

(¢)  Defendants have not exercised their option to terminate the Settlement
pursuant to the provisions of this Stipulation;

(d)  Lead Plaintiffs have not exercised their option to terminate the Settlement
pursuant to the provisions of this Stipulation; and

(e)  the Court has approved the Settlement as described herein, following notice
to the Settlement Class and a hearing, as prescribed by Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, and entered the Judgment and the Judgment has become Final, or the Court has entered
an Alternate Judgment and none of the Parties seek to terminate the Settlement and the Alternate

Judgment has become Final.
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33. Upon the occurrence of all of the events referenced in § 32 above, any and all
remaining interest or right of Defendants or any of their insurers in or to the Settlement Fund, if
any, shall be absolutely and forever extinguished and the Releases herein shall be effective.

34. I (i) Defendants exercise their right to terminate the Settlement as provided in this
Stipulation; (11) Lead Plaintiffs exercise their right to terminate the Settlement as provided in this
Stipulation; (iii) the Court disapproves the Settlement; or (iv) the Effective Date as to the
Settlement otherwise fails to ocour, then:

(a)  The Settlement and the relevant portions of this Stipulation shall be canceled
and terminated.

(b)  Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants shall revert to their respective positions in
the Action as of immediately prior to the execution of the Term Sheet on December 6, 2018.

(¢)  The terms and provisions of this Stipulation, with the exception of this § 34
and 99 14, 16, 38 and 58 of this Stipulation, shall have no further force and effect with respect to
the Parties and shall not be used in the Action or in any other proceeding for any purpose, and any
Judgment, or Alternate Judgment, if applicable, or order entered by the Court in accordance with
the terms of this Stipulation shall be treated as vacated, aunc pro tunc.

(d)  Within five (5) business days after joint written notification of termination is
sent by Defendants® Counsel and Lead Counsel to the Escrow Agent, the Settlement Fund
(including accrued interest thereon, and change in value as a result of the investment of the
Settlement Fund, and any funds received by Lead Counsel consistent with § 16 above), less any
Notice and Administration Costs actually incurred, paid, or payable and less any Taxes paid, due,
or owing shall be refunded by the Escrow Agent to Defendants (or such other persons or entities

as Defendants may direct). In the event that the funds received by Lead Counsel consistent with
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4 16 above have not been refunded to the Settlement Fund within the five (5) business days
specified in this paragraph, those funds shall be refunded by the Escrow Agent to Defendants (or
such other persons or entities as Defendants may direct) immediately upon their deposit into the
Escrow Account consistent with 9 16 above.

35. It is further stipulated and agreed that Stericycle and Lead Plaintiffs shall each have
the right to terminate the Settlement and this Stipulation, by providing written notice of their
election to do so (“Termination Notice”) to the other Parties to this Stipulation within thirty (30)
days of: (a) the Court’s final refusal to enter the Preliminary Approval Order in any matenial
respect; (b) the Court’s final refusal to approve the Settlement or any material part thereof; (c) the
Court’s final refusal to enter the Judgment in any material respect as to the Settlement; (d) the date
upon which the Judgment is modified or reversed in any material respect by the United States
Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit or the United States Supreme Court; or (e) the date upon
which an Alternate Judgment is modified or reversed in any material respect by the United States
Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit or the United States Supreme Court, and the provisions
of § 34 above shall apply. However, any decision or proceeding, whether in this Court or any
appellate court, with respect to an application for attorneys’ fees or reimbursement of Litigation
Expenses or with respect fo any plan of allocation shall not be considered material to the
Settlement, shall not affect the finality of any Judgment or Alternate Judgment, if applicable, and
shall not be grounds for termination of the Settlement.

36.  In addition to the grounds set forth in 4 35 above, Lead Plaintiffs shall also have
the right to terminate the Settlement in the event that the Settlement Amount has not been paid as
provided for in § 8 above, by providing written notice of the election to terminate to Defendants’

Counsel.
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37. Simultaneously herewith, Lead Plaintiffs and Stericycle, through their respective
counsel, are executing a confidential Supplemental Agreement Regarding Settlement
(“Supplemental Agreement™). The Supplemental Agreement sets forth certain conditions under
which the Settlement may be terminated by Stericyele if Settlement Class Members who, during
the Class Period, collectively purchased an aggregate number of shares of publicly-traded
Stericycle common stock and publicly-traded Stericycle depositary shares eligible to recover from
the Settlement that exceeds a specified number of shares of Stericycle common stock and
Stericycle depositary shares, combined, purchased during the Class Period (the “Opt-Out
Threshold”) timely and validly request exclusion from the Settlement Class. Unless otherwise
directed by the Court or a dispute arises between Lead Plaintiffs and Stericycle concerning its
interpretation or application, the Supplemental Agreement will not be filed with the Court and its
terms shall not be disclosed in any other manner (other than the statements herein and in the Notice,
to the extent necessary, or as otherwise provided in the Supplemental Agreement). The Opt-Qut
Threshold may be disclosed to the Court as may be required by the Court, or as otherwise required
to resclve a dispute between Lead Plaintiffs and Stericycle conceming its interpretation or
application, but such disclosure shall be carried out to the fullest extent possible in accordance
with the practices of the Court so as to maintain the Opt-Out Threshold as confidential. In the
event of a termination of this Settlement pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, this Stipulation
shall become null and void and of no further force and effect, except as provided in § 34 above.

NO ADMISSION OF WRONGDOING

38.  Neither the Term Sheet, this Stipulation (whether or not consummated), including
the exhibits hereto and the Plan of Allocation contained therein (or any other plan of allocation

that may be approved by the Court), the negotiations leading to the execution of the Term Sheet

32



Case: 1:16-cv-07145 Document #: 108-1 Filed: 02/25/19 Page 34 of 115 PagelD #:4232

and this Stipulation, nor any proceedings taken pursuant to or in connection with the Term Sheet,
this Stipulation, and/or approval of the Settlement (including any arguments proffered in
connection therewith):

{a)  shall be offered against any of the Defendants’ Releasees as evidence of, or
construed as, or deemed to be evidence of any presumption, concession, or admission by any of
the Defendants’ Releasees with respect to the truth of any fact alleged by Lead Plaintiffs or the
validity of any claim that was or could have been asserted or the deficiency of any defense that has
been or could have been asserted in this Action or in any other litigation, or of any lability,
negligence, fault, or other wrongdoing of any kind of any of the Defendants’ Releasees or in any
way referred to for any other reason as against any of the Defendants’ Releasees, in any arbitration
proceeding or other civil, criminal, or administrative action or proceeding, other than such
proceedings as may be necessary to effectuate the provisions of this Stipulation;

(b)  shall be offered against any of the Plaintiffs’ Releasees, as evidence of, or
construed as, or deemed to be evidence of any presumption, concession, or admission by any of
the Plaintiffs’ Releasees that any of their claims are without merit, that any of the Defendants’
Releasees had mentorious defenses, or that damages recoverable under the Complaint would not
have exceeded the Settlement Amount or with respect to any liability, negligence, fault, or
wrongdoing of any kind, or in any way referred to for any other reason as against any of the
Plaintiffs’ Releasees, in any arbitration proceeding or other civil, criminal, or administrative action
or proceeding, other than such proceedings as may be necessary to effectuate the provisions of this

Stipulation; or
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(c)  shall be construed against any of the Releasees as an admission, concession,
or presumption that the consideration to be given hereunder represents the amount which could be
or would have been recovered after trial;
provided, however, that if this Stipulation is approved by the Court, the Parties and the Releasees
and their respective counsel may refer to it to effectuate the protections from liability granted
hereunder or otherwise to enforce the terms of the Settlement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

39, All of the exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that there exists a conflict or
inconsistency between the terms of this Stipulation and the terms of any exhibit attached hereto,
the terms of the Stipulation shall prevail.

40. Defendants warrant that, as to the payments made or to be made on behalf of them,
at the time of entering into this Stipulation and at the time of such payment they, or to the best of
their knowledge any persons or entities contributing to the payment of the Settlement Amount,
were not insolvent, nor will the payment required to be made by or on behalf of them render them
insolvent, within the meaning of and/or for the purposes of the United States Bankruptcy Code,
including §§ 101 and 547 thereof. This representation is made by each of the Defendants and not
by their counsel.

41.  In the event of the entry of a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction
determining the transfer of money to the Settlement Fund or any portion thereof by or on behalf
of Defendants to be a preference, voidable transfer, fraudulent transfer, or similar transaction and
any portion thereof is required to be returned, and such amount is not promptly deposited into the

Settlement Fund by others, then, at the election of Lead Plaintiffs, Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants
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shall jointly move the Court to vacate and set aside the Releases given and the Judgment or
Alternate Judgment, if applicable, entered in favor of Defendants and the other Releasees pursuant
to this Stipulation, in which event the releases and Judgment, or Alternate Judgment, if applicable,
shall be null and void, and the Parties shall be restored to their respective positions in the litigation
as provided in ¥ 34 above and any cash amounts in the Settlement Fund (less any Taxes paid, due,
or owing with respect to the Settlement Fund and less any Notice and Administration Costs
actually incurred, paid, or payable) shall be returned as provided in ¥ 34.

42.  The Parties intend this Stipulation and the Settlement to be a final and complete
resolution of all disputes asserted or which could be asserted by Lead Plaintiffs and any other
Settlement Class Members against the Defendants® Releasees with respect to the Released
Plaintiffs’ Claims. No Party shall assert any claims of any violation of Rule 11 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure relating to the institution, prosecution, defense, or settlement of this
Action. The Parties agree that the amounts paid and the other terms of the Settlement were
negotiated at arm’s length and in good faith by the Parties, including through a mediation process
supervised and conducted by Gregory P. Lindstrom, Esq. of Phillips ADR, and reflect the
Settlement that was reached voluntarily after extensive negotiations and consultation with
experienced legal counsel, who were fully competent to assess the strengths and weaknesses of
their respective clients’ claims or defenses.

43, While retaining their right to deny that the claims asserted in the Action were
meritorious, Defendants and their counsel, in any statement made to any media representative
(whether or not for attribution) will not assert that the Action was commenced or prosecuted in
bad faith, nor will they deny that the Action was commenced and prosecuted in good faith and is

being settled voluntarily after consultation with competent legal counsel. In all events, Lead
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Plaintiffs and their counsel and Defendants and thetr counsel shall not make any accusations of
wrongful or actionable conduct by any Party concerning the prosecution, defense, and resolution
of the Action, and shall not otherwise suggest that the Settlement constitutes an admission of any
claim or defense alleged.

44, The terms of the Settlement, as reflected in this Stipulation, may not be modified
or amended, nor may any of its provisions be waived except by a writing signed on behalf of both
Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants (or their successors-in-interest).

45, The headings herein are used for the purpose of convenience only and are not meant
to have legal effect.

46.  The administration and consummation of the Settlement as embodied in this
Stipulation shall be under the authority of the Court, and the Court shall retain jurisdiction for the
purpose of entering orders providing for awards of attorneys’ fees and Litigation Expenses to
Plaintiffs’ Counsel and enforcing the terms of this Stipulation, including the Plan of Allocation {or
such other plan of allocation as may be approved by the Court) and the distribution of the Net
Settlement Fund to Settlement Class Members.

47.  The waiver by one Party of any breach of this Stipulation by any other Party shall
not be deemed a waiver of any other prior or subsequent breach of this Stipulation.

48.  This Stipulation, including its exhibits, and the Supplemental Agreement constitute
the entire agreement among Lead Plaintiffs and Defendants concerning the Settlement. Except as
provided in 4 37 above, all Parties acknowledge that no other agreements, representations,
warranties, or inducements have been made by any Party concerning this Stipulation, its exhibits,

or the Supplemental Agreement, other than those contained and memorialized in such documents.
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49, This Stipulation may be executed in one or more counterparts, including by
signature transmitted via facsimile, or by a .pdf/.tif image of the signature transmitted via email.
All executed counterparts and each of them shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.

50. This Stipulation shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and
assigns of the Parties, including any and all Releasees and any corporation, partnership, or other
entity into or with which any Party may merge, consolidate, or reorganize.

51.  The construction, interpretation, operation, effect, and validity of this Stipulation,
the Supplemental Agreement, and all documents necessary to effectuate it shall be governed by
the internal laws of the State of Illinois without regard to conflicts of laws, except to the extent
that federal law requires that federal law govern.

52.  Any action arising under or to enforce this Stipulation or any portion thercof, shall
be commenced and maintained only in the Court.

53.  This Stipulation shall not be construed more strictly against one Party than another
merely by virtue of the fact that it, or any part of it, may have been prepared by counsel for one of
the Parties, it being recognized that it is the result of arm’s-length negotiations between the Parties
and all Parties have contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of this Stipulation.

54.  All counse] and any other person executing this Stipulation and any of the exhibits
hereto, or any related Settlement documents, warrant and represent that they have the full authority
to do so and that they have the authority to take appropriate action required or permitted to be
taken pursuant to the Stipulation to effectuate its terms.

55, Lead Counsel and Defendants” Counsel agree to cooperate fully with one another
in seeking Court approval of the Preliminary Approval Order and the Settlement, as embodied in

this Stipulation, and to use best efforts to promptly agree upon and execute all such other
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documentation as may be reasonably required to obtain final approval by the Court of the
Settlement.

56.  If any Party is required to give notice to another Party under this Stipulation, such
notice shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given upon receipt of hand
delivery or email transmission, with confirmation of receipt. Notice shall be provided as follows:

If to Lead Plaintiffs or Lead Counsel: Bernstein Litowitz Berger & Grossmann LLP
Attn: John C. Browne, Esq.
1251 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020
Telephone: (212) 554-1400
Email: johnb@blbglaw.com

If to Defendants: Stericycle, Inc.
Attn: Kurt Rogers, General Counsel
28161 N. Keith Drive
Lake Forest, IL 60045
Telephone: (847) 607-2016
Email: kurt.rogers@stericycle.com

Latham & Watkins LLP

Attn: Michael Faris, Esq.

330 North Wabash Avenue, Suite 2800
Chicago, IL 60611

Telephone: (312) 876-6579

Email: michael. faris@lw.com

Winston & Strawn LLP

Attn: Robert Y. Sperling, Esq.
35 W. Wacker Drive

Chicago, IL 60601-9703
Telephone: (312) 558-7941
Email: rsperling@winston.com

57.  Except as otherwise provided herein, each Party shall bear its own costs.
58.  Whether or not the Stipulation is approved by the Court and whether or not the

Stipulation is consummated, or the Effective Date occurs, the Parties and their counsel shall use
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their best efforts to keep all negotiations, discussions, acts performed, agreements, drafts,
documents signed, and proceedings in connection with the Stipulation confidential.

59.  All agreements made and orders entered during the course of this Action relating
to the confidentiality of information shall survive this Settlement.

60.  No opinion or advice concerning the tax consequences of the proposed Settlement
to individual Settlement Class Members is being given or will be given by the Parties or their
counsel; nor is any representation or warranty in this regard made by virtue of this Stipulation.
Each Settlement Class Member’s tax obligations, and the determination thereof, are the sole
responsibility of the Settlement Class Member, and it is understood that the tax consequences may
vary depending on the particular circumstances of each individual Settlement Class Member.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Stipulation to be executed, by

their duly authorized attorneys, as of February 14, 2019.

Adam H, Wierzbowski

1251 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020
Telephone: (212) 554-1400
Facsimile: (212) 554-1444

Lead Counsel for Lead Plaintiffs
and the Settlement Class
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Jason M. Kirschberg
GADOW TYLER, PLLC
511 E Pearl St.

Jackson, MS 39201
Telephone: (601) 355-0654
Facsimile: (601) 510-9667

Counsel for Plaintiff

LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

o LS 2

Michadl Faris *
330 North Wabash Avenue, Suite 2800
Chicago, IL 60611
Telephone: (312) 876-6579

Counsel for Defendant Stericycle and
Individual Defendants

WINSTON & STRAWN LLP

By: 44/@@%
ﬁ!ﬁr{“{ . Sperling””
oseph L. Motto

. 35 W. Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL 60601-9703
Telephone: (312) 558-7941
Facsimile: (312) 558-5700

Counsel for Underwriter Defendants

#1257838
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Stericycle investors seek nod for $45 million settlement
in fraud suit

Stericycle investors seek nod for 545 million settlement in fraud suit

#0149 SECDERF D120 By Nicole Hanas  WESTIAW Securilies Enlorcement & Litigalion Daily Briefing  (Approx 3 pages)
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concealed illicit billing practices thal drove away cusiomers and cost the company more
Ihan $300 million.

In re Stericycle Inc. Securifes Litigatfon, No. 16-cv-T 145, memo supporting preliminary
sefffement approval fited, 2019 WL 923388 (N.D. Il Feb. 25, 2019}

The proposed agreementi, which is subject 1o approval by U.S. Dislricl Judge Andrea R.
Wood of the Northern Gistrict of lllinois, would resolve claims thai Lake Forest-based
Stericycle failed 10 disclose "aulomatic price increases” that nearly doubled its revenue
from 2013 1o 2015.

CEO Charles Alutio and Chief Financial Officer Dan Ginnelli are named defendants, along
with olher current and former execulives, nine indivigual directors and eight underwrilers of
the company's September 2015 public offering.

Co-lead plaintiffs Public Employees' Retirement Syslem of Mississippi and Arkansas
Teacher Retirement System say in a Feb. 25 memo supporting preliminary settlement
approval thal the deal is "a highly favorable resull” for Lhe class after two and a half years of
litigation.

MissPERS and ATRS are urging Judge Wood to give inilial approval for the deal and allow
them to notify polential class members who losl money on Stericycle shares purchased in
the 2015 offering or ¢n the open markel during a five-year period ending Feb. 21, 2018.

Alleged billing scam

The suil, liled in July 2016 and amended several times, said the defendants concealed
Slericycle's praclice of increasing rates as much as 18 percent every six months lor small-
quanlily customers that generate low volumes of waste.

The cempany reported "astronemical’ revenue growth, from about $1.5 billion in 2013 to
neary $3 billion in 2015, which the defendants falsely afiributed to sireng customer
relationships and other faclors, the revised complaint filed in March 2018 said.

The billing scheme started te emerge in February 2016 when Slericycle setiled a False
Claims Acl case involving government cuslomers for $28.5 miflion and revealed in August
2017 {hat it had agreed to pay $295 million to seftle a customer class-action lawsuit over
billing praclices, the suit said.

Stericyle's share price, which was as high as $14S on Oct, 22, 2015, closed Feb. 22, 2018,
al $60.63, afler the company said it expected pricing pressure on small-quantity customers
to negalively impact 2018 linancial results, the suit said.

The defendants moved to dismiss the revised suitin May 2018, arquing that it was filed
outside of the applicable two-year statute of limilations for claims under the Securities
Exchange Acl of 1934.

The molion was still pending in December when the parties reached an agreement in
principle to setile the suit, the memo supporling preliminary settlement approval says.

'Credible’ defenses

hitps://1.next.westlaw.com/Document/If4b351233aa4 11e8adfeaB2903531a62/View/FullText. himl?contextData=(sc. Default)&transition Type=Defauli&fir. ..

Topics

Soouriiins
Fraud
Satdamant

Liligalion
Relaied Filings

Memo support
approval: 2015 WL
Amendec compiaint: ¥

ry sefllement
2704128
Judicial Profiles

Arcirea B Wood, U.S Dislrigl Judge, N.D. I,
Atlorney Profiles

Ayl Jositsan, Bernatein Litowitz Barger &
Grossmann
Vharrboweesid and Ju n y
Lilowilz Berger & Grossmann

Sean M. Berkowitz and Michaal J. Farls;
Latham & Walkins, Rofedt ¥, Spesling and
Josaph L Moitio; Winsion & Strawn, James

F Smith 11} Winston & Strawn lor Dalandants

LCompany Reporls

Slericycle Inc.

1

112



7/28/2020

Westlaw.

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Document/if4b351233aa411eSadfea82903531a62/View/FullTexl. html?contextData=(s¢.Default)&iransilionType=Default&fir. ..

Stericycie investors seek nod for $45 million settlement in fraud suit | Secondary Sources | Westlaw

MissPERS and ATRS mainlain thal the proposed settlement is “fair, reasonable and
adequale,” given the substantial risks of continued litigation.

The dismissal motion raises "credible arguments” about the stalute of limitalions and the
plaintiffs’ failure 1o allege facts supporting a strong inference of fraudulent or reckless
deception, {he memo says.

The $45 million recovery also provides a "significant benefit” Lo the class, considering
Stericycle's declining financial condition, the memo says.

The company reported only $52 million in ¢cash on hand at the end of 2018, according to
the memo.

MissPERS and ATRS say lhe proposed class meels certification requirements under
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)3), because common factual and legal issues
predominale over individual issues specific to certain ctass members.

Lead counsel Bernslein Litowilz Berger & Grossmann plans to reques! attorney fees
totaling 25 percent of the settlement amount, or $11.2 million, plus reimbursement of
litigation expenses not to exceed $350,000, the memo says.

By Nicole Banas
Related Articles

Related Articles from Westlaw Securities Enforcement & Litigation Daily Briefing
Article: Waste disposal irm, investors spar over limeliness of fraud suil 2018 SECDBRF
0363

Date: June 26, 2018

Stericycle Ing. shareholders say in Chicago federal court papers that they timely sued the
medical wasle disposal firm for allegedly concealing "automalic price increases” lhal drove
customers away and cost the company more than $300 million in settlements.

End of © 2020 Thomson Reulers. No claim to original U.S. Governmenl Works.
Document
| #0A0 Thomson Reuters  Privacy Statemenl  Ascessibdily  Supglier Terms Contacl Us 3-800-REF-ATTY (1-800-733-2889)
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GURBIR §. GREWAL

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY

Division of Law

124 Halsey Strest — 5™ Floor

P.O. Box 45029

Newark, New Jersey 07101

25 Market Street — 7" Floor

P.O. Box 093

Trenton, New Jersey 08625

Attorneys for New Jersey Division of Consumer Affairs and
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection

By:  Jeffrey Koziar
Deputy Attorney General
(973) 648-7819

Ray Lamboy
Deputy Attorney General
(609) 376-2789

FILED
APR 25 2019

Divislon of Consumer Affairs

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY
DIVISION OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION

In the Malter of

STERICYCLE, INC.

Respondent.

Admimstrative Action

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS this matter was opened by the New Jersey Division of Consumer Affairs, Office

of Congumer Protection (*“Division™), as an investigation to determine whether violations of the New

Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, NJ.S.A. 56.8-1 el seq. (“CFA™), and the Regulations Governing

General Advertising, NJA.C. 13:45A-9.] et seq. (“Advertising Regulations™), and by the New
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Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (“"NJDEP” or the “Departmént" , 4s an investigation
to determine whether violations of the Solid Waste Utilitly Control Act, N.I.S.A, 48:13A-1 et seq.
(“SWUCA™), and its enacting regulations, specifically, N.J.A.C. 7:26H—5.]2 (*Customer Bill of
Rights™), have been or are being committed by Steﬁcyeie, Inc., as well as by its owners, officers,
directors, ﬁanagers, employces, representatives, and ag?nts (“Stericycle™ or “Respondent”)
(hereinatter referred to as the “Investigation™); |

WHEREAS the Division alleges that Respondent viglated the CFA and the Advertising
Regnlations by, among other things: (1) mak}ng Sales solicitations, including written promotional
materials, for biomedical waste containers to dentists which misrepresented the applicable EPA
medical waste disposal regulations; (2) failing to ensure that authorized individuals were signing
contracts on behalf of dentists; and (3) failing to cancel contracts with dentists which had been
entered into by unauthorized individuals;

WHEREAS the Department all;ages that Respondent vig]ated SWUCA and the Customer
Bill of Rights by, among otlier things: (1) failing to respond tc; customer complaints regarding
changes in pricing and other terms of the relationship in a prompt, courteous and efficient manner,

N.J.A.C. 7:26H-5.12(c)(5); (2) failing to notify customers in writing at least ten days prior to any

increase in the service component of its rate, N.J.A.C. 7:26H-5.12(c)(7); (3) failing to assist
customers in selecting the most favorable service to meet the oustomer’s needs at the most
reascnable rate, N.J A.C. 7:261-1-5.@(0)( 13); and (4) including automatic renewal clauses in its
Waste Services Contracts or Aglzeemcnts which call for an automatic renewal of such contracts or
agreements, N.JLA.C. 7:26H-5.12(c)(16);

WHERLEAS Respondent has denied the allegations;
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WHEREAS the Division, Department and Respondent (collectively, “Parties™) have reached
an amiéable agreement thereby resolving the issues in controversy and conqluding the Investigation
without the need for further action, and Respondent has voluntarily cooperated with the nvestigation
and consented to the entry of the within order without admitting to any alleged violation (“Consent
Qrder”) and for good ¢ause shown;

TT 1S ORDERED AND AGREED ss follows:

1. EFFECTIVE DATE

1.1 This Congent Order shall be effective oﬁ the date that it is filed with the Division or
Department, whichever is later (“Effective Date‘;).

1.2 Any obligation imposed by this Consent Order that is beyond that which is required
by the CFA, Adverstising Regulations, SWUCA, or the Customer Bill of Rights shall only be
imposed for a period of five (3) years from the Effective Date.

2. DEFINITIONS

As used in this Conseut Order, the following words or terins shall have the following

meanings, which meanings shall apply wherever the words and terms appear in this Consent Otder:

2.1 “Advertisement” shall be defined in accordance with NLJ.8.A. 56:8-1(a) for purposes

of the CFA, and in accordance with N.J.A.C. 13:45A.9.1 for purposes of the Advertising

Regulations. These definitions apply to other forms of the word “Advertisement” including
“Advertise” and “Advertised.”

22  “Affected Conswmer[s]” shall refer to those Consumers \;\.'llo purchased the HDDS
Black Box Program from Stericycle and who are identified in Exhibit A.

2.3 “Attorney General™ shall refer to the Attorney G'cncral of the State of New Jersey and

the Office of the Attorney General of the State of New Jersey.

[V}
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2.4  “Consumer” shall refer to any Person who is offered Merchandise for Sale.

2.5  “EPA” shall refer (o the Environmental Protection Agency.

2.6.  “HDDS Black Box Program® shall refer to Stericycle’s Hazardous Drug Disposal
Service for hazardous drug wastes.

27 “Include” and “Including” shall be construed as broadly as possible and shall mean
“without limitation.”

2.8 “Merchandise” shall be defined in accordance with N.J.A.C. 56:8-1(c) and shall
include the HDDS Black Box Program

29  “New Jersey” and “State” shall refer to the State of New-Jersey.

2.10  “Person” shall be defined in accordance with N.JLA.C. 56:8-1(d).

2,11  “Restitution” shall refer to the amount of money spent by and to be returned to each
Affected Consumer for the purchase and maintenance of the HDDS Black Box Program.

2.12 “Sale™ shall be deﬁned_in aceordance with N.J.S.A. 56:8-1{e). This definitionapplies
to other torms of the word “Sale” including “Sell.”

2,13 “Services” shall refer to the services offered by Stericycle to healthcare providers
including, but not limited to, the HDDS Black Box Program.,

2.14 “Waste Services Cémr‘a’ots and Agreements” means.any written contract or agreement
entered into by Stericycle and any Person receiving Services,

3, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

3.1 Except with respect to Cansumers who are required to properly disposc of hazardous
~ drug waste in acecrdance with the applicable State or Federal statutes and/or regulations, such as

Small Quantity Generators or P-Waste Generators, Respondent represents and warrants that it is not
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currently engaged in the Advertisement, marketing, offer for Sale and/or sale of the HDDS Black
Box Program to New Jersey Consumers. |

3.2  Respondent represents and warrants that its Waste Services Contracts and Agreements
utilized in the State of New Jersey all inciude its standard State of New Jersey Solid Waste Utility
Regulation Contract Rider, which conforms to N.JA.C. 7:26H-5.12(c)(16). The automatic renewal
clause of any existing contract or agreément shall bé cotisidered void.

3.3 Respondent represents and watrants that any term or terms in its Standard Waste
Services Contracts and Agreements used in the State of New Jersey that are, or may be, contrary to
those terms contained in its State of New Jersey Solid Waste Utility Regulation Contract Rider are
expressly excluded and void.

3.4  Respondent represents and warrants that its Waste Services Contracts and Agreements
shall no longer contain clauses that allow it to raise rates without nolifying customers in writing at
least 10 days in advance, pursuant to NJ.AC. 7:26H-5.12{c)(7). Respondent represents and _
warrants that its Waste Seyrvices Coniracts and Agreements used in the State of New Jersey shall not
conlain clauses that impose additional charges, penalties or disruption of service on customers who
make partial payments on collection service and disposal fees and seck dispute resolution with the
Department regarding the amount of the service or pricing issue, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:26H-
5.12(c)(11).

4, REQUIRED AND PROHIBITED BUSINESS PRACTICES

4.1  Respondent shall to not c:igage in any unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the

conduet of its business in the State and shall comply with all applicable State and/or Federal laws,

rules and regulations, as now constituted or as may hereafter be amended, including the CFA, the

4B818-7168-1822.w1




Advertising Regulations, S‘WUC'A and its enacting regulations, including the Customer Bill of
Rights. |

42  Except with respect to Consumers who are required to properly dispose ofhazardous
drug waste in accordance with the applicable Statc or Federal statutes and/or regulations, such.as
Small Quantity Generators or P-Waste Generators, Respondent shall not proactively Advertise, offer
for Sale and/or Sell the HDDS Black Box Program in New Jersey.

4.3 . In its Advertisement, offer for Sale and/or Sale ot Merchandise, Respondent shall
accurately state all applicable EPA, NIDEP or other applicable medical waste disposal regulations.

44  Respondent shall verify that all contracts for the Sale of Merchandise in the State of
New Jersey include a statement, in large bold type, by the signatory of the contract verifying thathe
or she is an authorized representative of the Consumer and is théreby authorized to enter into the
contract and bind the Consumer to its terms,

4.5  Respondent will train customer service representatives within its current customer
service center to address the concemns and complaints of New Jersey Consumers. Such
representatives shall be trained on the Customer Bill of Rights. Customer seirvice center
representatives shatl also be instructed that it is a requirement that all solid waste utilities must assist
customers in the selection of the rate schedule most favorable for their individual requirements, in
accordance with N.JLA.C, 7:261-4,4(a)(3).

4.6 Respondent shall designate, by position, a representative whom the Department
and/or the Division may contact regarding customer complaints submitied to the Department and/or
Division conceming Respondent, in accordance with N.J AC 7:26H-5.12(c)5).

47  Respondent shall properly itemize customer bills for Mcrchandiée in accor@ncc with

N.JA.C. 7:26H-4.4(b)(3).

4818-7168-1922.v1




4.8  Respondent shall assist customers in the selection of the most favorab]e service to
meert the customers® needs at the most reasonable rates in accordance with NJA.C. 7:26H-
5.12(c)(13).

4.9  Respondent shall provide written notification 1o its customers that.waste servicés in
New Jersey are available on a competitive basis and shall include with that notice a copy of the
custorner bill of rights in accordance with N.JLA.C, 7:2611-5.12(b).

5. SETTLEMENT PAYMENT

5.1 The Parties have agreed to the settlement of the Investigation in the amount of Six
Hundred Sixty Two Thousand Eight Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($662,800.00) (“Settiement
Payment™), to be paid in accordance with Sections 5.1 and 5.2. |

5.2  Within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, out of the Setflement Payment,
Respondent shall pay One Hundred Sixty-Two Thousand Eight Hundred and 00/10¢ Dollars
{$162,800.00) to the Division (“Division Settlement Payiment™) and Five Hundred Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) to the Department (“Department Settlement Payment™).

5.3 TheDivision Settlement Paymenl is comprised of One Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand

and 00/100 Dollars {$155,000.00) in civil penalties, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 56:8-13, One Thousand

Eight Hundred Twenty and 00/100 Dollars ($1,820.00) in reimbursemient of the Division’s
investigative costs, pursuant to N.J.S.A. $6:8-11. and Five Thousand Nine Hundred Ei ghty and
00/100 Dollars (85,980.00) as reimbursement of the Division’s atlorneys’ fees, pursuant to NJ.S.A.
56:8-19.

54 The Departmenl Setilement Payment is comprised of Five Hundred Thousand and

00/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) in civil penalties, pursuant to NJ.A.C. 7:2611-5.19.
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5.5  The Parties agree that the civil penalties are payable to and tor the benefit of the State
and are not compensation for actual pecuniary loss. Respondent acknowledges {hat the ¢ivil penalties

are & nondischargeable debt under 11 U.S.C. §523(a)(7).

5.6  Respondent shail make the Division Settlement Payment by certified or cashier’s
check, mbney order, wire transfer or credit card payable to the “New Jersey Division of Consumer
Affairs” and forwarded to:

Jeffrey Koziar, Deputy Attorney General
Consumer Fraud Prosecution Section
State of New Jersey

Department of Law and Public Safety
Division of Law

124 Halsey Strect- 5™ Floor

Newark, New Jersey 07101

57  Respondent shall malke the Depariment Settlement Payment by certified or a cashier’s
or certified check payable to the “Treasurer, State of New Jersey” and shall include the altached
NJDEP invoices.

5.8 ° Upon making the Setflement Paymeni, Respondent shall immediately be fully
divested of any interest in, or ownership of, the monies paid and all interest in the monies, and any
subsequent interest or income derived therefrom, shall inure entirely to the benefit of the Division
and the Department pursuant to the terms herein.

6. AFFECTED CONSUMERS

6.1 Within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, Respondent shall nolify the Division
whether the Affected Consumers have received Restitution, Such notification shall also include the
following:

(a) The name and address of the Affected Consumer;

(b}  Identification of the Restitution provided to the Aftected Consumer;
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[(9)] Copies of all documents evidencing the Restitution; and

(d}  In the event that the Restitution was returned as undeliverable, the efforts that
Respondent has undertaken to locate the Affected Conswmer.

(6)  If Respondent is not able to locate any Affected Consumers for purposes of
providing Restitution, Respondent shall forward the amount due such Affected
Consumers to the Division. The Division shall have sole discretion as to how such
funds will be distributed.

6.2  Restitution payments to the Affected Consumers will be accompanied by a geneial
release to be executed by the Affected Consumers relegsing Respondent from any and all claims
which. the Affected Constumer may now have, might have, or could hereaftér have against
Respondent, of any type or kind, kuown or unkown, which the Affected Consumer have or may have
relating to or arising from Respondent’s marketing or sale of the Merchandise. The general release to
be executed by the Affected Consumefs i_sE attached hereto as Exhibit B

7. GENERAL PROVISIONS

7.4 This Consent Orderis entered into by the Parties as their own free and voluntary act
and with full knowledge and understanding of obligations and duties imposed l;y thig Consent Order,

7:2  This Consent Order shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance
with, the [aws of the State,

7.3 The Parties have fully reviewed the terms of this Consent Order and the rule that
uncertainty or ambiguity is to be construed against the drafter shall not apply 1o the construction or
interpretation of this Consent Qrder.

7.4 This Consent Order contains the enlire agreement between the Parties. Except as

otherwise provided herein, this Consent Order shall be modified only by a written instrument signed

by or on behalf of the Parties,

4819-7168-1922.v1




7.5  Exceptas otherwise explicitly provided in this Consent Ord‘er, nothing in this Consent
Order shall be construed to Iimit the authority of the Attorney General to protect the interests of the
State or tlie people of the State.

7.6 Tfany portion of this Consent Order is held invalid or unenforceable by operation of
law, the remaining terms of this Consent Order shall not be affected. -

7.7 This Consent Order shall be bi_nding upon the Respondent as well as its owners,
officers, directors, shareholders, founders, managers, agents, servants, employees, representativels,
successors and assigns, and any entity or device through which it may now or hereafter act, as well
as any Persons who have authority to control or who, in fact, control and direct its business, |

7.8 This Consent Order shall be bhlading upon the Partics and their successots in interest.
In no event shall assignment of any right, power or authority under this Consent. Order be used. to
avoid compliance with- this Consent Order.

7.9  This Consent Order is entered into by the Parties for settlement purposes only.
Neithier the fact of, nor any provision contained in this Consent Order shall constitute, or be
construed as: (a} an approval, sanction or authorization by the Attorney General, the Division, the
Department or any other govermmental unit of the State of any act or practice of Respondent; and (b)
an admission by Respondent that any of its acts or practices described in (;r prohibited sy this
Consent Order are unfair or deceptive or violate the CFA, the Advertising Regﬁlah’ons the SWUCA
and/or the Customer Bill of Rights. Neither the existence of, nor the terms of this Consent Order,
shall be deemed to constitute evidence or precedent of any kind except in: (a) any action or

proceeding by one of the Parties to enforce, rescind or otherwise implement or affirm any or all of .

the terms herein; or (b) any action or proceeding involving a Released Claim (as defined in Section

10
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8) to support a defense of res judicata, collateral estoppel, release or other theory of claim preclusion,
issue preclusion or similar defense.

7.10  The Parties represent and warrant an authorized representative of each has signed this
Consent Order with full knowledge, understanding and acceptance of its terms and that the
representative has done so with authority to legally bind the respective Pz;rty.

7.11  Unless otherwise prohibited by law, any signatures by the Parties required for entry of
-this Consent Order may be executed in countexparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which shali together be one and. the same Consent Order.

7.12  This Consent Order is a public document subject to the New Jersey Open Public
Records Act, N.JS.A. 47:1A-1 et seq.

7.13  The Parties hercby agree to comply with this Consent Order, which shall be fuully
enforceable as a final agency order in the Superior Court of New Jersey, under R, 4:67 and R. 4:70,
or as otherwise authorized pursuant to applicable law, The Parties agree not to contest the terms or
conditions of this Consent Order in aﬁy action to enforce its provisions.

7.14 . Nothing contained in this Consent Order shall limit 'Respoﬁdcnt’s ability to request
that the Department or Division amend, modify, or sirike any requirement or provision of this
Consent Order because of any amendment or modification to the applicable Federal or State statutes
or regulations or any other subsequent change to Respon&ent's business operations or corporate
structure. |

7.15 Nothing contained in this Consent Order restricts the ability of the Department to
raise the facts identified in the above allegations in any proceeding pursuant to NJ.S.AL13:1E-126 et

seq. (commonly referred to as “A901”7). However, this Consent Order may not be utilized by the

11
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Depe;,rtmcnt as the sole basis upon which to revoke any license or deny any permit or any other
application filed with the Department by Respondent.
8. RELEASE

8.1 In consideration of the payments, widertakings, mutual promises and obligations
provided for in this Consent Order and conditioned on Respondent making the Settlement Payment
in the manner referenced in Section 5, the Division and Depaﬁment hereby agree to release
Respondent from. any and all pending civil claims, Consumer related administiat ive ¢laims, or Solid
Waste Utility related administrative claims, to the extent permitted by State law, which the Division
andfor Department knew or should have known could have been brought prior to the Effective Date
agamst Respondent for violations of the CFA, Advertising Regulations, the SWUCA and/or the
Customer Bill of Rights, and/or the civil or administrative claims, penalties, or violations that-are,
currently pending, or that the Departiment or Division had or should have had knowledge ofthatmay
have been brought by the Department or Division as of the Effective Date of'this Consent Order,
pursuant to, including but not limited to, the CI'A, Advertising Regulations, the SWUCA and/or the
Customuer Bill of Rights arising out of the Investigation, or otherwise oceurring prior to the date
hereaf, as well as the matiers specifically addressed in this Consent Order (*Released Claims™).

8.2 Notwithstanding any term of this Congent Order, the following do not comprise
Released Claims: (2) private rights of action, provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent
Respondent from raising the defense of off-set against an Affected Conswner who has received
Restitution; (b} actions to enforce this Consent Order; and (e} any claims against Reépondent by any

other agency or subdivision of the State.

12
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ES FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY

9, PENALTI

91  The Attorney General {or designated representative) shall have the authority to
enforce the provisions of this Consent Order or to seek senctions for violations hereof or both,

9.2  IfRespondent fails to make the Settlement Payment in accordance with Section 5, the
Department and/or Division may bring a summary action.in the Superior Court to collect payment
puitsuant to R. 4:67-6, R. 4:70 and/or file this Consent Order as a judgment under the CFA, N.J.S.A.
56:8-14 and/or the Penalty Enforcement Law, N.J.S.A. 2A:58-1 et seq. and forwarded to a collection
agency.

93 The Parties agree that any future violations of the provisions'of Sections 4.1 through

4.9 of this Consent Order, the SWUCA and/or the Customer Bill of Rights may result in Respondent
being liable for enhanced civil penalties, N.JLA.C. 7:26H-5,15(c).
10. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS
10.1  Except as provided in this Consent Order, no provigion herein stall be constiued as:
(2)  Relieving Respondenl of its obligation to comply with all State and Federal
laws, regulations or rules, as now constituted or as may hereafter be
amended, or as pranting permission to engage in any acts or practices
prohibited by any such laws, regulations or rules; or
(b)  Limiting or expanding any right the Division and/or Department may
otherwise have to obtain information, documents or testimony from
Respondent pursuant to any State or Federal law, regulation or rule, as now
constituted or as may hereafter be amended, or limiting or expanding any
right Respondent may otherwise have pursuant to any State or Federal law,
regulation or rule, to oppose any process employed by the Division and/or

Departinent to obtain such information, documents or testimony.

11. NOTICES UNDER THIS CONSENT ORDER

"12.1  Except as otherwise provided herein, any notices or other documents naquirecl 10 be
sent to the Division, Department or Respondent pursuant to this Consent Order shail be sent by
United States mail, Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested, or other nationally recognized courier

13
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service that provides for tracking services and identification of the Person signing for the documents.
The notices and/or documents shall be sent to the following addresses:

For the Division:

Jetfrey Koziar, Deputy Attorney General
Consumer Fraud Prosecution: Section
State of New Jersey

Department of Law and Public Safety
Division of Law

124 Halsey Street — 5™ Floor

Newark, New Jersey 07101

For the Department;

Michaél Hastry

Director

State of New Jersey

Department of Environmental Protection

Waste Enfoicement, Pesticides and Release Prevention
401 East State Street

Trenton, New Jersey 08625

For Respondent:

Dennis M. Toft, Esq.

Chiesa, Shahinian & Giantomasi, PC
Cne Boland Drive

West Orange, New Jersey 07052

With a Copy to:

Stericycle, Inc.

28161 N, Keith Drive
Lake Forest, Tilinois 60043
Altn: General Counsel

14
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IT 1S ON THE A*P { :‘ DAY OF Q—'S » 2019 SO ORDERED.
1

GURBIR S. GREWAL
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY

By: 7?4-/0'79? ﬁx/—

FAI1 R. RODRIGUEZ, ACTING DIRECTOR
DIVISION OF CONSUMER AFFAIR

THE PARTIES CONSENT TO THE FORM, CONTENT AND ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT
ORDER ON THE DATES BESIDE THEIR RESPECTIVE SIGNATURES.

FOR THE DIVISION:

GURBIR 8. GREWAL
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY

_ Gell ]k |

Je cffrcy Koziar

Deputy Attorney General

Consumer Fraud Prosecution Section
124 Halsey Street ~ 5th Floor

P.O. Box 45029

Newark, New Jersey 07101

(973) 648-7819

FOR THE DEPARTMENT:

W / %// 6///1//9

Michael Hastry
Division of Waste Enforgement, Pegficides and Release Pr evenhon
Mail Code 09-03 f

15
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9 Ewing Street
PO Box 420
Trenton, NJ 08625-0420

FOR RESPONDENT:

CHIESA, SHAHINIAN & GIANTOMASI, PC

By: / . M Dated: "lv/ ub/ i ,20']9

Dennis M. Toft, Esq.

One Boland Drive
West Orange, New Jersey 07052
(973) 530-2014

STERICYCLE, INC.

By: /%/% %—— Dated: %/M’/ , 2019

Lort M, Pogers

(Print Name)

EVP ! Getreval fovnse]
(Print Title)

281p) . Keith De. | Lake Foect 1L, Good§
(Print Address)

16
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39.
40.
41,
42.
43,
44,
45.
46.
47,

3
—

Aberdeen Family Dental - ($1,725)
Absecon Family Dental PA. ($1,863)
AC Dental (31,164)

Advanced Dentistry of Summniit ($65)
Allied Dental of Ofd Biidge PA (§1,863)
Altomonte, Jack DMD ($496.80)
Amara Dentat of Howell ($1035)
American Dental Centeis PA ($552)
Barnes, Jeffrey Dr, ($512.28)
Barrington Dental Association {$1,920)
Bimbaum, Jason Dr, ($828)

Bisignano, Stone & Eckel Medical (§557.28)
Cape May Family Dental ($1,863)
Caring Dentistry tor Children ($1,311)
Central Jersey Oral & Maxillofacial (37875)
Chapel Hill Dental Arts ($1,449)
Cherry Hill amily Dental PA ($1,863)
Clapcich, Robert J, DMD ($3,024)
Clara Baton Professional Dental Group ($129)
Cohen & Schwartz DDS ($1,290)
Community Dental Of Hamilton ($315)
Cosmetjc Dental Associates ($3,091.20)
Cross Keys Family Dental PA (32,139)
David, Lydia DMD ($289.80)

Defabio, Dr EC ($387)

Dental Care of Brigantine ($464.40)
Dentistry At § Brunswick ($323.20)
Dentistry for Children ($165.75)
Dentistry of Haddon ($372.60)
Deptford Family Dental ($1,863)
Diseepola, Joseph T DMD ($897)
Discepola, Patrick DDS ($250)

Dr. Sacks, Jones & Oberfeld ($372.60)
Edison Dental 27 PC ($355)
Egan-Lodge, Beth DMD PA ($2,212)
Egg Harbor Family Dental PA {1,§63)
Eisen, Dr. Steven ($1,559)

Elessawi, Julie DDS ($124)

Elm Court Dental Associates (§100)
Elmer Pediatries ($372.60)

E-Smile Dental ($445.40)

Fairlawn Dental Associates ($528)
Family Dentistry of Brick ($372.60)
Feldman, Dr. Mare ($8,852.76)
Freeinan, Dr. Myron ($1,422)
Fuscaldo, Dr. DDS ($442.80)

Ginter, Danie] T. DMD ($280.50)

17
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48,

49.

50.

a3.
64.

66.
67.
63,
- 69,
70.
71.
72,
73.
74,
75.
76.
77.
78.
79,
80,
81.
82.
~83.
4.
85,
36.
87.
88,
9.
90.
ol.
02,
93,
o4,
9s.
96,
o7.

93.

31,
52,
53,
54,
55.
56.
57.
58.
59,
60.
61.

Glickman, Steven DDS ($552)

Goodwin, Robert A Ir. DMD (81,711.20)
Grasso, Daniel DMD (82,451.60)
Greenberg, Ben DDS ($207)

Greenbrook Family Dental Care (§1,079.76)
Hamilton Township Dental Association (3483)
Harihar, Kumar DDS ($552)

Haziet Family Dental PA. (31,863)

Howell Family Dental PA (31,794)

Hudson Park Dental (3$2,920.56)

Hunterdon Edodentics {$456.80)
Hunterdon Family Dental PA ($1,863)
‘Tulo, T.S. DMD (81,134)

Jackson, Dr. Marie DMD (§414)

Jacobson, Barry DMD ($496.80)

JW Dental ($375)

- Karlsberg, Dr, Herbert R (§1,806)

Keck, Dr. ($553.50)

Klohn, Brian DMD ($132)

Korwin, Robert DMD ($276)
Koslowsky, Deymour DDS PA ($774)
Krugman, Gary DMD (3601.68)
Kurpis Cosmetic Dentistry ($1,341.60)

. Lake View Dental Adsociates ($455.90)

Lzkewood Family Dental PA (£1,725)

Lee Dental and Facial ($483)

Lesik, Dr. Barbarn ($4,644)

Littlé Egg Dental ($1,329.52)

Little. Falls Family Dental (§1,449)

Logan, Robert-DMD ($1,032)

Lozier, Dr, Scott ($267)

Maanahawkin Family Dental PA ($1,363)
Manolis, Manolakakis DMD ($2,418)
Marx, Johm D DMD (3149) '
Maslow, Dr. Scott ($540)

Massenzio, A.J., DMD (3189

McDermott, Dr. Patrick (§350)

Mercurio, Richard ($481.80)

Mermet, Robert ($414)

Miller Dental Arts, PA ($69)

Millville Family Dental {$1,863)
Minichetti, John DMD ($1,320)

Mollica, Philip MS DMD ($124.20)
Monmouth Family FHealth Dental ($596.16)
Montville Oral Surgery Associates ($1.548)
Nighols, Sophia DMD ($298)

North Jersey Oral Surgeons ($421.20)
Notchview Dental Group (3336)

Ocean Family Dental ($897.10)

Oral Surgery and Dental Implants ($475.20)
Parsippany Family Dental ($1,863)

18
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99, Parlavecchio, Mare DDS (31,032)

100. Patient First Dentistry Summit ($1,660)
101. Phillipsburg Endodontics ($1,863)

102. Phillipsburg Family Dentistry ($1,863)
103. Piper, Dr. Shawn ($1,564.80)

104, Piscataway Family Dentistry PA ($1,863)
105. Preimier Oral Surgicai Group ($2,104)
106. Quelity Dental Associates ($897)

107, Rand, Elliot J. DDS ($786.80)

108. Randolph Center for Oral Surgery ($13,446)
109. Rathod & Associales PA (52,390)

110. Raziano, Dr. John ($2,133)

111. Red Bank Dental Associates ($1,290.96)
112. Resnick, Leonard DDS ($251)

113. Riverside Oral Surgery ($5,013.22)
114. Rizzo, Gerald V. DMD (§2,838)

115. Roselle Park Dental Assoc LLC ($328)
[16. Rosenfeld, Jason DMD ($276)

117. Rosuer, Ted M, DMD ($276)

118. Rotondi, Alan DDS ($483)

119, Ruvo, Scott DDS & Bodnar DMD  ($1,737.92)
120, Sage Deutal .(3690)

121. Salazar Dental LLC ($293.52)

122, Salvador, Victor DMD ($69)

123. Sgroi, Charles F DMD ($366)

124. Sheenan, Carclyn DMD ($220.80)

125, Shelton Dental PA ($3,624.13) -

126. Shore Family Dental Assoc PA ($1,863)
127, Silverstrom, David DDS (51,741.50)
128, Skurla, Leslie A DMD ($448)

129, Sloan Dental (31,873.08)

130, Smile USA (31,449.36)

131. Sofos. Dr, Effie DMD ($386.40)

132. Somers Point Tental ($1,266.96)

133. Sosna, Dr. Howard DDS ($1,548)
34, Star Dental ($381)

135, Sussman, Dr, Laurence ($7,785)
136, Sykes, David L ($485.40)

137. The Perfect Smile ($922.80)

138, Tuttle, Dr. ($1,730.40)

139, Universal Dental ($2.116.08)

140. Universal Dentistry ($2,139)

141. Upper Deerfield Demal Center ($1.692)
142. Vallese, Richard DDS ($1820)

143, Vidal, Lillian DDS LLC {$69)

144, Vineland Qral Surgeons ($378)

[45. Vitale, John DMD ($1884)

146. Ward, Dr, Michael T DMD ($828)

147, Warren Oral Surgery ($387)

148, Weinberg, Jay DMD ($129)

149, West Mortis Dental Assosiates (31,112)

19
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150.
I51.
152.
153.
154,
155.

Westfield Oral Surgery Associates ($2,985)
Willingboro Family Dental PA (31,363}
Wolensld & Verdi DMDs ($762.75)
Wartzel, Robert DMD ($66)

Ykumar Dental LLC (3370.20)

Yudkin, Leo Dr, ($66)

20
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EXHIBIT B

GENERAL RELEASE
This General Releasé (“Release™), dated . 2019, is executed
BY the Releasor: (Name of applicable Affectted Consumer), referred to as “I” or “me”,
TO the Releasee: Stericycle, Inc., along with any affiliates, referred to as “Stericycle™.
1. Release. Upon acéepting the enclosed sum, representing the amount paid by me for

Stericycle’s. Hazardous Drug Disposal Selvice, also known as, Stericyele’s HDDS Black Box
Program, and such other valuable consideration given by Stericycle to me, I hereby release, waive;
reqlinquish and forever discharge and give up any and all claims whichI may now have, might have,
or could hereafter have against Stericycle, of any type or kind, known or unkown, wiiich I have or
may have relating to or arising from Stericycle’s Hazardous Drug Disposal Service prograni,

2, Consideration, The consideration set forth above shall constitute full consideration for
making this Release.

3."  WhoisBound.Tam bound by this Release, as is anyone who is a successor to my interests or
rights, This Release is made for Stericycle’s benetit and all who succeed Stericyele’s interests or
rights.

4. Signatures. T understand and agree to the terins of this Release as my knowing and voluntary
act. In executing this instrument, I represent and warrant that I have full power and authority 1o

execute this instrument and that all approvals and other actions necessary in conncction with the
effective execution by me have been obtained and are in full force and effect,

[Name of Affected Consumer]

By:

Name:
Title:

4819-7165-1822.v1
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MARY SILLER, SUPERVISOR
BSWCKE - CENTRAL

.MAIL CODE 09-01

PO BOX 420

TRENTON, NJ 08625-0407

(609} 292-6305

SOLID WASTE FEES & PENALTIES
BERGEN, ESSEX, HUDSON, MORRIS,
PASSAIC, SUSSEX AND WARREN
COUNT IES

JOHN BARRY, SECTION CHIEF
RSWO&E - SUPPORT SERVICES
Ma 1l CODE 09-01

PO BOX 120

TRENTON, NJ 08625-0407
(609} 292-6305

ENT IRE STATE

BRIAN PETITT, SUPERVISOR
BSWCRE - GENTRAL

MAIL CODE 09-01

PO BOX 420 .
TRENTON, NJ 08625-0407

(609) 292-6305

SOLID WASTE FEES & PENALTIES
HUNTERDON, MERCER, MIDDLESEX,
MONMOUTH, SOMERSET AND UNION
COUNTIES

ROBERT GOMEZ, SUPERYISOR
BSWCRE-TRANSPORTATION UNIT
MAIL CODE 09-01

FO BOX k20

TRENTON, NJ 08625-0407
1609) 292-3837

ENTIRE STATE

PAT FERRARO, SUPERVISOR
BSWCEE - - SOUTHERN

MAIL CODE 09-01

PO BOX 420

TRENTON, NJ 08625~-0407

(609) 292-5305

ATLANTIC, BURLINGTON, CAMDEN,
CAPE MAY, CUMBERLAND,
GLOUCESTER, OCEAN AND SALEM
COUNTIES

DS90IB {Rav. 03-14.02)

REQUESTED CHANGES TO INFORMATION FOR PRIMARY BILLING PARTY

Cantact Organization:

Contact Peraon: Phone No.:
Street Address:
State: Zip:

Postal City:
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For Further Information:
Media Inquiries-
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609-292-4791
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609-984-5828

For Immediate Release:
April 26, 2019

Office of The Attorney General
- Gurbir S. Grewal, Aticrney General
Division of Law

- Michelle Miller, Director

Division of Consumer Affairs

- Paul R. Rodriguez, Acting Director

AG Grewal Announces Settlement with Medical Waste
Disposal Firm Stericycle over Allegedly Deceptive Sales,

Business Practices
Overall $867,000-Plus Settlement Includes Payment to the State,
Reimbursement to Customers

view settlement agreement

TRENTON — Attorney General Gurbir S. Grewal, the Division of Consumer A ffairs and
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) announced today that the
State has entered into an overall 5867 800 settlement with Illinois-based medical waste
disposal company Stericycle. The settlement resolves allegations that Stericycle engaged
in a variety of deceptive sales, pricing and other unlawful practices in its dealings with
New Jersey dentists.

The State began investigating Stericycle in May 2016 after the New Jersey Dental
Association wrate to the Division of Consumer Affairs complaining about the company.
Specifically, the Association reported that Stericycle sales agents were pressuring
dentists to purchase a Hazardous Drug Disposal Service Black Box Program (HDDS),
which they claimed was required for the disposal of certain substances — even trace
amounts -- by an EPA regulation. No such EPA regulation existed.

DEP’s investigation was prompted by complaints to the Department about Stericycle’s
alleged unannounced price increases and unresponsive customer service, among other
concems. Stericycle was also accused of allowing unauthorized individuals to sign
confracts on behalf of dentists, and of failing to cancel such contracts when the
unauthorized status of the signatory became known.

“We expect businesses operating in New Jersey to act with integrity, to respect New
Jersey consumers, and to play by our rules,” said Attorney General Grewal. “That’s the
basic promise companies make to their customers, and it’s what our law comnmands. So
when businesses betray the trust of New Jersey consumers, we will hold them
accountable ta the fullest extent, just as we're doing today.”

“Ensuring fair business practices in waste services is an important part of the DEP's
enforcement activity,” said DEP Deputy Commissioner Debbie Mans, “Today's action
demonstrates New Jersey's commitment to promoting and enforcing legal compliance in
this sector to protect businesses, their customers and New Jersey's environment.”

https:/fwww.nj.govioag/newsreleases19/pr20190426a.him!
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“Stericycle’s business approach crossed the line from aggressive to deceptive, and that
kind of conduct cannot be tolerated,” said Division of Consumer Affairs Director Paul R.
Rodriguez. “This case should serve as notice not only to regulated waste disposal
operators, but to all businesses operating in our state: We are corunitted to protecting
New Jersey consumers, and if you deceive them, cheat them or otherwise treat them
unlawfully, we will take action.”

Under the settlement, Stericycle will pay DEP $500,000, as a majority of allegations
resolved by the settlement invelve violations of the New Jersey Solid Waste Utitity
Control Act and DEP’s Customer Bill of Rights. Stericycle will pay the Division of
Consumer Affairs $155,000 to resolve allegations of having violated the State’s
Consumer Fraud Act and New Jersey Advertising Regulations.

Stericycle will alse provide a total of $205,160 in reimbursement to a total of 155 New
Jersey dentists affected by its allegedly deceptive practices. Stericycle will reimburse the
State a total of $7,800 to cover its investigative and legal costs. The company denjes any
wrongdoing.

The company is prohibited under the settlement from proactively advertising, offering
for sale or selling the HDDS Black Box Program in New Jersey — except with respect to
consumers who are required to properly dispose of hazardous drug waste n accordance
with applicable state or federal statutes and regulations, such as Small Quantity
Generators or P-Waste Generators,

Under other non-monetary terms of the settlement, Stericycle must:
= Properly itemize any bills submitted to its customers.

= Train its customer service representatives on the Customer Bill of Rights, as well
as the Jegal requirement in New Jersey that all solid waste utilities must assist
customers in selecting the rate schedule most favorable for their individual
requirements,

= Verify that all contracts for the sale of merchandise in New Jersey include a
statement by the sighatory of the contract -- in large, bold typeface -- verifying
that he or she is an authorized representative of the consumer, and is authorized to
enter into a binding contract an behalf of the consumer.

= Provide written notice to customers that waste services in New Jersey are
available on a competitive basis and shall include with that notice a copy of the
Customer Bill of Rights.

= Designate a company representative wbom DEP or the Division of Consumer
Affairs may contact regarding customer complaints submitted to the agencies.

The Stericycle matter was handled on behalf of New Jersey by Lead Deputy Attorney
General Jeffrey Koziar, of the Division of Law’s Consumer Fraud Prosecution Section,
and Deputy Attorney General Ray Lamboy of the Division of Law’s Environmental
Enforcement and Envirconmental Justice Section.

#HHH#

GE@E =~ o

Follow the New Jersey Attorney Generals Office online at Twitter, Facebook,
Instagram, Flicker & YouTube. The social media links provided are for reference only.
The New Jersey Attorney General'’s Office does not endorse any non-governmental
websiles, companies or applications.
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SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON ri.pP
THOMAS R. KAUFMAN, Cal. Bar No, 177936

1901 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 1600

L.os Angeles, California 90067-6055

Telephone: 310.228.3700

Fax: 310.228.3701

Email: tkaufman¢@sheppardmullin.com

Attorneys for Defendant
STERICYCLE, INC.

LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T, BARNES
Kevin T. Barnes {SBN 138477)

Gregg Lander (SBN 194018)

567 ilshire Boulevard Suite 1460

Los Angeles, CA 90036-5664
Telephone: 323-549-9100

Fax: 323-549-00101

Email: barnest@kbarnes.com

LAW OFFICES OF SAHAG MAJARIAN II
Sahag Majarian 11 (SBN 146621)

18250 Ventura Boulevard

Tarzana, CA 91336

Telephone: 818-609-0807

Fax: 818-609-0892

Email: sahagiif@aol.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
KE TH MONIZ an
And KEVIN HENSHAW,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SERGIO GUTIERREZ on behalf of Case No. 2:15-cv-08187-JAK-JEM
himself and all others similarly situated;
Plaintiffs, STIPULATION OF CLASS

SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE
V.

STERICYCLE, INC., a Delawarc
Corporation, ‘
Action filed; August 14,2014
Defendants.
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This Stipulation of Class Seftlement and Release (“Stipulation of Settlement
or “Settlement Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between Plaintiffs
Kenneth Moeniz and Kevin Henshaw (“Plaintiffs” or “Class Representatives”) and
Stericycle, Inc. (“Defendant” or “Stericycle™), and is subject to the terms and
conditions herein and the approval of the Court. Plaintiffs and Stericycle are

referenced collectively herein as “the Parties.”
BACKGROUND AND RECITALS

1. On or about August 14, 2014, former named Plaintiff, Sergic Gutierrez,
filed a class action (“the Lawsuit™) in the Superior Court for the County of Los
Angeles, entitled Sergio Gutierrez v. Stericycle, Inc. The complaint for the Lawsuit
alleged various wage and hour claims, including that Stericycle failed to pay all
wages owed based on their time rounding and donning and doffing policies, did not
include all bonuses in the overtime rate, failed to pay all vested vacation payments
due, failed to provide statutory meal and rest periods and derivative claims for
failure to provide accurate wage statements, waiting time penalties, PAGA and
unfair competition. When Gutierrez passed away during the litigation, Plaintiffs
substituted as class representatives in his place. The action was removed to the
United States District Court for the Central District of California on or about
October 19, 2015, and the action has been litigated in federal court since that time.

2. On June 12, 2017 the parties mediated the Lawsuit before retired judge
Hon. Carl West. The case did not resolve at mediation, but settlement discussions
continued and the Parties ultimately reached a settlement on November 21, 2017.

3. Accordingly, for purposes of this Settlement Agreement, the
“Settlement Class” shall consist of all “Class Members” who fail to opt out of this
Settlement Agreement. “Class Members” are defined as:

“All non-exempt hourly employees who worked for Stericycle in
California at an time between August 14, 2010 and September 18,
2017, except the class shall not include: (1) members of the seftlerment
class in the class action Butler v. Stericycle, Inc.; (2) any non-exempt

SMRILABATII250 ) - STIPULATION OF CLASS SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE.




Casg 2:15-cv-08187-JAK-JEM Document 67-3 Filed 02/05/18 Page 4 of 38 Page ID

#1072
l employees who worked for Stericycle in California but was hired on or
2 after April 1, 2017; (3) any other individuals who have filed their own
\ lawsuits asserting any of the claims raised in the Gutierrez v. Stericycle,
- Inc lawsuit; or (4) any Class Member who entered into a gerneral
4 release as part of a settlement of a lawsuit”
3 The “Class Period” is defined as the period of time from August 14,
6| 2010 through September 18, 2017,
7

4, For purposes of settling the Lawsuit, the Parties conditionally stipulate

81 and agree that the requisites for establishing class certification with respect to the

% Settlement Class have been met and are met, and therefore, stipulate to class
10 certification. More specifically, the Parties conditionally stipulate and agree that,
"l for the Settlement Class:
12 a. The number of Class Members is so numerous as to make it
13 impracticable to join all Class Members.

14 b. There is an ascertainable class.
5 c. There are common questions of law and fact

16 d. Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the members of the
17 Settlement Class.

18 e. Law Offices of Kevin T. Barnes and Law Offices of Sahag
19 Majarian II should be deemed “Class Counsel™ and will fairly and
20 adequately protect the interests of the Settlement Class.
21 f. Plaintiffs Kenneth Moniz and Kevin Henshaw should be
22 appointed as the representative of the Settlement Class and will fairly
23 and adequately represent the interests of the Settlement Class.
24 g The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the
25 Scttlement Class would create the risk of inconsistent or varying
26 adjudications, which would establish incompatible standards of
21 conduct.
28
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h. Questions of law and fact common to the members of the
Settlement Class predominate over questions affecting individual
members in the Settlement Class and a class action is superior to other
available means for the fair and efficient adjudication of the
controversy.

5. Stericycle denies any liability or wrongdoing of any kind associated
with the claims alleged in the Complaint and further denies that, for any purpose
other than settling the Lawsuit, this action is appropriate for class treatment.
Stericycle contends, among other things, that it has complied at all times with the
California Labor Code, and all applicable California law.

6, Plaintiffs believe that they have filed a meritorious action and that class
certification is appropriate of the claims asserted in the operative Complaint.
Plaintiffs contends that Stericycle violated California’s wage-and-hour laws and that
this case is appropriate for class certification as the requisites for class certification
can be satisfied in this case.

7. Itis the desire of the Parties to fully, finally, and forever setile,
compromise, and discharge all disputes and claims which exist between them arising
from the factual allegations that underlie the Lawsuit concerning the failure to pay
overtime correctly and derivative claims for penalties. In order to achieve a full and
complete release of Stericycle (and the “Releasees™ as defined in Paragraph 8) of
such disputes and claims, the Class Representatives and Class Members (which
includes any legal heirs and/or successors-in-interest of each Class Member who
receives Notice), through execution of the Stipulation of Settlement, acknowledge
that this Stipulation of Settlement is intended to include in its effect the entirety of
the Released Class Claims, as morc fully described in Paragraph 21 of this
Stipulation of Settlement,

8. It is the intention of the Parties that this Stipulation of Settlement shall

constitute a full and complete settlement and release of all claims described in
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Paragraph 21 of this Stipulation of Settlement. This release shall include in its
effect not only Stericycle, but also its respective affiliates, subsidiaries, parent
companies, predecessor entities (i.e., companies it acquired during the class period),
related companies, partners, officers, directors, managers, servanfs, agents,
employees, former employees, representatives, and attorneys, past or present, and all
persons acting under, by, though, or in concert with any of them (collectively, the
“Releasees”).

TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

9. Overview of Payment Structure. This $2.000.000 settlement is made

on a non-reversionary basis except Stericycle shall be entitled to a credit of
$460,000 which is the amount Stericycle has paid to individual class member who
have previously entered into an individual settlement agreement of wage and hour
claims under which that class member received a payment. Stericycle entered into
these individual settlement with class members beginning in 2015 in response to the
Lawsuit and pursuant to Chindarah v. Pick Up Stix, Inc., 171 Cal. App. 4th 796
(2009).

This settlement shall consist of a Gross Fund Value which, in turn, 1s

comprised of a Net Fund Value for the class, an award of attorney’s fees and costs,
an award of administration expenses, enhancement awards to the Class
Representatives for their service as representatives, and a payment to the Labor
Workforce Development Agency (“LWDA™) to extinguish any PAGA claims
arising within the scope of the release. Further specifics are provided below.

10.  Gross Fund Value. Stericyele shall pay the gross sum of TWO

MILLION DOLLARS (*§2,000,000™)(the “Gross Fund Value™ or “GFV™) to fund

the settlemient of this action. Payments by Stericycle pursuant to this Settlement
Agreement shall settle all pending issues between the Parties. The settlement
payments are not being made for any other purpose and will not be construed as

compensation for purposes of determining eligibility for any healtli and welfare
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benefits or unemployment compensation. Stericycle shall be responsible for paying
any appropriate and lawfully required employer payroll taxes arising from the
portion of the class member settlement payments attributable to wages.

11, Amounts Paid from the Gross Fund Value:

a. Attgrneys® Tees and Costs: Subject to review and final approval

by the Court, Stericycle agrees that Class Counsel may apply for a total of FIVE
HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS (8500,000) for reasonable attorneys’ fees
(representing 25% of the Gross Fund Value), and an additional amount to reimburse
actual litigation costs billed to the Plaintiffs, not to exceed $26,000. Any award
granted shall be taken from the Gross Fund Value. If a lower amount is awarded,
the difference will be allocated to the Net Fund Value.

b. Enhancement Award: In further consideration for settling this

matter and in exchange for the release of all claims by the Settlement Class, and
subject to final approval, Stericycle agrees that Class Counsel] may apply for a class
member enhancements for the two named Plaintiffs to compensate them for their
time, risk and effort on behalf of the class. The enhancement award is in addition to
the claim share to which Plaintiffs are otherwise entitled as a Qualified Claimant.
Stericycle agrees that Plaintiffs may apply for enhancement award not to exceed
TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000 to each of the two Plaintiffs). Any award
granted shall be taken from the Gross Fund Value. If a lower amount is awarded,
the difference will be allocated to the Net Fund Value.

C. Administration Costs:  Costs required to administer the

settlement will also be paid from the GFV. The Parties have agreed to use Rust
Consulting as claims administrator for the class with an expectation that the total
amount charged by Rust Consulting will be approximately TWENTY SIX
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED ELEVEN DOLLARS (826,511). The
administration duties shall include, without limitation, mailing Notices, calcuiating

awards, processing requests for exclusion and objections, performing necessary skip
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traces on Notices returned as undeliverable, mailing Class Member settlement
checks, issuing any required tax reporting forms, and providing weekly status
reports to Counsel for the Parties, among other tasks set forth in this Stipulation. To
the extent the administration costs are lower than anticipated, the difference will be
allocated to the Net Fund Value.

d.  PAGA Payment. The parties agree that FIFTEEN THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($15,000) of the GFV should be allocated to claims under the Private
Attorney General Act (“PAGA?"). The state’s 75% share of PAGA penalties will be
$11,250 and the remaining $3,750 will be allocated to the Net Fund Value.

e. Remaining Net Fund Value for Class: After all payments of

attorney’s fees and costs, class representative enhancements, administrative costs,
and PAGA payments are deducled from the Gross Fund Value, the remaining
portion, the “Net Fund Value” or *“NFV” shall be distributed to class members who
do not affirmatively exclude themselves from the settlement, as discussed below.

I Credit for Settlement Sums Already Paid: Beginning in 2015,

Stericycle offered individual settlements to individuals who will fall within the

Settiement Class in response to the Lawsuit and pursuant to Chindarah v. Pick Up

Stix, Inc., 171 Cal. App. 4th 796 (2009). To the extent those employees signed their
individual settlement agreement and accepted the settlements and received payments
as a result (entered into a “Pick Up Stix settlement™), they will receive no money for
all of their shifts worked during the time period covered by their individual
settlement agreement.. However, employees who signed their individual settlement
agreement and accepted the settlements and received payments as a result but who
continued to work for Stericycle, will receive money for all of their work shifts
worked after the time period covered by their individual settlement agreement. To
the extent employees received settlements but did no work after agreeing to the
settiement (e.g., they were former employees at the time), they will not participate

as class members in this settlement.
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g. “Opt Out” Process for the Net Fupnd Value: Class Members

shall receive notice of the action and may exclude themselves or “opt out” if they do
not want to participate in the settlement. Class Members who do not “opt out” shall
be deemed to have made a settlement claim. In consideration for settlement and a
release of all claims of the Settlement Class against Stericycle, each Class Member
who does not timely “opt out” (“Qualified Claimant™) will receive a share of the
NFV.

h. Formula to Distribute the Net Fund Value. Subject to the credit

described above in paragraphs 1la-f, the Net Fund Value, which would be
approximately NINE HUNDRED FIFTY SIX THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
THIRTY-NINE DOLLARS ($956,239) if all requested attorney's fees, costs,
enhancements and the PAGA payments are approved, will be distributed
proportionally based on the number of work shifis each class member worked in a
class position during the period from August 14, 2010 to September 18, 2017
(excluding periods covered by Pick Up Stix releases). To calculate the work shifts,
the parties will count the number of each class members’ work shifis recorded in
Stericycle’s timekeeping system during the class period, with a shift being defined
as any day on which the employee clocked in for work in Stericycle’s timekeeping
system and also clocked out. Each person will then receive a share calculated by
dividing their individual work shift total by the aggregate number of all class
members’ work shifts multiplied by the NFV. As explained above, to the extent
employees signed their individual settlement agreement and accepted the
settlements and received payinents as a result, those work shifts worked during the
time period covered by their individual settlement agreement will not be counted
towards each such class members’ work shifts recorded in Stericycle’s timekeeping
system during the class period or in the aggregate number of all class members’
work shifts,

1. Defendant has certified that the number of work shifts that have
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accrued for all Class Members from August 14, 2010 to September 18, 2017 is
622,987. This shift count excludes all of the following work shifts: (1) members of
the settlement class in the class action Butler v. Stericycle, Inc.; (2) any non-exempt
employees who worked for Stericycle in California but was hired after April 1,
2017; (3) any other individuals who have filed their own lawsuits asserting any of
the claims raised in the Gutierrez v. Stericycle, Inc lawsuit; (4) all work shifts for
worked during the time period covered by their individual seftlement agreement for
employees who signed their individual settlement agreement and accepted the
settlements and received payments as a result; and (5) any Class Member who
entered into a general release as part of a settlement of a lawsuit. If the number of
work shifts actually accrued from August 14, 2010 to September 18, 2017 should
exceed the number of such work shifts certified by Defendant by more than five
percent (5%), the Class Settlement Amount shall be increased by the percentage
difference between the certified amount and the actual number of work shifts from
August 14, 2010 to September 18, 2017.

12.  Settlement Date: The settlement embodied in this Stipulation of

Settlement shall go into effect upon entry of a final Judgment by the Court
approving this Stipulation of Settlement.

13,  Funding and Pavout of Settlement Funds

a. Payment Procedure to Clajms Administrator; No later than ten

{10) calendar days after the “effective date” of final approval of the settlement,
Stericycle will issue to the Claims Administrator payment of the Gross Fund Value.
The effective date shall be the date of final approval if no objections are filed to the
settlement. If objections are filed and overruled, and no appeal is taken of the final
approval order, then the effective date of final approval shall be sixty-five (65) days
after the Court enters final approval. If an appeal is taken from the Court’s

overruling of objections to the settlement, then the effective date of final approval

shall be fwenty (20) days after the appeal is withdrawn or after an appellate decision
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affirming the final approval decision becomes final. No money will be distributed
unless and until the effective date of final approval oceurs.

b. The Claims Administrator will mail settlement checks to
Quatified Claimants no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving payment
from Stericycle. Payments will be made at this same time for attorney’s fees, costs,
and class representative enhancements. Qualified Claimants shall bave 180 days
after mailing by the Claims Administrator to cash their settlement checks. If
Qualified Claimants do not cash their checks within the 180 day period, those
checks will become void and the Claims Administrator will stop payment on the
uncashed checks. In such event, those Qualified Claimants will be deemed to have
walved irrevocably any right in or claim to a settlement payment,

C. Should there remain any residual from the Gross Fund Value
after all payments are made under this Seftlement Agreement, for example, if any
seftlement checks remain uncashed more than 180 calendar days after mailing, the
Claims Administrator will pay the funds represented by such un-redeemed checks to
the California Department of Labor Standards Enforcement Unpaid Wage Fund with
an identification of the Qualified Claimant.

d.  Tax Treatment of Settlement Payments: The Parties agree that 50% of

the amount distributed to each Qualified Claimant will be considered wages and
50% will be considered interest or penalties. In addition to its payment to each
Qualified Claimant, Stericycle shall be responsible for paying all employer-paid
withholding and payroll taxes and similar expenses (including state and federal
income taxes, social security contributions and unemploymeut taxes) on the portion
of the settlement where employer-side payroll taxes are required by law. Stericycle
will be responsible for all required wilhholdings. Each Qualified Claimant will
receive an IRS Form W-2 and 1099 for the class member's settlement payment.

Each Qualified Claimant also will be responsible for correctly characterizing this
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compensation for tax purposes and for payment of any personal income taxes owing
on said amount.

e. Resolution of Disputes Relating to Amounts Owed to a

Claimant: If a Qualified Claimant timely disputes Stericycle’s records as to the
proper size of his or her claim, the Parties’ counsel will make a good faith effort to
resolve the dispute informally. If counsel for the Parties cannot agree, the dispute
shall be submitted to the claims administrator Rust Consulting, who shall examine
the records in an attempt to resolve the dispute.
NOTICE TO THE CLASS
14.  The Parties agree that within fifteen (15) calendar days after

preliminary approval of this settlement, Stericycle will provide to the Claims
Administrator all of the following information about each Class Member in Excel
format (*“Class Data List”): (1) name, (2) last known home address and home
telephone number, (3) Social Security number, and (4) the number of work shifts
each class member worked as a non-exempt employees for Stericycle in California
at an time between August 14, 2010 and September 18, excluding any work shifts
worked that are part of any class members individual settlement with Stericycle.

15, Within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of the “Class Data List,”
the Claims Administrator will send Class Members, by first-class mail to their last
known address, the Court-approved Notice of Pendency of Class Action (*Notice™),
in the form which will be attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”" The Notice will also
include Stericycle’s calculation of each Class Member’s work shifts and
corresponding settlement allocation.

CLATMS ADMINISTRATION PROCESS
16.  Class Members will have forty-five (45) days from the date of the

Notices to postmark their objections or written requests for exclusion to the Claims
Administrator. To be valid, requests for exclusion must comply with the

instructions in the Notice and must state, in effect, that the Class Member does not
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wish to participate in the settlement of this action. In addition, any request must
include the Class Member’s first and last name, signature, address, phone number,
and last four digits of social security number for verification purposes. A Class
Member who excludes hitnself or herself from the settlement shall lose standing to
object. The Claims Administrator will perform skip-traces on returned mail and re-
mail the Notice to an updated address (if any) as soon as possible upon return of the
undeliverable Notice, but no later than ten (10} days of receiving notice that a
Notice was undeliverable. It is the intent of the Parties that reasonable means be
used to locate Class Members since all Class Members who do not request exclusion
are entitled to receive their proportionate share of the NEV.

17.  Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt by the Claims Administrator
of each timely-submitted request for exclusion, the Claims Administrator will send a
deficiency notice to the Class Members for any irregularities in any request for
exclusion {such as failure to sign or include last four digits of Social Security
Number). The deficiency notice will provide the Class Members no more than ten
calendar (10) days from the mailing of the deficiency notice to postmark a written
response to cure all deficiencies. The failure of a Class Member to cure all
deficiencies in a timely manner shall invalidate a request for exclusion and will not
be subject to cure.

18.  Stericycle, with the Class Data List, will provide the Claims
Administrator an Excel spreadsheet that the Claims Administrator will use to
calculate each Class Membet’s share of the NFV based on information contained in
its HRIS systems. The Claims Administrator will certify jointly which request for
exclusion forms, if any, were timely postmarked. The Claims Administrator shall
be responsible for calculating the payments, issuing the payments and any required
tax reporting forns, and for communicating this information to Stericycle and Class
Counsel. Upon completion of its calculation of payments, the Claims Administrator

shall provide Plaintiffs and Stericycle with a report listing the amount of all
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payments to be made to each Qualified Claimant. Proof of payment will be filed
with the Court and provided to the Parties’ counsel.

19.  To the extent any Class Members request exclusion from the
settlement, their unclaimed portion shall effectively be reallocated to the NFV based
on the formula used to calculate individual payments to Qualified Claimants.

RIGHT TO RESCISSION IN THE EVENT OF EXCESS OPT-OUTS

20. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Stipulation of Settlement,

Stericycle shall retain the right, in the exercise of its sole discretion, to nullify the
settlement within ten (10) calendar days of expiration of the opt-out deadline, if fifty
(50) or more of the Class Members opt out of the settlement. All signatories and
their counsel must not encourage opt-outs. The Parties specifically agree not to
solicit opt-outs, directly or indirectly, through any means. Objective statements to
Class Members who call Class Counsel with inquiries regarding the settlement, or
the exercise of Class Counsel’s ethical obligations, shall not be deemed a violation
of the prohibitions contained herein. In the event of such a rescission, no party may
use the fact that the Parties agreed to settle this case as evidence of Stericycle’s
liability in the Lawsuit or the lack thereof. If Stericycle exercises its right to rescind
the settlement it will be solely responsible for the Claims Administrator’s costs
incurred up to that date.
RELEASE BY THE CLASS OF RELEASED CLASS CLAIMS
21.  Upon final approval by the Court, the Settlement Ciass and each

Class Member who has not submitted a timely and valid request for exclusion will
release Stericycie and the Releasees from the Released Class Claims defined as any
and all clatms asserted in the operative Complaint and any other claims based on the
same cited statutes or underlying facts. The release will apply to any claims arising
within the scope of the Lawsuit up through November 30, 2017.

The Class Members agree to release any further attempt, by lawsuit,

administrative claim or action, arbitration, demand, or other action of any kind by
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each and all of the Class Members (including participation to any extent in any class
or collective action), to obtain a recovery against any of the Released Parties for the
Released Claims. The Class Members’ release shall not include or release all other
claims including claims outside the Class Period, claims for unemployment
insurance, wrongful termination, hostile work environment, Title VII, FEHA and
disability and workers’ compensation.

22.  Upon the Effective Date, and as a condition of receiving any portion of
their Class Representative Enhancement Payments, Plaintiffs agree to the additional
following General Release: In consideration of Defendant’s promises and
agreements as set forth herein, Plaintiffs hereby fully releases the Released Parties
from any and all Released Claims and also generally releases and discharges the
Released Parties from any and all claims, demands, obligations, causes of action,
rights, or labilities of any kind which have been or could have been asserted against
the Released Parties arising out of or relating to Plaintiffs’ employment by
Defendant or termination thereof, including but not limited to claims for wages,
restitution, penalties, retaliation, defamation, discrimination, harassment or wrongful
termination of employment. This release specifically includes any and all claims,
demands, obligations and/or causes of action for damages, restitution, penalties,
interest, and attorneys’ fees and costs (except provided by this Agreement) relating
to or in any way connected with his employment with Released Parties and the
matters referred to herein, whether or not known or suspected to exist, and whether
or not specifically or particularly described herein. Specifically, Plaintiffs waive all
rights and benefits afforded by California Civil Code Section 1542, which provides:

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO
GK SUSPECT 0 EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT
[ KNOWN. BY HIM OR HER. MUST 'HAVE

MATERIALLY  AFFECTED  HIS OR  HER
SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.
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DUTIES OF THE PARTIES PRIOR TO COURT APPROVAL
22, The Parties shall promptly submit this Stipulation of Settlement to the

Court in support of a request for preliminary approval and determination by the
Court as to its fairness, adequacy, and reasonableness. Promptly upon execution of
this Stipulation of Settlement, the Parties shall apply to the Court for the entry of a
preliminary order, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” which
would accomplish the following:

a. Scheduling a final faimess hearing on the question of whether
the proposed settlement, the Class Representatives’ enhancement awards, and the
requested attorneys’ fees and costs should be finally approved as fair, reasonable,
and adequate as to the Class Members;

b. Certifying a Settlement Class for all claims;

c. Certifying this action under California law as a class action for
purposes of settlement;

d. Approving as to form and content the proposed Notice;

e. Directing the mailing of the Notice, by first-class mail, to the
Class Members,
f. Preliminarily approving the settlement subject only to the

objections of Class Members and final review by the Court; and,
g. Preliminarily approving the use of a mutually agreed Claims
Administrator for approximately $26,511.
DUTIES OF THE PARTIES FOLLOWING FINAL APPROVAL
23.  Following final approval of the settlement provided for in this

Stipulation of Settlement, Class Counsel will submit a proposed final order and
Judgment, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C™:
a. Approving the settlement, adjudging the terms thereof to be fair,

reasonable, and adequate, and directing consummation of its terms and provisions;
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b. Approving Class Counsels’ application for an award of
attorney’s fees and costs;

c. Approving the Class Representatives’ enhancement awards;

d. Approving the payment of the Claims Administrator’s fees from
the Gross Fund Value.

e. Barring all members of the Settlement Class from prosecuting
against Releasees any of the Released Class Claims.

PARTIES® AUTHORITY

24 The signatories hereto hereby represent that they are fully authorized to

enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and bind the Parties hereto to the terms and
conditions hereof.
MUTUAL FULE COOPERATION

25.  The Parties agree fully to cooperate with each other to accomplish the

terms of this Stipulation of Settlement, including but not limited to, execution of
such documents and to take such other action as may reasonably be necessary to
implement the terms of this Stipulation of Settlement. The Parties to this Stipulation
of Settlement shall use their best efforts, including all efforts contemplated by this
Stipulation of Settlement and any other efforts that may become necessary by order
of the Court, or otherwise, to effectuate this Stipulation of Settlement and the terms
set forth herein. As soon as practicable after execution of this Stipulation of
Settlement, Class Counsel shall, with the assistance and cooperation of Stericycle
and its counsel, take all necessary steps to secure the Court’s final approval of this
Stipulation of Settlement,

NO PRIOR ASSIGNMENTS

26. The Parties hereto represent, covenant, and warrant that they have not

directly or indirectly, assigned, transferred, encumbered, or purported to assign,

transfer, or encumber to any person or entity any portion of any liability, claim,

SMRI d847750501 STIPULATION OF CLASS SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE
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demand, action, cause of action, or rights herein released and discharged except as
set forth herein.
NO ADMISSION

27.  Nothing contained herein, nor the consummation of this Stipulation of

Settlement, is to be construed or deemed an admission of liability, culpability,
negligence, or wrongdoing on the part of Stericycle. Stericycle specifically denies
any liability. Each of the Parties hereto has entered into this Stipulation of
Settlement with the intention to avoid further disputes and litigation with the
attendant inconvenience and expenses.

PUBLICITY

28.  Neither Plaintiffs nor Class Counsel will publicize the Settlement in

Lo N & N = o LY - L VS S

—_ =
|2

any way prior to preliminary approval. This provision shall not prohibit Class

—
(W8]

Counsel from communicating with members of the Class.
NO RETALIATION

—_
ey

[
LN

29.  Stericycle agrees that there will be no retaliation, discrimination or

—
o

adverse employment action against the Plaintiffs or any member of the Settlement

—
=~

Class as a result of the Lawsuit, the Settlement or their participation in the Lawsuit

f—
o0

or Settlement.

[
O

CONSTRUCTION
30.  The Parties hereto agree that the terms and conditions of this

[T v
_

Stipulation of Settlement are the result of lengthy, intensive arms-length

o
]

negotiations between the Parties, and that this Stipulation of Settlement shall not be

[\
L

construed in favor of or against any party by reason of the extent to which any party

ko
N

or his, her, or its counsel participated in the drafting of this Stipulation of

[
L

Settlement.
CAPTIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

31. Paragraph titles or captions contained herein are inserted as a matter of

[yl
fo)]

[ R
oo~

convenience and for reference, and in no way define, limit, extend, or describe the
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| scope of this Stipulation of Settlement or any provision hereof. Each term of this

Stipulation of Settlement is contractual and not merely a recital.
MODIFICATION
32.  This Stipulation of Settlement may not be changed, altered, or

modified, except in writing and signed by the Parties hereto, and approved by the

Court. This Stipulation of Settlement may not be discharged except by performance

in accordance with its terms or by a writing signed by the Parties hereto.
INTEGRATION CLAUSE

33.  This Stipulation of Settlement contains the entire agreement between

the Parties relating to the settlement and transaction contemplated hereby, and al]
prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, representations, and
statements, whether oral or written and whether by a party or such party’s legal
counsel, are merged herein. No rights hereunder may be waived except in writing.
BINDING ON ASSIGNS
34.  This Stipulation of Settlement shall be binding upon and inure to the

benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, trustees, executors,

administrators, successors and assigns.
CLASS COUNSEL SIGNATORIES

35. The parties agree that it is impossible or impractical to have each Class

Member execute this Stipulation of Settlement. The Notice, Exhibit “A,” will
advise all Class Members of the binding nature of the release and such shall have
the same force and effect as if this Stipulation of Settlement were executed by each
Class Member.

COUNTERPARTS

36.  This Stipulation of Settlement may be executed in counterparts, and

when each party has signed and delivered at least one such counterpart, each

counterpart shall be deemed an original, and, when taken together with other signed

SMRBARITT2S0 | STIPULATION OF CLASS SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE
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courterparts, shall constitute one Stipulation of Settlement, which shali be binding
upon and effective as to all Parties.

, L - > e
Dated: December /. % , 2017 I At aa Z a’?j’ L0

"“TKEnném Moniz > i
Plaintiff and Class Repfesentative

Dated: December __, 2017

Kevin Henshaw ]
Plaintiff and Class Representative

Dated: December 2017

for Stericyole, Inc.

Appraoval As To Form And Content By Counsel:
Dated: December_, 2017

SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON LLp

THOMAS R. KAUFMAN
Attorneys for Defendant
STERICYCLE, INC.

Dated: December__, 2017
LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T. BARNES

KEVIN T. BARNES
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

o STIPULATION OF CLASS SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE
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1 || counterparts, shall constitute one Stipulation of Settlement, which shall be binding

2 ||upon and effective as to all Parties.

Dated: December _, 2017

~ Kenneth Momz T
Plaintiff and Class Representative

4

5

p ‘ .{? : /f /\~___F
Dated: December 6_, 2017 L_, ,.4{_ o

7 evin Henshaw

8

9

0

Plaintiff and Class Representative

Dated: December __, 2017

for Stericycle, Inc.

17 || Approval As To Form And Content By Counsel:

13 || Dated: December , 2017
14 SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & ITAMPTON LiP

THOMAS R. KAUFMAN
18 Attorneys for Defendant
STERICYCLE, INC.

Dated: December , 2017
LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T. BARNES

" KEVIN T. BARNES
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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counterparts, shall constitute one Stipulation of Settlement, which shall be binding

2 || upon and effective as to all Parties.
3
Dated: December |, 2017
4 Kenneth Moniz =
5| Plaintiff and Class Representative
6
Dated: December _, 2017 _ -
7 ~Kevin Henshaw
g Plaintiff and Class Representative
’ Dated: December 8_, 2017 :I @EL e
10 for Stericycle, Inc.
3!
12 || Approval As To Form And Content By Counsel:
13 ] Dated: Decemberi_, 2017
14 SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER & HAMPTON LLp
15
16 b= - .1.,’
v THOMAS R KAUFMAN
18 Attorneys for Defendant
(9 STERICYCLE, INC,
20 ré
Dated: December®, 2017
2! LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T. BARNES
22 -~
)
23 o N ol '
24 i -.-'f"” z C:) )
25 KEVINT. BARNES
Attorneys for Plainnffs
26
27
28
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Dated: December__;_, 2017
LAW OFFICES OF SAHAG MAJARIAN I

P

SA AJARIAN I
Attomeys for Plaintiffs
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Standing Strong: Counsel Financial is fully operational & here to assist you with your
financing needs.

Learn More

$2 Million Settlement Reached in Stericycle Employee
Wage Class Action

Elizabeth DiNardo, Esq. | Asscciate Counsel

widl Share Like 0 hara

On February &, 2018, plaintilfs in the Stencycle inc. employes wage dispute class action asked U5, District

Judge John Kronstadt to grant preliminary approval for 2 2 million settlement agreement,

The suit was originally filed by named plaintiff, Sergio Gutierrez, in Los Angeles Superior Court in 2014, Plaintiff
argued that ihe defendant medical wasle disposal company deniad itz employees proper breaks, rounded payroll
time thus chealing employees out of wages for time spent working and failed to compensale employees for lime

spent changing into their company-required uniform

Further. lhe complaint alleges thal Stericycie failed to include all bonuses in employess’ overime rate, in addition
to not providing stalutory meal breaks. The case was transferred lo the U.S. District Court for the Central District

hitps://blog.counselfinancial.com/2-million-selllement-reached-in-stericycle-employee-wage-class-aclion 12
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Learn More

Uislrict of California.

Counsel Financial provides working capital credit lines exclusively for the plaintifis’ bar in all states except

California, where credif lines are issuad by California Afforney Lending

Counsel Financial

https.//blog.counselfinancial.com/2-million-settlement-reached-in-slericycle-employee-wage-class-action 272
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
B ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019
or
[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-37556

Stericycle, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 36-3640402
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (IRS Employer Identification Number)
2355 Waukegan Road
Bannockburn, Illinois 60015
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)
(847)367-5910
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share SRCL Nasdaq Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. YES NO
O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. YES [J
NO K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES & NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to submit such files). YES & NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller

reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definition of "large accelerated filer", "accelerated filer" "smaller
reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer [J
Smaller reporting company O Emerging Growth Company [

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). YES 00 NO K

The aggregate market value of voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price
at which common equity was last sold as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter
(June 30, 2019): $4,350,940,797.

On February 24, 2020 there were 91,271,184 shares of the Registrant’'s Common Stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/861878/000156459020007716/srcl-10k_20191231.htm 1/136
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Information required by Items 10, 11, 12 and 13 of Part Il of this Report is incorporated by reference from the Registrant's
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART Il
* property ownership restrictions in certain countries.

Any of the foregoing or other factors associated with doing business abroad could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have operations in Latin America, and changes in the business, regulatory, political or social climate could
adversely affect our operations there, which could adversely affect our results of operations and growth plans.

We have business operations in Argentina and Brazil. Doing business in those countries exposes us to risks related to
political instability, corruption, economic volatility, social unrest, tax and foreign investment policies, public safety and
security, and uncertain application of laws and regulations. Consequently, actions or events in any of those countries that
are beyond our control could restrict our ability to operate there or otherwise adversely affect the financial results of those
operations. Furthermore, changes in the business, regulatory or political climate in any of those countries, or significant
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, could affect our ability to continue our operations there, which could have a
material adverse impact on our prospects, results of operations, and cash flows.

We face continuing risks relating to compliance with the FCPA and other anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws.

On June 12, 2017, the SEC issued a subpoena to us, requesting documents and information relating to our compliance with
the FCPA or other foreign or domestic anti-corruption laws with respect to certain of the our operations in Latin
America. In addition, the DOJ has notified us that it is investigating this matter in parallel with the SEC. We are
cooperating with these agencies and are also conducting an internal investigation of these and other matters, including
outside of Latin America, under the oversight of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and with the assistance of
outside counsel, and this investigation has found evidence of improper conduct. These matters (and other matters which
may arise or of which we become aware in the future) may be deemed to violate the FCPA and other anti-corruption and
anti-bribery laws. Such determinations could subject us to, among other things, enforcement actions by the SEC or the
DOJ or other regulatory bodies, fines, penalties, or litigation, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, any significant settlement amount may require us to incur additional indebtedness,
adversely affect our liquidity and ability to service our indebtedness, or require us to restructure or amend the terms of our
indebtedness. See Part /I, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data; Note 20 — Legal Proceedings in the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding currently pending legal proceedings.

We are subject to a number of pending lawsuits.

We are a defendant in a number of pending lawsuits and may be named as a defendant in future lawsuits. These current
and future matters may result in significant liabilities and diversion of our management's time, attention, and
resources. Given the uncertain nature of litigation generally, we are not able in all cases to estimate the amount or range
of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome in these matters. In view of these uncertainties, the outcome of
these matters may result in charges in excess of any established reserves and, to the extent available, liability
insurance. Protracted litigation, including any adverse outcomes, may have an adverse impact on our reputation, business,
financial condition or results of operations. In addition, any significant judgment or settlement amount may require us to
incur additional indebtedness, adversely affect our liquidity and ability to service our indebtedness, or require us to
restructure or amend the terms of our indebtedness. See Part /I, ftem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
Note 20 - Legal Proceedings in the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding currently pending
legal proceedings.

2019 10-K Annual Report Stericycle, Inc. = 24
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PART Il
In millions
Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 2017

Regulated Waste and Compliance Services $ 18928 § 19326 % 2,023.6
Secure Information Destruction Services 901.9 911.0 8234
Communication and Related Services 219.2 31341 3826
Manufacturing and Industrial Services 295.0 329.2 351.1

Revenues $ 33089 ¢ 34859 $ 3,580.7

NOTE 20 — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company operates in highly regulated industries and responds to regulatory inquiries or investigations from time to
time that may be initiated for a variety of reasons. At any given time, the Company has matters at various stages of
resolution with the applicable government authorities. The Company is also routinely involved in actual or threatened legal
actions, including those involving alleged personal injuries and commercial, employment, environmental, tax, and other
issues. The outcomes of these matters are not within the Company's complete control and may not be known for
prolonged periods of time. In some actions, claimants seek damages, as well as other relief, including injunctive relief, that
could require significant expenditures or result in lost revenue.

In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the Company establishes an accrued liability for loss contingencies
related to legal and regulatory matters when the loss is both probable and reasonably estimable. If the reasonable
estimate of a probable loss is a range, and no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other, the minimum
amount of the range is accrued. If a loss is not probable or a probable loss is not reasonably estimable, no liability is
recorded. When determining the estimated loss or range of loss, significant judgment is required to estimate the amount
and timing of a loss to be recorded. These accruals represent management’s best estimate of probable losses and, in such
cases, there may be an exposure to loss in excess of the amounts accrued. Estimates of probable losses resulting from
litigation and regulatory proceedings are difficult to predict. Legal and regulatory matters inherently involve significant
uncertainties based on, among other factors, the jurisdiction and stage of the proceedings, developments in the applicable
facts or law, and the unpredictability of the ultimate determination of the merits of any claim, any defenses the Company
may assert against that claim and the amount of any damages that may be awarded. The Company's accrued liabilities for
loss contingencies related to legal and regulatory matters may change in the future as a result of new developments,
including, but not limited to, the occurrence of new legal matters, changes in the law or regulatory environment, adverse or
favorable rulings, newly discovered facts relevant to the matter, or changes in the strategy for the matter. Regardless of
the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on the Company because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of
management resources and other factors.

Contract Class Action and Opt Out Lawsuits. Beginning on March 12, 2013, the Company was served with several class
action complaints filed in federal and state courts in several jurisdictions. These complaints asserted, among other things,
that the Company had imposed unauthorized or excessive price increases and other charges on its customers in breach of
its contracts and in violation of the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act. The complaints sought
certification of the lawsuit as a class action and the award to class members of appropriate damages and injunctive
relief. These related actions were ultimately transferred to the United States District Court for the Northern District of
lllinois for centralized pretrial proceedings (the “"MDL Action”).

2019 10-K Annual Report Stericycle, Inc. = 117
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The parties engaged in discussions through and overseen by a mediator regarding a potential resolution of the matter and
reached a settlement agreement, as previously disclosed, which settlement agreement obtained court approval on March
8, 2018 (the "Settlement”). Under the terms of the Settlement, the Company admitted no fault or wrongdoing whatsoever,
and it entered into the Settlement to avoid the cost and uncertainty of litigation.

Certain class members who have opted out of the Final Settlement have filed lawsuits against the Company, and the
Company will defend and resolve those actions. The Company has accrued its estimate of the probable loss for these
collective matters, which is not material.

Securities Class Action and Opt Out Lawsuits. On July 11, 2016, two purported stockholders filed a putative class action
complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, which was subsequently amended. As amended, the
complaint purported to assert claims on behalf of all purchasers of the Company's publicly traded securities between
February 7, 2013 and February 21, 2018, inclusive, and all those who purchased securities in the Company’s public offering
of depositary shares on or around September 15, 2015. The complaint named as defendants the Company, its directors
and certain of its current and former officers, and certain of the underwriters in the public offering. The complaint
purported to assert claims under Sections 11, 12(a)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as well as SEC Rule 10b-5, promulgated thereunder. The complaint alleged, among
other things, that the Company imposed unauthorized or excessive price increases and other charges on its customers in
breach of its contracts, and that defendants failed to disclose those alleged practices in public filings and other statements
issued during the proposed class period.

Defendants filed a motion to dismiss. Before the court had ruled on the pending motion to dismiss, the parties engaged in
discussions through and overseen by a mediator regarding a potential resolution of the matter and reached a settlement
agreement as previously disclosed (the “Securities Class Action Settlement”). The court held a final fairness hearing on July
22, 2019, at which it granted final approval of the Settlement and took under advisement the amount of attorneys' fees to
be awarded to plaintiffs’ counsel from the settlement fund. Under the terms of the Settlement, the Company admitted no
fault or wrongdoing whatsoever, and it entered into the Settlement to avoid the cost and uncertainty of litigation.

Certain class members who have opted out of the Final Settlement have filed lawsuits against the Company, and the
Company will defend and resolve those actions. The Company has not accrued any amounts in respect of these lawsuits, as
it cannot estimate any reasonably possible loss or any range of reasonably possible losses that the Company may incur.

Government Investigations. On June 12, 2017, the SEC issued a subpoena to the Company, requesting documents and
information relating to the Company’s compliance with the FCPA or other foreign or domestic anti-corruption laws with
respect to certain of the Company’s operations in Latin America. In addition, the DOJ has notified the Company that it is
investigating this matter in parallel with the SEC. The Company is cooperating with these agencies and certain foreign
authorities. The Company is also conducting an internal investigation of these and other matters, including outside of
Latin America, under the oversight of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and with the assistance of outside
counsel, and this investigation has found evidence of improper conduct.

As part of the FCPA investigation discussed above, the SEC has requested certain additional information from the
Company. On July 29, 2019, the SEC issued a subpoena to the Company requesting documents relating to the Company's
pricing practices concerning small quantity customers, as alleged in the Contract Class Actions and in the Securities Class
Action. The Company is cooperating with the SEC's request.

Stericycle, Inc. « 118
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The Company has not accrued any amounts in respect of this matter, as it cannot estimate any reasonably possible loss or
any range of reasonably possible losses that the Company may incur. The Company is unable to make such an estimate
because, based on what the Company knows now, in the Company’s judgment, the factual and legal issues presented in
this matter are sufficiently unique that the Company is unable to identify other circumstances sufficiently comparable to
provide guidance in making estimates.

Environmental and Regulatory Matters. The Company's Environmental Solutions business is regulated by federal, state
and local laws enacted to regulate the discharge of materials into the environment, the generation, transportation and
disposal of waste, and the cleanup of contaminated soil and groundwater and protection of the environment. Because of
the highly regulated nature of this business, the Company frequently becomes a party to legal or administrative
proceedings involving various governmental authorities and other interested parties. The issues involved in these
proceedings generally relate to alleged violations of existing permits and licenses or alleged responsibility under federal or
state Superfund laws to remediate contamination at properties owned either by the Company or by other parties to which
either the Company or the prior owners of certain of its facilities shipped wastes. From time to time, the Company may be
subject to fines or penalties in regulatory proceedings relating primarily to waste treatment, storage or disposal facilities.

North Salt Lake, Utah. The Company has continued to toll the statute of limitations with the United States Attorney's Office
for the District of Utah (the "USAQ") relating to an investigation by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA")
into past Clean Air Act emissions and permit requirements, as previously alleged in the notice of violation (the "NOV")
issued by the State of Utah Division of Air Quality (the "DAQ"). The NOV resulted in the Company's December 2014
settlement with the DAQ, as previously disclosed.

The parties have reached agreement in principle, to be documented in the form of a civil consent decree, under which the
Company will undertake a Supplemental Environmental Project and pay a civil penalty under the Clean Air Act.

The Company has accrued the total amount of the agreement in principle.

Tabasco, Mexico. In late 2016, the National Agency for Industrial Security and the Protection of the Environment for the
Hydrocarbon Sector in Mexico (“ASEA") conducted a permit compliance inspection at a hazardous waste treatment facility
acquired by one of the Company's subsidiaries in Dos Bocas, Tabasco, Mexico. ASEA subsequently claimed that the soil
treatment process described in the facility’s treatment permit had not been followed properly and issued an order
imposing a fine and directing that the facility be closed and that alleged contamination on a certain portion of the facility
be remediated. The Company's subsidiary has engaged a firm of environmental technicians to assess the contamination
described in the ASEA order and to conduct a broader environmental assessment of the facility. The Company's review
and assessment of the overall facility is ongoing. In November 2017, ASEA rescinded the prior order imposing the
fine. After reassessing the evidence and arguments presented, ASEA issued a new resolution on March 9, 2018, containing
a lower, revised fine and including remedial obligations. In March 2018, the Company submitted a proposal for remedial
measures. On April 26, 2018, the Company appealed the fines in the most recent order.

In December 2018, ASEA approved the Company's remedial plan for the facility, which will involve an amendment to the
facility's permit to allow for on-site, in-situ remediation of the one treatment cell subject to ASEA's original order.

In June 2018, the Company instituted both civil and criminal legal proceedings in Mexico against the company from which
it acquired the relevant facility, seeking to hold the seller liable for any remediation
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as well as lost profits and damages. The defendants named in the civil complaint filed their answers in September 2018
and evidence is being heard in this matter.

The Company has accrued its estimate of the probable loss and costs necessary to comply with the ASEA order and
remediate the treatment cell, which are not material.

Tacoma, Washington. On October 7, 2019, the State of Washington Department of Ecology (“Washington Ecology”) issued
an Administrative Order alleging violations of Washington regulations and the facility operating permit for our hazardous
waste facility in Tacoma, Washington during 2018 and ordering compliance with Chapter 70.105 Revised Code of
Washington, Hazardous Waste Management Act, Chapter 173-303 Washington Administrative code, Dangerous Waste
Regulations, and Dangerous Waste Management Facility Permit WAD020257945 effective March 22, 2012. The
Administrative Order identified certain alleged violations and associated corrective actions for the Tacoma Facility to take
upon receipt of the Order. Washington Ecology also issued an associated Notice of Penalty, assessing a fine of $1.9
million.

On November 5, 2019, the Company appealed the fine to the state Pollution Control hearings Board. A hearing is
scheduled to take place in November, 2020. The Company intends to vigorously defend itself against these allegations.

The Company has accrued its estimate of the probable loss for these collective matters, which is not material.

Rancho Cordova, California. On June 25 and 26, 2018, the California Department of Toxic Substances Control ("DTSC")
conducted a Compliance Enforcement Inspection of the Company’s facility in Rancho Cordova, California. On October 7,
2019, the Company learned that DTSC has referred alleged violations of California’s Hazardous Waste Control Law and the
facility's hazardous waste permit arising from the inspection to the Environmental Section of the California Attorney
General's Office for enforcement.

Separately, on August 15, 2019, the Company received from DTSC a written Intent to Deny Hazardous Waste Facility Permit
application for the Rancho Cordova Facility. A public hearing was held on September 22, 2019, and the public comment
period closed on October 25, 2019. The Company entered a written submission as part of that process. Next, DTSC will
issue a final permit decision. If DTSC were to deny the permit renewal, the Company has the right to file an administrative

appeal.

The Company has not accrued any amounts in respect of these alleged violations and cannot estimate the reasonably
possible loss or the range of reasonably possible losses that it may incur. The Company is unable to make such an
estimate because (i) litigation is by its nature uncertain and unpredictable and (ii) in the Company's judgment, the factual
and legal allegations asserted by plaintiffs are sufficiently unique that it is unable to identify other proceedings with
circumstances sufficiently comparable to provide guidance in making estimates.

DEA Investigation — Rancho Cordova, California and Indianapolis, Indiana. On February 11, 2020, the Company received an
administrative subpoena from the DEA, which executed a search warrant at the Rancho Cordova facility and an
administrative inspection warrant at the Company's facility in Indianapolis, Indiana for materials related to Stericycle's
business of shipping and destroying controlled substances. On that same day, agents from the DTSC executed a separate
search warrant at the Rancho Cordova facility. The Company is cooperating fully with the DEA and DTSC in response to
their investigations of Stericycle, including with the government's activity at the Company's Rancho Cordova and
Indianapolis facilities.

The Company has not accrued any amounts in respect of these investigations and cannot estimate the reasonably possible
loss or the range of reasonably possible losses that it may incur. The Company is
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unable to make such an estimate because (i} litigation is by its nature uncertain and unpredictable and (i) in the Company’s
judgment, the factual and legal allegations asserted by plaintiffs are sufficiently unigue that it is unable to identify other
proceedings with circumstances sufficiently comparable to provide guidance in making estimates.

The Company intends to vigorously defend itself against these ailegations and actions.

NOTE 21 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes our unaudited consolidated quarterly results of operations as reported for 2019 and 2018:

In millions, except per share data

First Quarter Second Third Quarter Fourth
2019 Quarter 2019 2019 Quarter 2019 Year 2019

Revenues $ 8301 $ 8458 $ 8331 % 7999 $ 3,308.9
Gross profit 2971 3026 2953 2795 1,174.5
Goodwill impairment 20.9 - - 2074 228.3
Divestiture fosses, net of (gains) (5.4) 0.3 832 249 103.0
Loss on early extinguishment of debt - 23.1 - - 23.1
Net loss attributable to Stericycle, inc. common shareholders (37.8) (30.5) (59.2} (219.3} (346.8)
* Basic loss per common share $ 042) § {0.33) § (0.65) % (241) § (3.81)
* Diluted loss per common share $ 042) § (033) § (0.65) § 241 % (3.81)
In millions, except per share data

First Quarter Second Third Quarter Fourth

2018 Quarter 2018 2018 Quarter 2018 Year 2013

Revenues $ 8950 § 8833 % 8549 § 8527 § 3,485.9
Gross profit 358.5 3533 3353 3287 1,376.0
Goodwill impairment - - - 358.7 3587
Divestiture |losses, net of (gains) 4.1 7.3 1.6 0.2) 12.8
Net {loss) income attributable to Stericycle, Inc, 22.5 27.7 235 (318.4) (244.7)
Preferred stock dividend (8.8) (8.3} (84) - (25.5}
Net {loss) income attributable to Stericycle, Inc. common
shareholders 21.0 266 17.5 (318.4) (253.3)
* Basic earnings {loss) per common share $ 025 % 031 % 020 $ (3.51) % (2.91)
* Diluted earnings {loss) per common share $ 025 §% 031 4 020 % (351) § (2.91)

* EPS calcutated on a quarterly basis, and, as such, the amounts may not total the calculated full-year EPS.
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